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Introduced: 1/10/84
Referred: Health, Education & Social
Services, House Special Committee on 
State Loans and Finance

BY HAYES, HURLBERT. ADAMS, AB00D, 
BARNES, BUUSELL, CATO, COWDERY, DAVIS, 
FULLER, FUINACE, GRUSSENDORF, HERRMANN 
KOPONEN, L 1 N D A U E R , LISKA, MALONE, 
MARTIN, M.W.MILLER, RINGSTAD, SHULTZ, 
SZYMANSKI, JEHLING, WARD, ZHAROFF,

1 IN THE H OU S E  FRITZ, BETTtSWORTH AND MCBRIDE

2 HOUSE BILL NO. 504

3 IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA

4 THIRTEENTH LEGISLATURE - SECON.) SESSION

5 A BILL

6 For an Act entitled: "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship loan

7 program."

8 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

9 * Section 1. AS 14.43 is amended by adding new sections to read:

10 ARTICLE 7. TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP LOA1I PROGRAM.

11 Sec. 14.43.600. FINDINGS AND INTENT. (a) The legislature finds

12 that there is a wide and unacceptable disparity between the et h n ic

J  ( \
13 dis t r i bu t i o n  of teachers kind the ethnic d i s t r i t u t i r n ) oF' ^students in

14 the state public schools. Particularly in rural areas, many schools

15 have virtually no Native teachers and no non-Native students. The

16 undesirable effects of this disparity include the following:

17 (1) there is a serious weakness in the ability of teaching

18 .staffs, particularly in rural schools, to foster a sense of (ethnic)

& M '
19 . >" traditions and cultures in the students;

20 (2) many rural students are forced to exist in two entirely

21 separate situations: the essentially traditional atmosphere of many

22 Native homes, and the essentially modern atmosphere of the classroom;
r C 1' / \

23 (3) almost no/qftudents among the s t a t e’s ethnic minorities)

24 return to rural schools to teach, continuing the f e t h n i c )  imbalance and

25 exacerbating its effects; and

26 (4) there is an annual turnover of 40 percent among teach-

27 ers in rural educational attendance areas in the state.

28 (b) The legislature further finds that existing programs have

29 failed to increase the proportion of / , . . \ (members of ethnic minorities]
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1 teaching in rural schools. Therefore, it is the intent of the legis-

2 lature to e s tablish the teacher scholarship loan program to encourage

3 ( members of ethnic minorities] to return to rural schools as teachers

4 and relieve the conditions described in this section.

5 Sec. 14.43.010. PROGRAM ESTABLISHED. There is established the, I  !

6 teacher scholarship loan program to provide an incentive for graduates

7 (of Alaska high schools,who are from ethnic minorities]to pursue teach-

.8 ing careers in (Alaska schools.] r  J

9 Sec. 14.43.620. TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP REVOLVING LOAN FUND. There

10 is created a teacher scholarship revolving loan fund. The fund shall

11 be used to make scholarship loans to students selected under AS 14.-

12 43.600 - 14.43.650. All repayments of principal and interest on

13 teacher scholarship loans shall be paid into the teacher scholarship

14 revolving fund and shall be used to make new teacher s cholarship

15 loans. If estimated funds available from teacher scholarship loan

16 repayments are inadequate to fully fund estimated teacher s cholarship

17 loans for any fiscal year, additional funding from the general fund

18 may be requested and appropriated for that year.

19 Sec. 14.43.630. A D M I N I S T R A T I O N . The teacher scholarship loan

20 program shall be administered by the student financial aid committee

21 (AS 14.43.095) in accordance with,, regulations . adopted ,by the
/ ( W b y f / T F T  . A v a *  U'.rti W -

22 committee. The committee shall(distribute] the (funds) available for

23 teacher scholarship loans annually to local school boards giving a

J4 preference to school districts with a high percentage of /students in
O  ZCv fj T*4 • s J  t t •

25 ethnic minorities ) and a low percentage of (^teachers in ethnic

26 minorities^ The local school boards shall select the recipients of

27 the teacher scholarship loans.

28 Sec. 14 43.640. CONDITIONS OF LOANS. ^Each school district shall

29 award teacher scholarship loans subject to the following conditions:
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s/-vr
i w  the conditions provided in AS 14.43.120 apply except

2 that no loans may be made to graduate students .(^nd the state shall

3 repay a p o r t i o n  of a teacher scholarship loan under AS 14.43.120(j )

4 only if, in addition to the other criteria, the b o r rower is also

5 employed as a public school teacher in the state during the period for

6 w hich the loan is forgiven

if a borrower meets the conditions provided in puia-

A .
grtrph (Jr'J’ of this section and is employed as a public school teacher j j  

a . A J » » M « ... /
in the district. Lrtn* which the borrower graduated, the portion of the .L 1LL|

10 loan that shall be paid by the state is the following percentages of "

11 the total loan received plus interest up to a total of 100 percent of

12 the total loan:

13 (A) one year employment, 15 percent;

14 (D) two years employment, an additional 15 percent;

15 (C) three years employment, an additional 15 percent;

16 (D) four years employment, an additional 25 percent;

17 (E) over four years employment, an additional 30 per-

18 c e n t ; and

19 (3) a loan may not exceed $10,000 in a school year.

20 Sec. 14.43.650. SELECTION CRITERIA. (a) To be eligible for a

21 teacher scholarship loan, a student must

22 v (1) be a graduate of, or scheduled for g raduation within

.  i/ 's*  •(
23 Qb'six months from, a -state-pu b l ic high school, with sufficient credits

24 to be admitted to an accredited college or university;

25 (2) be enrolled in or show eviden' j of intent to enroll in

26 a degree p r o g r a m directed at a teaching career at the elementary or

27 secondary school level; and

28 (3) meet the conditions set by the student's local school

29 district wit h  respect to the d i s t r i c t’s requirements for teachers in
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1 particular subject areas.

2 (b) Eac h  school district shall award teacher scholarship loans

3 in direct propo r t i o n  to tie distribution of ethnic groups among the

4 students e ligible for g r aduation from the school district each year.

5 (c) A student may not be awarded a scholarship loan under

6 AS 14.43.090 - 14.43.160 and a teacher scholarship loan under AS 14.-

7 43.600 - 14.43.650 for the same school year.
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HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATION & SOCIAL SERVICES 

STANDING COMMITTEE 
Kotzebue, Alaska 

February 3, 1984 

1:05 p.m.

Members Present: Rep. Tischer, Chairman (In Kotzebue)

Rep. Pestinger, Vice-Chair (via 
teleconference in Juneau)

Rep. t’Jehling (via teleconference in Juneau)

Rep. Martin (via teleconference in 
Anchorage)

Rep. Davis (via teleconference in Juneau) 

Rep. Goll (via teleconference in Juneau) 

Rep. Koponen (via teleconference in Juneau) 

Members Absent: None

COMMITTEE CALENDAR

HB 504 "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship
loan program."

WITNESS REGISTER

Rep. Hayes 
Pouch V
State Capitol Building 

Juneau, Alaska 99811 

465-1965
Position Statement: Sponsor of HB 504; reviewed reasons for

writing the bill.

Russell Jones

Special Assistant to the President 
Legislative Affairs 
University of Alaska

Position Statement: Generally supported HB 504, saying that the
number of Native teachers is far too few, 
but he had several questions which detracted 
from his complete support.

Evellyn Conwell 
Member

Regional School Board 

Kotzebue, Alaska
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Nita Towarok 

Teacher
Kotzebue Middle School 

Kotzebue, Alaska
Position Statement: Supports HB 504.

Jackie Hill 
Supervisor

Northwest Arctic School District 
Kotzebue, Alaska
Position Statement: HB 504 is excellent incentive for rural

students to get higher education.

Helen Chamberlain 
Counselor
Kotzebue Technical Center 

Kotzebue, Alaska

Position Statement: Supports intent of bill but had several
qualms which abrogated support for the bill 
as written.

Kerry Romesburg 

Executive Director 
Postsecondary Education Commission 

Pouch F

Juneau, Alaska 99811 
465-2854

Position Statement: If a person with a Bachelor's degree
returned to school to get an MA in teaching, 

the MA would be considered an extension of 
his BA, thus, he could get this loan for 
that purpose.

Susy Ehrlich 
Advisory School Board 
Kotzebue, Alaska
Position Statement: Very strongly supports the intent of this

bill.

Wesley Goodwin 
Student
Kotzebue High School 
Kotzebue, Alaska
Position Statement: Strongly supports HB 504.

Calvin Baker 
Principal
Kotzebue Middle School 
Kotzebue, Alaska
Position Statement: Strongly supports intent of HB 504.

James Elliot

Position Statement: Supports the intent of HB 504.
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Superintendent
Northwest Arctic School District 

Kotzebue, Alaska

Position Statement: Supports intent of HB 504, cited several
short comings.

Marie Schwind 

President

Maniilaq Association 
Kotzebue, Alaska 

442-3311
Position Statement: Maniilaq supports without nualifications the

language and intent of bill.

Nina Bradfield 

Director

Instructional Support 
Chukchi Community College 
Kotzebue, Alaska 

442-3400
Position Statement: Applauds Intent of HB 504, but did have

concerns.

Jean Robb 

NEA Alaska 

Box 193
Kotzebue, Alaska 

442-3510
Position Statement: Observer.

Rita Ryder 
Box 792
Kotzebue, Alaska
442-3400

Position Statement: Fully supports HB 504.

Dennis Trepelman 
Former President 
Maniilaq Association 

President
Kotzebue Village Corporation 

Box 279
Kotzebue, Alaska
442-3460
Position Statement: Supports HB 504.

Beverly Grogin 
Teacher
Chukchi Community College 

Kotzebue, Alaska
442-3400
Position Statement: Getting people to return to rural regions

very important; supports HB 504.
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Reggie Jewel

NANA

Box 49
Kotzebue, Alaska
442-3301
Position Statement: Supports PB 504.

Eric Madsen 
X-CED 

Box 297
Kotzebue, Alaska

442-3819
Position Statement: Agrees with Dennis Trepelman.

Sharon Oyoumick 
Graduate

Seattle Pacific University 

Kotzebue, Alaska
Position Statement: Fully supports bill.

Sharon Moore 
NANA Museum 

Box 45
Kotzebue, Alaska

442-3301
Position Statement: Supports prior testimony.

PREVIOUS ACTION

HB 504 1/10/84 - First Reading.

Committee Referrals - HESS, Loans and 
Finance Committees.

No previous action in HESS Committee.

ACTION NARRATIVE

TAPE//1, Side A 

Recording 
Number 0006 Chairman Tischer called the House Health, 

Education ft Social Services Committee to 

order at 1:05 at the Kotzebue Technical 
Center. Members present in Juneau via 
teleconference were Representatives Uehling, 
Davis, Martin and Pestinger. Also present 

were Russell Jones and Rep. Hayes.

Number 0058 Rep. Koponen is now in attendance in Juneau.

Number 0084 Chairman Tischer called Rep. Hayes to 
testify.
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Number 0089 F.ep. Hayes, sponsor of HB 504 comes to the 
stand. He said there is too much disparity 

between rural and urban education 
experience.

Number 012.5 Rep, Hayes continues. In at least 13 
districts there are no Native teachar? and 
the annual turnover is 50%.

Number 0131

Number 0153

Number 0170

Rep. Hayes; $4 million in 1980 for teacher 
training.

He said the intent of HB 504 is to place 
more Native teachers in rural Alaska. HB 

504 makes forgiveness easier and encourages 
teaching profession, said Rep. Hayes.

Rep. Hayes continues testimony. It will 
reduce turnover rate and preserve Native 
cultural heritage and all Alaskans will 
benefit.

Number 0208

Number 0248

Russell Jones, Special Assistant,

Legislative Office for University of Alaska 

comes to the stand to testify on HB 504. He 

said the number of Native teachers is too 
low. He questions Page 3, Lines 7 - 11, 
"forgiveness". Asks if one must return to 

his exact village, even If recommended for 
scholarship from another village.

He asked for age requirements; must be 
immediate last year's graduate or could it 

be a 20-25 year old who could become a great 
teacher?

Number 0268

Number 0274

Number 0286 

Number 02p3

Number 0300

Rep. Koponen questions Mr. Jones; suggest 
any changes to current wording?

Mr. Jones; broader bill - so candidate must 
not go back to exact district; but any 
comparable district, and still get 
forgiveness.

Rep. Koponen said language is the problem.

Rep. Davis agrees with Rep. Koponen and 
Russell Jones, put in a language 
requirement.

Rep. Martin in Anchorage: Agrees with Mr.
Jones. When there is an overload of 
students from one area they should be
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Number 0396 

Number 0417

Tape 1, Side 3 
Recording 

Number 0001

Number 0010

Number 0036 

Number 0048

Number 0075

Number 0099 

Number 0113 

HOUSE HESS

Number 0318

Number 0340

eligible to teach in a comparable regional 

area. We should be more flexible, said Rep. 

Martin.

Chairman Tischer suggested members look at 
map of rural area. School districts are 
very large. Bill sponsor interested in 
preserving the ethnic cohesion.

Evellyn Conwell, Regional School Board 
Member in Kotzebue welcomes people and said 

she supports HB 504. Ethnic minorities are 
needed and is aware of the need for programs 

like this which compliments the EXCEED 

Program. As board member, they will make 

personal commitment to hire more Native 
teachers, however, only qualified teachers.

Rep. Martin in Anchorage: What about
marriage during college? What about 

forgiveness when -students move to others' 

home town?

Nita Towarok, Teacher, Kotzebue Middle 
School; supports bill, but concerned with 

language on page 3, line 1; no loans to 
graduate students. It excludes students who 

want to return to learn to teach.

Nita Towarok continues testimony.

Chairman Tischer said regular Alaska Student 
Loan is not restrictive in this way. They 
still have that option.

Nita Towarok said loan should apply to all 
rural students.

Rep. Koponen asked about success of the loan 

program, and how many students are 
interested in teaching?

Jackie Hill, Supervisor, Northwest Arctic 
School District; HB 504 is excellent 

incentive for rural students to go into 
education. Asked why it wasn't applicable 
to private schools?

Chairman Tischer agreed to make suggestion 

to sponsor of bill and include all schools.

Helen Chamberlain, Kotzebue Technical

-6- 2/3/84



Number 0182 

Number 0201

Number 0262

Number C274 

Number 0293

Number 0310 

Number 0322

Number 0362 

HOUSE HESS

Center, had the following questions and 
concerns:

1. restricted to public schools and what 
about those with GED?

2. concerned about elimination of graduate 

students.

3. why not be able to apply for both Alaska 
Student Loan and this at the same time?

Just applying does not ensure the full 
amount.

Kerry Romesburg said a person with a 
Baccalaureat degree could return to get MA 

in teaching, and that part would be 

considered as extension of his BA.

Susy Ehrlich, Local Advisory School Board; 
very strongly in support for this effort.
It will enhance student if we have 

successful Native role models.

Ms. Ehrlich: Cultural empathy; when

educators from different culture dominate, 

some of the value of the culture is lost.

Chairman Tis-her asks Ms. Ehrlich, why 
h a ven’t we ever seen flood of Native 

students to return as teachers? They have 

the original loan.

Susy Ehrlich said they see no opportunity, 
i t’s invisible to them.

Rep. Koponen asked definition of district to 
which student must return. Could we broaden 

the bill to include a language requirement 

instead of strictly district.

Rep. Pestinger referred to Page 3; add - 
"return to region of same or similar ethnic 
and linguistic origin."

Calvin Baker, Principal, Kotzebue Middle and 

High School; strong 7 }  supports for intent of 
bill. He said when Native teachers are on 
staff, its much easier to meet the needs of 
community and s-udents.

Rep. Goll is now present.
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Tape 2, Side A 
Recording 

Number 0001

Number 0050 

Number 0062

Number 0095

Number 0371

Number 0414

Number 0200 

Number 020?

Number 0220 

Number 0266

Rep. Goll questions the constitutionality of 
the bill.

Mr. Baker said the bill is an excellent 

vehicle for attacking the problem; expressed 
concern about language of bill.

Rep. Goll asks Mr. Baker; what about 
expanding existing student loan to have 

additional incentives and not create a new 
HB 504.

Mr. Baker continues; just expand original 
bill. Intimated at question not 
constitutionality of the racial 
qualifications of HB 504.

Chairman Tischer stated that the Attorney 
General is drafting a legal statement.

Wesley Goodwin, Student, Kotzebue High 
School; reassuring to know that people care 
about students in these regions.

James Elliot, Superintendent, Northwest 
Arctic School District; supports concept o/ 
this bill. We have 8 (of 107) Native 
teachers in this district, 98% native 
students and the turnover is 11.6% said Mr. 
Elliot. We have strong commitment to hire 
district graduates and glad that HB 504 
gives discretion to choose school boards.
He cited shortcomings of the bill and the 
value of Natives teaching Natives.

Mr. Elliot passed copv of marked bill to 
Chairman Tischer.

Rep. Koponen: How many of Arctic Villages
have 4-year high schools?

Mr. Elliot: All, but one.

Rep. Goll asks Mr. Elliot the same questions 
he asked Mr. Baker. Also, what about 
modifying existing student loan program?

Marie Schwind, President, Maniilaq 
Association said she was happy to have 

Chairman Tischer and staff in Kotzebue. She 
said Maniilaq Association supports without 
qualifications the language and intent of HB

HOUSE HESS -8- 2/3/84



504.

Number 0380 

Number 0387 

Number 0410

Tape 2, Side B 
Recording 
Number 0001

Number 0065

Number 0085

Number 0126

Number 0203 

Number 0238

Number 0275

Number 0357

Ms. Schwind cited percentages concerning 

ratio of Native teachers to Native students.

Nina Bradfield, Director, Instructional 
Support; applaud intent of HB 504, concerned 

that this bill may penalize students who 
fail in college - they both fail in college 
and have a debt. What about those who can't 
find work in their home districts? They 

have a debt and no job.

Rep. Goll asks Ms. Bradfield the same 

question about modifying existing bill.

Ms. Bradfield; would like to modify the 
bill.

Camille Z.; supports intent of bill, but 

does bill exclude non-high school students? 
She said she graduated long ago, but wants 
to return.

Rep. Goll said there are other loan 

programs.

Rep. Pestinger restated language change 
suggested before.

Rita Ryder, Administrative Record Clerk at 
Chukchi College; fully supports HB 504, it 

will help bridge cultural gap.

Dennis Trepelman, former Maniilaq President, 
President of Kotzebue Village Corporation; 
encouraged HB 504, percentage of Native 

teachers far too low. He said the turnover 
is sometimes higher than 40%.

Dennis Trepelman continues. He agrees with 
language on Page 2, Lines 20-26.

Mr., Trepelman considers requirement of 
demonstration, first semester of first year. 
Money is lost often by drop-outs. We should 

have U of A aware of rural issues, said Mr. 
Trepelman. He encourages passage of HB 504.

Dennis Trepelman; NANA scholarships derived 
from contributions from other business or
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Number 0352 

Number 0361

Number 0391

Number 0404 

Number 0410

Tape 3, Side A 
Recording 
Number 0001

Number 0051

Number 0109

Number 0306

Number 0327

corporations. We take and look at all 
applications, what is written well, and 

promises to benefit both corporation and 
village, and them, we view highly.

Chairman Tischer said some selection 
criteria leans toward what applicant can do 
for NANA later? (Yes).

Beverly Grogin, Chukchi Community College; 

getting people to return to these regions 
for all jobs is very important.

Ms. Grogin; I’d like to see district 
encouraged to hire Natives if possible or 

people who love the area.

Reggie Jewel, Board Director, NANA Regional 
Corporation; supports HB 504. It is needed 

and agrees with Camille Z., that this bill 

should be broadened to include those already 
out of high school or who have already done 
some college.

Reggie Jewel; really need positive role 
models for Natives, and agrees with Dennis 
Trepelman's testimony.

Rep. Koponen: Might not this loan be
supplemented by direct scholarship?

Mr. Jewel; agree with Dennis Trepelman's 
suggestion that perhaps a student go to 
school for a year or semester to help weed 
those who would not make It.

Eric Madsen agrees with Mr. Trepelman's 
statement and would like the language change 
as suggested.

Chairman Tischer; how do you feel about 
opening bill to extent that it might be 

short funded?

Rachel 0.: fully supports HB 504. She said, 
do not exclude private school graduates from 
this loan, and was concerned that other 

majors such as administration be included as 

eligible for this bill.
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Number 0169 Chairman Tischer; was your adjustment 
difficult?

Number 0182 Rachel 0.; yes quite, I almost quit, but I 
did adjust.

Number 0189 Chairman Tischer; if the college experience 

were the first contact with metropolitan 
life, could that have a lot to do with 
failure?

Rachel 0.: Y e s .

Number 0215

Number 0250

Number 0301

Rep. Koponen: are there incentives built in
programs for areas where problem is just the 
opposite?

Sharon Moore, NANA Museum for Arctic: 

Supports prior testimony, concerned with 

public high school restriction, and on Page 
3, Line 9, support change of language.

Chairman Tische:; thanks witnesses of 

Kotzebue for testifying and calls for recess 
at 3:12 p.m.
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HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATION & SOCIAL SERVICES 

STANDING COMMITTEE 

Nome, Alaska 
February 4, 1984 

10:50 a.m.
:

Members Present: Rep. Tischer, Chairman (In Kotzebue)

Rep. Pestinger, Vice-Chair (via 
teleconference in Juneau)

Rep. Davis (via teleconference in Juneau)

Rep. Martin (via teleconference in Juneau)

Rep. Goll (via teleconference in Juneau)

Rep. Koponen (via teleconference in Juneau)

Rep. Uehling (via teleconference in Juneau)

Members Absent: None

COMMITTEE CALENDAR

HB 504 "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship

loan program."

WITNESS REGISTER

Nancy Mendenhall
Northwest Community college

Pouch 400
Nome, Alaska
443-2201
Position Stetement: Supports HB 504.

Ken Kristenson 
NEA Alaska 

Box 1508 

N o m e , Alaska
443-2559
Position Statement: Supports HB 504.

Ralph Gabrielli
Northwest Community College

Pouch 400
Nome, Alaska
443-2201
Position Statement: Supports HB 504.

Jenny Alowa
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Box 1007 
Nome, Alaska

443-5641
Position Statement: Supported HB 504.

Willie Willoya 
Nome, Alaska

443-2688
Position Statement: Favored HB 504.

Susie Silook 

Box 1902 
Nome, Alaska

443-2201

Position Statement: Supported HB 504,

Helga Eakon
Unalakleet, Alaska

Position Statement: Favored HB 504.

Herbert Ivanoff
City Administrator

Unalakleet, Alaska

Position Statement: Favored HB 504.

Alfred White 

Principal

Unalakleet High School

Unalakleet, Alaska
Position Statement: Favored HB 504.

PREVIOUS ACTION

HB 504 1/10/84 - First Reading.

Committee Referrals - HESS, Loans and 

Finance Committees.

See HESS minutes of February 3, 1984.

ACTION NARRATIVE

TAPE//1, Side A
Recording
Number 0001 Chairman Tischer welcomes all witnesses in

Kotzebue. Members present in Juneau; 
Representatives Davis, Martin, Goll, Koponen 

and Uehling. Representatives Hayes and 

Hurlbert are observing.

Number 0003 Nancy Mendenhall; involved in teaching
education for four years, she said there
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were 15 students in the teacher education 
program, and 8 students in the EXEED 
Program.

Number 0022 Ms. Mendenhall likes the bill; it's well 

stated. She said they have a very serious 
problem in their region with the lack of 
Native children.

Number 0032

Number 0064

Number 0086

Number 0092

Number 0139

The EXCEED Program is not working as it 

takes too long, these people need to become 
full-time student. HB 504 would help 

correct that problem, said Nancy Mendenhall.

Ms. Mendenhall: Natives with BA degree are
in great demand. This bill will be a great 

incentive for them to return to their 
community and that they are very important 

role models.

Nancy Mendenhall stated HB 504 is an 
outstanding bill.

Rep. Hayes, sponsor of HB 504 comes to the 
stand. He said the student loan program is 
aimed at getting students who graduated to 

return to their villages. Rep. Hayes said 
there is too much disparity between rural 
and urban education experience. In at least 

13 districts there are no Native teachers 
and the annual turnover is 50%. The intent 
of HB 504 is to place more Native teachers 
in rural Alaska; the bill makes forgiveness 
easier and encourages teaching profession.
It will reduce turnover rate and preserve 

Native cultural heritage and all Alaskans 
will benefit, said Rep. Hayes.

Rep. Hayes further stated that this bill 
will create a larger pool of qualified 

Native teachers and a stronger sense of the 
values of the rural cultures.

Number 0164 Alfred White, Principle, Unalakleet High 
School: Thanks for the opportunity to
speak, pleased particularly with this bill,. 
But, public school graduates only - not 

acceptable. He read the testimony to be 
sent to Juneau, and he recognized the need 
since 1959. Mr. White stated that private 
school students are being discriminated 

against.

Number 0195 Mr. White continues his testimony. The
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Number 0306 

Number 0324

Number 0350 

Number 0361

Number 0390

Number 0441

Number 0487

Tape 1, Side B 
Recording 
Number 0001

Number 0240

Number 0255

success of private schools is widely 
accepted, and that some areas have only one 
high school and what if it is private? He 
encouraged to increase the b i l l’s scope.

Rep. Koponen: Speaker made a good
statement, we'll be working with you, 

Chairman Tischer when you return.

Ken Kristenson, NEA Alaska: There is a

great lack of role models for students, and 
the increasing number of students wish to go 
on in school. He said, this bill will give 
us something to show them it's special for 

them to get educated and return. Ken 

Kristenson said NEA supports HB 504.

Helga F.akon from Unalakleet: She read a 

written testimony.

Helga Eakon: Happy to testify in support of 

HB 504, the findings and intent are 
accurate. She said, we need teachers who 
understand our culture.

Group other than Alaska School Board should 
not choose students, said Ms. Eakon.

Eligibility should not depend upon 
graduating from public school. This is 
unconstitutional, said Helga Eakon.

Ike Wowakok: Native pride is a stepping
stone to realize we have something unique 
and important. In our rapidly changing 
culture, education helps to make adjustments 

easier. Private school graduates not 
allowed, is unfair and discriminating.

Rep. Davis: We are going to work on that

point in the legislation, that complaint was 
brought up yesterday, it's a very good 
observation.

Jenny Alowa: Originally from Sevonge.

Jenny Alowa continues testimony. Working 

toward MA degree, thank you for the chance 
to speak. Sometimes it takes the top level 
to change things or motivate. The bill Is 

very positive; it has already made an
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Number 0035

Number 0062

Number 0072

Number 0100

Number 0128

Number 0170

Number 0206

Number 0217

impact. Our children do need successful 
role models. EXCEED teachers are over­
worked and undei paid. They must work too 

hard too long.

Jenny Alowa: Local school districts very
slow in moving people up any career ladder. 

Curriculum also a problem, it limits people 
sometimes.

Jenny Alowa: This is a conflict between the
various cultures, hut our children are very 
adaptable, and fewer and fewer are being 

lured to urban areas.

Jenny Alowa: Local Community Colleges have
been a great advantage to the villages. So 
has state wide satellite, Channel 13.

Chairman Tischer:. How would it affect your 

thinking to that offer borrowing $40,000.
You might change your decision and not 

teach, or you might marry and go without 
your mate to another area?

Jenny Alowa: This is limiting. If one
returns to any area within the state, they 
should have forgiveness.

Lawrence Olson, Executive Director; fully 
supports the bill, and restated, should not 
be restricted to public school graduates.
He added, our high school has students from 

all over Western Alaska, please include 
private schools.

Ralph Gabrielli, Education Teacher for (4) 

years, Northwest Community College:

Probably 30 students in this area are moving 
toward AA or BA degrees. These are very 
fine motivated students who sacrificed 

greatly for only 9 credits per semester. 
Thus, it takes 7 years to gel BA.

Ralph Gabrielli continues, strongly support 
HB 504. The money will provide options not 

currently available.

Mr. Gabrielli: Students who take this loan
will be risking a great deal. They may not 

finish their college, there may be no jobs 
available.

HOUSE HESS 2/4/84
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Number 0248

Number 0291

number 03i4

Number 0345

Number 0374

Number 0405

Number 0431

Number 0484

Tape 2, Side A 
Recording 
Number 0001

Number 0012

Mr. Gabrielli continues: Committee should
consider forgiveness for returning to any 
rural area in Alaska.

Ralph Gabrielli: Addressing the spirit

behind the bill; in Alaska, 35 Natives who 
care called Aides, but who take great 

responsibility for classroom. Perhaps some 
special legislation could make them full­
time teachers, because that is what they are 
doing now.

Willie Willoya, former school teacher; as 
this bill stands, I am against it. It's a 
political football - the administration 

Clause may work against ethnic community.

Mr. Willoya: The things not firmly
established in bill will work against the 
Natives in the area.

Mr. Willoya continues testimony. In 5 
years, Sec. 14.43.360 will work against 
villages. I suggest that if legislators 
really want Native teachers, they establish 

a two year grant program to any Native who 

wants it. No politics, no time consuming 
things besides teaching courses.

Willie Willoya: The people who really want
to make it, they can, if they don't have 
families to feed.

Mr. Willoya refers to Sec. 14.43.650. 
SELECTION CRITERIA. His concern was, most 
people don't know until their second year if 

they want to be a teacher.

You could have A and B students teach C and 
D students to help pinpoint the best and 
help them decide if they want to spend a 

life teaching, said Mr. Willoya.

Mr. Willoya said HB 504 does not define 
philosophies.

Mr. Willoya continues his testimony: If

those whc will choose students for 
scholarships.

Chairman Tischer: Hi fd you get MA's?
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Number 0050

Mr. Willoya: Kuskokwim Community College
and Barrow. I have close to 7 other Masters 

degree if I want to finish them. Extension 
programs.

Herbert Ivanhoff, City Administrator, 
Unalakleet: This bill is long over due. He
noted on Page 3, Sec. 14.43.650. SELECTION 

CRITERIA. Private schools should not be 

left out.

Number 0072

Number 0081

Mr. Ivanoff: Should be able to teach in r

private school, too.

Student should be able to return anywhere in 

rural Alaska, said Herbert Ivanhoff.

Number 0090

Number 0095 

Number 0116

Number 0148

Mr. Ivanoff refers to Sec. 

explanation.

3 and asks for

Chairman Tischer explained ’-he section.

Susie Silook, Administrative Assistant, 
Community College: Voices her support. I
sympathize with students who try to feed a 

family and get a degree. Outside teachers 

cannot always adopt their teaching to Native 

culture. We need Native teachers who can 
adapt knowledge to the culture.

Chairman Tischer: Clarified that if one

could not get this loan, there Is still the 

Alaska Student Loan.

Number 0221 

Number 0270

Helga Eakon: Refers to Sec. 14.43.650.

SELECTION CRITERIA: Clarity of first clause
- 6 months period, could a several year 

graduate also seek loan?

Chairman Tischer: Clarification.

Alfred White: Refers to Sec. 14.43.640.
CONDITIONS OF LOANS and the next paragraph. 

He feels that it is too restrictive.

Number 0313

Number 0384

Mr. White: School Roard select recipients
regarding a quota? Then if there are no 
qualified candidates, they would still have 

to pick someone, which would lower ti.e 

overall quality of students.

Edna Apatiki from Gamble: She is pursuing a
teaching certificate and is in support of HR 

504.
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Number 0481 Chairman Tischer called for a recess until
noon on Sunday, February 5, 1984.
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HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATION & SOCIAL SERVICES 
STANDING COMMITTEE 

February 6, 1984 
2:04 p.m.

Members Present: Rep. Tischer, Chairman

Rep. Pestinger, Vice-Chair 
Rep. Uehling 

Rep. Koponen 
Rep. Goll, late 
Rep. Davis, late

Members Absent: Rep. Martin

COMMITTEE CALENDAR

HB 504: "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship 
loan program."

WITNESS REGISTER

Jeff Day

Legislative Aide 

Rep. Hayes 
Pouch V
State Capitol Building 
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

465-3740

Position Statement: Urged passage of bill and clarified iv-ent

Kerry Romesburg 
Director
Postsecondary Education Commission 
Pouch

Department of Education 

Juneau, Alaska 99811

Position Statement: Represented the Attorney General's Office.

Rep. Hurlbert 
Pouch V
State Capitol Building 

Juneau, Alaska 99811 

465-3711

Position Statement: Clarified some provisions.

of HB 504

465-

PREVIOUS ACTION

HB 504 1/10/84 - First Reading.
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Committee Referrals - HESS, Loans and 

Finance Committee.

TAPE//1, Side A 

Recording 

Number 0001

Number 0048

Number 0131

Number 0150 

Number 0161

Number 0234

Number 0259 

Number 0266

See HESS minutes of February 3, 4 and 5, 
1984,

ACTION NARRATIVE

Chairman Tischer called the meeting to order 

at 2:04 p.m., recognized the members present 
and announced the committee will have a work 
session on HB 504.

Chairman Tischer reviewed the suggestions 
and concerns of the weekend hearings. She 

said she intended to change the language in 
the bill concerning "private schools."

Rep. Koponen asked who decides admission to 

a University? He said, we can't force 
University to accept credits from any high 
school.

Rep. Uchling asks Rep. Pestinger* Can we 
put Alaska high school or State high school?

Chairman Tischer said, we've got to be 

consistent. We will ask the legal drafter 
for exact language.

Page 3, Subsection 2. Condition of Loan.
The village dweller who went outside village 
to high school, or those students from 
different districts who marry and go to one 
spouse's home village, the other gets 
penalized.

Rep. Pestinger: Amendment, "of same or
similar ethnic and linguistic origin". Rc?p. 
Pestinger suggested that this change was 
consistent with testimony, and did not 
interfere with the intent of the bill. This 
seem a good change.

Representatives Goll and Davis arrived at 

2:25 p.m.

Jeff Day; to help with tie intent of the 

bill. Intent; they can return to a 

culturally linguistically similar area.
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Number 0278 Rep. Uehling; would this apply to any urban 
areas? We don't want to open It up this 
much.

Number 0296 Rep. Koponen: Some testimony stated support
for bill bee vase of the role model idea, 
this would be as viable for an urban Native 
as a rural one.

Number 0300

Number 0315

Number 0331

Number 0346

Number 0356

Number OjaO

Number 0375

Number 0376

Number 0379

Chairman Tischer: Exactly. How do you not
discriminate and still account? There is a 
large black population in Anchorage, for 
example.

Rep. Davis: What if one moves to city at 16

years? Is he not eligible for the loan?

Chairman Tischer: There is always the
Alaska Student Loan program available.

Rep. Pestinger: -I'm trying to look toward
the policy of bill, not legal mat :rs. How 

broad should our meddling be? Do you want 

me to look at the constitutionality of it?
As Chairman, T need your discretion.

Chairman Tischer: Answer for sponsor, the
intent of the bill is to keep handle on 
loan.. We want to encourage kids who are 
thinking about college to become teachers 
and go back to their rural area.

iep. Pestinger: Attorney General's legal
opinion you had drafted, any red flags?

Chairman Tischer gave the committee five 
minutes to review the legal document.

Rep. Davis: Perhaps we should ask Mr.
Romesburg to add his testimony. He's worked 
on the legal

Mr. Romesburg: The Attorney General raised
several questions about equal protection, 
and most of those can be addressed \,y 

dealing with preference rather than 
proportion. Preference in an area of 
unbalance will get you abound quotas. She 

also addressed the public/private high 
school part. She (Assistant Attorney 
General) said about forgiveness, don't 
restrict to school district. Intent is 
cultural similarity. School district and 
cultural similarity may not be the same
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Number 0417 

Number 0426
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Recording 
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Number 0020

Number 0057

Number 0073 

Number 0083 

Number 0085

Number 0092

Number 0095 
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HOUSE HESS

thing. Looking for ethnic balance. She 

liked going with each rural Alaska as 
returning point.

Rep. Goll asked to clarify the federal 
incentive loans, the forgiveness.

Rep. Goll; what's your recommendation for 
defining minority rural areas.

Rep. Goll said the intent of the bill is 

fine, but statistics show that people do 
return to rural Alaska. These constitutional 

problems would be overcome. Take Section 
640, line 28 - exclude part 3, 810,000.

Rep. Goll; include this part in the existing 
loan program. Rather than create a new 

program, just amend this Alaska State Loan 
Program with the same forgiveness for 

returning to rurql areas.

Kerry Romesburg: Doesn't address the
problem of mal-distribution of teachers.

Rep. Davis: I must leave soon, but could
Mr. Romesburg provide us with some written 

recommendations.

Rep. Uehling: Re; Rep. Gobi's suggestion to
change this but expand Alaska Student Loan 
Program.

Kerry Romesburg: If purpose is to recruit
for specific occupation, then fine.

Rep. Goll: Do you want to make a dollar

incentive?

Rep. Uehling: T want to make sure we put
this bill together without constitutional 
problems, and still keep the $ 1 0 , 0 0 0  in the 
loan.

Representatives Goll and Uehling: What
happens to the junior who changes his mind 
about becoming a teacher?

Chairman Tischer: He'll suffer vhe
consequences.

Mr. Romesburg: As written, I don't know why
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Number 0137

Number 0170 

Number 0191

Number 0204

Number 0209

Number 0217

Number 0226

Number 0238

Number 0240

any otudent would cake this loan. Because 

this program demands 1 0 0 % payback if you 

don't do exactly what the loan demands - 
gamble that you'll graduate with a teacher's 
degree and get a job in Alaska. Too many 

gambles.

Rep. Hurlbert: At first we had a provision

that you got 50% forgiveness if you taught 
anywhere in the state. Others clarified 
that provision still exists.

Rep. Davis agrees with Mr. Romesburg.

Rep. Hurlbert asks Mr. Romesburg: What doer
loan cover? Books, tuition, room and board ’1 
No travel. Rep. Hurlbert suggested to add 
travel as an expense covered by loan.

Chairman Tischer to Mr. Romesburg: With

more forgiveness r what impact on idea that 
program will eventually be a revolving fund?

Kerry Romesburg: This loon will become a

revolving fund, about 1 of 5 students ever 
gets forgiveness.

Chairman Tischer: Rural folks concerned

about paying back that money.

Mr. Romesburg: Same as anyone else, 10 year
pay back. Then you could extend that 5 
years under the Hardship Rule.

Rep. Goll: Do we have a fiscal note hern?

Why such a low fiscal note?

Mr. Romesburg: So low, because this fund
comes from the same fund as the Alaska 
Student Loan fund.

Number 0257

Number 0289

Chairman Tischer: Another questions the
folks brought up, I'm going to take this 
lean and go to U of A,A. Second year, 

switch majors. I suggested they should then 
switch to original Alaska State Loan 
Program, then I advised them to start out 
with the Alaska State Loan anyway because no 
matter what you graduate in, it's forgiven.

Rep. Uehling: Concerned about potential
liability of $80,000 loan.

Number 0302 Rep. Hurlbert: What about leaving some of
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this to the discretion of the post-secondary 

board. We can't foresee all circumstances.

Number 317 Chairman Tischer adjourned the meeting.
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AFFILIATED WITH THE NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

A N C H O R A G E  R E G IO N A L  O F F IC E

1411 W 33RD 
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 99503 

(907) 274-0536

JU N E A U  O F F IC E

147 S. FRANKLIN *207 
JUNEAU. ALASKA 99801 

(907) 586-3090

F A IR B A N K S  R E G IO N A L  O F F IC E

2118 CUSHMAN STREET 
FAIRBANKS. ALASKA 99701 

(907) 456 4435

TO: Mae Tischer, Chairman
House HESS Committee 
Members of the Committee

DATE: February 21, 1984

RE: HB 504; "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship loan program."

NEA-Alaska strongly supports and encourages favorable consideration of the 
concept of scholarship incentives as a method of encouraging Alaska Natives to 
pursue careers in teaching in the public schooLs in Alaska. This particular 
issue was established as one if the six major Legislative priorities of the 

Delegate Assembly, meeting in Anchorage in January.

J
It may be appropriate for the Committee to seec data relative to the previous 

Implementation of AS 14.43.050 -.090 for purposes addressing specifically 
identified needs. SB 426 expands upon the provisions of the above referenced 

statute.

We would further encourage that the Committee, either on its own Initiative or 
through the Department of Education, consider the feasibility of conducting an 
annual survey of all Alaska Native High School sophomores, juniors, and seniors 
and, perhaps even a supplemental survey of their parents and guardians as well, 
in an effort to build a data base which could be used to bring even more focus 

to this kind of legislation on a long term basis. Specifically, it seems 
appropriate to have more information on:

- career aspirations, expectations, needs
- current deterrents, barriers, problems
- extent and nature of counseling and adequacy of curriculum

A recent survey published by Texas Christian University on "Factors Related to 

High School Students' Interest in Teaching as a Profession" strongly suggest 

that a decline in parental interest in encouraging their children toward teach­
ing is a major factor. It may be appropriate to ascertain the validity of tills
conclusion for Alaska.

With an increasing number of Native students in the urban areas perhaps it is 
worthy of some emphasis to encourage, through incentives, more Native teachers 
in these areas as well.

:** —



— —              ------

• . c, ; ’ ‘ ' ••

It also seems appropriate to consider making this loan program an adjunct of the 
regular student loan program, but utilizing an expanded and separate sub­
committee of the Post Secondary Education Commission which would also include
practicing teachers and parents among its membership.*

• • 
We feel that it is appropriate to raise some caution relative to geographic
restrictions upon where a recipient may chose to teach. Reduction in the
teaching force, non-retention and/or desire to voluntary job changes, may have

some effect on mobility of the recipients.

Finally, it may also be appropriate to clarify the legislative intent of HB 504 
as it pertains to the term "teacher." AS 14-.20.207 currently provides that the 

term teacher is also intended to cover administration. It is our recommendation 
that the primary focus be toward those who are actually in a classroom teaching 
circumstance. . .•

Respectfully Submitted,

Bob Manners 
Executive Secretary 
NEA-Alaska
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Mae Tischer^Chairman 
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The House Health, Education and Social Services Committee gives notice 
that it will take testimony on House Bill 504, "An Act establishing the 
teacher scholarship loan program," at the times and locations indicated 

below:

U-Kctzebue
Kotzebue Technical Center 

1 : 0 0  p.m.
Friday, February 3, 1984
Teleconferenced to Capitol Room 112, Juneau, 1:00 p.m.

ome
Nome City Hall 
1 0 : 0 0  a.m.
Saturday. February 4, 1_! 
eieconi^rence^^lT^^ap^o'l Room 112, Juneau, 10:00 a.m.

Bethel
Kuskokwim Inn Annex 
1 2 : 0 0  p.m.
Sunday. February 5 , 1984
leicconierericed CO CUplL'Ol Room 112, Juneau, 12:00 p.m.

If necessary, the Chairman may at her discretion limit testimony to a 

stated amount of time per witness.

Please contact Bill Lovell at 465 - 3777 or the local Legislative 
Information Office for more information.
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R E S E A R C H  S U M M A R Y

Institute of Social and Economic Research, University of Alaska January *,984, R.S. No. 13

E f f e c t i v e  S c h o o l i n g  i n  R u r a l  A l a s k a

INTRODUCTION

Rural teachers are not satisfied with their 
students’ academic progress, according to a new 
University of Alaska report, and they tend to blame 
the problem on a lack of motivation. On the other 
hand, the teachers are satisfied with their relation­
ships with both the students and the community.

The report was prepared by the College of 
Human and Rural Development and the Institute of 
Social and Economic Research for the Alaska Depart­
ment of Education. It was based on a survey of 304 
rural teachers, representing every school outside 
Alaska’s urban areas (such as Anchorage, Fairbanks, 
and Juneau). The teachers identified several educa­
tional areas that needed attention. They also de­
scribed the instructional practices that they found 
effective in a rural Alaska context. Ninety-six percent 
of the teachers returned their surveys, an unusually 
high proportion.

FINDINGS

Satisfaction with Educational and Other Conditions
Most rural teachers, whether they taught in 

.majority Native or non-Native schools, are satisfied 
with the quality of their relationships with students 
(92 percent), wiih discipline in their schools (84 
percent), and with school/community relations (73 
percent).

Ironically, what frustrates rural teachers, parti­
cularly in Native majority communities, is not rela­
tionships with people of a different culture, but 
relationships with the district center. Fewer than half 
the teachers in Native majority communities are 
satisfied with the support they receive from the 
central office (43 percent), with the superintendent’s 
management (46 percent), and with the district 
board’s action (46 percent). According to teachers, 
many district staff do not appreciate the local situa­
tion. (We did not survey district staff; their perspec­
tive may very well be different.)

Most rural teachers (80 percent) are pleased with

their salary and benefit.';. To our surprise, only about 
a third voiced dissatisfaction with their housing.

Almost half of the rural teachers want more 
opportunities for professional growth. One wvote: _

I am in a tiny  school—o n e  o th e r  teach er w ho  is n o t my 
husband. I have no  one to  ask questions o f. My class o f  
p rim ary  grade ch ildren  includes an incredib le range o f 
s tu d en ts  (skill, in telligence, behavior, m otiv atio n ). I have 
an unw orkab le  curriculum  guide. My d istric t has o ffered  
me one training session, o n e  w eek. I ,-,tn alone!

Student Achievement: What Teachers Expect
Rural teachers’ views of their students’ perform­

ance are ambivalent. On the one hand, over half the 
teachers in Native majority schools (52 percent) say 
they are not satisfied with their students’ academic 
progress. Evea^jnore (60 percent) say they cannot, 
. expect average or above-average achievement from 
their, students.,,.

Rural teachers expect virtually all their students 
to graduate from high school. But most teachers in 
Native majority schools.(90. percent) expect less than 
.half their students tc attend college.

Despite their pessimistic view of students’ 
academic performance and potential, most teachers in 
Native majority schools (63 percent) say they are 
satisfied with the quality of education at the school.

Rural teachers in non-Native majority schools 
are significantly more satisfied with their students’ 
academic progress. They feel that achievement levels 
above national norms can be expected from their 
students. Finally, they are much more likely to 
expect students to attend college.

These differences between teachers’ views in 
Native and non-Native majority schools are troubling. 
We are not sure what they mean. Several teachers 
wrote on the margins of their surveys that we should 
be careful not to interpret their attitudes as “low 
expectations." In their view, they are simply being 
realistic when they say that they do not expect many 
students to achieve at national norms and that they 
do not expect many students to attend college.

1- 'A  VVr/‘



Indeed, 49 percent of the teachers in Native majority 
communities say that none of the parents expected 
students to complete college. “Parents are reluctant 
to see their children leave home and become indoc­
trinated in a foreign culture,” one teacher explained 
on the survey.

But teachers also point out that the rural con­
text unjustifiably lowers academic expectations. One 
said:

My own personal level o f  ex p ec ta tio n  has gone dow n 
since 1 arrived here. When I s ta rted  as an English teacher 
m y exp ec ta tio n s were to o  high. Very quick ly  m y expec­
ta tio n s becam e m ore realistic. T he big p roblem  is th a t 
we overcom pensate and com e to  ex p ec t to o  little .

Effective Teaching Practices in Rural Alaska Schools 
Rural teachers say iheirschools .do not.empha-, 

eize many of .the.practices.tnat are related.to. high 
achievement-test., scores in. schools outside Alaska. 
Most teachers, for example, say their schools do not- 
pay much, .attention to standardized test scores as a 
basis for setting academic goals.

Less than half (48 percent) of rural teachers 
assign homework regularly. Many say they avoid 
homework because students do not have the needed 
lighting, space, or opportunity at home.

A large proportion of teachers (40 percent), 
however, do hold study sessions before or after 
school once a week or more. These study sessions are 
advantages's, .hey say, because the school setting 
helps students settle down to work and teachers are 
right there to help.

When asked to describe briefly the instructional 
practices they personally found effective, rural 
teachers emphasized some of the practices stressed in 
national studies of effective schooling and some 
practices related to the village cultural context. These 
include:

1. Use of diverse instructional materials and 
■— ~ especially projects where students actively

do things.
2. Self-paced instruction, especially where the 
teacher sets standards for the amount of 
work to be done.

3. Cooperative student learning situations, such 
as group projects and peer tutoring.

4. Opportunities for parents and community 
people to participate in schooling, such as 
sending home nightly study guides.

CONCLUSIONS

We have asked many different people— school 
superintendents, rural and urban teachers, represent­
atives of professional education organizations— to 
comment on these findings. Most raise the same issue: 
How can so many rural teachers say they are satisfied 
with the quality of education at their schools and 
then turn around and say they don’t expect students 
to reach national achievement norms or attend 
college or complete college if they do attend?

Possibly the answer is straightforward: ,most_
rural teachers may feel they are working in a difficult 
situation, vith students whose cultural traditions do 
not necessarily support academic achievement or 
college attendance, and whose parents are not often 
oriented toward these goals. They may feel that 
under these circumstances, they and their schools are 
doing a fine job. But the disturbing issues remain: doTT 
teachers expect too little of village students? And 
what should count as “educational success” in rural ̂  
Alaska? Such questions as these must be answered , 
before we can reasonably expect to improve thej 
effectiveness of rural schooling m  Alaska.

T his repo rt, en titled  Effective Schooling in Rural 
Alaska (27 pages), was prepared  by Ju d ith  Kleinfeld and 
G. W illiamson M cDiarm id u nder the auspices o f  the 
College o f H um an and Rural D evelopm ent and the In s ti­
tu te  o f  Social and E conom ic R esearch, U niversity o f  
Alaska. T he teach er survey on which the repo rt was 
baied  was p art o f  a stu d y  o f  school governance in n iral 
A laska, conduc ted  by Dr. G erald M cBeath a t the  U niver­
sity o f  Alaska w ith th e  assistance o f  the au th o rs and 
o thers. The repo rt is available from  th e  In stitu te  o f  
Social and E conom ic R esearch, 204 C hapm an Building, 
University o f  Alaska, F airbanks, AK 9 97 0 1 , o r  from  
ISER in Anchorage, 707 A S t., Suite 206 , A nchorage, 
AK 9 95 0 1 , te lephone 278-1621 . For m ore in fo rm ation  
on th is  repo rt, call Ju d ith  K leinfeld, ISE R -Fairbanks, 
474-7435,
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M R  V E R N  HUI.BERT 

H O U S E  OF R E P S E N T A T I V E S  

J U N E A U ,  A K

FEB. 15, I98i

D E A R  REP. V e r n  H u l b e r t

T H I S  IS A L E T T E R  C O N C E R N I N G  H O U S E  B I L L  NO. 504 

IN S U P P O R T  O F  S T U D E N T  L O A N S  TO A K A S K A N  S T U D E N T S .

I A M  IN F U L L  S U P O R T  O F  T H I S  B I L L .  I C A N  H O N E S T L Y  S P E A K  

ON T H I S  I S S U E .  W H E N  I A T T E N E D  T H E  X - C E D  P R O C R A M  T H E R E  
W H E R E  M A N Y  D I S C O M F O R T S  I H A D  TO E N C O U N T E R  IN A P P L Y I N G  

F O R  F U N D I N G  AS A N  O F F  C A M P U S  S T U D E N T .  T H E  E X I S T I N C  L O A N S  
W E R E  N O T  E N O U G H  TO M E T  T H E  N E E D S  O F  A N Y O N E  W I T H  A F A M I L Y .  
W E  A L L  U N D E R S T O O D  T H A T  IT C O S T E D  M O N E Y  TO CO T O  S C H O O L  
B U T  T H E  H A R D S H I P  W A S  A T  T I M E S  V E R Y  D E M A N D I N C  4 N  O U R  

S L I M  B U D G E T S .

T H E  B I L L  H A S  I N S I G H T  F O R . O U R  N O N - C E R T I F I E D  T E A C H E R S  
W H O  H A V E  B E E H  V E R Y  D E D I C A T E D  TO T H E I R  J O B S .  T H A Y  H A V E  

W O R K E D  V E R Y  S x L E N T L Y  W I T H O U T  R E T I R E M E N T  B E N I F I T S  O N  P A R T  

T I M E  B A S E S .  I C A N  F O R E S E E  T H E M  G O I N G  ON T O  S C H O O L  N O W  

IF T H I S  B I L L  IS P A S S E D  IN B O T H  H O U S E S .  T H E  C O M M U I C A T I O N  

W H I C H  L I N K S  T H E  V I L L A G E  L I F E  A N D  T H E  S C H O O L S  A R E  T H E  N O N -  

C E R T I F I E D  A I D E S .  P E R H A P S ,  IN T H E  F U R T U R E  W I T H  M O R E  
C E R T I F I E D  T E A C H E R S  W H O  A R E  A L A S K A N  N A T I V E S  A B E T T E R  

D E L I V E R Y  O F  E D U C A T I O N  W I L L  BE A R E A L I T Y  H E R E  IN R U R A L  

A L A S K A .

I A L S O  C A N  I'iEE A N O T H E R  B A R R I E R  W H A T  W I L L  BE D O N E  

FOR T H E  N A T I V E  C E R T I F I E D  T E A C H E R S  W H O  M U S T  W A I T  

F O R  T H E  T E N U R E  T I A C H E R S  T O  M O V E  ON I M Y S E L F  S I T  IN T H A T  

P O S I T I O N  A N D  H A V E  B R O U C H T  IT T O  T H E  A T T E N T I O N  O F  T H E  
R E A A  B O A R D  T H E  R E P L Y  W A S  T H E  T E N U R E  T E A C H E R  O R  AN 
O P E N I N G  W I T H I N  T H E ^ D I  S T R I C T  W H E N  E V E R Y  T H E  W A S  ONt W H E R E  
I C A N  F I T  T H E  S L O T ^



KHEREAS, the preservation end continuation of Native culture 

in Alaska is of paramount importante; and

WHEREAS, Native teachers are nee 
traditions and cultures

ted to foster a sense of ethnic 

in Alaska Native students; and

failed to increase the number of 

and

tive teachers returning to teach 
is inadequate.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Alaska Native Land Managers 

Association, meeting in Anchorage, -Alaska, this 19th 
day of January,- 1954, does hereby support and urce the 

immediate passage of House Bill 504.



Chapter 2

i of the existence of northwestern 
u> voyage of Vitus Bering in 1741. 
coastline was more fully defined, 
jy explorers and navigators to its 
atnres. Much of the interior was to 
•rid for another hundred years, 
the land were already known r.nd 
•pie who would in time become 
. Indians, and Aleuts. It was — and 
years — their homeland, 
edge of these Americans —  as they 
»y their first foreign visitors —  was 
eir existence and their lifeways 
Id only through the eyes of foreign 
icrs, missionaries, and others. It is 
heir observations gathered over a 
iei with later research, to portray 
■ the arrival of the first Russians in

I1.1 Suite Miiu'titii.Junraii o.iilki-'u Voyucrs)
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Aleuts

2 GENERALIZED GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF ESKIMOS, 

INDIANS AN!) ALEUTS IN ALASKA 

Most Aleuts lived in coastal villages on islands named 
after them stretching 1,000 miles across the North Pacific.
Some few lived at (lie lower end of the Alaska Peninsula.

The population of about lb,000 Aleuts lived in numerous 
small villages, most of which were located on the Bering Sea 
side of the islands. One island, Umnak, once had 10 villages.
A typical village was made up of six or seven houses; each 
household consisted of 20 to ,’{() people v ho were related to 
one another. Their houses were half underground and cover­

ed with a warm dome of sod.
Every village with its elusler of houses had its own sea 

'Hinting areas, which had to he respected by other villages.
Use of these areas without perm.ssion meanl war.

Adult men honied seals, sea lions, and whales in llic open 
sea from kayaks, perhaps the most seaworthy ol watcrerall.
Roots, herries, birds, and eggs were available on the land. The 
food resource!: of the Aleuts were so abundant that anyone

1 i • • • • I in fin' In • •: 11 b n  i 111'



A l a s k a  S t a t e  L e g i s l a t u r e

S p e a k e r  o f  t h e  H o u s e  o f  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e s
Pouch V 

Stair Capilol 
Juneau. Alaska 99811 

(907) 465-3720Official Businoi

February 22# 1984

Mr. William Willoya 
Box 484 
Nome# Alaska

Dear Mr. Willoya#

Thank you for forwarding your comments on HB 504. I 
found them enlightening and thoughtful. They will be an 
important contribution to what we are attempting to make 
a thorough and complete review on the subject of rural 
education in Alaska, as it affects the proposed program.

I have forwarded your comments to the HESS Committee for 
its final work sessions on the bill# and it will become a 
part of the permanent bill file.

I appreciate your taking the time to attend the hearing 
and to type and send your comments. When I may be of 
further assistance or information, please feel free to 
contact me.

Sincerely,

L. Hayes 
“SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE

J L H :rjn



fEB 1 C J9S4_

Teleconference opinions of William Willoya on 

House Bill no. 504 at Nome Alaska, Feb.4,1984.

As per your request for written words here is a brief, concise recap of my oral 

testimony. I am a bachelor of Arts certified, graduate of Alaska Pacific Unive­

rsity, class of 1974. Prior to that I was a student of "Arctic" teacher training 

program, class of 1969.

The experiences I have had in the Arctic as a working person and Principal Teacher 

number 30 years, approximately 9 h  in k-12 schoolteaching. I arrived thru the back 

door into e d u c a t i o n ,(which is one of many careers I have pursued). Hence I have the 

objectivity to look at any stratum of Arctic Society with a relatively unprejudiced, 

experienced eye. With this in mind let me remind you the Arctic, now "x-ced" pro­

gram is a visible! bureaucracy, created by the 91aska people to using your'words." 
'Therefore, it is the intent of the legislature to establish the teacher scholarship 
loan program to encourage members of ethnic minorities to return to rural schools 

as Teachers and relieve the conditions described in this section".

As per my testimony as living proof that Arctic X-ced is a viable program. Except, *• 
the Super insulated bureaucratic intelligentsia administered the program. I am •• 

totally opposed to programs that are statistical "miracles" and real life failures. 

This is true with any program that involves several layers of accountability, .in 

which native people are the constituents, technicians and professionals work for 

and are accountable to. In all cases the legislature hears the professionals °nd 

not the village spokesman when programs are called into account.

Sec. 14.43.630 I Object: Local school boards should be the "total" process. Sel­
ection,administration,Identification of Awardee, Guardianship of the funds, etc.etc.

Reason: Professional Educators know there finest students, know there local school

board, know the familys, know whether or not the student -is sincere in purpose,

Pure in motivation, and hard working enough to stick out 4 years in college.

School Districts statewide are in political and administrative chros. Most of the 

elected school boards leave every typecpossible work To the administration. Hence, 

if this provision is left injinfighting, quota politicking,promoting, and other 
common tactics will be employed to insure the "right" student is awa-ded.

As per the testimony on Article 7f I reiterate the goals. Rural students are the •» 

aristocracy of the Arctic kingdom. All life goals, plans, efforts, and societal 

measures are planned with the idea in mind of insuring the student child will be 
awarded the highest degree of status. Hence, when jobs take children away enmasse 

the subsistence villagiers revolt by sabotageing the take away our children,program. 
Right now there is not enough sophistication to keep The talented in remote villages.

I can name you the survivors of^Arctic X-cecr left in villages if you wish, on my 

fingers and toes. Arctic Attrition will kill this bill as surely as a firing squad.
A subsistence person is Arctic Royalty. child, spoiled, self sufficient, arist­

ocratically upbred, secure, r|h full control of that society does not necessarily 
find education a progressive sr.tity. Hence, I suggest that ti.is bill be redrafted 

so that earlier identification of client students, and school beards be finally called 

on to correct the deficiencies of this bill and the V/ Local school boards
in conjunction with Local teachers keep this bill out of the hands of bureacracys.

Finally, let mo congratulate you for your universality, progressive mindedness, and 

fairness to all A l a s k a n ^  especially,* the future ones now in school.



I n t r o d u c e d :  1 / 1 0 / 8 4
R e f e r r e d :  H e a l t h ,  E d u c a t i o n  & S o c i a l
S e r v i c e s ,  H o u s e  S p e c i a l  C o m m i t t e e  o n  
S t a t e  L o a n s  a n d  F i n a n c e

BY  H A Y E S ,  H U R L B E R T ,  A D A M S ,  ABOO D ,  
B A R N E S ,  B U S S E L L ,  C A T O ,  C O W D E R Y ,  DAVIS, 
F U L L E R ,  F U R N A C E ,  G R U S S E N D O R F ,  H E R R M A N N  
K O P O N E N ,  L I N D A U E R ,  L I S K A ,  M A L O N E ,  
M A R T I N ,  M . W . M I L L E R ,  R I N G S T A D ,  S H U L T Z ,  
S Z Y M A N S K I ,  U E H L I N G ,  W A R D ,  ZHARO F F ,

1 IN T H E  :*niISE F R I T Z ,  B E T T I S W O R T H  A N D  M C B R I D E

2 H O U S E  B I L L  NO. 5 0 4

3 IN  T H E  L E G I S L A T U R E  O F  T H E  S T A T E  O F  A L A S K A

4 T H I R T E E N T H  L E G I S L A T U R E  - S E C O N D  S E S S I O N

5 A  B I L L

6 F o r  a n  A c t  e n t i t l e d :  " A n  A c t  e s t a b l i s h i n g  th e  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n

7 p r o g r a m . "

8 B E  I T  E N A C T E D  BY T H E  L E G I S L A T U R E  O F  T H E  S T A T E  O F  A L A S K A :

9 * S e c t i o n  1. AS  1 4 . 4 3  is a m e n d e d  b y  a d d i n g  n e w  s e c t i o n s  to read:

10 A R T I C L E  7. T E A C H E R  S C H O L A R S H I P  L O A N  P R O G R A M .

11 Sec. 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 0 0 .  F I N D I N G S  A N D  I N T E N T .  (a) T h e  l e g i s l a t u r e  f i n d s

12 t h a t  t h e r e  is a w i d e  a n d  u n a c c e p t a b l e  dir,parity b e t w e e n  the e t h n i c

13 d i s t r i b u t i o n  of  t e a c h e r s  a n d  t he e t h n i c  d i s t r i b u t i o n  of s t u d e n t s  in

14 t h e  s t a t e  p u b l i c  s c h o o l s .  P a r t i c u l a r l y  in r u r a l  a r e a s ,  m a n y  s c h o o l s

15 h a v e  v i r t u a l l y  no N a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  a n d  no  n o n - N a t i v e  students. T h e

u n d e s i r a b l e  e f f e c t s  of  t h i s  d i s p a r i t y  i n c l u d e  t h e  f o l l o w i n g : __________16

17 (1) t h e r e  is a s e r i o u s  w e a k n e s s  in the a b i ' U f y  of t e a c h i n g

18 s t a f f s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  in r u r a l  s c h o o l s ,  to f o s t e r  a s e i u e  of  e t h n i c

19 t r a d i t i o n s  a n d  c u l t u r e s  in the s t u d e n t s ;

20 (2) m a n y  r u r a l  s t u d e n t s  a r e  f o r c e d  to e x i s t  i \ fcwt e n t i r e l y
/-—  < e s f *

21 s e p a r a t e  s i t u a t i o n s :  t h e  e s s e n t i a l l y  t r a d i t i o n a l  a t m o s p h e r e  of m a n y
7a

22 N a t i v e  h o m e s  a m i  the e s s e n t i a l l y  m o d e r n  a t m o s p h e r e  of th e  c l a s s r o o m ;
'     S y  ’

/\JltJ,iS'3> / 2 3  (3) a l m o s t  no s t u d e n t s  a m o n g  the s t a t e ' s  e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s

^  24 r e t u r n  to r u ral s c h o o l s  to t e a c h  c o n t i n u i n g  t h e  e t h n i c  i m b a l a n c e  an d

fatPUJ 0~ 25 e x a c e r b a t i n g  its e f f e c t s ;  a n d

w M  I
26 (4) t h e r e  is a n  a n n u a l  t u r n o v e r  of 40  p e r c e n t  a m o n g  t e a c h -

k? / 27 e r s  in r u r a l  e d u c a t i o n a l  a t t e n d a n c e  a r e a s  in t h e  state.

b 28 <b > T h ' 1 e g i s l a t u r e  f u r t h e r  f i n d s  t h a t  e x i s t i n g  p r o g r a m s  h a v e

29 f a i l e d  to i n c r e a s e  the p r o p o r t i o n  of m e m b e r s  of e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s

-1- HB 504
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t e a c h i n g  in  r u r a l  s c h o o l s .  T h e r e f o r e ,  it is t he i n t e n t  of the l e g i s­

la t u r e  to e s t a b l i s h  t h e  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n  p r o g r a m  to e n c o u r a g e  

m e m b e r s  of  e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  to r e t u r n  to r u r a l  s c h o o l s  as t e a c h e r s

a n d  r e l i e v e  the c o n d i t i o n s  d e s c r i b e d  in t h i s  s e c t i o n .

Sec. 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 1 0 .  P R O G R A M  E S T A B L I S H E D .  T h e r e  is e s t a b l i s h e d  the 

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n  p r o g r a m  to p r o v i d e  a n  i n c e n t i v e  f o r  g r a d u a t e s

&

of  A l a s k a ? h i g h  s c h o o l s  w h o  are f r o m  e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  to p u r s u e  t e a c h ­

es— s. ryj f C L  
i n g  c a r e e r s  in  A l a s k a ^ s c h o o l s .

a:

Sec. 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 2 0 .  T E A C H E R  S C H O L A R S H I P  R E V O L V I N G  L O A N  FUND. T h e r e £

is c r e a t e c ^ a  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  r e v o l v i n g  l o a n  furtdT T h e  fun d  s h a l l

?  ’  C - ---------------------- ^
be  u s e d  to m a k e - s i ^ h o l a r s h i p  l o ans to  s t u d e n t s  s e l e c t e d  u n d e r  A S  14. - \

4 3 . 6 0 0  - 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 5 0 . i p a l  a n d  i n t e r e s t  o n  

the t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  ^
n e w  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p

r e p a y m e n t  

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o ans s n k l l  be 

r e v o l v i n g  f u n d  a n d  s h a l l  be  u s e d

loans. If e s t i m a t e d  f u n d s  a v a i l a h i ^  F r o m  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n

r e p a y m e n t s  ar e  i n a d e q u a t e  t o ^ f d l l y  f u n d  estiinat^tk^£eacher s c h o l a r s h i p  

loans f o r  a n y  f i s c a l  yeifr, a d d i t i o n a l  f u n d i n g  f r o m  the g e n e r a l  f u n d

(r.sy be r e q u e s t e d  a p p r o p r i a t e d  f o r  t h a t  y e a r .

Sec. 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 3 0 .  A D M I N I S T R A T I O N .  T h e  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n

p r o g r a m  s h a l l  be a d m i n i s t e r e d  by t he s t u d e n t  f i n a n c i a l  a i d  c o m m i t t e e

<

P
S’

* h

(AS 1 4 . 4 3 . 0 9 5 )  in a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  •^FB'giflatiubns*’ f"*adopted by the

c o m m i t t e e .  T h e  c o m m i t t e e  s h a l l  d i s t r i b u t e  the f u nds a v a i l a b l e  for

4 k ,

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n s  a n n u a l l y  to l o c a l  s c h o o l  b o a r d s  g i v i n g  a

p r e f e r e n c e  to s c h o o l  d i s t r i c t s  w i t h  a h i g h  p e r c e n t a g e  of  s t u d e n t s  in

f i r l o C Z L  W t / e f *  Q f

/Uhiitc/ i »s ..and . ji row p e r c e n t a g e  of  t e a c h e r s  in etfftvLfc'
e r  l c e c U  M ' j  o f / t y  r  *

mihpj'ytiiAar. T h e  l o c a l  s c h o o l  b o a r d s  s h a l l  3 e l e c t  the r e c i p i e n t s  of

the t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loans.

Sec. 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 4 0 .  C O N D I T I O N S  O F  L O A N S .  E a c h  s c h o o l  d i s t r i c t  s h a l l  

a w a r d  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n s  s u b j e c t  to t h e  f o l l o w i n g  c o n d i t i o n s :

HB 5 0 4 •2-



i k l
(1) t he c o n d i t i o n s  p r o v i d e d  in A S  1 4 . 4 3 . 1 2 0  a p p l y  e x c e p t

that no  l o a n s  m a y  b e  m a d e  to  g r a d u a te s t u d e n t s  a n d  t he s t a t e  s h a l l  

r e p a y  a p o r t i o n  o f  a t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n  u n d e r  A S  1 4 . 4 3 . 1 2 0 (j) 

o n l y  if, in a d d i t i o n  to t h e  o t h e r  c r i t e r i a ,  the b o r r o w e r  is a l s o  

e m p l o y e d  as a p u b l i c  s c h o o l  t e a c h e r  in  the s t a t e  d u r i n g  t he p e r i o d  f o r  

w h i c h  the l o a n  is f o r g i v e n ;

(2) if a b o r r o w e r  m e e t s  the c o n d i t i o n s  p r o v i d e d  in p a r a ­

g r a p h  (1^ ^ f ^ h i s ^  s e c t i o n  a n d  is e m p l o y e d  as a p u b l i c  s c h o o l  t e a c h e r  

in  t h e f r o m  w h i c h  t he b o r r o w e r  g r a d u a t e d ,  the p o r t i o n  of  the 

l o a n  t h a t  s h a l l  be  p a i d  by  t h e  s t a t e  is the f o l l o w i n g  p e r c e n t a g e s  of 

the t o t a l  l o a n  r e c e i v e d  p l u s  i n t e r e s t  jp to a t o t a l  of  100 p e r c e n t  of 

the t o t a l  loan:

(A) o ne y e a r  e m p l o y m e n t ,  lb p e r c e n t ;

(B) t w o  y e a r s  e m p l o y m e n t ,  an  a d d i t i o n a l  15 p e r c e n t ;

(C) t h r e e  y e a r s  e m p l o y m e n t ,  an a d d i t i o n a l  15 p e r c e n t ;

(D) f o u r  y e a r s  e m p l o y m e n t ,  an a d d i t i o n a l  25 p e r c e n t ;

(E) o v e r  f o u r  y e a r s  e m p l o y m e n t ,  an a d d i t i o n a l  30 p e r ­

cent; a nd

(3) a l o a n  m a y  n o t  e x c e e d  $ 1 0 , 0 0 0  in a s c h o o l  y e ar.

Sec; 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 5 0 .  S E L E C T I O N  C R I T E R I A .  (a) To be e l i g i b l e  fo r  a 

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loan, a s t u d e n t  m u s t

(1) be a g r a d u a t e  of, o r  s c h e d u l e d  for g r a d u a t i o n  w i t h i n  

s ix m o n t h s  from, a s t a t e  p u b l i c  h i g h  r c h o o l ,  w i t h  s u f f i c i e n t  c r e d i t s  

to be a d m i t t e d  to an  a c c r e d i t e d  c o l l e g e  or u n i v e r s i t y ;

(2) b e  e n r o l l e d  in o r  s h o w  e v i d e n c e  of i n t e n t  to e n r o l l  in 

a d e g r e e  p r o g r a m  d i r e c t e d  at a t e a c h i n g  c a r e e r  at t he e l e m e n t a r y  o r  

s e c o n d a r y  s c h o o l  l e v e l ;  a n d

(3) m e e t  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  set by the s t u d e n t ' s  l o c a l  s c h o o l  

d i s t r i c t  w i t h  r e s p e c t  to t h e  d i s t r i c t ' s  r e q u i r e m e n t s  f or t e a c h e r s  in
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(c) A  s t u d e n t  m a y  n o t  be  a w a r d e d  a s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n  u n d e r  

AS  1 4 . 4 3 . 0 9 0  - 1 4 . 4 3 . 1 6 0  a n d  a t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n  u n d e r  A S  14.-

4 3 . 6 0 0  - 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 5 0  f o r  t h e  s a m e  s c h o o l  y e ar.

p a r t i c u l a r  s u b j e c t  a r e a s .

HB 5 0 4 - 4 -



laska Native
jO K Street, Se 
jichorage, Ala 

272-1254

lanagers AsfiSLiation

February 13, 1984

Representative Mae Tischer 
Pouch V (MS 3100)
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Re: HB 504

Dear Representative Tischer:

At a recent meeting of the Alaska Native Land Managers 
Association, the membership passed the enclosed resolution 
urging passage of HB 504, dealing.with establishing the 
teacher scholarship loan program.

We feel that this bill satisfies an important need in rural 
Alaska. For too long, young people have left the villages to 
attend college, never to return. Additionally, we have 
watched a parade of non-native teachers through the village 
schools. We feel that it is important to have a stable staff 
of teachers in rural schools. We also feel that it is 
preferable to have native teachers teaching in predominantly 
native schools in order to understand and preserve the unique 
culture and history of Alaska Native peoples. It is our 
feeling that native teachers will provide a valuable role 
model for students in rural Alaska. The students need to see 
that they can be a success and that they can be leaders in 
today's world.

We feel strongly that the passage of HB 504 will be another 
step along the path towards improving rural education and the 
lives of rural Alaskans.

Very truly yours,

Daniel Alex, 
President



§ G [ j D ® ® 0  E f i S G t f f e G  —  Nyal D■ Worsham. Superintendent

February 2, 1984

Honorable Joseph Hayes, Speaker of the House 

Alaska State Legislature 

Pouch V

Juneau, A K  99811

RE: House Bill #504

Dear Mr. Speaker:

I wish to speak in support of House Bill #504 related to a teacher 

scholarship fund for native students. Having spent the last eight 
years in Alaska bush and rural school systems, I know that our 

native students do need the relationships that native teachers can 

give to them.

We need positive counseling efforts to lead our future native teachers 

into the profession and give them support while they develop their 

teaching skills.

I thank you for the introduction of this bill and wish you and 

Representative Hurlbert success in its passage.



M A N I I L A Q  M A N P O W E R

P.O. 3 o n  7 2 5  Phone

Kotzebue. Alaska 9 9 7 5 2  (907) 442-3350

February 6 , 1984

Mr, William T. Lovell 
House H E 8SS Committee 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pcuch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Mr. Lovell:

Thank you for this opportunity to submit written comments 
on House Bill No. 504. I admire the. legislators insight into 
the prcblems of Rural Alaska and I applaud them for their 
inventiveness. Keep up the good workJ!

Once again thank you for this opportunity.

Sincerely,

enclosure: 1



Mauneluk Manpower 

Testamony on HB 504

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on HB 504. My name 

is Fred Wemark, Special Assistant with Mauneluk Manpower. I 

manage a program that brings career awareness into the villages 

The main thrust for the program is to get the students and 

adults within the villages to think about what they would like 

to do in the village or region in the way of an occupation.

We explore all the potential possibilities of work and try to 

give as accurate a picture of employment as possible in the 

future.

Your Bill reaches right to the heart of employment that will 

always be present regardless of the amount of development the 

rural parts of our great state may or may not enjoy. As long 

as there is a rural population there will be teaching jobs 

available. It is only fitting that these positions be taken 

by those that will live in the community and raise their 

families and keep the money within the community. This not 

only makes sense from an economic standpoint but from a social 

standpoint also.

There are many students in our University system that are 

studying for a career in Education. But those people are to 

few. Your bill will increase that number dramatically. More 

and more the high school students are realizing the importance 

of a higher education. With the rural economy in the shr.pe it. 

is in those hopes for a higher education fades with the lack 

of money to send them to school. Hope is now on the horizon.

I urge that you pass this important piece of legislation as 

soon as possible with the appropiate funding.

Thank you.



V i l l a g e

99632 

Febraury 10, 1984

Honorable Joe Hayes 
Speaker of the House 
Alaska House of Representative 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Speaker Hayes:

I am writing to you in support of House Bill no.
504, which uou introduced recently in the second 
session of the 13th legislature. This bill if 
passed, will greatly encourage and enhance our 
native people to come back and teach among their 
own people and will improve the quality of education 
which is vital in this area. Representative Vern 
Hurlbert is avare of this and it is his concern 
for his constituents in District 24 of which he 
represents.

Mr. Speaker, I advice your integrity and is some 
what surprise to me that you are concerned for us 
natives, therefore, I believe that is the kind of 
leadership we need in Juneau. Thank you very much!

Sincerely,

L ,

Andrew Brown, Vice-Mayor

cc.j'Rep. Vern Hulbert 
Sen. John Sackett 
Sen. Frank Ferguson 
Rep. Jack Fuller
Supt. Dr. William Phillips, Lower Yukon School District 
City Manager, Steve Schwab

C i t y  o f  M o u n t a i n
P.O. Box 204 

Mountain Village. Alaska 
(907) 591-2929



January 27, 1952

Mr. Joe Hayes 
Speaker of the House
Pouch V
Capitol Building 
Juneau, Alaska 99311

hear Speaker iiayes:

1 am in receipt of a letter from Vern Hurlbert and a copy of HU 502. The 
idea seems a propitious one and has my enthusiastic support. I have 
noticed the problem you described with village 'jchools in this area, 
wherein the bulk of the students arc native and the teachers non-native. 
The teacher turnover rate is also sometimes rather appalling. I am sure 
the problem is even more marked in the norfhern sections of the state.

The only question 1 have is a legal one; namely, what is the advice of 
the AG's office on the constitutionality of Sec. l2.2.i.6.'JO wherein preference 
is given to certain districts. 1 understand the intent, applaud it as 
morally correct and a practical necessity (if you are to accomplish the 
stated goal and not end up giving the bulk of the scholarships lo 
non-natives from non-native majority school districts) but wonder if it 
runs afoul of due process clauses. It is worth getting an opinion on 
beforehand to make sure the bill is couched in terms that are proof 
a-.amst later litigation.

Sincerely,

Thomas L. Conley, M.i).
Secretary
Ketchikan Gateway Borough School District 
Board of Education

a.15. This is a personal, not a Ketchikan Gateway Borough School district, 
hoard of Education, response.

cc: ^Representative Vernon L. Hurlbert
Representative Jack McBride 
Ms. Cheri Davis 
President
Ketchikan Gateway Borouqh School District



•  P . O . BOX MT

W RANGELL, ALASKA 99929 

O THE STIKINE T«lephon« (907; B74-2347

^  ROBERT W . McCONNELL, Superintendent oJ Schools

M N G E L L

P U B L I C  S C H O O L S

DISTRICT OFFICE

January 31, 1984

The Honorable Joe Hays, Speaker of the House 

Pouch V

Capitol Building 
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Honorable Hays:

In response to Representative Vern Hurlbert's letter of 

January 20 1984, please regaid this as support for HB 504.

Having spent time with a government which tried the same 
process, designed with the same philosophy, I have some concerns 

over the possible outcome. I applaud the intent however.

Sincerely,

Robert W. McConnell 
Superintendent

cc: Representative Hurlbert

Representative McBride

inriATinu r\c ccrnkinAPV AMD



MR. DARRELL G. MOORE
DISTRICT SUPERIN TEN DEN T

C h a t h a m  S c h o o l  D i s t r i c t

P.O. BOX 109
AHB D y y a la s k a  99820

TELEPHONE: 7 8 8 -3 3 0 2  OR 7 8 8 -3 6 8 2  

January 27, 1984

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MR WALLY FRANK. SR  

MR EDWARD GAM BLE. SR 

MS MATILDA GAMBLE 
MRS ANN MACKOVJAK 

DR JACK LESH

Representative Vern Hurlbert 

State Capital 

Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Representative Hurlbert:

I would like to respond to HgOTg^^tldTROT. 504 ^jhich was recently 

introduced in an effort to encourage Alaska Native high school grad­

uates to return to their home village to teach.

Prior to my tenure here in Chatham School District, I spent nine 

years on the Sheldon Jackson campus encouraging and developing a 

teachers education program. I am very interested in presenting role 

models for the village; however, I think your approach is #rang.

In our school district I would be in favor of hiring a student to 

rcranrTgt~chg'ay gg; bnc"notCt£eirSim»..ulllagl . Experience from Bible 

times to the present will demonstrate that people returning to their

aemaRdB hot common to *

a tas.

I also think the. loan is discriminatory. This fact on the surface 

may not seem like an important clause; however, minorities like to know 

they made it on their .<35Bggg6Zd836• 1  also think people are more inclined

to succeed at something they invest time and money in.

Finally, 1 think many native graduates do something other than teach 

simply because they can demand more money as a college graduate in another 

occupation.

Many of our Sheldon Jackson graduates were either offered employment 

and terminated or never started due to the high wages they were able to 

attain through private enterprise or the native corporations. I do not

&S£K)rri&e..

Please write or call me if I can be of further service or add clari­

fication

cc: Joe Hayes, Speaker of
Reading File

of Schools



N a t i v e  t e a c h e r  f u n d  e n v i s i o n e d
(C o n tin u ed  from  Page O ne)

tive s tu d en ts  am ong  the s ta te ’s 
e th n ic  m ino rities re tu rn  to  the 
ru ra l schools w hich  co n tin ues 
th e  e th n ic  im b a lan ce .

A high tu rn o v er o f  as m u c h  as 
4 0  p ercen t o f  teach e rs-in  rural 
ed u ca tio n  a tte n d a n c e  areas in 
th e  s ta te .

T he bill s ta te s  th a t cu rren t 
p ro g ram s such  as 'th e  X-CED 
program  at tire U niversity  o f  
A laska has failed to  rec tify  the 
p ro b lem .
; T he loan  p rogram  w o u ld  ap ­
p ro p ria te  m o n ey  to  be loaded 
to  high schoo l g raduates or'st>_- 
d e n ts  w ith in  six- mom.*:* o f  grad­
u a tio n  from  a s ta te  public h igh - 
schoo l w h o  have su ffic ien t cred^-. 
its  to  be ad m itted  to  an accred ­
ited  college. T hose s tu d en ts  
a lso  m u s t be en ro lled  in o r  show  
in te n t to  en ro ll in  a university  
p rogram  w hich  aim s a t a teach ­
ing degree for e lem en tary  o r  sec­
o n d a ry  schoo l. T he s tu d e n t also 
m ust m ee t crite ria  established 
by  th e  local schoo l boa rd .

If  th e  s tu d e n t is aw arded  the 
sch o la rsh ip  and  com ple tes his 
ed u ca tio n  and  re tu rn s to  the 
village, a percen tag e  o f  h is loan 
w ill be  “ fo rg iven”, b y  th e  s ta te  at 
a ra te, o f  15. p ercen t each y e a r ' 
fo r th e  first th ree  years o f  te a ch ­
ing; 25 percen t o f  the to ta l 
loan  for th e  fo u rth  year com ­
p le ted  an d  th e  final 30  percen t 
for th e  f if th  y ea r.

T h e b ill,is ,g iven  good change 
fo r  success on  Ihe H ouse side, 
o f  th e  leg is la tu re  hecause it is 
su p p o rte d  by. th e  H ouse M ajor­
ity  co a litip n  o f  u rb a n 'R e p u b li­
cans and  Bush D em ocrats and 
because H ayes, th e  pow erfu l 
H ouse S p eaker, is backing  it. It 
isn ’t o f te n  th a t a bill sponsored  
by  th e  S peaker is d efea ted .

O n th e  S en a te  side , it is given 
fair ohancc  fo r passage by  Sen.

F rank  Ferguson , D -K otzebue, 
w ho said th a t it will p robab ly  
pass in a refined form  a f te r  som e 
things are iro n ed  o u t.

O ne possible p roblem  the bill 
m ay have is surviving a legal 
challenge on the basis th a t it 
d iscrim inates in favor o f  o ne  
specific e th n ic  g roup . T he bill 
d irec ts th a t th e  scholarsh ips be 
aw arded  on a level p ro p o rtio n ­
a te  to  th e  percen tag e  o f  e th n ic  
rep resen ta tion .

T herefo re , if  80 p ercen t o f

th e  s tu d en ts  are  N ative, 80  p e r­
cen t o f  the scholarsh ip  m on ey  
m ust go to  Native s tu d en ts .

R ecen t law s d irec ting  m on ey  
a t a specific g ro up , such  as th e  
L ongevity  B onus p rogram  w hich 
gives m on ey  to  Alaska residen ts 
o lde r than  65 years w h o  have 
lived in th e  s ta te  since s ta teh o o d  
has been  ruled u n c o n s titu tio n a l 
o n  tl\e g rounds th a t it d iscrim ­
inates against a person  w ho  
m oved to  the s ta te  a f te r  s ta te ­
h o o d .

T o n y  Vaska o f  B ethel, w ho  is 
a m em ber o f  th e  Bush Caucus 
b u t no t a m em ber o f  th e  H ouse 
M ajority , said he th ink s it will 
h o t  survive a* c o n stitu tio n a lity  
tes t.

Hayes said he has had  th e  
L egislature's law yers review th e  
bill and  they  found  it a ll-r ig h t. 
He said the s ta te  a tto rn ey  g en ­
eral has yet to  review th e  bill.

V e teran  observers o f  the Leg­
is la tu re  found  the key sponso r 
o f  the bill -  H ayes -  to  be o f  
p articu la r in te rest because o f  h is . 
u rban  b ackg ro u nd , o n e  co m ­
m en ted  th a t “ I f  there  ever was 
any  d o u b t th a t h 'ayes is ru n ­
ning  for governor, th is kills i t ."

Hriyes responds to  such sk ep ti­
cism by  saying “ I suppose it 
w ould  look  (like he is try in g  to  
gain a rural su p p o rt)  b u t I ju s t

C h i l d  a b u s e  bill i n t r o d u c e d

H ie  A ssocia ted  Press
Ju n eau  -  C erta in  k inds o f  

ch ild  neglect and  a b u se  u n p u n ­
ishable u n d e r ex is ting  law  w ould  
be classified as felonies by a bill 
in tro d u ce d  in th e  A laska House 
o f  R epresen ta tives.

T he legislation is aim ed at 
adu lts w ho use force against

cause o r perm it a ch ild  to  be 
placed in c ircum stances resu lt­
ing in serious physical in ju ry .”

The m easure (HB 4 8 9 )  is 
sponso red  by H ouse D em ocrats 
Jack  M cBride o f  K etch ikan , 
N iilo K o p o n e n ' o f  F airbanks 
and  M ike Szym anski o f  An-

k n o w  the p roblem s o f  n  
peo p le . I. fly  a lo t and get 
in to  th e  villages m ore than o t 
u rban  legislators. I also h; 
w o rk ed  w ith  the Bush C au  
fo r th e  past tw o years anc 
k no w  o f  th e ir  co n ce rn s .”

• He said th a t H urlbert was 
stru m en ta l in  pushing  th e  I 
and  is second  sponsor on  i 
d o cu m en t.

G ov. Bill Sheffield  had 
co m m en t on  th e  bill o the r th 
to  p o in t o u t that program s 
ex ist in th e  s ta te  to  draw  ru 
s tu d en ts  in to  teach ing.

A nd as fo r Hayes draw ing a ; 
b em ato ria l co n stitu en cy , Sh 
field said , “ I to ld  h im , I’ll o 
cam paign  him  125 to  one an- 
have m ore stay ing  p o w er.”



C i f v  o f  K a l t a f i
Kaltag. A l a s k a  9 9 7 4 8

February 7, 1984

Vern Hurlburt, Representative 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

RE: HB 504 - Educational

Dear Representative Hurlburt:

This is a letter of support to the educational scholarship funding for 

rural students of Alas.':a including students of private schools.

Sincerelv,

Kenneth B. Madros, 
Mayor

ejra

D B S



THE
LAKE AND PENINSULA 

SCHOOL BOARD

S A R A  h o r n b e r g e r , focxiitnncMember

P.O. Box 69, Iliamna, AK. 99606 
February 3, 198U

The Honorable Vern Hurlbert 
Alaska State Representative 

aouch V - Capital Building 
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Da yr V ?rn:

Thank you for yourletter of January 20, 1983, in 
reference to House Bill NooJjOLi I appreciate the opportunity to 
comment on it. In realization of how very busy you folks are down 
there, I still hope that you will find time to read my letter of 
reply in addition to the reading by an administrative assistant,,
(I have no objections to this system - I know it is necessary if 
you elected officials are to be able to accomplish anything.)

I believe that my comments are made from a nosition 
of great strength. We have in our school district an administrative 
assistant, Frank Hill; two principal teachers^- Norm Auberp and Pete 
Hill; and three teachers, Pauline Hobson, Larry Hill, and Gwen Niel­
sen; and one teacher on leave, Emma Hill, who are Native0 In addition, 
we recently inaugurated a minority administrative aoprenticeshi) e r ] 

''rank Hill is the first person to participt «. Wher"aver possiole 
we hire local people to do school district ^ u b s  as for example,
•ilex Wassilie our North Area Maintenance Person.

Going from there, I want to ask if anyone had done 
any research at all to see if this bill will do what it proposes to 
do? Three of our Native teachers pot their degrees through the *RCTIC 
program (later called X-Cod); Several refused all financial help of 
any sort preferring the joy of being able to say, "I did it all by 
myself." Several used the regular state loan program and BL\ assis­

tance.

In our district at least there has been no lack of 
assistance for village persons interested in higher education of any 
sort in obtaininp any oossible loan, grant, or scholarship. Persons 
wno work as aides who show promise are encouraged - urged - to go 
on and get their degrees. Some few have attended the university 
sporadically. The members of the school board and the local teachers 
association have joined together for five years to grant two scholar­
ships a year to district high school seniors in the name of one of 
our members who was killed in a snowmachine a ccident shortly after she 
enrolled in a teacher preparation program in Anchorage. She was a 
Native from Newhalen. We have youngsters from our district in college 
under the regular state loan program; but, so far as I know, my daugh­
ter is the only one in a teacher training program.

Chignlk Hay • Chtgnik Lagoon •  Cliigntk Lake  • Egegih •  Igiugig • tvano f Buy • K'okhanok •  Seuihalen
O —  . I.-., ...
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The Hon. able Vern Hurlbert

I should add that oneof our cur-rant board members, Jeannie Ihly, 
a Native from Chignik Lake, has^enroiled in college in Anchorage 
with the intention of becoming a primary teacher.

Where does this leave us? I relieve thdt this bill 
• ill not do what you hope it will. All the money in the world will 
not prompt a person to attend college unless that person has the 
sincere desire, the personal drive to go. Secondly, that Derson, if 
he/she is to become a teacher must be willing to face a five-day-a 
week, nine-month-ayear job} a job that is very intense and demanding.
How many of our village people really want that sort of job? Sfo we 
are talking a bout motivation. What is going to motivate a youngster 
from a village who enjoys the freedom of a life of traoping, fishing, 
hunting, etc., without the demands of a time clock, to take on the 
other sort of life? There are two things that cause a person to become 
a teacher: for some it is a calling}- they cannot imagine doing anything
else; it is their life; for other it is a job, a way to make a living 
and have three months a year off, etc.. If a youngster from a village 
doesn't have an intense d esire to becon.e a teacher, I can't imagine 
that this loan program will inspire him/her to spend four years away 
from home in school to become a teacher, That child is going to gat 
a trade that will enable him/her to go out and earn money when it is 
needed and then go home and enjoy life, and I don't blame that person 
ono bit. Who wouldn't prefer that sort of lifei Sb, we have a motiva­
tion problem.

We have one more problem. The fact that a person is 
a Native does not mean that he/she will make a good teachor, anymore 
than membership in any other race guarantees skill in any profession. 
This bill has no criteria set up at any place to evaluate participants. 
Today our children must have the very best possible teachers for the 
basics. We have many fine people in our villages who can and do work 
in the schools assisting with local culture programs, bi-lingual pro­
grams, who arc not college graduates. Many of tl.em have not finished 
eighth grade. They cannot teach math or reading or other subjects the 
certificated teachors handle; rather, tho two work as a team compliment­
ing each other when the program is handled proporly.

One last point I'd like to :poak to is teacher turnover. 
Years ago when Bristol Bay Borough was formed and took over the 
one of our main concerns was teacher turnover. However, that./ts^rotail 
bad. Teachers like preachers maybe need to move around. I'm not going 
to dwell on this, but the question i3 a very debatable one. Further­
more, we have discovered that not all residents of a village are pleased 
when a local person comes home as a teacher. Was it not Christ who 
said something to the effect that a prophet is not without honor except 
in his own country.

This letter, of course, contains iny opinions only and 
most certainly does not speak for the other members of the board either 
individually or as a lagal group.

.. Most sincerely,,

(

Sara Hornberger (Mrs.)



A V C P

Association of Village Council Presidents 
P.O. Box 219 • Bethel, Alaska 99559 • Phone 543-3521

February 1, 1984

Hon. Joe Hayes
Speaker of the House of Representatives 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99311

Dear Representatives Hayes:

On behalf of the Association of Village Council Presidents, regional 
non-profit Native corporation for the 55 Yupik Native communities of 
the Yukon-Kuskokwim delta region, I wish to commend you and the 27 
co-sponsors for your introduction of House Bill 5Q4_. providing for a 
teacher scholarship loan program.

We concur with the legislative findings as stated in the bill. In par­
ticular, incentive has not be provided for Alaska Natives to pursue 
teaching careers in rural Alaska. Throughout the State (REAA) schools' 
and remaining federal (BIA) schools, there are almost no Native teachers 
available for the almost totally Native student bodies. We sincerely 
appreciate your sponsorship of H.B. 504 and encourage your aggressive 
efforts for the enactment of this very beneficial legislation.

There is one small group of rural school districts which has overcome 
many of the difficulties which H.B. 504 seeks to correct. In the exam­
ination of rural education issues by you and your colleagues, we wish 
to encourage you to consider the future of five locally-controlled 
community schools in the AVCP-Calista Region. The Native communities 
of Akiachak, Akiak, Chefornak, Chevak and Tuluksak manage the only 
village-operated community schools in Alaska.

Beginning in 1977, these village council chose to operate their own 
community schools, apart from the federally-operated BIA schools and 
the State REP~ ‘ystems. The federal government provides funds through 
the BIA appropriations, however management of the education programs 
and school districts is completely controlled at the community level.

Local community, Native involvement is provided in every aspect of the 
education program o' these "contract" schools. The largest school, 
for example, has eight certified Alaska Native teachers in its teaching 
staff. Community jchool boards at these schools completely determine, 
within the village, all administrative, curriculla, fiscal and nolicy 
decisions concerning school district operations.

Unfortunately, these schools are scheduled to be closed at the end of 
the 1984-85 school year.



Hon. Joe Hayes 
February 1, 1984 
Page 2

The schools are community-operated and controlled, while funds are 
provided by the federal government under contracting provisions of the 
"Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act." The communities 
wish to continue to locally manage their education programs, however 
federal funds will not be available beyond federal FY-85.

These schools have requested financial assistance from the State to 
continue to operate their districts. Uncier present policies, the state 
will not provide education funds to the contract schools because they . 
are operated by Native community councils (village councils), which 
were organized prior to statehood. The councils are recognized as 
"tribal governing bodies" by the federal government.

Although the village council "contract" schools have agreed to admit 
all student village residents to the schools, regardless of race, the 
present state policy regards them as "private" schools because they 
are operated by Native community councils*

Despite their desire the maintain community control over the village 
education programs, the contract schools' only other option is to join 
the REAA education systems. They are very reluctant to do so because 
of the loss of community control over the education program, and be­
cause of the successes which they have achieved through the systems 
which have been established by them and which are now in place. If, 
for example, a Native community school becomes part of an REAA, they 
will be absorbed by a school district which encompasses up to 35 or 
more other communities, and will no longer have effective control over 
education at the community level.

The history, circumstances, and legal and policy issues are perhaps 
more complicated than I describe in this letter, however the basic aim 
of the village contract schools is simple. They wish to maintain ef­
fective local control and community operation of their schools. This 
goal is becoming destroyed by pressures of state and federal policies 
over which they have no effective control. We hope that you will con­
sider the fate of these school districts among other rural education 
issues under review by the legislature.

By alerting you to the matter of Native community schools, we in no 
way wish to diminish the importance of your continued support for H.B.
504, Your interest in rural and Native education needs, as evidenced 
by H.B. 504, is genuinely appreciated.

Sincerely,

ASSOCIATION OF VILLAGE COUNCIL PRESIDENTS 
Willie Kasayulie, Chairman of the Board

Ivan M. Ivan 

President
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cc: Hon. Bill Sheffield, Governor
Rep. Vern Hurlbert 
Rep. Jack Fuller 
Rep. Tony Vaska 
Sen. Frank Ferguson 
Sen. John Sackett 
C o n t r a c t  S c h o o l  A s s o c i a t i o n
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Alaska House of Representatives

February 13, 1984

Mr. Alfred S. White, Principal 
Covenant High School 
Unalakleet, Alaska 99684

Dear Mr. White:

Thank you for your letter regarding HB 504 - "An Act establishing the 
teacher scholarship loan program."

HB 504 was introduced 1/10/84 and referred to the Health & Social 
Services Comittee, which is chaired by Representative Mae Tischer. The 
bill has further referrals to the House Comittee on Loans, chaired by 
Representative Rick Uehling and the Finance Ccmittee, chaired by 
Representative A1 Adams. Any further correspondence you may have should 
be addressed to these Committees.

I have forwarded your letter to the Health, Education and Social 
Services Committee. Thank you for your Interest in the Legislative 
process.

Sincerelv

Rep. John G. (Jack) Fuller 
Chairman, House Rules

HOME 
P.O BOX 6B9 

NOME. ALASKA 00702

W H ILE IN JU N EA U
POUCH V 

JUNEAU. ALASKA 00011 
(007) 40S-3708
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(907) 624-3282 U n a la k le e t ,  A la s k a  99684
February 6 , 1984

Representative Jack Fuller 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V (MS 3100)
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Representative Fuller:

Enclosed is a letter which we submitted at the hearing recently on HB 504. We feel chat 
this bill could serve an excellent purpose in the bush but feel strongly that nrivate school 
graduates should not be restricted from participation. Our letter exnresses our viewooint.

The method of payment might need to be altered in order to avoid channeling funds through 
a private school to the recipients, but 1  am sure that this could be done without altering 
the intent of the bill. I am inclined to believe chat it would be preferable, at any rate, 
to have recipients receive grants directly from the state on nomination from the districts. 
This method would largely parallel the present Student Loan program while giving the dis­
tricts input on promising candidates.

Other items in the bill which might be given additional consideration are the following:

Sec. 14.43.640 Conditions of loan. Paragraph 2 requires that the borrower must teach 
in the district from which he/she graduated in ord;i‘ to be eligible for loan forgiveness. 
I believe that this is entirely too restrictive. 7n small districts such as Nome or 
Dillingham, an opening may not be available upor graduation. Also, marriage often re­
quires a graduate to re-locate. It has been our experience that most Alaska Native 
graduates do return to the bush, and the value of others in the major city school systems 
is significant in its impact on Native students in those areas as well.

It seems unfortunate also that a returning student would be restricted from teaching in 
a private school in order to receive credit toward forgiveness. Federal teacher loans 
have not made this distinction. If the school is classified as having a high percentage 
of minority students, the borrower may apply for a percentage of forgiveness regardless 
of the public or private status of the school.

I am personally inclined to think that the loan should be supplemental rather than set
at $10,000 maximum without restrictions. BIA loans, for exa>..pxe, reauire that the appli­
cant "show financial need after other sources of funding have been considered." Some 
such requirement would serve the double purpose of weeding out the less serious appli­
cants and would increase the numbers of students who could be served.

I think that there should be close state monitorshin of the loan recipients through 
the four years. This might require more than the 'present regulations for the Student 
Loan program.

Again, we want to indicate our strong support for this bill and will appreciate your
consideration of the items we have discussed.

cc. Rep. Joe Hayes
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A l a s k a  H o u s e  of R e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  

H e a l t h ,  E d u c a t i o n  and S o c i a l  S e r v i c e s  

H o u s e  S p e c i a l  C o m i t t e e  on S t a t e  L o a n s  a nd F i n a n c e  

J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a  9 9 8 0 1

L e a r  Torjr.ittee M e m b e r s :

W e  a r e  t a k i n g  t h i s  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  c e m e n t  o n  H o u s e  E ill No. 504 w h i c h  

h a s  r e c e n t l y  c o m e  t o  o u r  a t t e n t i o n .  W e  c e r t a i n l y  a p p l a u d  t h e  i n t e n t  of 

t h e  b i l l  t o  e n l a r g e  th e  n u m b e r  a n d  s t r e n g t h e n  t he t r a i n i n g  of e t h n i c  m i n o r ­

it i e s ,  p a r t i c u l a r  A l a s k a  N a t i v e s ,  in t h e  t e a c h i n g  p r o f e s s i o n  b y  o f f e r i n c  

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n s .  W e  h a v e  r e c o g n i z e d  t h i s  n e e d  s i n c e  1 9 5 4  w h e n  

C o v e n a n t  H i g h  S c h o o l  w a s  o p e n e d  a nd h a v e  e n c o u r a g e  b o t h  p u b l i c  a n d  p r i v a t e  

s u p p o r t  of  t e a c h e r  t r a i n i n g .

W e  a r e  s u r p r i s e d ,  h o w e v e r ,  to d i s c o v e r  t h a t  N a t i v e  g r a d u a t e s  of  p r i v a t e  

s c h o o l s  a r e  d i s c r i m i n a t e d  a g a i n s t  in r e c e i v i n g  t h i s  a s s i s t a n c e .  S i n c e  t he 

i n t e n t  of  t he b i l l  is " t o  e n c o u r a g e  m e m b e r s  of e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  t o  r e t u r n  

t o  r u r a l  s c h o o l s  as t e a c h e r s , "  a n d  s i n c e  " a l m o s t  n o  s t u d e n t s  a m o n g  t h e  s t a t e ' s  

e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  r e t u r n  to  r u r a l  s c h o o l s  t o  t e a c h , "  i t  w o u l d  s e e m  t h a t  e v e r y  

a b l e  c o n d i d a t e  w o u l d  b e  e n c o u r a g e d  t o  p a r t i c i p a t e .

T h e  s u c c e s s  of s u c h  s c h o o l s  as St. M a r y ' s  H i g h  S c h o o l  a n d  C o v e n a n t  H i g h  

S c h o o l  i n  p r o v i d i n g  g r a d u a t e s  w i t h  c o l l e g e  s k i l l s  h a s  b e e n  w i d l v  r e c o g n i z e d  

a n d  d o c u m e n t e d  b y  s t u d i e s  s u c h  a s  t h o s e  of  J u d i t h  K l e i n f e l d  at the U n i v e r s i t y  

o f  A l a s k a .  A  q u i c k  s u r v e y  of  C o v e n a n t  H i g h  S c h o o l ' s  a l u m n i  l i s t  i n d i c a t e s  at 

l e a s t  1 0  p e o p l e ,  a l l  b u t  t h r e e  of w h o m  a r e  A l a s k a  N a t i v e s ,  w h o  h a v e  t e a c h i n g  

d e g r e e s .  One, S a m  T o w a r a k ,  is p r e s i d e n t  of C h u c h i  C o m m u n i t y  C o l l e g e  in 

K o t z e b u e .  P r o b a b l y  at  l e a s t  a n o t h e r  10 h a v e  e d u c a t i o n  m i n o r s  or a r e  p r e s e n t l y  

w o r k i n g  o n  e d u c a t i o n  d e g r e e s .  It is e n t i r e l y  p o s s i b l e  t h a t  th e  i n c e n t i v e  of 

a b i l l  l i k e  HE 504 w o u l d  h a v e  e n c o u r a g e d  jDther s u c h  p r i v a t e  s c h o o l  g r a d u a t e s  

w i t h  c o l l e g e  s k i l l s  t o  e n t e r  e d u c a t i o n .  It  m i g h t  a l s o  h a v e  l ed s e m e  of these 

y o u n g  p e o p l e  w h o  s h o w e d  a n  i n t e r e s t  in e d u c a t i o n ,  b u t  e n t e r e d  o t h e r  f i e l d s ,  

t o  f i n d  a p l a c e  in e d u c a t i o n .

W e  s e e  no  p r o b l e m  in a d m i n i s t e r i n g  t h i s  l e g i s l a t i o n  w i t h  g r a d u a t e s  of 

p r i v a t e  s c h o o l s  a s  r e c i p i e n t s .  F u n d s  w o u l d  b e  m a d e  a v a i l a b l e  to e l i g i b l e  

A l a s k a n s  w i t h o u t  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n  in the s a m e  w a y  A l a s k a  S t u d e n t  L o a n s  a r e  m a d e  

a v a i l a b l e .  N o  p a y m e n t s  w o u l d  be  m a d e  to p r i v a t e  or d e n o m i n a t i o n a l  s c h o o l s .

T h e  B u r e a u  of I n d i a n  A f f a i r s  S c h o l a r s h i p  G r a n t  P r o g r a m ,  f e d e r a l  P e l l  G r a n t s ,  

et c .  a r e  a l l  a d m i n i s t e r e d  o n  t h i s  b a s i s .  S t u d e n t s  r e c e i v i n g  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r­

s h i p  l o a n s  m a y  v e r y  w e l l  a t t e n d  p r i v a t e  c o l l e g e s .  I t  s e e m s  u n r e a s o n a b l e  t h a t  

t h e y  w o u l d  be r e s t r i c t e d  f r o m  a t t e n d i n g  a p r i v a t e  h i g h  s c h o o l  t o  b e c o m e  e l i g i b l e .
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It w o u l d  see m  t h a t  the same f o r m u l a  for a w a r d i ng  s c h o l a r s h i p s  by p u b l i c  

scho o l s  could b e  u s e d  in such s c h o o l s  as C o v e n a n t  H i g h  School. In c o m m u n i t i es  

w h e r e  there is a s i n g l e  h i g h  scho o l  in the d istrict, such as N o m e  or D i l l i n g­

ham, the p r o c e s s  of a w a r d i n g  s c h o l a r s h i p s  would be identical t o  the s i t uation 

at C o v e n a n t  H i g h  S c h o o l .  We w o u l d s i m p l y  be c o n s i d e r e d  as a di s t r i c t ,  as we 

ar e  now  w i t h  the A l a s k a  H i g h  S c h o o l  A c t i v i t i e s  Assoc i a t i o n .

Again, w e  w i s h  to o f f e r  our strong support for this l e g i s l a t i o n  w hich 

shows p r o m i s e  of d e a l i n g  w i t h  a s e ri o u s  d e f i c i e n c y  in our rural c o m m u n i t i e s  - 

the lack of N a t i v e  e d u c a t o r s .  W e  hop e  that the c o m m i t t e e  will i n c r e a s e  the 

b i l l ' s  scope to i n c l u d e  what we b e l i e v e  is a strong source of e li g i b l e  c a n d i­

da t e s  for the program. - the. p r i v a t e  and d e n o m i n a t i o n a l  schools.

E x e c u t i v e  D i r e c t o r

*



DISTRICT 2 2
R E P .  J O H N  G. ( J A C K )  F U L L E R

CHAIRMAN. R U LES  COM M ITTEE 

M EM BER
ALAKANUX
Br e v x jm is s o n

CMC VAX
DIOMEDE
HIM
EMMONAK 
GAMBEU 
GOi Ovin 
HOOPER BAY
Komx
koyuk

NOME 
BAVOONCA 
■CAUMON BAY 
BhaXTOOUX 
Bh EIDON'S POINT 
eh is HU abet 
ETCBBiNS 
61 MCHAEl 
TEUER
UNALAXlfCT
WAlES
WHITE MOUNTAIN

P f tC r  COMMITTEE 

COMMITTEE ON COMMITTEES 
REAA BUDGET OVERSIGHT COMUITTEE 

BlUE RIBBON COMMISSION ON PERSONNEI

Alaska House of Representatives

February 13, 1984

Mr. Ivan M. Ivan, President 
Association of Village Council Presidents 
P. 0. Box 219 
Bethel, Alaska 99559

Dear Ivan:

Thank you for vour letter regarding HB 504 - "An Act establishing the 
teacher scholarship loan program."

HB 504 was introduced 1/10/84 and referred to the Health & Social 
Services Comittee, which is chaired by Representative Mae Tischer. The 
bill has further referrals to the House Comittee on Loans, chaired by 
Representative Rick Uehling and the Finance Comittee, chaired by 
Representative A1 Adams. Any further correspondence you may have should 
be addressed to these Comittees.

I have forwarded your letter to the Health, Education and Social 
Services Comittee. Thank you for your interest in the Legislative 
process.

Sincerely,

Rep./John G. (Jack) Fuller 
Chairman, House Rules

HOME
P.0 BOX MS 

NOME. ALASKA 98762 
(907)44*4968
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POUCH V 

JUNEAU. ALASKA 99611 
(907) 46S-3769
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Association of Village Council Presidents 
P.O. Box 219 • Bethel, Alaska 99559 • Phone 543-3521

February l, 1984

Hon. Joe Hayes
Speaker of the House of Representatives 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Dear Representatives Hayes:

On behalf of the Association of Village Council Presidents, regional 
non-profit Native corporation for the 55 Yupik Native communities of 
the Yukon-Kuskokwim delta region, I wish to commend you and the 27 
co-sponsors for your introduction of House Bill 504, providing for a 
teacher scholarship loan program.

We concur with the legislative findings as stated in the bill. In par­
ticular, incentive has not be provided for Alaska Natives to pursue 
teaching careers in rural Alaska. Throughout the State (REAA) schools 
and remaining federal (BIA) schools, there are almost no Native teachers 
available for the almost totally Native student bodies. We sincerely 
appreciate your sponsorship of H.B. 504 and encourage your aggressive 
efforts for the enactment of this very beneficial legislation.

There is one small grjup of rural school districts which has overcome 
many of the difficulties which H.B. 504 seeks to correct. In the exam­
ination of rural education issues by you and your colleagues, we wish 
to encourage you to consider the future of five locally-controlled 
community schools in the AVCP-Calista Region. The Native communities 
of Akiachak, Akiak, Chefornak, Chevak and Tuluksak manage the only 
village-operated community schools in Alaska.

Beginning in 1977, these village council chose to operate their own 
community schools, apart from the federally-operated BIA schools and 
the State REAA systems. The federal government provides funds through 
the BIA appropriations, however management of the education programs 
and school districts is completely controlled at the community level.

Local community, Native involvement is provided in every aspect of the 
education program of these "contract" schools. The largest school, 
for example, has eight certified Alaska Native teachers in its teaching 
staff. Community school boards at these schools completely determine, 
within the village, all administrative, curriculla, fiscal and policy 
decisions concerning school district operations.

Unfortunately, these schools are scheduled to be closed at the end of 
the 1984-85 school year.
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cc: Hon. Bill Sheffield, Governor
Rep. Vern Hurlbert 
Rep. Jack Fuller 
Rep. Tony Vaska 
Sen. Frank Ferguson 
Sen. John Sackett 
C o n t r a c t  S c h o o l  A s s o c i a t i o n
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February 15, 1984

The Honorable Joe L. Hayes, Speaker 

Alaska State House of Representatives 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Dear Mr Hayes:

House Bill No. 504, creating a teacher scholarship loan program for 
Alaska Native high school graduates who would earn a teaching degree and 
return to their district to teach, would give incentive for our Native 
students to enter into a field which would allow them to return to their
villages or districts to teach.

Often, students are reluctant to enter this sector because upon
conclusion, they are forced to move out of their environment to seek
employment opportunities. House Bill No. 504 would alleviate this 
hurdle.

Sincerely

Director, Shareholder Relations

cc: Representative Vernon L. Hurlbert
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NATIVE
DISTRICT TEACH

Adak 0
Alaska Gateway 0
Aleutians 0
Anchorage 30
Annette Island No
Bering Strait 2
Bristol Bay No
Chatham 0
Chugach 0
Copper River 1
Cordova 0
Craig No
Delta/Greely 0
Dillingham No
Fa irbanks No
Galena 1
Haines 1
Hoonah 0
Hydaburg 0
Iditarod 2
Juneau 0
Kake 0
Kenai 0
Ketchikan 3
King Cove 1
Klawock 2
Kodiak 2
Kuspuk 0
Lake & Peninsula 8
Lower Kuskokwim 13
Lower Yukon 5
Mat-Su No
Nenana 0
Nome 2
North Slope 20
Northwest Arctic 6
Pelican No
Petersburg 0
Pribilof 0
RaiIbelt 0
St. Marys 10
Sand Point No
Si tka 2
Skagway 0
Southeast Islands 0
Southwest Region No
Tanana No
Unalaska 0
Valdez 0
Wrangel1 No
Yakutat 1
Yukon Flats 2
Yukon Koyukuk 10

CERTIFIED

H.S. GRADS

1
1
1
2 1

response

response

response

response

1

0
0
2
6

0
4
0
0
4 

0 
0 
0
25
1
2
?

0
6
22
15

1
2
14

59

5 
0 
0
5

6
2
3

0
0

1
3
?



E L U O T  THIS IS FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES O N L Y  '
The information contained herein 

I n t r o d u c e d :  1 / 1 0 / 8 4  m a y  not be complete, and is not to be
R e f e r r e d :  H e a l t h ,  E d u c a t i o n  & S o c i a l  construed as a legal opinion.
Se r v i c e s ,  H o u s e  S p e c i a l  C o m m i t t e e  on 
S t a t e  L o a n s  a nd F i n a n c e

BY H A Y E S ,  H U R L B E R T ,  A D A M S ,  AB30D,
B A R NES, B U S SELL, CATO, C O W D E R Y ,  DAVIS, 
FULLER, F U R NACE, C R U S S E N D O R F ,  H E R R M A N N  
K O P O N E N ,  L I N D A U E R ,  LISKA, M A L O N E ,
MA R T I N ,  M . W . M I L L E R ,  R I N G S T A D ,  SHULTZ, 
S Z Y M A N S K I ,  U E H L I N G ,  WARD, ZHAROFF,

1 IN T H E  H O U S E  FRITZ, B E T T I S W O R T H  A N D  M C B R I D E

2 H O U S E  B I L L  NO. 504

3 IN T H E  L E G I S L A T U R E  OF  T H E  S T A T E  OF A L A S K A

4 T H I R T E E N T H  L E G I S L A T U R E  - S E C O N D  S E S S I O N

5 A B I L L

e d u c a - h r -
6 For an Act entitled: A n  Act establishing the tea oho* scholarship loan

A
7 p r o g r a m . "

8 BE IT  E N A C T E D  BY T H E  L E G I S L A T U R E  O F  T H E  S T A T E  OF  ALASKA:

9 * S e c t i o n  1. AS  1 4 . 4 3  is a m e n d e d  by a d d i n g  n e w  s e c t i o n s  to read:

S D U C f f T D f Z
10 A R T I C L E  7. T-EA-G H E R S C H O L A R S H I P  L O A N  PROGRAM.

A

11 Sec. 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 0 0 .  F I N D I N G S  A N D  INTENT. (a) T h e  l e g i s l a t u r e  finds

12 that t h ere is a w i d e  a nd u n a c c e p t a b l e  d i s p a r i t y  b e t w e e n  the e t h n i c

13 d i s t r i b u t i o n  of and the e t h n i c  d i s t r i b u t i o n  of s t u d e n t s  in
A

14 the s t ate p u b l i c  s c h o o l s .  P a r t i c u l a r l y - i n  rural . a r e a s , m a n y  s c h o o l sno N w K  A*?rz>/3 ,
15 h a v e  v i r t u a l l y  no N a t i v e  teachers^ and no n o n - N a t i v e  s t u dents. T he

A
16 u n d e s i r a b l e  e f f e c t s  of this d i s p a r i t y  i n c l u d e  the following:

17 (1) t h e r e  is a s e r i o u s  w e a k n e s s  in the a b i l i t y  of *1*0 1 ^7
A

18 a t n f f »t  p a r t i c u l a r l y  in rural s c h o o l s ,  to f o s t e r  a s e nse of  e t h n i c  '

19 t r a d i t i o n s  a nd c u l t u r e s  in the st u d e n t s ;

20 (2) m a n y  r u ral s t u d e n t s  are f o r c e d  to e x i s t  in two e n t i r e l y

21 s e p a r a t e  s i t u a t i o n s :  the e s s e n t i a l l y  t r a d i t i o n a l  a t m o s p h e r e  of m a n y

22 N a t i v e  homes, a n d  the e s s e n t i a l l y  m o d e r n  a t m o s p h e r e  of the c l a s s r o o m ;

23 (3) a l m o s t  no s t u d e n t s  a m o n g  the s t a t e ' s  e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s
ujofk. 4 >

24 r e t u r n  to rural s c h o o l s  to fcew o R , c o n t i n u i n g  the e t h n i c  i m b a l a n c e  and

25 e x a c e r b a t i n g  its e f f e c t s ;  and

26 (4) t h e r e  is a n  a n n u a l  t u r n o v e r  of 40 p e r c e n t  a m o n g  teach-

27 ers in rural e d u c a t i o n a l  a t t e n d a n c e  a r eas in the state.

28 (b) T h e  l e g i s l a t u r e  f u r t h e r  f i nds tha t  e x i s t i n g  p r o g r a m s  h a v e

29 f a iled to i n c r e a s e  the p r o p o r t i o n  of m e m b e r s  of e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s

- 1 - HB 5 04



u i c E k i y

te a c h i n g- in r u ral s c h ools. T h e r e f o r e ,  it is the inte n t  of the legis- 

latu r e  to e s t a b l i s h  the t e .-vahor s c h o l a r s h i p  l oan p r o g r a m  to e n c o u r a g e

A  e d u c t - t e r s
m e m b e r s  of e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  to r e t u r n  to r u r a l  s c h o o l s  as & « a c h » p c

A

and r e l i e v e  the c o n d i t i o n s  d e s c r i b e d  in this s e c tion.

Sec. 14.43.610. P R O G R A M  E S T A B L I S H E D .  T h e r e  is e s t a b l i s h e d  the

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loan p r o g r a m  to p r o v i d e  an i n c e n t i v e  for p m r .Uiat 
) n d  i v i d u  4 / i

o f- A i ociui h i gh  n o h wo lo  w h o  are fro m  e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  to p u r s u e  t e a c h -  
A

ing c a r eers in A l a s k a  schools.
e o u c A T t z .

Sec. 14.43.620. TfiASHKU S C H O L A R S H I P  R E V O L V I N G  L O A N  FUND. T h e r e

a d u c a h ) r~ A

is c r e a t e d  a t c u m b er s c h o l a r s h i p  r e v o l v i n g  loa n  fund. T h e  fund s h a l l
A

be u s e d  to m a k e  s c h o l a r s h i p  loans to s t u d e n t s  s e l e c t e d  u n d e r  AS 14.-

4 3 . 6 0 0  - 1 4 . 4 3.650. All r e p a y m e n t s  of p r i n c i p a l  a nd i n t e r e s t  on  

s c h o l a r s h i p  loans shall be  p a i d  into the be a c ho r  s c h o l a r s h i p  

r e v o l v i n g  fund and s h all be u s e d  to m a k e  n e w  s c h o l a r s h i p

loans. If e s t i m a t e d  funds a v a i l a b l e  from £f?ae(<»r s c h o l a r s h i p  l oan

*  Z ( ( u t 4 - h 6 r

r e p a y m e n t s  are i n a d e q u a t e  to fully f und e s t i m a t e d  te-n o h o r  s c h o l a r s h i p  

loans for any fiscal year, a d d i t i o n a l  f u n d i n g  f rom the g e n e r a l  f und 

ma y be r e q u e s t e d  a nd a p p r o p r i a t e d  for that year.

S . d u c A . ' f o  r
Sec. 14.43.630. A D M I N I S T R A T I O N .  The s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n

A

p r o g r a m  shall be a d m i n i s t e r e d  by the s t u d e n t  f i n a n c i a l  aid c o m m i t t e e

(AS 1 4 . 4 3.095) in a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  r e g u l a t i o n s  a d o p t e d  by the

c o m m ittee. T he c o m m i t t e e  shall d i s t r i b u t e  the funds a v a i l a b l e  for

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loans a n n u a l l y  to local scho o l  b o a r d s  g i v i n g  a

p r e f e r e n c e  to s c hool d i s t r i c t s  w i t h  a h i g h  p e r c e n t a g e  of s t u d e n t s  in

e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  and a low p e r c e n t a g e  of t w y l i t w . in e t h n i c

m i n o r i t i e s .  T he local school b o a r d s  shall sele c t  the r e c i p i e n t s  of

the b r er he r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loans.
A

Sec. 14.43.640. C O N D I T I O N S  O F  LOANS. E a c h  s c hool d i s t r i c t  s h all 
< r d u  c A - f a r -

a w a r d  -u»ach«*4- s c h o l a r s h i p  loans s u b j e c t  to the f o l l o w i n g  c o n d i t i o n s :
A



1 (1) the conditions provided in AS 14.43.120 apply e*c &p6

2 t-t m fe-no i oan»  may b e- made— 1-» graduate rtudcnks and the state shall

t d u C A - H r
3 repay a portion of a woooher scholarship loan under AS 14.43.120(j)

A

4 only if, in addition to the other criteria, the borrower is also

t d u C A + o r

5 employed as a public school W « e l w  in the state during the period for
A

6 which the loan is forgiven;

7 (2) if a borrower meets the conditions provided in para-

t d u c A - H i
8 graph (1) of this section and is employed as a public school t-aaoho-r

r«^v,( a

9 in irl\u d-inlrict— (■»■<)in- whioh the borrower gradu.iLett, the portion of the
A  /.

10 loan that shall be paid by the state is the fallowing percentages of

11 the total loan received plus interest up to a total of 100 percent of

12 the total loan:

13 (A) one year employment, 15 percent;

14 (B) two years employment, an additional 15 percent;

15 (C) three years employment, an additional 15 percent;

16 (D) four years employment, an additional 25 percent;

17 (E) over four years employment, an additional 30 per-

18. cent; and

19 (3) n loan may not exceed $10,000 in a school year.

20 Sec. 14.43 650. SELECTION C R I T E R I A .  (a) To be eligible for a 

t d u c A . H r
21 U w H t W r  scholarship loan, a student: must

A

22 (1) be a graduate of, or scheduled ,yfor
o r

23 six months from, a tn u be pnblie*. high school, with sufficient credits
A

24 to be admitted to an accredited college or university;

25 (2) be e n r o l l e d  in o r  s h o w  e v i d e n c e  of i n t e n t . t o  e n r o l l  in

t>r

26 a d e g r e e  p r o g r a m  d i r e c t e d  at a t e a c h i n g  c a r e e r  at the e l e m e n t a r y  or
A

2/ s e c o n d a r y  school lrvcl; a n d

28 (3) m e e t  the c o n d i t i o n s  set by the s L u d e n t ' s  local scho o l

29 d i s t r i c t  w i t h  r e s p e c t  to the d i s t r i c t ' s  r e q u i r e m e n t s  for t.waclvwmi in
A

- 3 -  HB 504



1 particular subject areas. .
e d u c + r h r r '

2 (b) Each school district shall award t a a chaar scholarship loans
A

3 in direct p r oportion to the d i s t ribution of ethnic groups a mong the

4 students eligible for g raduation from the school district each year.

5 (c) A student may not be awarded a scholarship loan u n d e r

6 AS 14.43.090 - 14.43.160 and a X.oaelver scholarship loan under AS 14.-
A

7 43.600 - 14.43.650 for the same school year.

H D  5 04 -4-
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D E P A R T M E N T  O F  L A W

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  A  T T O R N E Y  G E N E R A L

February 6 , 1984

The Honorable Mae Tischer 
Alaska State House 
Pouch V
Juneau, AK 99811

R E P L Y  TO :

□  1031 W  4 th  A  V EN UE  
S U IT E  2 0 0
A N C H O RA G E , A LA SK A  9 9 5 0 1  
PH O N E : 19071 2 7 6 -3 5 5 0

□  / if  N A T IO N A L  CENTER  
100  CUSHM AN  ST.
S U IT E  4 0 0
F A IR B A N K S . A LA SK A  9 9 7 0 1  
PH O N E : 1907 ) 4 5 2 -1 5 6 8

0  PO UCH  K  - ST A T E  CA PITO L  
JU N EA U . A L m SKA  9 9 8 1 1  
PH O N E : 1 907 ) 4 6 5 -3 6 0 0

465-3603

Bl .L SHEFFIELD, GOVERNOR

Dear Representative Tischer:

You have asked us to review HB 504, "[a]n Act
establishing the teacher scholarship loan program." This bill 
raises several constitutional and legal questions which we 
briefly address below.

Several provisions of this proposed legislation are 
subject to challenge under the equal protection clauses of the 
United States or Alaska Constitutions. These concern (1) the 
establishment of racial quotas in loan distribution; (2 ) the 
exclusion of graduates of 'private high schools, and (3) the
limitation of total forgiveness- to teachers who teach in the
district from which they graduated. Another constitutional issue 
raised by this bill concerns the prohibition against dedicated
funds.

The United States Supreme Court has adopted a "two- 
tiered" analysis for evaluating most legislative classifications 
challenged under the federal equal protection clause. A classi­
fication which is "suspect" or impinges upon a "fundamental 
right" is subject to "strict scrutiny." A law that makes a
classification based on race or ethnicity is "suspect" and, 
consequently, will be closely examined by the court to determine 
whether (1 ) it is supported by a compelling state interest, and
(2 ) whether the racial or ethnic classification is necessary to 
promote that state interest. The first equal protection issue 
identified above would be analyzed under this test. The second 
and third do not involve suspect classifications or fundamental 
rights and, therefore, under federal lav; would be subjected to 
the less demanding standard of whether (1 ) the classification 
promotes a legitimate state interest, and (2 ) whether the means 
chosen to achieve that interest is rational.

03-C5LH
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T h e  H o n o r a b l e  M a e  T i s c h e r
R e p r e s e n t a t i v e
Re: H B  504

F e b r u a r y  6, 19 8 4
P a g e  2

The Alaska Supreme Court has adopted a single standard 
of review for equal protection questions arising under the Alaska 
Constitution which is more rigorous than the federal "rational 
basis" test and, in areas involving suspect classifications and 
fundamental rights, is comparable to the federal standard. The 
Alaska Supreme Court would inquire as to the purposes of the 
statute and the circumstances surrounding it to determine whether 
those purposes are legitimate and fall within the police power of 
the state. Then the court would determine whether the means 
chosen "substantially furthers the goals of the enactment." 
Finally, the court would balance the state interest in the chosen 
means against the nature of the constitutional right involved. 
State v. Erickson, 574 P.2d 1, 12 (Alaska 1978); Isakson v.
Rickey, 550 P.2d 359 (Alaska 1976).

Under section 650(b), the award of loans is to be "in 
direct proportion to the distribution of ethnic groups" among 
eligible students. This provision establishes a racial quota and 
would be subject to close examination under both federal and 
state law.

We have serious reservations regarding the ability of 
the bill to survive an equal protection challenge, under either 
the federal or state analyses described above, to the ethnic 
classification of § 650(b). Even if the court were to find the 
purposes of the bill, as expressed in sections 600 and 610 to be 
compelling ones, which cannot be assumed, the court would closely 
scrutinize the means chosen to achieve those ends. Since the 
means employ ethnic criteria, the bill would fall if the court 
were to find that the ends could be achieved by less 
discriminatory means. An example may be helpful. In a school 
district with 90 percent Alaska Natives, and 10 percent 
non-Natives, if there were 10 loans to be awarded, nine would be 
available for distribution to Alaska Native students and one for 
a non-Native student. If only eight Alaska Natives and two 
non-Natives applied for loans, the bill would require that only 
one non-Native get a loan, despite the shortage of Alaska Native 
applicants. The quota in § 650(b) is not expressed as simply a 
preference, but as an inflexible mandate, which may not be 
necessary to accomplish the stated objectives. ]_/ Of course, if 
it could be shown that the means employed in this legislation are

iy This example is for illustrative purposes only and is not 
meant to suggest that substituting a preference for the existing 
quota would necessarily render it constitutionally permissible.
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essential to remedy problems identified in § 600 and 610, or
problems that could be identified, 2 / the provisions of §
650(b) could be upheld.

The second equal protection issue arises with respect 
to the restriction of this program to graduates of public high 
schools. Although § 610 states that the purpose of the bill is 
to provide an incentive "for graduates of Alaskan high schools 
...", and § 600 identifies problems found in rural schools, § 640 
and 650 restrict participation to graduates of public schools, 
and the forgiveness benefits are only available to those who 
teach in public high schools. If the preservation and 
pedagogical use of cultural heritage and traditions, through 
inducement of rural students to return and teach in rural areas, 
is the main objective of the bill, the restriction to graduates 
of and teachers in public high schools would not seem to further 
that goal. Consequently, this provision may also be subject to 
challenge under state, if not federal, law.

The forgiveness provision in § 640(2) also raises equal
protection concerns. Under § 640(2), total forgiveness is avail­
able only to students who return to teach in the school districts 
from which they graduate. Assuming the main purpose of the bill 
is that stated above, it would seem that a return to the general 
area or culture in which the student was raised would suffice to 
achieve it. 3/ It appears unlikely that each school district is 
so culturally distinct as to justify such a restriction.

2/ In a recent case the United States Supreme Court upheld a law 
that '■'..iployed racial and ethnic criteria. The case involved a 
fe^.ral law giving a 1 0  percent preference for minoricy 
businesses in the award of certain contracts, with the intent of 
remedying the present effects of past discrimination. Before a 
legislative body can predicate a race-conscious remedy on 
redressing past discrimination, however, findings of past 
discrimination sufficient to justify that remedy must be made. 
Valentine v. Smith, 654 F.2d 503 (8 th Cir 1981). Our brief 
review has uncovered no cases which sanction the use of a racial 
or ethnic quota where there are not factual findings that the 
racial imbalance sought to be remedied is due to past 
discrimination.

3/ Additionally, it should be considered that many rural school 
districts will have a limited capacity to absorb new teachers,

(Footnote Continued)
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A constitutional problem of a different nature arises 
with respect to administration of the loan program under § 620. 
That section establishes the program as a revolving loan fund in 
which all repayments of principal and interest are put back into 
the fund and used to make new loans. This may contravene the 
constitutional prohibition against dedicated funds. Alaska 
Const., art IX, sec. 7. However, this department has indicated 
that it will defend such legislation until this issue is 
definitively resolved. 13 Op. Atty. Gen. Nov. 30, 1982.

We suggest, finally, that the term "ethnic minority" be
defined to obviate questions of statutory interpretation that
might arise as this program is implemented. For example, it is 
unclear whether each group in a community composed of Tiingits,
Haidas, and Tsimpshians would be considered members of a single
"Alaska Native" ethnic group, or whether each would be considered 
a distinct ethnic group.

If you have any other questions about this bill, please 
do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely yours,

NORMAN C. GORSUCH
ATTORNEY GENERAL

v «

B y : t / t S l  ( T l ' l r ____
Linda Scoctia
Assistant Attorney General

L S :jal

cc: Arthur H. Peterson

(Footnote Continued)
and a teacher who is unable to get a job in his or her school 
district of origin may be in effect penalized as a result bv 
being m e l i g b l e  for forgiveness under § 640(b). ’



STATE OF ALASKA 1984 LEGISLATIVE SESSION 
FISCAL NOTE

Revision Date:

REQUEST
Bi11/Resulution No.: HB 504
Title: T e a c h e r  S c h o l a r s h i p  Loans

Sponsor: H a y e s ,  H u r l b ert, et.al. 

Requesto~ H o u s e  HESS 
Date of Request: 1-15-84

EXPEND ITURES/REVENUES: (Thousands of Dollars)
FY 84 FY 85 FY 86 FY 87 FY 88 FY 89

OPERATING

100 PERSONAL SERVICES 1
:oc travel 1
300 CONTRACTUAL 1
A00 SUPPLIES i
500 EQUIPMENT 1
£00 LAND 4 STRUCTURES 1
700 CRANTS, CLAIMS 1
500 MISCELLANEOUS 1
TOTAL OPERATING N . A . 0 0 0 0

CAPITAL N. A. 1

REVENUE N.A. o u 1 0 o 0

FISCAL DETAIL
Agency Affected: Education__________
Program Category Affeeted:Postsecondary
Commission____________________________

BRU, Program or Subprogram!s) Affected: 
Scholarship Loans

FUNDING: (Thousands of Dollars)

CENERAL FUND N.A. | 02.5 1 152.5 210.7 | 297.S I 515.7

FEDERAL FUNDS 1 1 1 1
OTHER 1 1 i 1
TOTAL 1 1 ! 1

POSITIONS:
FULL-T IKE! | N.A. u 1 0 I 0 0
part-time ! 1 1
TEMPORARY r | i I

SOURCE OF FUNDS TO OFFSET FISCAL IMPACT OF = ILL:

ANALYSiS: Attach a separate page for analysis

Prepared By: Kerry D. Romes burg J * ' '_________  Phone: 465-2854______
Division :Cotnin i ss l on on Postsccoiu^fia^^dilcat: :n Date: 1-15-S4

Approved by Commissioner;__________________________ Date:________________

Agency:_________________________________________

Distribution (by Agency preparing fiscal note):

Legislative Finance 
Legislative Sponsor 
Requestor

Office of Management and Budget
Impacted Agency(ies) 12/1/83



H5504: Teacher Scholarship Program

Comments

1. Borrower must be a graduate from an Alaskan pub 1 ic high school.

There are a number of private high schools which would have no students 

eligible (Covenant High School - Unalakleet, Monroe High School - 

Fairbanks, St. Mary's Catholic High School - St. Mary's, for example).

2. Borrower is eligible to borrow up to the total cost of room and

board, tuition and fees, and books and suoplies, or $10,000, whichever is

lower. Hence, only twenty or thirty students per year would borrow more 

than the normal $6,000 student loan maximum.

3. Borrower must maintain good standing to continue receiving loans.

("C" average, enroll and complete 12 hours per term.)

4. Loans may not be awarded for more than 5 years of study.

5. Interest is 5^ - repayment is 10 vej'-s.

6. Section 14.43.630 requires the commission to actually transfer- funds 

to the school districts. '/Je feel that fund transfer to the district is an 

unnecessary step and should be eliminated. The funds should go to the 

student (actually to the school in which the student enrolls) and not to 

the district and then to the student.

7. Section 14.43.640 (b)(1) means that if a borrower does not teach



public school in Alaska, no loan forgiveness is possible - not even the 

normal 50% for which other loan borrowers are eligible.

B. Possible Amendments

1. Section 14.43.630 amended to read:

Sec. 14.43.630. AD MINI ST RAT I ON. The teacher scholarship loan 

program shall be administered by the student financial aid committee (AS 

14.43.095) in accordance with regulations adopted by the committee. The 

committee shall allocate [DISTRIBUTE] the loan awards [FUNDS] available 

for teacher scholarship loans annually to local school boards giving a 

preference to school districts with a high percentage of students in 

ethnic minorities and a low percentage of teachers in ethnic minorities. 

The local school boards shall select the ’*ecipients of the teacher 

scholarship loans.

2. Section 14.43.640 amended to re a'

Sec. 14.43.640. CONDITIONS OF LOANS. Each school district shall 

award teacher scholarship loans subject the following conditions:

(1) the conditions provided is AS 14.43.120 apply except that 

no loans may be made to graduate st.rents [AND THE STATE SHALL REPAY 

A PORTION OF A TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP .jAN UNDER AS 14.43.120 (j) ONLY 

IF, IN ADDITION TO THE OTHER CRITERIA, THE BORROWER IS ALSO Ef-PLOYED 

AS A PUBLIC SCHOOL TEACHER IN THE STATE DURING THE PERIOD FOR WHICH 

THE LOAN IS FORGIVEN];



(2) if a borrower meets the conditions provided in paragraph 

(1) of this section and is employed as a public school teacher in the 

district from which the borrower graduated, AS 14.43.120 (j) does not 

apply, but rather, the portion of the loan that shall be paid by the 

state is the following percentages of the total loan received plus 

interest up to a total of 100 percent of the total loan:

(A) one year employment, 15 percent;

(B) two years employment, an additional 15 percent;

(C) three years employment, an additional 15 percent;

(D) four years employment, an additional 25 percent;

(£) over four years emoloyment, an additional 30

percent; and

(3) a loan may not exceed $10,000 in a school year.

3. Section 14.43.650 amended to read:

Sec. 14.43.650. SELECTION CRITERIA, (a) To be eligible for a 

teacher scholarship loan, a student must

(1) be a graduate of, or scheduled for graduation within six 

months from, ari Alaskan [A STATE PUBLIC] high school, with sufficient 

credits to be admitted to an accredited college or university;

(2) be enrolled in or show evidence of intent to enroll in a 

degree program directed at a teaching career at the elementary or 

secondary school level; and



(3) meet the conditions set by the student's local school 

district with respect to the district's requirements for teachers in 

particular subject areas.

Fiscal Analysis

1. Estimated number of teacher scholarsnip loans available

FY85 80

FY86 160

FY87 240

FY83 320

FY39 320

2. Since a student may not borrow both a teacher loan and a standard 

student loan, much of the cost would be off-set. The only add-on would bo 

for those eligible costs exceeding {15,000. Tnis is estimated to be {12,500 

for 25 students in FY35, and then carriec forward with a 6% inflation in 

future years.





F e b .  1, 1984 Jim Greig, Ph.D. 
Box 399
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FUND STUDENTS, NOT PROFESSORS -- TH2 HAYES SCHOLARSHIP BILL

Rural Native American students may soon receive 310,000 per year 
scholarships; towards teaching degrees if the bill recently introduced 
by Alaska State Representative Joe Hayes is successful. Many voters may 
see this as too much money lavished on a favored ethnic minority.
They may see this bill as both an example of government waste and of 
government reverse discrimination. But, I have good evidence to show 
that this bill is neither wasteful nor discriminatory. The reality 
is quite the opposite.

My evidence comes from inside information, information that is common 
knowledge among rural college professors and administrators but is 
almost never released to the general public. I can divulge this inform­
ation because I was willing to risk my career in Alaska rather than 
cover up the waste that I found in rural higher education. For any 
that care to investigate this evidence, I have quite extensive, specific 
information. In 1981 and 1982 I worked as a University of Alaska professor 
among Native American villages along the Yukon River. Then, in the spring 
of 1983, I worked as the director of a "non-profit" Native teacher educa­
tion program among the villages of the Bering Sea. The following are just 
as few of my experiences as a rural educator.

When I arrived at my jcb on the Bering Sea, I was responsible for direct­
ing an on-going 3346,000 Federal program that was coordinated with two 
University of Alaska urograms that cost about 3252,000. In all, we were 
spending about 3600,000 per year. All the publicly released documents —  
grant requests, appeals for more state funding, etc. —  advertised that 
we had over 4 0  students, all rapidly progressing towards their teach­
ing degrees. But, after I had been on the job for a month, nothing seemed 
to be happening. Four or five students seemed to be doing some of their 
assignments, but that was about all. Thi3 program had been running for 
a year and a half before I arrived. Had the students done any work 
during that year and a half? It was hard to say. No credit hour totals 
had ever been compiled. What was the total cost of this program? Again, no 
total cost figures had ever been kept. I asked the university officials 
for their totals, but they said that they didn't have any.

I n  a t t e m p t i n g  t o  d e t e r m i n e  t h e  s u c c e s s  r a t e  o f  m y  p r o g r a m ,  I  b e g a n  t o  
p i e c e  t o g e t h e r  t h e  f a c t s .  I f  t h e  p r o g r a m  r e a l l y  w a s  n o t  w o r k i n g ,  p e r h a p s  
s o m e t h i n g  c o u l d  b e  d o n e  t o  i m p r o v e  i t .  B u t ,  f i r s t  I  h a d  t o  d e t e r m i n e  
w h a t  w a s  a c c u a l l y  h a p p e n i n g .  S o ,  I  b e g a n  t o  a s s e m b l  c o m p l e x  c h a r t s  o n  
m y  o f f i c e  w a l l s  —  c h a r t s  s h o w i n g  s t u d e n t  p r o g r e s s  c u r i n g  t h e  c u r r e n t  
s e m e s t e r  a n d  c h a r t s  s h o w i n g  s t u d e n t  p r o g r e s s  d u r i n g  t h e  p r e v i o u s  s e m e s t e r s .

A t  f i r s t  i t  w a s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  d e t e r m i n e  j u s t  w h a t  7  s h o u l d  c o n s i d e r  a s  
a  " s t u d e n t . "  A f t e r  a l l ,  I  h a d  o v e r  4 0  p e o p l e  s i g n e d  u p ,  a n d  a l l  w e r e  
c 3 a i m i n g  t o  b e  " s t u d e n t s . "  Y e t ,  l i t t l e  w o r k  w a s  b e i n g  d o n e .  B u t ,  t h e n  
I  f o u n d  a  c l e a r  s o l u t i o n .  I f ,  f o r  e x a m p l e ,  t h o s e  i n  m y  p r o g r a m  c o m p l e t e d  
a  t o t a l  o f  1 0 0 0  c o u r s e s  (3 c r e d i t  h o u r s  e a c h )  d u r i n g  t h e  s c h o o l  y e a r ,  
a n d  i f  e a c h  t " u 1 1  t i m e  s t u d e V  w a s  t h e o r e t i c a l l y  e x p e c t e d  t o  c o m p l e t e  
1 0  c o u r s e s  p e r  y e a r ,  t h e n  I  ■ e u l c .  j u s t i f i a b l l y  s p e a k  o f  h a v i n g  1 0 0  
' " s t u d e n t s . "  T h i s  w o u l d  b e  t r u e  n o  m a t t e r  h o w  r r a n y  p e o p l e  w e r e  a c t u a l l y  
o n  m y  r o l l s .  F u r t h e r ,  i f  t h e  t o t a l  c o s t  o f  m y  p r o g r a m  w a s ,  f o r  e x a m p l e ,
3 " , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0  p e r  y e a r ,  t h e n  I  c o u l d  s a y  t h a t  t h e  e f f i c i e n c y  o f  t h i s  
p r o g r a m  w a s  3 1 0 , 0 0 0  p e r  s t u d e n t  p e r  y e a r .
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Such cost effectiveness is so easy to calculate that it could be 
demanded by the State Legislature and even published in the newpapers.
In this way alternative programs could openly compete with each other 
for public funds. At present, university administrators hide such 
statistics as though they were nuclear secrets.

For example, one day two officials from a rural community college came 
by and noticed the charts on my wall.

"Better not display information like that," said one.

"Best not to collect such information in the first place," 
said the other.

These well intenticnea men simply wanted to give me good survival advice. 
Nevertheless, I kept on with my chart work. Soon my charts clearly 
showed that over the last year and a half this program had not 40 students 
but only 5 students. I was generously calculating that one "student" 
would complete about seven courses per year —  which is only a part-time 
load anywhere else. Further, we were spending not $10,000 but 3120,000 
for each student each year. At this rate, the price of just one teaching 
degree was going to be well over 3700,000.

I went to a high administrator of the local community college that 
formed part of this program.

"Look at these charts," I said. "This program clearly isn't 
working."

"I know," said the administrator, "but we have tried almost 
everything."

I had been giving some thought to another, quite obvious approach. It 
seemed to me that most Native American college graduates that I met in 
rural Alaska earned their degrees at major campuses. Scholarships large 
enough to allow our average student, who often had dependent children, 
to venture onto a large campus, might be the way to go.

"What about setting up a large scholarship fund to send our best 
students to major campuses?" I asked. "It might be worth a try."

"No way!" He said.

At this point, I should give the reader some background information.
Why was this administrator so upset over my suggestion? The answer is 
that .if these scholarships were granted, his college would not only be 
losing student tuition money, but it would also be faced with decreasing 
enrollment statistics. His total student enrollment was a major factor 
in his cwn funding and was a major factor by which his bureaucratic 
superiors measured his effectiveness as an administrator. He didn't 
want to send away promising students - even if it was to their advantage.

Why don't other rural professors protest over the waste within their 
own programs? After all, don't professors have the freedom and desire 
to "profess" the truth? The answer to this is, again, "No way!"
Almost two hundred Fn. D's applied for the position that I was selected 
for at the University of Alaska. Most of these were unemployed. Even if 
they could find jobs in the Lower Forty-Eight, their average pay would 
only be about $18,000. The Alaskan bush is often their last chance to 
make up for all those years at the poverty level. My Alaskan job paid 
about $50,000 per year, plus a long vacation, junkets to southern
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California, and other benefits. With these wages ana with 200 Fn.D's 
waiting in line to replace you, are you going to rock the boat?
Probably not.

If you are a boat rocker, you are very quickly replaced. Through a
process of natural selection, all boat rockers are soon jettisoned,
and only those with a stomach fcr this kind of excursion survive.
I now run my own construction company in New Mexico.

So, would this 310,000 scholarship be wasteful? Not at all. In fact, 
quite the opposite. If my program is typical, and I believe it is, the 
taxpayer is already spending up to 3120,000 a year for each rural 
student. How much better would it be for this money to fund twelve 
students directly, instead of one student indirectly. As it is, most of 
this 3120,000 per student never benefits the student, but instead 
benefits the bank account of some professional educator. The case is 
similar if the efficiency of the main rural teacher education program 
of the University of Alaska at Fairbanks, the X-CED Program, is put 
to the test. X-CED spends in excess of 31,130,000 per year to field 
eight professors, some with as little as two or three actual students.
This money alone would fund 113 310,000 scholarships —  perhaps far
more scholarships than rural Alaska could presently absorb. Figured 
this way, the direct benefits become tremendous, and this scholarship 
program is already funded, ft is just a matter of switching the money 
around.

Would this scholarship constitute reverse discrimination? I think not.
The point of this scholarship is not to reward someone for having a 
particular kind of genes, but for having a particular kind of knowledge. 
Someone with, for example, Inupiaq ancestory who was raised in Ireland 
would not be a fitting candidate for these scholarships. Om  the other 
hand, an Irish child adopted by an Inupiaq family presumably could . 
become a scholarship candidate. Further, these scholarships would not 
be designed to reward a student simply because he is a product of 
Alaskan Native culture. If, for example, the proposed scholarship were 
for a degree in electrical engineering, then the student's cultural 
knowledge would have no relevance. But, the point here is that such 
cultural knowledge is directly relevant to the student's future duties 
as a teacher of hi3 own children. As has been amply demonstrated, 
teachers from the American mainstream rarely remain in a Native American 
village long enough to understand their new culture or to understand 
their students. Due to this lack of cultural and linguistic knowledge, 
effective education suffers.

To conclude, from direct experience I know that much of rural higher 
education is extremely wasteful. For every 3100,000 the state pours into 
rural programs, over 390,000 gets drained away by a vast bureaucracy 
of professional educators. How much bettei would it be to give the 
students money directly and to cut out all of tnese expensive middlemen. 
These educators will certainly scream over such a proposal. But, they 
car. easily be silenced by auditing their programs ana calculating the 
total cost per actual student. At present this ratio is never made public.

Secondly, It seems only fair +nat rural Alaskan communities be given 
the opportunity to educate their own children. These scholarships 
should not be seen as discriminating against those who are not Native 
Americans, but as rewarding those who have a specialized and valuable 
kind of knowledge.
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Pr e p a r e d  by J i m  Gr ei g , ETEP D i re cto r

- A N A L Y S I S  OF E T EP P E R F O R M A N C E  —  APRIL 20, 1933

t'.Mth some r e v i s i o n s  ror m o r e  pr ecise data- & co r r e c t i o n s  on 4/24)

TOTAL PR OGRAM C O S T  (Both X-CED & Lo we r Divi sio n , S p r i n a  Sem. '81 -- Sp. Sem.'flR;

ETEP Budget f o r  E n t i r e  P r o g r a m  (11/1/80 to 6/30/33) $348,296

Cost of X- CE D f o r  2h y e a r s  * 33 2 , 3 8 0

Cost of NWCC f o r  2^ y e a r s  * 2 4 7 , 4 3 0

Total Pr o g r a m  C o s t  (X-CED & L o w e r  Division) 1 ,478,606

Total Credit Ho ur s P r o d u c e d  (X-CED & L o w e r  D i v i s i o n ) * 517

Cost per C r e d i t  Hour $ 2 8 6 0

Cost for O n e  130 h o u r  T e a c h i n g  Degree (B .E d .): $3 7 1 , 8 0 0

Average n u m b e r  of  s t u d e n t s  per seme ste r

(Calculated u s i n g " r e q u i r e d  c o u r s e  loads" -- see bar g r a p h ) * 8

COSTS FOR 1982 - 1983 S C H O O L  YEAR (Both X- CE D & Lo we r Division'!

Total P r og ram C o st $598,762

Total Cr ed it Hours P r o d u c e d  (est.) 88

Cost per C r e d i t  Hour $6804

Cost for 1 3 & rT e a c h i n g  D e g r e e  (B.Ed.): $8 3 4 , 5 2 0

Av erage nu mbers of s t u d e n t s  per semester

(Calculated u s i n o  "rootiired c o ur se loads" -- see bar nranhl /l

♦ANALYSIS OF B E R I N G  S T R A I T S  RE GI ON X - CED P E RF ORM ANC E —  Prep are d April 22, S3

TOTAL X-CED PR O G R A M  COST, S P R I NG SEMESTER '81 TIIROUC-ll SP RI NG SC?l£STEK~r3 ?

Tot.aI X-CED D u d g e t  (est., e x t r a p o l a t i n g  from '82-'83) * $ 3 32 ,88 0

Total Se m e s t e r  C r e d i t  Ho ur s Prod uce d ( e s t . ) *  173

Cost per Cr ed it H o u r  $2 ,2 13

Cost for 130 h o ur t e a c h i n g  de gr ee (D.Ed.) $2 8 7 , 6 9 0

Av erage nu mb er of  s t u d e n t s  per semester *

(Total cdt. h r s . , d i v i d e d  by 5 semesters,

divided by 12 hr. normal c o u r s e  load) 2.9

*Separate s h ee ts of  p a p e r  co nt ain information ex p l a i n i n g  these calc ula tio ns



PREP ARE D BY JI?‘ G R E I G ,  F.TEP DI R E C T O R

RE V I S E D  C O S T S  ^ / 2 0 / G 3  

C O R R E C T E D  M W C C  C O S T S  4 / 2 4 / 3 3  

ETEP, X-CED. S MWCC ANNUAL COSTS FOR E T EP P R O G R A M  (UPPER. & LQl'EP. DIVISIONS)

ETEP 1032-83 B u dg et 51346.633

X-CED

Total X-CED E u d g e t  19 02-33 

$1,1 30, 966 “

Total n u mb er o f  X - C E D  s t u d e n t  s t a t e ­

wide: 96

N u mb er of X - C E D  s t u d e n t s  in Bering 

Straits Re gion: 13

T h e r e f o r e  costs: 13 /9 6 x $ 1 , 1 3 0 , 9 6 6  = $ 1 63.152

MWCC

N'.ICC A f f i l i a t e d  S t a f f  Sa la rie s: $7 3, 150 

(from ETEP T i t l e  VII g r a n t  rc o u e s t  n . 7 - ! A 

Trave (not, as in ETEP, 25" of salaries 

but, a p p r o x i m a t e ! 10") $7,315

Indirect c h a r g e s  (as in ETEP, 23"') $13,507

Totai for M W C C  $93.972

TOTAL FOR AL L OF THE A B O V E  $598,762

(i.e. for school y e a r  1932-83)



I 3 ' ©
NOTE: T h es e two i n fo rma tio n s h e e t s  on ETEP o r g a n i z a t i o n ,  a l t h o u n h  o r e o a r e d  for

a T i t l e  VII g r a n t  p r op osa l, g e n e r a l l y  show the dg* f acto ETEP o r g a n i z a t i o n a l  

plan.

ETEP O R G A N I Z A T I O N  C H A R T  ( A d m i n i s t r a t i v e )

D a il y O p e r a t i o n s
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O u s t e d  d i r e c t o r  r a p s  
r u r a l  t e a c h e r  p r o g r a m
3 y  M ARTHA E L IA S S E N
jaily News reporter /,

The fo rm er d irecto r of a 
Some-based E sk im o teacher 
tra in ing program  cla im s he 
was fired  because he has said 
p u b lic ly  th a t the program  
costs too much and it  is not 
working.

Dr. J im  G reig, a philoso­
phy professor who has taught 
in u n iv e r s it ie s  around the 
world and w as h ired in Janu­
ary to oversee the Eskimo 
Teacher Education Program 
in northwest A la ska , claim s 
hundreds o f thousands of dol-’ 
lars are going in to the pro­
gram bu t on ly  a hand fu l of 
students are benefiting .

The program  w as deve l­
oped two years ago by Kaw- 
erak Inc., a non-profit N ative 
corporation, to p rovide teach­
er tra in ing  in in d iv id u a l vil- 
lages. I t  is  coordinated by 
K aw e ra k , th e  N o r th w e s t 
Community College in Nome 
and a cross-cultural education 
program based at the Un iver­
sity  of A laska-Fairbnnks.

U n iv e r s ity  and K aw e rak  ^ 
offic ia ls say Greig was not on J  
the job long enough to make,
| Continued Irom Page A-1 ~|

teachers fo r v illa g e  schools.
"A  lo t o f money has been 

spent since the ETEP program 
began w ith  v e r y  l i t t l e  
produced," Greig sa id  in an 
in it ia l memo to Caleb Pungo- 
w iy i. K aw erak president.

Greig sa id  he gave a pres­
en ta tio n  to  the K ew a rak  
board of d irecto rs A p ril 21 
ou tlin ing w ha t he says are the 
shortcom ings of the program. 
He received a memo from 
Pungow ly f A p ril 25 te lling  
him he had been fired  for 
unsa tisfacto ry performance.

"O b v io u s ly , I am being 
fired for te llin g  the tru th ," 
Greig sa id . Facts about the 
success. ra te of the program 
have been d e lib e ra te ly  hidden 
to make sure it continues, he 
said."There are a few  people 
out th e re  who unde rs tand  
how the system  w orks and 
are m ilk in g  it fo r a ll It's
worth ," Greig-said.

"M y fir in g  is made even

an accurate judgment. They 
say he m isunderstood the- na­
ture of the tra in ing program .

In  the past year and a h a lf . 
Greig sa id , about £598,000 a 
year has been used to educa te 
f iv e  studen ts . A ltho ugh  27 
studen ts are registered th is  
semester, Greig said , the m a­
jo r ity  are students " in  name 
on ly .” They do not a ttend  
classes or complete a ss ig n ­
ments regu la rly  and have co l­
le c tive ly  earned only 16 credi- 
hours th is semester, he sa id .

Greig estimates the cost of 
one teaching degree earned 
througn the program a t $800,-
000.

"E verybody realizes i t  i s n ’t 
w ork ing and they don’t know  
what to do," Greig sa id . .

A fte r he was hired in  J an u ­
ary,-Greig sa id he spefif the 
f ir s t , month- oT .so , w i l t in g  
grants for the program be­
cause funds run out th is  sum ­
mer.' B ut a fter p ra ising the 
program to the government 
and o il companies, G reig sa id  
he began investigating its  su c ­
cess in  p roduc ing E sk im o

more repugnant by be ing de­
scribed as ‘in the in te re sts of 
studen ts .' ’’ Greig sa id  in  a 
protest 1 **.er to P ungow iy i, 
"Eight-hundrcd-thousand d o l­
la r degrees are not in  the 
in terest of the studen ts — 
the ir int'.rests lie in the e f f i ­
c ien t use of the $598,000 
poured into ETEP each y e a r ."

Pungow iyi said Greig does 
not undeistand what the p ro­
gram is meant to accomplish 
and made judgments abou t 
ru ra l A laska he did not have 
the background to make.

"What Jim  does not u n d e r­
stand is the need for E sk im o  
teachers and the cost of e d u ­
cation in rura l A la ska ," Pun- 
Eow iyi said.

The aim of the program  is 
to prepare Eskimos for teach ­
er certification in th e ir own 
v illage s , at the ir own pace, he 
said.

Though Greig had proposed 
tha t It  would be much cheap­
er to give Eskimo stu den ts 
un ive rs ity  scholarships, E s k i­
mos who enroll in urban co l­

T h i a  s t o r y  a l s o  a p p e a r e d  in:

-T h e  A n c h o r a g e  T i n e s  
-T h e  A l l - A l a s k a  W e e k l y ( h e a d l i n e s  
- T h e  U . S . A .  T o d a v  ( n a t i o n a l  p a p e
- A s s o c i a t e d  P r e s s

leges have a high dropout 
rate, Pungow iyi sa id .

"There is  no doubt th a t the 
program is  expensive," Pun- 
gowyi sa id . The pay-off w il l 
be in  10 or more years re .her 
than w ith in  the n ex t two 
years, he said .

M ik e  M e tty , N o rthw e s t 
C om m un ity  C o llege p re s i­
dent, sa id  Greig made his 
judgm ents w ith  only "a  cou­
ple of months of observa­
tio n ." The goal of the teacher 
tra in ing  program is to deve l­
op a pool of young people 
who could one day become 
certified  teachers, he sa id .

M e tty  acknow ledged  en­
ro llm ent in  the program flu c ­
tuates. "R igh t now, we know 
we're going to lose studen ts 
on S t. Lawrence Is lan d  be­
cause whaling has s ta rted ," 
he sa id . Education in  ru ra l 
A la ska  is un like  education 
anywhere else because of the 
demanding way of life , he 
sa id .

Furthermore, college is a 
re la t iv e ly  new idea in  the

rj
( s ent n a t i o n a l l y  
- A l a s k a  P u b l i c  
R a d i o  

-And m a n y  o t h e r  
n e w s  s o u r c e s .

Esk im o cu ltu re , M etty sa id .
"There was no prem ise that 

th» program was going to 
produce 40 teachers in four 
yea rs ,” M etty sa id . "We hope 
to get 30 or 40 teachers over a 
decade.”

But Dr. Gene Adam , form ­
er fie ld  coordinator for the 
u n ive rs ity  cross-cultural pro­
gram , sa id  some of the o rig i­
n a l g ran t app lica tio n s had 
more op tim istic projections.

Adam , who now teaches 
Eng lish  at Fa irbanks Commu­
n ity  College, supports G rc ig ’s 
v iew  and said the spending 
bears investigation by tax ­
payers.

" I  th in k  he (Greig) is say­
ing, 'Here is the cost, here is 
the product,' " Adam sa id .

Rura l education is expen­
s iv e  and i i  is d if f ic u lt to 
coo rd in a te , Adam  sa id . " I  
have the greatest respect for 
those students. They have to. 
catch fish , they have to work, 
they have to take care of the ir 
k id s  and they have to m a il in 
th e ir homework." he sa id .

"The idea of b rin g ing  ed 
cation into every l i t t le  va lL  
is a noble one bu t it's n 
ve ry p rac tica l," A dam  said.
1 Rep. Terry M artin , R-A 
chorage, sa id Greig's concer 
about the Nome-based pr 
grams are s im ila r  to h is ov 
about the high cost o f rur 
education in general.

"When you compare It  t 
some of the other program 
I ’ve been b ickering  about, it  
not out of lin e ,"  M artin  sa id .

"The concept h a s . bee 
around for a long tim e to- g( 
N ative people to w o rk  w it 
N ative people," M artin  sail 
bu t the cost of present met! 
ods is too high.

In  add ition  to the le tte r t 
Pungow iyi p ro testing his fi 
ing, Greig flew  to F a irb an l 
from Anchorage Tuesday i 
.discuss the s itu a tion  w ith  un 
'•versity o ffic ia ls .

He said he p lans on retun 
lng to New Mexico in  a wee 
or so to resume a lucra tiv  
adobe construction business.

G W D



R E S U M E

J A M E S  G R E I G  

Box 399

Bernalillo, Ne w M e x i c o  87004 

(505) 867-2969 

E D U C A T I O N

U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C O L O R A D O ,  B o u l d e r .  B .A . 1 9 6 4 ,  M . A . 1 9 6 9 .  P h i l o s o p h y  m a j o r ,  

E n g l i s h  m i n o r .

U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  N E W  M E X I C O ,  A l b u q u e r q u e .  P h . D .  1 9 7 8 . P h i l o s o p h y  m a j o r ,  

E n g l i s h  m i n o r .  D i s s e r t a t i o n : " T h e  O v e r m a n  & t h e  U n i t y  O f  N i e t z s c h e ' s  P h i l . "

A R E A S  O F  S P E C I A L I Z A T I O N :  C r o s s - c u l t u r a l  E d . ,  I n t e r d i s c i p l i n a r y  E d . ,

H u m a n i t i e s ,  P h i l o s o p h y ,  E n g l i s h .

T E A C H I N G  E X P E R I E N C E

1 9 6 9  L A T I N  A M E R I C A N  I N S T I T U T E ,  N Y ,  N Y .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  E n g l i s h  as a

S e c o n d  L a n g u a g e .

1 9 6 9 - 7 0  S O P H I A  U N I V . ,  T o k y o .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  P h i l o s o p h y  & E n g l i s h .

1 9 7 1 - 7 4  U N I V .  O F  N E W  M E X I C O ,  A l b u q u e r q u e .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  P h i l o s o p h y .

1 9 7 4 - 7 5  U N I V .  O F  G U A M ,  A g a n a .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  P h i l o s o p h y  Ft E n g l i s h .

1 9 7 6  T E X A S  T E C H  U N I V . ,  L u b b o c k .  A s s i s t .  P r o f .  o f  P h i l o s o p h y .

1 9 8 1 - 8 2  U N I V .  O F  A L A S K A ,  F a i r b a n k s .  A s s i s t .  P r o f .  X - C E D  P r o g r a m

( C r o s s - C u l t u r a l  E d u c a t i o n  D e v e l o p m e n t  P r o g r a m ,  S c h .  o f  E d . ) .  

D u t i e s :  I n t e r d i s c i p l i n a r y  h u m a n i t i e s " s p e c i a  1 i s t " in a N a t i v e  

t e a c h e r  e d u c a t i o n  p r o g r a m .  A d m i n i s t e r e d  B . Z d .  p r o g r a m  o v e r  

a 2 0 0 , 0 0 0  s q . m i l e  a r e a .  F l e w  b e t w e e n  a n d  . e s i d e d  in r e m o t e  

A t h a b a s c a n  N a t i v e  A m e r i c a n  v i l l a g e s  in  t h e  i n t e r ;  r o f  A l a s k a .

1 9 8 2  U N I V .  O F  A L A S K A , ,  F a i r b a n k s .  A s s i s t .  P r o f .  o f  P h i l o s o p h y .

1 9 8 3  E S K I M O  T E A C H E R  E D U C A T I O N  P R O G R A M  ( E T E P ) ,  N o m e ,  A l a s k a .  D i r e c t o r .  

D u t i e s :  A d m i n i s t e r  a $ 3 4 6 , 0 0 0 / y r .  T i t l e  IV p r o g r a m ,  w r i t e  g r a n t  

r e q u e s t s ,  c o o r d i n a t e  p r o g r a m  p l a n n i n g  w i t h  t h e  U n i v e r s i t y  o f  

A l a s k a  a n d  t h e  N o r t h w e s t  C o m m u n i t y  C o l l e g e ,  d e v e l o p  c u r r i c u l u m ,  

s u p e r v i s e  b i - l i n g u a l  s t u d e n t  t e a c h e r s ,  t e a c h  B . E d .  r e l a t e d  

c o u r s e s .  C o n s t a n t  f l i g h t s  i n t o  E s k i m o  v i l l a g e s  in B e r i n g  S t r a i t s .

C O U R S E S  T A U G H T

H u m a n i t i e s  E n g l i s h  a s  a S e c o n d  L a n g u a g e

E n g l i s h  L i t e r a t u r e  L o g i c

P h i l o s o p h y  & M y t h o l o g y  I n t r o d u c t i o n  t o  P h i l o s o p h y

E n g l i s h  G, a m m o r  C o m p o s i t i o n  H i s t o r y  o f  P h i l o s o p h y  F< S c i e n c e

A m e r i c a n  P h i l o s o p h y  C o n t e m p o r a r y  P h i l o s o p h y

( N o t e :  T h e s e  a r e  c o u r s e s  I d e v e l o p e d  & t a u g h t ,  I t u t o r e d  a r a n g e  o f  o t h e r s

O T H E R  E X P E R I E N C E

1 9 7 0  E d i t o r ,  E n c y c l o p e d i a  B r i t a n n i c a , T o k y o ,  ( p a r t - t i m e  e d i t i n g ) .



N E A - A L A S K A
AFFILIATED W ITH THE NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

ANCHORAGE REGIONAL OFFICE
1411 W. 33RD 

ANCHORAGE. ALASKA 99503 
(907) 274 0535

JUNEAU OFFICE

147 S. FRANKLIN »207 
JUNEAU. ALASKA 99801 

(907) 536-3090

FAIRBANKS REGIONAL OFFICE
2118 CUSHMAN STREET 

FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 99701 
(907) 455 4435

TO: M a e  Tisc her , Ch a i r m a n

H o u s e  H E SS C o mm itt ee 

M e m b e r s  of the C o mm itt ee

DATE: F e b r u a r y  21, 1984

RE: HB 504; "An Act e s t a b l i s h i n g  the te ac her s c h o l a r s h i p  loan pr og ram ."

N E A - A l a s k a  st r o n g l y  s u p p o r t s  and en c o u r a g e s  fa vo rab le c o n s i d e r a t i o n  of the 

co nc ept of s c h o l a r s h i p  i n c e n t i v e s  as a m e t h o d  of e n c o u r a g i n g  A l a s k a  Na t i v e s  to 

pursue ca r e e r s  in t e ac hin g in the pu bl ic sc hools in Alaska. This pa r t i c u l a r  

issue w a s  e s t a b l i s h e d  as one of the six m a j o r  legisla tiv e p r i o r i t i e s  of the 

D e l e g a t e  A s se mbl y, m e e t i n g  in A n c h o r a g e  in January.

It m a y  be a p p r o p r i a t e  for the C o m m i t t e e  to seek data r e la tiv e to the prev iou s 

i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  of AS 14 .4 3.0 50 - . 09 0 for pu r p o s e s  a d d r e s s i n g  sp ec i f i c a l l y  

id en tif ied needs. SB 426 ex pa nds upon the pr o v i s i o n s  of the ab ov e refe ren ced 

statute.

We wo u l d  fu rther e n c o u r a g e  that the Co mm itt ee, e i t h e r  on its own initiative or 

th rough the D e p a r t m e n t  of Education, cons ide r the feasibi lit y of c o n d u c t i n g  an 

annual s u r v e y  of all A l a s k a  N a t i v e  H i gh School sophomores, juniors, and se niors 

and, p e rh aps even a s u p p l e m e n t a l  su rv ey of their pa r e n t s  and g u ar dia ns as well, 

in an ef fo rt to bu il d a data base w h i c h  could be used to br i n g  even more focus 

to this kind of l e gi sla tio n on a long term basis. Specifi cal ly , it seems 

a p p r o p r i a t e  to h a ve m o r e  in fo rma tio n on:

- c a r e e r  as pi r a t i o n s ,  expecta tio ns , needs

- cu rrent d e te rre nts , barriers, prob lem s

- e x te nt and na tu re of c o u n s e l i n g  and ad e q u a c y  of cu r r i c u l u m

A recent su rv ey p u bl ish ed by T e xa s C h r i s t i a n  U n i v e r s i t y  on "Fac tor s Re lated to 

High Sc ho ol Students' Inte res t in T e a c h i n g  as a Pr o f e s s i o n "  s t ro ngl y suggest 

that a d e c l i n e  in parental interest in e n c o u r a g i n g  their chil dre n toward teach­

ing is a m a jo r factor. Tt m a y  be a p p r o p r i a t e  to as ce rta in the v a l i d i t y  of this

c o n c l u s i o n  for Alaska.

With an i n c r e a s i n g  n u m b e r  of Na ti ve st u d e n t s  in the urban ar ea s pe r h a p s  it is 

w o r t h y  of some e m ph asi s to encourage, through incentives, m o r e  N a t i v e  teachers 

in these ar ea s as well.



It also seems a p p r o p r i a t e  to co n s i d e r  m a k i n g  this loan p r o g r a m  an ad ju nct of the 

r e gu lar st udent loan program, but u t i l i z i n g  an e x pa nde d and se p a r a t e  s u b ­

c o m m i t t e e  of the Post S e c o n d a r y  E d u c a t i o n  C o m m i s s i o n  w h i c h  w o u l d  a l so in clude 

p r a c t i c i n g  t e ac her s and p a r e n t s  a m on g its me mb ers hip .

We  feel that it is a p p r o p r i a t e  to raise some ca u t i o n  re l a t i v e  to g e o g r a p h i c  

r e s t r i c t i o n s  u p o n  w h er e a r e ci pie nt m a y  ch os e to teach. R e d u c t i o n  in the 

teac hin g force, n o n - r e t e n t i o n  a n d / o r  d e si re to v o l u n t a r y  job ch an ges m a y  have 

some effect on m o b i l i t y  of the recipients.

Finally, it ma y a l s o  be a p p r o p r i a t e  to cl ar ify the l e g i s l a t i v e  intent of HB 504 

as it p e rt ain s to the term "t ea che r." AS 14.20.207 c u r r e n t l y  p r o v i d e s  that the 

term te a c h e r  is a l so inte nde d to c o ve r ad mi n i s t r a t i o n .  It is our r e c o mme nda ti on 

that the p r i m a r y  focus be toward those wh o are a c t u a l l y  in a c l a s s r o o m  t e ac hin g 

c i r c u m s t a n c e .

Re s p e c t f u l l y  Submitted,

Bob M a n n e r s  

Ex e c u t i v e  S e c r e t a r y  

N E A - A l a s k a

4: DS 1



BILL SHEFFIELD, GOVERNOR

H E I ' A H T M E N T  O F  E D U C A T I O N

ST A TF. BOA RD OF EDUCA T/ON

February 8, 1984

Representative Vern Hurlbert 
House of Representatives 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811 \

Dear Representative Hurlbert:

Thank you for your letter soliciting support for HB 504. At the 
most recent meeting of the State Eoard of Education, Board Members 
voted to support this Bill in concept, but following considerable 
discussion, they recommended that the Legislature consider some 
additional amendments to the proposal. These have been communicated 
to you in t’.j February 2, 1984, memorandum from Commissioner 
Raynolds.

We appreciate your continued interest and support of education in 
Alaska.

Sincerely,

Ernestine Griffin, President 
State Board of Education
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M E M O R A N D U M

^ \ W

T 0: Re

FROM: Tirefcerman ratrcock, st af f 

DATE: F e b r u a r y  17. 19S4

RE: HB 504 and c o n f e r e n c e  w i t h  f o r m e r  e d u c a t o r s  and school board 

Presidents.

Randy Br ig gs, P r e s i d e n t  o f  the Lake and P e ni nsu la School D i s t r i c t  (Lake

Clark, N a k n e k  etc.), f o r m e r  ed uc ato r, and Sara'' H o r n b e r g e r ,  fo rm er

P r es ide nt of the Lake and Pe ni nsu la School D i s t r i c t  and f o r m e r  educator,

st op ped by to give th ei r views on HB 504 and the if.sue of Mt. Edgecumbe.

C O M M E N T S  ON HB 504:

1- State loans a l r e a d y  very g e ne rou s, and B u re au of Indian Af fa irs mi gh t 

lend money.

2- All d i s t r i c t s  have c o u n s e l o r s  to e n c o u r a g e  stun det s to seek h i g h e r  

education.

3- Does not a d dr ess p r o b l e m  of M O T I V A T I O N , w h i c h  they v i ew ed as the 

single g r e a t e s t  ha n d i c a p  to na ti ve st u d e n t s  w a n t i n g  to teach 

school. M o st si mp ly p r e f e r  o t h e r  a c t i v i t i e s  to teaching.

4- There is a l e g i t i m a t e  need for t e ac her s w i t h  a c o s m o p o l i t a n  

b a c k g r o u n d  to b a l a n c e  the h e a v y  e m p h a s i s  on rural, local issues.

5- To ease the c u l t u r e  shock be t w e e n  home and school c o n t i n u e  to hire 

locals as assistants.

6- T h ei r d i s t r i c t  al wa ys gives locals f i rs t crack at te a c h i n g  job.

7- P r ov isi on fo r th re e y e a r s  te a c h i n g  be fo re loan is fo r g i v e n  will cause 

several problems:

A- Te nu re is gr a n t e d  in the third co nt rac t, ma ki ng 

it im p o s s i b l e  (virtually) to fire someone.

B- Bo ar ds will be in p o si tio n of fo r c i n g  s o me one to

a s s u m e  large debt or keep an u n q u a l i f i e d  t e a c h e r  on.

C- Will be li ke ly to c r e a t e  te ns ion in the c o m m u n i t y

if the t e a c h e r  is not very good by di v i d i n g

ne i g h b o r  a g a i n s t  n e i g h b o r  as pa rents ad v o c a t e  

removal w h i l e  fr iends and fa mi ly ar gu e fo r retention.

8- Bad p r a c t i c e  to c o m p l e t e l y  fo rg ive any loan.

9- Just b e c a u s e  so m e o n e  takes fours y e a r s  of t e a c h e r  e d u c a t i o n  co urses

does not m e a n  they will be e d u c a t e d  in t h e i r  s u bj ect m a t t e r  or be

co m p a r i t i v e l y  c o g n i z a n t  of the la rg er "world out there".



page two

M E M O R A N D U M  R E G A R D I N G  HB 504

R a nd y Br ig gs and Sa ra h H o r n b e r g e r ' s  c o mm ent s on Mt. Edgecumbe:

1- Not re al ly a v i a b l e  alternative.

2- Th os e t h at e m e r g e d  f r o m  Mt. E d g e c u m b e  as leaders w o u l d  have been 

le aders anywhere.

3- Drain o f f  m o n e y  b e t t e r  used to m a i n t a i n  prog ram s of q u a l i t y  c l o s e r  to 

home.

M Y  COMMENT:

I s u sp ect t h ey are m o st u n p s e t  be c a u s e  of the p o s s i b i l i t y  that th ei r 

b e st stud ent s w o u l d  opt to a t te nd Mt. Edgecumbe.

Randy Briggs 

Ugas hik , A K  99683

Sarah H o r n b e r g e r  

P.O. Box 69 

Iliamna, AK  99606
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M E M O R A N D j ^ w L  ^  /  S t a t e  o f  A l a s k a

f  \
T0 Th e H o n o r a b l e  M a e  T i i & h e r  d a t e : F e b r u a r y  2, 1 9 8 4

A l a s k a  St at e R e p r e M ^ a t i v e / x ?

C h ai rma n, H o us e H e a b w ^  ^  f i l e n o :
& Social S e r v i c e s  ^ ' ^ ® 2,6 lgvLVQ'v

/ \  — —- t e l e p h o n e  n o : 4 6 5 - 2 8 0 0

f )

Harold, Rayn old s s u b j e c t : HB 504: T e a c h e r  S c h o l a r s h i p

Commissioner; L o an P r o g r a m

D e p a r t m e n t  o f  E d u c a t i o n

<3P ^ " 1 2 5 4

Th e S t at e B o a r d  of  E d u c a t i o n  a d d r e s s e d  HB 504 d u r i n g  the S t a t e  Bo a r d  

m e e t i n g  in J u n e a u ,  J a n u a r y  31, 1984. T h e  Bo a r d  v o t e d  approval of  

the c o n c e p t  of  a l o an p r o g r a m  to e n c o u r a g e  A l a s k a n  e t h n i c  m i n o r i t i e s  

to e n te r the t e a c h i n g  pr ofession. T h e r e  w e r e  several ar ea s w h i c h  

they f e lt n e ed ed f u r t h e r  c l a r i f i c a t i o n  in c o n s i d e r a t i o n  o f  the 

le gi sla tio n:

1. The fi n d i n g s  a n d  i n t e n t  focus on prob lem s e x p e r i e n c e d  in 

rural Al aska, b u t  the bill w o u l d  a l l o w  an y et hn ic m i n o r i t y  s t u d e n t  

to be el ig ibl e, i n c l u d i n g  th os e f r o m  the urban A l a s k a n  dist ric ts, 

w i t h  f o r g i v e n e s s  t i ed to that t e a c h e r  r e t u r n i n g  to  t h e  d i s t r i c t  from 

w h i c h  he  came. Th e St at e B o a r d  e x p r e s s e d  some c o n f u s i o n  as to 

w h e t h e r  this is w h a t  w a s  i n te nde d by  the sponsors, o r  if th e in te nt 

w a s  to l i mi t the loan p r o g r a m  to j u s t  rural e t h n i c  m i n o r i t y  

students. If it is to be li m i t e d  to rural s t ud ent s a d e f i n i t i o n  of 

rural s t ud ent s s h o u l d  be  in c l u d e d  in the legislation.

2. T h e  St at e Bo a r d  o f  E d u c a t i o n  f e l t  th e cr i t e r i a  for 

fo r g i v e n e s s  w a s  to o r e s t r i c t i v e  by  r e q u i r i n g  t h a t  a s t u d e n t  return 

to teach in the d i s t r i c t  f r om w h i c h  he graduated, T h e  d i s t r i c t  from 

w h i c h  he g r a d u a t e d  m a y  have no o p en ing s w h e n  th e t e a c h e r  is r e ad y to 

re tu rn to teach. If t h at s t u d e n t  re tu rns to teach in a n o t h e r  

A l a s k a n  school d i st ric t, o t h e r  than the d i s t r i c t  f r o m  w h i c h  he 

graduated, the S t at e still r e ce ive s the b e n e f i t  o f  th e et hn ic 

m i n o r i t y  in the t e a c h i n g  role. If it is the in te nt o f  the 

le g i s l a t i o n  to a s s u r e  t h a t  s t ud ent s re tu rn to  teach in rural Al aska, 

this m i g h t  a l so be a c c o m p l i s h e d  by  e x p a n d i n g  Sec. 14 .4 3 . 6 4 0 ( 2 )  to 

in cl ude " e m p l o y e d  as a pu bl ic school t e a c h e r  in the d i s t r i c t  from 

w h i c h  he g r a d u a t e d  or  a n o t h e r  rural A l a s k a n  school d i s t r i c t ." This 

a m e n d m e n t  w o u l d  a l s o  r e q u i r e  that rural school d i s t r i c t  be  d e f i n e d  

in a d e f i n i t i o n s  section.

3. The St a t e  B o a r d  of  E d u c a t i o n  f e l t  t h a t  the loan s h o u l d  b e  

a v a i l a b l e  to a s t u d e n t  who, a f t e r  c o m p l e t i n g  an  ac a d e m i c  m a j o r  (i.e. 

history, English, s c ie nce ), de c i d e s  to re tu rn to c o l l e g e  fo r a fifth 

y e a r  of  study fo r the p u r p o s e  of  t e a c h e r  training. As the 

l e g i s l a t i o n  is c u r r e n t l y  drafted, it p r o h i b i t s  loans for g r a d u a t e  

study.

4. The S t at e B o a r d  of  E d u c a t i o n  f e l t  t h at the l o an p r o g r a m  

sh ou ld also be a v a i l a b l e  to A l a s k a n  e t hn ic m i n o r i t y  s t ud ent s
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a t t e n d i n g  high school o u t s i d e  the St a t e  w h o  d e s i r e  to e n t e r  the 

t e a c h i n g  pr of e s s i o n  a n d  re tu rn to the S t a t e  to teach.

Th e l e g i s l a t i o n  a p pe ars to be an e x c e l l e n t  s t ep to wards e n c o u r a g i n g  

Al a s k a n  et hn ic m i n o r i t i e s  into the t e a c h i n g  p r o f e s s i o n  a n d  p r o v i d i n g  

in c e n t i v e s  to re tu rn N a t i v e  Al a s k a n s  to rural ar ea s to teach. Your 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n  of  the State Board o f  E d u c a t i o n ' s  r e c o m m e n d a t i o n s  is 

ap pr eci ate d.
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S y n o p s i s :

This r e p o r t  p r o p o s e s  a d e s i g n  p r o c e s s  to s t r u c t u r e  a c o o r d i n a t e d
e d u c a t i o n a l  p r o g r a m .  The p a p e r  is d i v i d e d  t h u s l y -

- S t a t e m e n t  o f  p r o b l e m :  not e n o u g h  l o c a l  p e r s o n s  o n  p r o f e s s i o n a l  
b u s h  s c h o o l  d i s t r i c t  staffs.

- A n a l y s i s  o f  c o m p o n e n t s  of problem: i n a d e q u a t e  e d u c a t i o n a l  p r e p­
a r a t i o n  to a l l o w  s u c c e s f u l  p o s t s e c o n d a r y  t r a i n i n g ;  p r o b l e m s  
c a u s e d  by b u s h / u r b a n  t r a n s i t i o n  n e c e s s a r y  f o r  p o s t s e c o n d a r y  
e d u c a t i o n ;  l a c k  of f i e l d - b a s e d  p o s t s e c o n d a r y  e d u c a t i o n a l  p r o­
g r a m  that I n t e g r a t e s  i n s t e a d  of s e p a r a t i n g  t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  f r o m  
the r u r a l  c o m m u n i t y .

- G u i d e l i n e s  for d e s i g n i n g  a c o m p r e h e n s i v e  p r o g r a m  w i t h  t h e  o b­
j e c t i v e  o f  d e v e l o p i n g  a w o r k a b l e ,  c o o r d i n a t e d  p r o g r a m  w i t h  
the p r i m a r y  focus b e i n g  a m a r k e d  i n c r e a s e  in l o c a l  p e r s o n s  w h o  
are e d u c a t i o n a l l y  p r e p a r e d  to fill p r o f e s  .ional s t a f f  p o s i t i o n s  
in r u r a l  A l a s k a n  s c h o o l  districts .

- F i n a l  note.

- F o o t n o t e s  & A p p e n d i x
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A n y o n e  w h o  h a s  l i v e d  i n  b u s h  A l a s k a  u n d e r s t a n d s  t h e  
i m p o r t a n c e  o f  t h e  s c h o o l  to t h e  c o m m u n i t y .  N o t  o n l y  d o e s  
it p r o v i d e  t h e  m o s t  s t a b l e  s o u r c e  o f  e m p l o y m e n t ,  b u t  i n  
m o s t  p l a c e s  t h e  s c h o o l  a l s o  s e r v e s ,  i d e a l l y ,  a s  t h e  c e n t e r  
o f  c o m m u n i t y  a c t i v i t y .  R e c r e a t i o n ,  s o c i a l  g a t h e r i n g s ,  a n d  
e d u c a t i o n a l  e v e n t s  a l l  a r e  c o o r d i n a t e d  t h r o u g h  t h e  s c h o o l .
M o s t  i m p o r t a n t l y ,  t h e  s o c i a l  a n d  i n t e l l e c t u a l  d e v e l o p m e n t  
o f  y o u n g  b u s h  r e s i d e n t s  t a k e s  p l a c e  u n d e r  t h e  g u i d a n c e  
a n d  i n f l u e n c e  o f  t h o s e  s t a f f i n g  t h e  l o c a l  s c h o o l s .

T h e  h e r e i n  p r o p o s e d  p r o g r a m  a i m s  t o  f a c i l i t a t e  I n  
p r o d u c i n g  m o r e  l o c a l  p e r s o n s  w h o  a r e  e d u c a t i o n a l l y  p r e ­
p a r e d  to  f i l l . p r o f e s s i o n a l  p o s i t i o n s  w i t h i n  b u s h  s c h o o l  
s y s t e m s .  As  it n o w  s t a n d s ,  m o s t  b u s h  s c h o o l  s y s t e m s  cure 
p r e d o m i n a n t l y  s t a f f e d  at  t h e  c e r t i f i e d  l e v e l  by  t r a n s i e n t  
( n o n - l o c a l )  p e r s o n s .  A m a j o r  p r o b l e m  f a c i n g  r u r a l  A l a s k a n  
s c h o o l s  is n o t  a l a c k  o f  p o s i t i o n s  to  b e  f i l l e d ,  b u t  t h e  
s c a r c i t y  o f  w e l l  t r a i n e d  l o c a l  p e r s o n s  t o  f i l l  t h o s e  p o ­
s i t i o n s  t h a t  d o  o pen.

T h e  p r o g r a m  d e s i g n  b e i n g  p r o p o s e d  h e r e  w o u l d  a d d r e s s  
t h i s  l a c k  o f  q u a l i f i e d  p e r s o n n e l  b y  b r e a k i n g  t h e  p r o b l e m  
i n t o  t h r e e  c o m p o n e n t  p a r t s  t h a t ,  t a k e n . t o g e t h e r , it i s  felt, 
a r e  t h e  r o o t  c a u s e  o f  t h e  s h o r t a g e .  A t t e n t i o n  w o u l d  t h e n  be 
f o c u s s e d  o n  e a c h  o f  t h e  t h r e e  s e p a r a t e  a r e a s :

1. I n a d e q u a t e  e d u c a t i o n a l  p r e p a r a t i o n  f o r  p o s t ­
s e c o n d a r y  e d u c a t i o n .

2. T h e  d i f f i c u l t i e s  t h a t  b u s h  p e r s o n s  e x p e r i e n c e  
w h e n  m o v i n g  to m o r e  s t r u c t u r e d  u r b a n  e n v i r o n m e n t s .

3. T h e  l a c k  o f  a n  a d e q u a t e  p o s t - s e c o n d a r y  e d u c a t i o n a l  
p r o g r a m  f o c u s s i n g  o n  b r i n g i n g  t h e  b u s h  s t u d e n t  
b a c k  i n t o  t h e  l o c a l  s c h o o l  a n d  c o m m u n i t y  ( i n t e g r a t­
i n g  t h e  e d u c a t i o n  w i t h  t h e  n e e d s  a n d  p e r c e p t i o n s
o f  t h e  l o c a l  c o m m u n i t y ) .

D E F I N I T I O N  o f  P R O B L E M :

T h e  p r o g r a m  p r o p o s e d  h e r e  is in a n s w e r  to  t h e  p r o b l e m  o f  
not e n o u g h  l o c a l  p e r s o n s  to s t a f f  b u s h  s c h o o l s .  T h e  d e f i n i t i o n  
o f  p r o b l e m  r e s u l t s  f r o m ,  f i r s t  a n d  m o s t  i m p o r t a n t l y ,  l i v i n g  
in t h e  b u s h  a n d  e x p e r i e n c i n g  the s c h i s m  o f  s c h o o l  p e r s o n n e l / c o m­
m u n i t y .  R u r a l  A l a s k a ,  a l t h o u g h  w e l l  s u p p l i e d  i n  t e r m s  of  e d u c a­
t i o n a l  m a t e r i a l s ,  is n o t  f u l l y  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  i n  t h e  I m p l e m e t a t i o n  
o f  i t s  e d u c a t i o n a l  p r o g r a m s .

I n  a f o r m a l  s e n s e ,  the p r o b l e m  w a s  d e f i n e d  b y  m e m b e r s  o f  
t h e  A l a s k a  P a c i f i c  U n i v e r s i t y  s t a f f  in a p a p e r  D e v e l o p i n g  a n d  
m a i n t a i n i n g  t e a c h e r  c o m p e t e n c e  for r u r a l  A l a s k a . T h e  p a p e r  c o n­
c l u d e s  t h a t  "It s e e m s  e v i d e n t  t h a t  t e a c h e r  t u r n o v e r  c a n  b e  r e­
d u c e d  b y  r e c r u i t i n g  t e a c h e r s  w h o  a r e  m o r e  f a v o r a b l y  I n c l i n e d  -

** I N T R O D U C T I O N :
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t o  t h e  r u r a l  A l a s k a n  l i f e s t y l e . "  T h i s  w e  v i e w  as p a r t  o f  the 
p r o b l e m ,  b u t ,  - b e c a u s e  we a r e n ' t  l i m i t i n g  o u r  f o c u s  to t e a c h e r s  
a l o n e - r a t h e r  o u r  i n t e r e s t  i n c l u d e s  a l l  p e r s o n n e l  i n v o l v e d  in 
s t a f f i n g  r u r a l  s c h o o l s ,  it s e r v e d  as o n l y  t h e  b e g i n n i n g  p o i n t .
T h e  k e y  b e i n g  r e c r u i t i n g  t h o s e  w h o  a r e  f a v o r a b l y  d i s p o s e d  to 
t h e  r u r a l  A l a s k a n  l i f e s t y l e .

T h e  A l a s k a  D e p a r t m e n t  o f  E d u c a t i o n ,  i n  t h e  C o m p r e h e n s i v e  
P l a n  f o r  t h e  C o o r d i n a t i o n  of F e d e r a l  a n d  S t a t e  F u n d s  f c r  T r a i n i n g  
E d u c a t i o n a l  P e r s o n n e l ^-aiscussing p e r s e r v i c e  e d u c a t i o n a l  n e e d s ,  
s t a t e s  t hat: "T h e  t w o  m o s t  i m p o r t a n t  c h a n g e s  h a v e  to do w i t h  
t h e  n e e d  t o  p r e p a r e  e d u c a t o r s  f o r  t h e  r u r a l ,  c r o s s - c u l t u r a l ,  
s m a l l  s c h o o l  c o n t e x t ,  a n d  to p r o v i d e  m o r e  p r e - g r a d u a t e  f i e l d  
e x p e r i e n c e . " 2 It is t h e  b e l i e f  o f  t h i s  o f f i c e  th a t  a p r o g r a m  
c a n  be d e s i g n e d  that, t h r o u g h  e x p a n d e d  p r e - g r a d u a t e  f i e l d  s e r­
v i c e ,  w i l l  p r e p a r e  r u r a l  A l a s k a n  s t u d e n t s  to f i l l  the n e e d  f o r  
m e r e  ( c r o s s - c u l t u r a l l y ) p r e p a r e d  e d u c a t o r s .

" T h e  m a t t e r  o f  a n  i n c r e a s e d  l e v e l  o f  f i e l d  e x p e r i e n c e  f o r  
t e a c h e r  c a n d i d a t e s  d r e w  c o n s i d e r a b l e  d i s c u s s i o n .  B a s i c a l l y  
t h e  p r o b l e m  w a s  s e e n  to h a v e  t w o  d i m e n s i o n s .  T h e  f i r s t  d i m e n s i o n  
w a s  o n e  of 'too l i t t l e - t o  l a t e . '  T h e  s e c o n d  d i m e n s i o n  e v o l v e s  
a r o u n d  t h e  p r o b l e m  of  r e l e v a n t  e a r l y  f i e l d  e x p e r i e n c e  i n  the 
a r e a  o f  the r u r a l  s m a l l  s c h o o l  p o r t i o n  o f  p r e s e r v i c e  c u r r i c­
u l u m .  T h e  p r o b l e m  of c o n t e n t  t r a i n i n g  a n d  r e l e v a n t  f i e l d  
e x p e r i e n c e  a r e  e x a c e r b a t e d  by t h e  i s s u e s  i n v o l v e d .  T h e r e  a p p e a r s  
t o  b e  so m e  c o n f u s i o n  a n d  a m b i g u i t y  i n  r u r a l  s c h o o l s .  T h e r e  
a r e  n o  u n i q u e  A l a s k a n  r e q u i r e m e n t s  i n  t e r m s  o f  p r e s e r v i c e  or 
p r e - e m p l o y m e n t  e x p e r i e n c e s .  T h e  t r a d i t i o n a l  i n s t i t u t i o n a l  r e q u i r e­
m e n t s  f o r  t h e  t e a c h e r  e d u c a t i o n  p r o g r a m  i n  I H E  ( I n s t i t u t e s  of  
H i g h e r  E d u c a t i o n )  d o  n o t  s p e a k  to  A l a s k a n  c r o s s - c u l t u r a l  a n d / o r  
s m a l l  s c h o o l  i s s u e s . "3

A s t u d y  o f  t h e  H . U . D . / I n t e r n s h i p  p r o g r a m ^  r u n  t h r o u g h  the 
U n i v e r c i t y  fo A l a s k a ,  J u n e a u  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  n o t  o n l y  d o e s  s u c h  
a n  i n t e r a c t i v e  a p p r o a c h  to e d u c a t i o n  b e t t e r  p r e p a r e  the s t u d e n t  
f o r  r e a l - l i f e  s i t u a t i o n s ,  but, at t h e  s a m e  t i me, c r e a t e s  a m e t h ­
o d  f o r  tne s p o n s o r i n g  a g e n c y  to a p p r a i s e  p o t e n i a l  e m p l o y e e s ,  
a n d  f o r  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  s t u d e n t s  to c u l t i v a t e  e m p l o y m e n t  o p p o r t u n -  
i t i e s - b o t h  p r o b l e m  a r e a s  th a t  w o u l d  b e n e f i t  f r o m  the h e r e i n  p r o­
p o s e d  p r o g r a m .

T h e  a b o v e  m e n t i o n e d  s t u d i e s  e m p h a s i s e  the v a l u e  of a 
m o r e  i n t e r a c t i v e ,  i n t e r n s h l p - s t y l e  o f  e d u c a t i o n a l  p r o g r a m  for 
a d e q u a t e l y  p r e p a r i n g  r u r a l  s c h o o l  p e r s o n n e l - r e c o g n i z e d  by  t h i s  
o f f i c e  to be a n  i n t e g r a l  p a r t  o f  t h e  s o l u t i o n  to r e d r e s s i n g  the 
c u r r e n t  s h o r t a g e  o f  l o c a l  p e r s o n s  o n  r u r a l  s c h o o l  staf f s .

A n o t h e r  a r e a  o f  c o n c e r n :  i n a d e q u a t e  p r e p a r a t i o n  f o r  p o s t­
s e c o n d a r y  e d u c a t i o n ,  h a s  b e e n  d o c u m e n t e d  in n u m e r o u s  s t u d i e s  
( s e e  A p p e n d i x  A). T h e  m o s t  r e c e n t  A l a s k a  S t a t e w i d e  A s s e s m e n t  
P r o g r a m ^ r e p o r t  s h o w s  r u r a l  s t u d e n t s ' s  s c o r e s  a v e r a g i n g  o n l y  81/5 
t h o s e  o f  m i d d l e - s i z e d  s c h o o l s  in i n c o r p o r a t e d  a r e a s  o f  the state.
A J a n u a r y  1 9 8 2  r e p o r t  p u t  out by t h e  I n s t i t u t e  o f  S o c i a l  and 
E c o n o m i c  R e s e a c h 6 at t h e  U n i v e r s c i t y  o f  A l a s k a ,  A n c h o r a g e  s h o w s -
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a marked decrease i n  th e  ACT (A m e ric a n  C o l le g e  T e s t )  sc o re s  f o r  
n a t i v e  freshm en e n t e r in g  th e  U n i v e r s i t y  o f  A la s k a ,  F a ir b a n k s  be­
tween th e  y e a rs  1963 and th e  p e r io d  1 9 7 5 -7 8  ( a p p e n d ix ) .  I n  th e  
m ost r e c e n t  s ta te w id e  Assesment P rog ram , ample e v id e n c e  i s  p r e ­
se nte d  i d e n t i f y i n g  e d u c a t io n a l  d e f f i c i e n c i e s  as a h a n d ica p  im ­
p e d in g  r u r a l  A la s k a n s  i n  t h e i r  a t t e m p t s  t o  o b t a in  th e  p o s ts e c o n ­
d a ry  e d u c a t io n  n e c e s s a ry  to  q u a l i f y  f o r  c e r t i f i e d  s t a f f  l e v e l  
p o s i t i o n s  w i t h  th e  l o c a l  s c h o o l d i s t r i c t s .

The t h i r d  concern o f  th e  p ro p o se d  p r o g r a m - d i f f i c u l t i e s  t h a t  
tu s h  persons e x p e r ie n c e  i n  m aking th e  t r a n s i t i o n  from  th e  bush 
to  more urban c o m m u n it ie s -th o u g h  n o t  w e l l  documented as a m a jo r  
p ro b le m , i s  o f t e n  c i t e d  as a p ro b le m  n e e d in g  to  be d e a l t  w i t h  i f  
r u r a l  s tu d e n ts  are  to  be s u c .c e s fu l i n  c o m p le t in g  p o s ts e c o n d a ry  
e d u c a t io n a l  program s. I n  i t s  p r o p o s a l  f o r  c o n t in u e d  f u n d in g  o f  
th e  Summer E n ric h m e n t P ro g ra m , 1 9 8 3 , t h e  A la s k a  N a t iv e  F o u n d a t io n -  
a le a d e r  i n  th e  f i e l d  o f  e d u c a t io n a l  program s f o r  r u r a l  A la s k a -  
l i s t s  i t s  g o a l  as f a c i l i t a t i n g  a s t u d e n t ' s  t r a n s i t i o n  from  a s m a l l  
r u r a l  h ig h  s c h o o l to  a p o s ts e c o n d a r y  i n s t i t u t i o n .  I t  goes on t o  
say t h a t  as d r o p -o u t  r a t e s  d ocum ent, t h i s  change from  s c h o o l t o  
c o l le g e  i s  f r e q u e n t l y  d e v a s t a t i n g .

I n  th e  course o f  e x p l o r i n g  th e  p o s s i b i l i t i e s  f o r  p u t t i n g  t o ­
g e th e r  t h i s  ty p e  o f  program , a la r g e  and v a r ie d  cro ss  s e c t io n  o f  
p e rso n s  a s s o c ia te d  w i t h  one o r  more a s p e c t o f  the p r o p o s a l  were 
c o n t a c t e d .  Whether th e y  were o r i g i n a l l y  sought o u t f o r  th e  t e c h ­
n i c a l  know ledge, h i s t o r i c a l  p e r s p e c t iv e  o r  an assesment o f  t h e i r  
p r e s e n t  e d u c a t io n a l  a c t i v i t i e s ,  t h e r e  was a d is c u s s io n  o f  th e  m u l t i ­
f o c a l  n a tu re  o f  what i s  here b e in g  p ro p o s e d . A r e s u l t  o f  th e s e  
d is c u s s io n s  was t h a t  th e  d i r e c t i o n  o f  th e  program was m o d i f ie d  

w i t h  a mere c le a r  u n d e r s ta n d in g  o f  what th e  p r a c t i c a l i t i e s ,  and 
o b j e c t i v e s  c o u ld  be. A l l  seemed t o  a g re e  on one t h i n g ,  p u t t i n g  
such a program t o g e t h e r  w i l l - t o  be s u c c e s f u l - r e q u i r e  th e  b r o a d e s t  
l e v e l  o f  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  p la n n in g .  A t t a t c h e d  to  t h i s  r e p o r t  
(a p p e n d ix )  i s  an a r t i c l e  ta k e n  from  th e  Anchorage T im e s , F e b ru a ry  
2 ^ , 1 9 8 3  t h a t  i d e n t i f i e s  some o f  th e  s p e c i a l  problem s o f  r u r a l  
A la s k a n  s c h o o ls .  A r e c o g n i t i o n  o f  th e s e  u n iq u e  p ro b le m s , c o u p le d  
w i t h  an u n d e r s ta n d in g  o f  th e  im p o r t a n t  r o l e  th e  l o c a l  s c h o o l p la y s  
i n  bush c o m m u n it ie s ,  mandates t h a t  i n  any p la n n in g  p ro c e ss a d d r e s -  
in g  th e  l o c a l  s c h o o l system, th e  com m unity be c o n s u lte d  a t  a l l  s ta g e s  
o f  d e v e lo p m e n t.

1. Program D e s ig n :

/
As more s to n e s  were o v e r t u r n e d  i n  s e a rc h  o f  th e  r i g h t  compon­
e n ts  to  make up th e  whole p ro g ra m , i t  became i n c r e a s i n g l y  c le a r  
t h a t  o n ly  th o s e  who would e v e n t u a l l y  make i t  w o r k - i n c l u d i n g  th o s e  
who w i l l  be s e r v e d -a r e  i n  a k n o w le d g e a b le  enough p o s i t i o n  to  
d e f in e  a s t r u c t u r e  and m ethod. The a re a s  o f  fo c u s  have e i t h e r  
w h o l ly  or i n  p a r t  been a d d re s s e d . T h e r e f o r e ,  th e  m a jo r  t a s k  a t  
hand i s  to  e c l e c t i c a l l y  draw upon th e  e x i s t i n g  re s o u rc e s  and 
s t r u c t u r e  them i n  an o p e r a b le  m anner.



2. A d m i n i s t r a t i o n  of  P r o g r a m  D e s i g n  P r o c e s s :

B e c a u s e  o f  t h i s  o f f i c e ' s  c o n c e r n  t h a t  the n e e d  f o r  m o r e  l o c a l  
p e r s o n s  on r u r a l  s c h o o l  s y s t e m  s t a f f s  is v e r y  I m p o r t a n t ,  a n d  
th a t  the h e r e  p r o p o s e d  p r o g r a m  c a n - i f  p u t  t o g e h t e r  w i t h  the 
h i g h e s t  r e g a r d  f o r  a b r e a d - b a s e d  l e v e l  o f  i n p u t - s u c c e e d  in 
g r e a t l y  f a c i l i t a t i n g  a s o l u t i o n  to t h e  s h o r t a g e ,  p o t e n t i a l  
a d m i n i s t r a t o r s  f o r  p r o g r a m  d e s i g n  w e r e  e x a m i n e d .  As t h e  c o n­
cep t  o f  a c o m p r e h e n s i v e  p r o g r a m  i n t e g r a t i n g  t h e  a r r a y  o f  c o n­
cerns, n o t e d  (in t h i s  p a p e r )  d e v e l o p e d ,  a n d  i n f o r m a t i o n  c o n c e r n i n g  
o t h e r  e d u c a t i o n a l  p r o g r a m s  d e a l i n g  w i t h  r u r a l  A l a s k a  w a s  g a t h­
ered, it b a c a m e  c l e a r  t h a t  t h o s e  m o s t  f u n c t i o n a l  a r e  t h o s e  c l o s e -  
est to t h e  p u b l i c  b e i n g  s e r v e d .  In t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  i n s t a n c e  
t h a t  c o u l d  be o n e  o f  a n y  n u m b e r  o f  r e g i o n a l  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  
u n i t s ,  b u t - f o r  t h e  c r t e r i o n  o f  e x p e r i e n c e  a n d  a c c e p t a b i l i t y -  
the A l a s k a  N a t i v e  F o u n d a t i o n  (ANF) a p p e a r s  to be  b e s t  a b l e  
to p r e s i d e  o v e r  t h e  p r o g r a m ' s  d e s i g n .  T h i s  is a p r o g r a m  f o r  
r u r a l  A l a s k a n s ,  a n d  the A N F ' s  f o c u s  h a s  a l w a y s  b e e n  r u r a l  A l a s k a .

3- D e s i g n  P r o c e s s  P a r t i c i p a n t s :

R e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  f r o m  p o s t s e c o n d a r y  A l a s k a n  e d u c a t i o n a l  i n s t i­
t u t i o n s ,  K u s p u k  a n d  Y u k o n  F l a t s  s c h o o l  d i s t r i c t s  ( a d m i n i s t r a­
tio n s ,  b o a r d s ,  s t a f f  a n d  c i t i z e n s ) ,  t h e  c o n c e r n e d  r e g i o n a l  and 
l o c a l  c o r p o r a t i o n s ,a n d  a n y  g r o u p  or p e r s o n  i n v o l v e d  w i t h  r u r a l  
or e d u c a t i o n a l  i s s u e s .

4. G u i d i n g  P r i n c i p l e s .

E c l e c t i c i s m  ( c h o o s i n g  t h e  b e s t  a p p r o a c h  fro t h o s e  e x i s t i n g ) ,  
f i s c a l  p r u d e n c e ,  b r o a d  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  in d e s i g n ,  c o m m i t m e n t  
to m a k i n g  t h e  p r o g r a m  w o r k  ( g o o d  f a i t h  e f f o r t ) .

5. S T A T E M E N T  O F  O B J E C T I V E :

T h e  o b j e c t i v e  of  t h i s  d e s i g n  p r o c e s s  is to d e v e l o p e  a w o r k a b l e ,  
c o o r d i n a t e d  p r o g r a m  w i t h  t h e  p r i m a r y  f o c u s  b e i n g  a m a r k e d  i n­
cr e a s e  in l o c a l  p e r s o n s  w h o  a r e  e d u c a t i o n a l l y  p r e p a r e d  to f i l l  
p r o f e s s i o n a l  s t a f f  p o s i t i o n s  in  r u r a l  s c h o o l  d i s t r i c t s .

T i m e  S c h e d u l e  f o r  P r o g r a m  D e s i g n

J u l y  1, 1 9 8 3  P r o j e c t e d  f u n d i n g  f o r  d e s i g n  a v a i l a b l e ;  b e g i n
i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  o f  p a r t i c i p a n t s ,  s u b m i s s i o n  of  
p l a n n i n g  s c h e d u l e  w i t h i n  30 d a y s  of  f u n d i n g .

S e p t e m b e r  1 , 1 9 8 3  S u b m i t  d r a f t  o u t l i n e  of  p o s s i b i l i t i e s  for s t r u c­
t u r i n g  p r o g r a m  (put t o g e t h e r  f r o m  r e s e a r c h  o f  
e x i s t i n g  p o s s i b i l i t i e s )  a l o n g  w i t h  p r o p o s a l s  to 
d e a l  w i t h  p o r t i o n s  o f  t h e  p r o g r a m  p r e v i o u s l y  
u n d e a l t  w i t h  (e.g. p o s t s e c o n d a r y  f i e l d - b a s e d  
c u r r i c u l u m ) .

(5)



J a n u a r y  16, 19 8 3  S u b m i s s i o n  o f  f i n a l  p r o g r a m  d e s i g n ,  c o m p l e t e
w i t h  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  o f  p a r t i c i p a n t s ,  b u d g e t ,  a n d  
e x t e n d e d  p r o g r a m  r e q u i r e m n t s  (5 y e a r  o u t l i n e  f o r  
o p e r a t i o n ) .

S p r i n g  1 98*4 B e g i n  o p e r a t i o n  o f  p r o g r a m .

S u m m a r y :

W h a t  has b e e n  o u t l i n e d  i n  t h i s  p a p e r  is t h a t  i n  r u r a l  A l a s k a  t h e r e
is a s h o r t a g e  o f  l o c a l  p e r s o n s  i n  m e a n i n g f u l  p o s i t i o n s  i n  the s t a f f i n g
s t r u c t u r e  of l o c a l  s c h o o l  d i s t r i c t s ,  a n d  a p r o p o s e d  m e t h o d  o f  d e s i g n i n g  
a p r o g r a m  to r e c i t f y  the p r o b l e m .  A A n u m b e r  o f  g u i d i n g  p r i n c i p l e s  
as to w h o  s h o u l d  be a p a r t  o f  t h e  d e s i g n  p r o c e s s ,  a c a l l  f o r  a p r a g ­
m a t i c  and u t i l i t a r i a n  a p p r o a c h ,  a n d  a r o u g h  t i m e  s c h e d u l e  f o r  c o m p l e­
ti n g  certa.in a s p e c t s  o f  t h e  d e s i g n  a r e  a l s o  l a y e d  out.

A f i n a l  n o t e  to t h i s  r e p o r t ,  a n d  a f i r m  b e l i e f  o f  t h i s  o f f i c e ,  is
t h a t  wh a t  is b e i n g  s o u g h t  i n  t h i s  p r o g r a m  o f f e r s  t o  a l l  w h o  p a r t i c i p a t e
v e r y  r e a l  a n d  p o s i t i v e  b e n e f i t s  t h a t  w i l l  m u l t i p l y  as m o r e  l o c a l  r u r a l  
A l a s k a n s  b e c o m e  p a r t  o f  t h e i r  e d u c a t i o n a l  p r o c e s s .  B u s h  s c h o o l s  a r e  
a n n u a l l y  p l a g u e d  by c u l t u r a l  w a r s  i n v o l v i n g  b u s h  vs. n o n - b u s h  i n t e r p r e­
ta t i o n s  of o f t e n  n o n - c o m p l e x  q u e s t i o n s .  Cominunitjes a r e  s p l i t ,  a d m i n ­
is t r a t i o n s  a n d  sta.ffs a r e  f o r c e d  t o  ' c h o o s e  up s i d e s ' ,  a n d  i n e v i t a b l y  
the re a l  l o s e r s  a r e  the k i d s  w h o  s u f f e r  the l i f e - l o n g  e f f e c t s  o f  p o o r  
e d u c a t i o n .  T h i s  p r o g r a m  p r o p o s a l  is no q u i c k - f i x  s o l u t i o n ,  b u t  it d o e s  
o f f e r  an o p p o r t u n i t y  to b e g i n  a d d r e s s i n g  a p r o b l e m  t h a t  is so o f t e n  
d e a l t  w i t h  o n l y  c o s m e t i c a l l y  by r e p l a c i n g  one p r o b l e m  w i t h  a n o t h e r .



F o o t n o t e s :

1 .  C o m p r e h e n s iv e  P l a n  f o r  t h e  C o o r d i n a t i o n  o f  F e d e r a l  and S t a t e  
F u n d s  f o r  T r a i n i n g  E d u c a t i o n a l  P e r s o n n e l .  D i v i s i o n  o f  E d u c a ­
t i o n a l  P r o g r a m  S u p p o r t ,  A la s k a  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  E d u c a t i o n ,  May 1 9 8 2 .

2 .  I b i d .  p a g e  9

3 .  I b i d .  p a g e  10

A. P e r f o r m a n c e  E v a l u a t i o n - H . U . D .  W o r k /S t u d y  I n t e r n  P r o g r a m . P r e ­
p a r e d  f o r  D i v i s i o n  o f  C om m unity P l a n n i n g ,  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  Commun­
i t y  and R e g i o n a l  A f f a i r s  by K e v in  W a r in g  A s s o c i a t e s .  6255
E a s t  4 l s t  C o u r t ,  A n c h o r a g e ,  A la s k a  99504

5 . A s s e s m e n t  R e p o r t  3 :  An u p d a te  on t h e  A la s k a  S t a t e w i d e  A ssesm e n t
P r o g r a m . O f f i c e  o f  P l a n n i n g  and R e s e a r c h ,  A la s k a  D e p a r tm e n t
o f  E d u c a t i o n .  C o p y r i g h t  1982 by t h e  A la s k a  D e p a r t m e n t  o f  E d u c a ­
t i o n  and I n t e r W e s t  A p p l i e d  R e s e a r c h .

6 .  N a t i v e  C o l l e g e  S u c c e s s  i n  t h e  S e v e h t i e s :  T r e n d s  a t  t h e  U n i v e r ­
s i t y  o f  A l a s k a  a t  F a i r b a n k s .  J u d i t h  K l e i n f e l d t ,  R o b e r t  T r a v i s ,  
V e lm a  H u b b a r d .  I n s t i t u t e  o f  S o c i a l  and E c o n o m ic  R e s e a r c h ,  
U n i v e r s i t y  o f  A l a s k a ,  A n c h o r a g e ,  A la s k a  1 9 8 2 .

P e r s o n s  C o n t a c t e d  i n  e x p l o r a t i o n  o f  P ro g ra m  p o s s i b i l i t i e s :

P e r s o n  c o n t a c t e d :

Mr. R o b e r t  M c H e n r y ,  S u p e r i n t e n d e n t " o f >‘b c h 6 o l s  
K u s p u k  S c h o o l  D i s t r i c t ,  A n i a k , A l a s k a .

D r .  B e a t r i z  A p o d a c a ,  S u p e r i n t e n d e n t  o f  s c h o o l s  
Y u k o n  F l a t s  S c h o o l  D i s t r i c t ,  F o r t  Y u k o n ,  Ak.

Mr. M i k e  M c K e o w n ,  A s s t .  C o o r d i n a t o r  S . O . S . ,  
A n c h o r a g e  C o m m u n i t y  C o l l e g e

Mr. F r a n k  B e r r y ,  P r e s i d e n t ,  A l a s k a  N a t i v e  F o u n­
d a t i o n ,  A n c h o r a g e ,  A l a s k a

D r .  G l e n  O l d s ,  P r e s i d e n t ,  A l a s k a  P a c i f i c  U n i­
v e r s i t y ,  A n c h o r a g e ,  A l a s k a

I n t e r n s h i p  p r o g r a m .  Mr. D e n n i s  D e m m e r t ,  C r o s s - S u l t r u a l  S t u d i e s ,
U n i v e r s i t y  o f  A l a s k a ,  F a i r b a n k s ,  A l a s k a

E d u c a t i o n a l  p r o -  D r .  R a y  L e h r m a n ,  P r o f e s s o r  o f  E d u c a t i o n ,  A l a s k a
g r a m .  P a c i f i c  U n i v e r s i t y ,  A n c h o r a g e i A l a s k a

M a in  r e a s o n  f o r  
c o n t a c t :

p r o g r a m  p a r t i c ­
i p a n t  .

p r o g r a m  p a r t i c ­
i p a n t  .

r e m e d i a l  p r o g r a m .

A d m i n i s t r a t i o n  o f  
d e s i g n  p r o c e s s .

p r o g r a m  c o n c e p ­
t u a l i z a t i o n . .
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M a i n  r e a s o n  f o r P e r s o n  C o n t a c t e d :
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gram.

F i n a n c i a l  A i d .

C o m m u n i t y  i n v o l­
v e m e n t  & F i n a n c i a l  
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I n t e r n s h i p s
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E d u c a t i o n a l  p r o ­
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Ms. Sue Hare, A s s t .  S u p t .  L o w e r  K u s k o k w i m  S c h o o l  
D i s t r i c t ,  B e t h e l ,  A l a s k a .
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Mr. R i c h a r d  S p a z i a n i ,  D e p u t y  D i r e c t o r  E d u c a t i o n a l  
P r o g r a m  S u p p o r t  D i v i s i o n ,  A l a s k a  D e p t ,  o f  E d u c a ­
tion,  J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a .

Dr. A l l e n  B a r n e s ,  S o u t h E a s t  R e g i o n a l  R e s o u r c e  
C e n t e r ,  J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a .

U n i v e r s i t y  c f  A l a s k a ,  F a i r b a n k s .  S c h o o l  o f  E d u c a ­
tion.

U n i v e r s i t y  o f  A l a s k a ,  A n c h o r a g e ,  S c h o o l  o f  E d u c a ­
tion.

M e m b e r s  of A l a s k a  N a t i v e  F o u n d a t i o n ,  Y o u t h  
L e a d e r s h i p  C o n f e r e n c e - w h l l e  i n  J u n e a u  ( r e g a r d­
i n g  C o m m u n i t y  I n v o l v e m e n t ) .

A l a s k a  Dept, o f  E d u c a t i o n :  c o n s u l t e d  o n  n u m e r o u s  
q u e s t i o n s  a b o u t  t e c h n i c a l  s t r u c t u r i n g .

B . I . A .  E d u c a t i o n a l  p e r s o n n e l
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I N T R O D U C T I O N

Rural teachers are no t satisfied w ith their 
studen ts’ academic progress, according to a new 
University o f A laska report, and they tend to blame 
the problem on a lack o f motivation. On the other 
hand, the teachers are satisfied w ith their relation­
ships w ith  both the students and the community.

The report was prepared by the College o f 
Human and Rural Development and the In s titu te  of 
Social and Econom ic Research for the A laska Depart­
ment o f Education. I t  was based on a survey o f 304 
rura l teachers, representing every school outside 
A laska’s urban areas (such as Anchorage, Fairbanks, 
and Juneau). The teachers identified several educa­
tional areas that needed attention. They also de­
scribed the instructional practices that they found 
effective in a rural A laska context. Ninety-six percent 
o f the teachers returned their surveys, an unusually 
high proportion.

F IND INGS
Satisfaction w ith  Educational and Other Conditions

Most rural teachers, whether they taught in 
.m ajority Native or non-Native schools, are satisfied 
w ith the qua lity  o f their relationships w ith  students 
(92 percent), w ith d iscip line in their schools (84 
percent), and w ith school/community relations (73 
percent).

Iron ica lly , what frustrates rural teachers, parti­
cu la rly in Native m ajority communities, is not rela­
tionships w ith people o f a d iffe ren t cu lture , but 
relationships w ith the d is tric t center. Fewer than half 
the teachers in Native m ajority communities are 
satisfied w ith the support they receive from the 
central o ffice (43 percent), w ith the superintendent’s 
management (46 percent), and with the d istric t 
board ’s action (46 percent). According to teachers, 
many d is tric t sta ff do not appreciate the local situa­
tion . (We d id not survey d is tric t sta ff; their perspec­
tive may very well be different.)

Most rural teachers (80 percent) are pleased with

their salary and benefits. To our surprise, on ly about 
a th ird voiced d issatisfaction w ith their housing.

A lmost ha lf o f the rural teachers want more 
opportunities for professional growth. One wrote:

I pm in a tiny school—one other teacher who is not my 
husband. I have no one to ask questions of. My class of 
primary grade children includes an incredible range of 
students (skill, intelligence, behavior, motivation). I have 
an unworkable curriculum guide. My district has offered 
me one training session, one week. I am alone!

Student Achievement: What Teachers Expect
Rural teachers’ views o f their studen ts’ perform ­

ance are ambivalent. On the one hand, over ha lf the 
teachers in Native m ajority schools (52 percent) say 
they are not satisfied w ith their studen ts’ academic 
progress. E ven ,m ore (60 percent) say they cannot, 

.expect average or above-average achievement from 
their s tu d en ts .^

Rural teachers expect v irtua lly  a ll their students 
to graduate from high school. But most teachers in 
Native m ajority schools (90 percent) expect less than 
.half their studen ts to attend college.

Despite their pessim istic view o f studen ts’ 
academic performance and potentia l, most teachers in 
Native m ajority schools (63 percent) say they are 
satisfied w ith the qua lity  o f education at the school.

Rura l teachers in pon-Native m ajority schools 
are sign ifican tly more satisfied w ith  their studen ts’ 
academic progress. They feel that achievement levels 
above national norms can be expected from their 
students. F ina lly , they are much more lik e ly  to 
expect students to attend college.

These differences between teachers’ views in 
Native and non-Native m ajority schools are troub ling . 
We are not sure what they mean. Several teachers 
wrote on the margins o f their surveys that we should 
be careful not to interpret their a ttitudes as “ low 
expectations.’’ In their view, they are sim p ly being 
realistic when they say that they do not expect many 
students to achieve a t national norms and that they 
do not expect many students to attend college.



Indeed, 49 percent o f the teachers in Native m ajority 
communities say that none o f the parents expected 
students to complete college. “Parents are reluctant 
to see their children leave home and become indoc­
trinated in a foreign cu ltu re ,’’ one teacher explained 
on the survey.

But teachers also point ou t that the rural con­
tex t un ju s tif iab ly  lowers academic expectations. One 
said:

My own personal level of expectation has gone down 
since I arrived here. When I started as an English teacher 
my expectations were too high. Very quickly my expec­
tations became more realistic. The big problem is that 
we overcompensate and come to expect too little.

E ffective Teaching Practices in Rural A laska Schools 
Rural teachers say their .schools do not.empha-. 

eize many o f the. practices that are related to high 
•achievement-test- scores in  schools ou tside A laska. 
Most teachers, for example, say their schools do no t.. 
pay much .attention to standardized test scores as a 
basis fo r setting academic goals.

Less than ha lf (48 percent) o f rural teachers 
assign homework regu larly . Many say they avoid 
homework because students do not have the needed 
lighting, space, or opportun ity a t home.

A large proportion o f teachers (10 percent), 
however, do hold study sessions before or after 
school once a week or more. These study sessions are 
advantageous, they say, because the school setting 
helps students settle down to work and teachers are 
right there to help.

When asked to describe b rie fly  the instructional 
practices they personally found effective , rural 
teachers emphasized some o f the practices stressed in 
national studies o f effective schooling and some 
practices related to the village cu ltu ra l context. The,- 
include:

1. Use o f diverse instructional materials and 
* especially projects where students active ly

do things.
2. Self-paced instruction , especially where the 

teacher sets standards for the amount o f 
work to be done.

3. Cooperative student learning situations, such 
as group projects and peer tutoring.

4. Opportunities fo r parents and community 
people to participate in schooling, such as 
sending home nightly study guides.

CONCLUSIONS
We have asked many d iffe ren t people—school 

superintendents, rural and urban teachers, represent­
atives o f professional education organizations—to 
comment on these findings. Most raise the same issue: 
How can so many rural teachers say they are satisfied 
w ith  the qua lity  o f education at the ir schools and 
then turn around and say they don ’t  expect students 
to reach national achievement norms or attend 
college or complete college i f  they do attend?

Possibly the answer is straightforward: ..most__
rura l teachers may feel they are working in a d if f ic u lt 
situation , w ith students whose cu ltura l traditions do 
not necessarily support academic achievement or 
college attendance, and whose parents are not often 
oriented toward these goals. They may feel that 
under these circumstances, they and ihe ir schools are 
doing a fine jo b . But the d isturb ing issues remain: d f 
teachers expect too lit t le  o f village students? Anc 
what should count as “educational success” in rura 
Alaska? Such questions as these must be answered .j 
before we can reasonably expect to improve th e^  
effectiveness o f rural schooling in Alaska.

This report, entitled Effective Schooling in Rural 
Masha (27 pages), was prepared by Judith Klcinfeld and 
G. Williamson McDiarmid under the auspices of the 
College of Human and Rural Development and the Insti­
tute of Social and Economic Research, University of 
Alaska. The teacher survey on which the report was 
based was part of a study of school governance in rural 
Alaska, conducted by Dr. Gerald McBeath at the Univer- 
sily of Alaska with the assistance of the authors and 
others. The report is available from the Institute of 
Social and Economic Research, 204 Chapman Building, 
University of Alaska, Fairbanks, AK 99701, or from 
ISElt in Anchorage, 707 A St., Suite 200, Anchorage, 
AK 99501, telephone 278-4621. For more information 
on this report, call Judith Kk.'nfeld, ISER-Fairbanks, 
474-7435.
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D e a r  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  T i s c h e r :

You have asked us to  r e v ie w  HB 504, M[ a ] n  A ct 
e s t a b l i s h i n g  the  te a c h e r s c h o la r s h ip  lo a n  pro g ra m ."  T h is  b i l l  
r a is e s  s e v e r a l  c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  and l e g a l  q u e s t io n s  w hich we 
b r i e f l y  address below .

S e v e r a l  p r o v is io n s  o f  t h i s  proposed l e g i s l a t i o n  are 
s u b je c t  to  c h a l le n g e  under th e  e q u a l p r o t e c t io n  c la u s e s  o f  the 
U n ite d  S ta te s  o r  A la s k a  C o n s t i t u t i o n s .  These concern (1 )  the 
e s ta b l is h m e n t  o f  r a c i a l  quotas in  lo a n  d i s t r i b u t i o n ;  (2 )  th e  
e x c lu s io n  o f  g ra d u a te s  o f  p r i v a t e  h ig h  s c h o o ls ,  and (3 )  th e  
l i m i t a t i o n  o f  t o t a l  fo r g iv e n e s s  to  te a c h e rs  who te ach in  th e  
d i s t r i c t  from  w hich th e y  g ra d u a te d . A n o th e r c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  is s u e  
r a is e d  by t h i s  b i l l  concerns the  p r o h i b i t i o n  a g a in s t  d e d ic a te d  
fu n d s .

The U n ite d  S ta te s  Supreme C o u rt has adopted a " tw o - 
t i e r e d "  a n a ly s is  f o r  e v a lu a t in g  most l e g i s l a t i v e  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s  
c h a lle n g e d  under th e  f e d e r a l  e q u a l p r o t e c t io n  c la u s e .  A c l a s s i ­
f i c a t i o n  w hich i s  " s u s p e c t"  o r  im pinges upon a " fu n d a m e n ta l 
r i g h t "  i s  s u b je c t  to  " s t r i c t  s c r u t i n y . "  A law t h a t  makes a 
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  br^ed on race o r  e t h n i c i t y  i s  " s u s p e c t"  and, 
c o n s e q u e n t ly ,  w i l l  oe c l o s e l y  examined by the c o u r t  to  d e te rm in e  
w hether (1 )  i t  i s  sup p orted  by a c o m p e ll in g  s t a t e  i n t e r e s t ,  and 
(2 )  w hether the  r a c i a l  o r  e t h n ic  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  i s  n e c e s sa ry  to  
promote t h a t  s t a t e  i n t e r e s t .  The f i r s t  e q u a l p r o t e c t io n  is s u e  
i d e n t i f i e d  above would be a n a ly z e d  under t h i s  t e s t .  The second 
and t h i r d  do n o t  i n v o lv e  susp e ct c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s  o r  fu n d a m e n ta l 
r i g h t s  and. t h e r e f o r e ,  under f e d e r a l  lav? would be s u b je c te d  to  
the le s s  -manding s ta n d a rd  o f  w hether (1 )  the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  
promotes a x e g it im a t e  s t a t e  i n t e r e s t ,  and (2 )  w h eth er th e  means 
chosen to  a c h ie v e  t h a t  i n t e r e s t  i s  r a t i o n a l .
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The A la s k a  Supreme C o u rt has adopted a s i n g l e  sta n d a rd  
o f  r e v ie w  f o r  e q u a l p r o t e c t i o n  q u e s t io n s  a r i s i n g  under the  A la s k a  
C o n s t i t u t i o n  w hich i s  mere r ig o r o u s  than  th e  f e d e r a l  " r a t i o n a l  
b a s is "  t e s t  and, i n  a reas i n v o l v i n g  susp ect c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s  ^nd 
fu n d a m e n ta l r i g h t s ,  i s  comparable to  th e  f e d e r a l  s ta n d a rd .  The 
A la s k a  Supreme C o u rt w ould  in q u i r e  as to  th e  purposes o f  the 
s t a t u t e  and the  c ircu m sta n c e s  s u rro u n d in g  i t  to  d e te rm in e  w hether 
th o se  purposes are l e g i t i m a t e  and f a l l  w i t h i n  th e  p o l i c e  power o f  
th e  s t a t e .  Then th e  c o u r t  w ould  d e te rm in e  w hether th e  means 
chosen " s u b s t a n t i a l l y  f u r t h e r s  th e  g o a ls  o f  th e  e n a c tm e n t."  
F i n a l l y ,  th e  c o u r t  w ould  b a la n c e  th e  s t a t e  i n t e r e s t  i n  th e  chosen 
means a g a in s t  the  n a tu r e  o f  th e  c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  r i g h t  in v o lv e d .  
S ta te  v .  E r ic k s o n , 574 P . 2d 1, 12 (A la s k a  1 9 7 8 );  Is a k s o n  v .
R ic k e y , 550 P . 2d 359 (A la s k a  1 9 7 6 ).

Under s e c t io n  6 5 0 ( b ) ,  th e  award o f  lo a n s  i s  to  be " i n  
d i r e c t  p r o p o r t io n  to  th e  d i s t r i b u t i o n  o f  e t h n ic  groups" among 
e l i g i b l e  s tu d e n ts .  T h is  p r o v i s i o n  e s t a b l is h e s  a r a c i a l  q uota  and 
w ould  be s u b je c t  to  c lo s e  e x a m in a t io n  under b o th  f e d e r a l  and
s t a t e  law.

We have s e r io u s  r e s e r v a t io n s  r e g a r d in g  th e  a b i l i t y  o f  
th e  b i l l  to  s u r v iv e  an e q u a l p r o t e c t io n  c h a l le n g e ,  under e i t h e r  
the f e d e r a l  o r  s t a t e  a n a ly s e s  d e s c r ib e d  above, to  the  e t h n i_  
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  o f  § 6 5 0 ( b ) .  Even i f  th e  c o u r t  were to  f i n d  the 
purposes o f  the b i l l ,  as e xpre ssed i n  s e c t io n s  600 and 610 to  be 
c o m p e ll in g  ones, w hich  cannot be assumed, the c o u rt  would c lo s e l y  
s c r u t i n i z e  th e  means chosen to  a c h ie v e  th o se  ends. S ince  the 
means employ e t h n ic  c r i t e r i a ,  the b i l l  w ould f a l l  i f  th e  c o u rt  
were to  f i n d  t h a t  th e  ends c o u ld  be a c h ie ve d  by le s s
d i s c r im in a t o r y  means. An example may be h e l p f u l .  In  a sc ho o l
d i s t r i c t  w i t h  90 p e rc e n t A la s k a  N a t iv e s ,  and 10 p e rc e n t
n o n -N a t iv e s ,  i f  th e re  were 10 lo a n s  to  be awarded, n in e  w ould be 
a v a i l a b l e  f o r  d i s t r i b u t i o n  to  A la s k a  N a t iv e  s tu d e n ts  and one f o r  
a n o n -N a t iv e  s tu d e n t .  I f  o n ly  e ig h t  A la s k a  N a t iv e s  and two 
n o n -N a t iv e s  a p p l ie d  f o r  lo a n s ,  the b i l l  w ould r e q u ir e  t h a t  o n ly  
one n o n -N a t iv e  g et a lo a n ,  d e s p ite  the sh o rta g e  o f  A la s k a  N a t iv e  
a p p l ic a n t s .  The q u o ta  i n  § 6 5 0 (b ) i s  n o t  expressed as s im p ly  a 
p r e fe r e n c e ,  b u t  as an i n f l e x i b l e  mandate, w hich may n o t  be 
n e ce ssa ry  to  a c c o m p lish  th e  s t a t e d  o b j e c t i v e s .  1 /  Of c o u rs e , i f  
i t  c o u ld  be shown t h a t  th e  means employed i n  t h i s  l e g i s l a t i o n  are

1/ T h is  example i s  f o r  i l l u s t r a t i v e  purposes o n ly  and i s  n o t 
meant to  suggest t h a t  s u b s t i t u t i n g  a p re fe re n c e  f o r  the  e x i s t i n g  
quota  w ould  n e c e s s a r i ly  re n d e r i t  c o n s t i t u t i o n a l l y  p e r m is s ib le .
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e s s e n t i a l  to  remedy problem s i d e n t i f i e d  i n  § 600 and 610, o r  
problem s t h a t  c o u ld  be i d e n t i f i e d ,  2 /  th e  p r o v is io n s  o f  § 
6 5 0 (b ) c o u ld  be u p h e ld .

The second e q u a l p r o t e c t io n  is s u e  a r is e s  w i t h  re s p e c t  
to  th e  r e s t r i c t i o n  o f  t h i s  program to  g ra d u ate s  o f  p u b l ic  h ig h  
s c h o o ls .  A lth o u g h  § 610 s t a t e s  t h a t  th e  purpose o f  the b i l l  i s  
to  p r o v id e  an in c e n t iv e  " f o r  g ra d u a tes  o f  A la s k a n  h ig h  s c h o o ls  
. . . " ,  and § 600 i d e n t i f i e s  problem s found i n  r u r a l  s c h o o ls ,  § 640 
and 650 r e s t r i c t  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  to  g rad u ate s  o f  p u b l ic  s c h o o ls ,  
and the  fo r g iv e n e s s  b e n e f i t s  are o n ly  a v a i l a b l e  to  th o se  who 
tea ch i n  p u b l ic  h ig h  s c h o o ls .  I f  th e  p r e s e r v a t io n  and 
p e d a g o g ic a l use o f  c u l t u r a l  h e r i t a g e  and t r a d i t i o n s ,  th ro u g h  
inducem ent o f  r u r a l  s tu d e n ts  to  r e t u r n  and teach in  r u r a l  a re a s , 
i s  th e  main o b je c t iv e  o f  the  b i l l ,  the r e s t r i c t i o n  to  g ra d u a te s  
o f  and te a c h ers  i n  p u b l ic  h ig h  s c h o o ls  w ould n o t  seem to  f u r t h e r  
t h a t  g o a l.  C o n s e q u e n tly ,  t h i s  p r o v is io n  may a ls o  be s u b je c t  to  
c h a l le n g e  under s t a t e ,  i f  n o t  f e d e r a l ,  law.

The fo r g iv e n e s s  p r o v i s i o n  i n  § 6 4 0 (2 ) a ls o  r a is e s  e q u a l 
p r o t e c t io n  concerns. Under § 6 4 0 ( 2 ) ,  t o t a l  fo r g iv e n e s s  i s  a v a i l ­
a b le  o n ly  to  s tu d e n ts  who r e t u r n  to  teach i n  th e  sc h o o l d i s t r i c t s  
from  w hich th e y  g ra d u a te .  Assuming the  main purpose o f  th e  b i l l  
i s  t h a t  s ta te d  above, i t  w ould neem t h a t  a r e t u r n  to  the  g e n e ra l
area o r  c u l t u r e  i n  w hich the s tu d e n t  was r a is e d  would s u f f i c e  to
a c h ie v e  i t .  3 /  I t  appears u n l i k e l y  t h a t  each sc h o o l d i s t r i c t  i s
so c u l t u r a l l y  d i s t i n c t  as to  j u s t i f y  such a r e s t r i c t i o n .

2 /  I n  a re c e n t case th e  U n ite d  S ta te s  Supreme C o u rt u p h e ld  a lav; 
t h a t  employed r a c i a l  and e t h n ic  c r i t e r i a .  The case in v o lv e d  a 
f e d e r a l  law g i v i n g  a 10 p e rc e n t p re fe re n c e  f o r  m i n o r i t y  
b u s in e s s e s  in  the award o': c e r t a in  c o n t r a c t s ,  w i t h  the  i n t e n t  o f  
rem edying th e  p re s e n t e f f e c t s  o f  p a st d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .  B e fore  a 
l e g i s l a t i v e  body can p r e d ic a te  a r a c e -c o n s c io u s  remedy on 
r e d r e s s in g  p a s t  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n ,  however, f i n d i n g s  o f  past: 
d i s c r i m i n a t i o n  s u f f i c i e n t  to  j u s t i f y  t h a t  remedy must be made. 
V a le n t in e  v .  S m ith , 654 F .2 d  503 (8 th  C i r  19 81 ). Our b r i e f  
re v ie w  has uncovered no cases w hich s a n c t io n  the use o f  a r a c i a l  
o r  e t h n ic  q uota  where th e r e  are n o t  f a c t u a l  f in d in g s  t h a t  the 
r a c i a l  im balance sought to  be remedied i s  due to  past 
d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .

3 / A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  i t  s h o u ld  be c o n s id e re d  t h a t  many r u r a l  sc ho o l 
B x a t r i c t s  w i l l  have a l i m i t e d  c a p a c ity  to  absorb new te a c h e r s ,

(F o o tn o te  C o n tin u e d )



The H onorable  Mae T is c h e r
R e p r e s e n t a t iv e
Re: HB 504

F e b r u a r y  6, 1984
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A c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  problem  o f  a d i f f e r e n t  n a tu r e  a r is e s  
w i t h  re s p e c t  to  a d m in is t r a t io n  o f  th e  lo a n  program under § 620. 
T h a t s e c t io n  e s t a b l is h e s  the  program as a r e v o lv in g  lo a n  fund i n  
w hich a l l  repayments o f  p r i n c i p a l  and i n t e r e s t  are p u t back i n t o  
th e  fu n d  and used to  make new lo a n s .  T h is  may contra ve n e  the 
c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  p r o h i b i t i o n  a g a in s t  d e d ic a te d  fu n d s .  A la s k a  
C o n s t . ,  a r t  I X ,  sec. 7. However, t h i s  departm ent has in d ic a t e d  
t h a t  i t  w i l l  defend such l e g i s l a t i o n  u n t i l  t h i s  is s u e  i s  
d e f i n i t i v e l y  r e s o lv e d .  13 Op. A t t y .  Gen. Nov. 30, 1982.

We su g g e st,  f i n a l l y ,  t h a t  the  term  " e t h n ic  m i n o r i t y "  be
d e f in e d  to  o b v ia t e  q u e s t io n s  o f  s t a t u t o r y  i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  t h a t
m ig h t a r i s e  as t h i s  program i s  im plem ented. For exam ple, i t  i s  
u n c le a r  w hether each group i n  a community composed o f  T l i n g i t s ,
H a id a s , and Tsim p sh ian s w ould be c o n s id e re d  members o f  a s in g le
" A la s k a  N a t iv e "  e t h n ic  group, o r  w hether each w ould be c o nsid e re d  
a d i s t i n c t  e t h n ic  group.

I f  you have any o th e r  q u e s t io n s  about t h i s  b i l l ,  p le a s e  
do n o t  h e s i t a t e  to  c o n ta c t us.

S in c e r e ly  y o u rs ,

NORMAN C. GORSUCH
ATTORNEY GENERAL

B y:

L S : j  a l

cc: A r t h u r  H. P e terson

(F o o tn o te  C o n tin u e d )

*LeacJ er y h? i s  u n ab le  to  g e t a jo b  in  h is  o r  her sc h o o l 
d i s t r i c t  o f  o r i g i n  may be i n  e f f e c t  p e n a l iz e d  as a r e s u l t ,  by 
b e in g  i n e l i g b l e  f o r  fo r g iv e n e s s  under § 6 4 0 ( b ) .

l y l A u & i

L in d a  Scoc 
A s s is t a n t  A t t o r n e y  G eneral
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FUND STUDENTS, NOT PROFESSORS - -  THE HAYES SCHOLARSHIP B ILL

R u ra l N a t iv e  Am erican s tu d e n ts  may soon r e c e iv e  $ 1 0 ,0 0 0  per y e a r  
sch ia r s h ip s  tow ards te a c h in g  degrees i f  th e  b i l l  r e c e n t l y  in tro d u c e d  
by A laska  S ta te  R e p r e s e n t a t iv e  Joe Hayes i s  s u c c e s s f u l .  Many v o t e r s  may 
see t h i s  as to o  much money la v is h e d  on a fa v o r e d  e t h n ic  m i n o r i t y .
They may see t h i s  b i l l  as both  an example o f  governm ent w aste and o f  
government r e v e r s e  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .  B u t,  I  have good e v id e n c e  t o  show 
t h a t  t h i s  b i l l  i s  n e i t h e r  w a s t e f u l  nor d i s c r i m i n a t o r y .  The r e a l i t y  
i s  q u i t e  th e  o p p o s it e .

My evidence comes from  i n s id e  i n f o r m a t io n ,  i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  i s  common 
knowledge among r u r a l  c o l le g e  p r o fe s s o r s  and a d m i n i s t r a t o r s  but i s  
a lm ost ne ve r r e le a s e d  to  th e  g e n e r a l  p u b l i c .  I  can d i v u l g e  t h i s  in fo r m ­
a t io n  because I  was w i l l i n g  to  r i s k  my c a re e r  i n  A la s k a  r a t h e r  th a n  
cover up th e  w aste t h a t  I  found i n  r u r a l  h ig h e r  e d u c a t io n .  For any 
t h a t  care t o  i n v e s t i g a t e  t h i s  e v id e n c e , I  have q u i t e  e x t e n s iv e ,  s p e c i f i c  
in f o r m a t io n .  I n  1981 and 1982 I  worked as a U n i v e r s i t y  o f  A la sk a  p r o fe s s o r  
among N a t iv e  Am erican v i l l a g e s  a lo n g  th e  Yukon R i v e r .  Then, in  th e  s p r in g  
o f  1983, I  worked as th e  d i r e c t o r  o f  a " n o n - p r o f i t 11 N a t iv e  te a c h e r  educa­
t i o n  program among t h e  v i l l a g e s  o f  th e  B e r in g  Sea. The f o l l o w i n g  are j u s t  
as few o f  my e x p e r ie n c e s  as a r u r a l  e d u c a to r.

When I  a r r iv e d  a t  my jo b  on th e  B e rin g  Sea, I  was r e s p o n s ib le  f o r  d i r e c t ­
in g  an o n -g o in g  3 3 46,0 00  F e d e ra l  program t h a t  was c o o r d in a te d  w ith  two 
U n iv e r s i t y  o f  A la s k a  programs t h a t  co3t about $ 2 5 2 ,0 0 0 .  I n  a l l ,  we were 
spending about $6 0 0 ,0 00  per y e a r .  A l l  th e  p u b l i c l y  r e le a s e d  documents - -  
g ra n t r e q u e s ts ,  a p p e a ls  f o r  more s t a t e  f u n d in g ,  e t c .  —  a d v e r t is e d  t h a t  
we had over 40 s tu d e n t s ,  a l l  r a p i d l y  p r o g r e s s in g  tow ard s t h e i r  te a c h ­
in g  degrees. B ut, a f t e r  I  had been on th e  jo b  f o r  a m onth, n o th in g  seemed 
to  be ha ppening. Four or f i v e  s tu d e n ts  seemet to  be d o in g  some o f  t h e i r  
assig nm e nts, but t h a t  was about a l l .  T h is  program had been ru n n in g  f o r  
a y e a r  and a h a l f  b e fo re  I  a r r i v e d .  Had t h e  3tuder?.ts done any work 
d u r in g  t h a t  y e a r  and a h a l f ?  I t  was hard t o  s a y . No c r e d i t  hour t o t a l s  
had ever been c o m p ile d . What was th e  t o t a l  c o s t  o f  t h i s  program? A gain, no 
t o t a l  cost f i g u r e s  had ever been k e p t .  I  asked th e  u n i v e r s i t y  o f f i c i a l s  
f o r  t h e i r  t o t a l s -t but th e y  s a id  t h a t  th e y  d i d n ' t  have any.

In  a tte m p t in g  t o  d e te rm in e  th e  success r a t e  o f  my program , I  began to  
p iece to g e t h e r  th e  f a c t s .  I f  the  program r e a l l y  was n o t  w o rk in g , perhaps 
something c o u ld  be done to  im prove i t .  B ut, f i r s t  I  had t o  d e te rm in e  
what was a c t u a l l y  happe ning. So, I  began to  assem ble  complex c h a rts  on 
rny o f f i c e  w a l ls  - -  c h a rts  showing s tu d e n t p ro g re s s  d u r in g  th e  c u rre n t  
semester and c h a r t s  showing s tu d e n t  p ro g re ss  d u r in g  t h e  p r e v io u s  sem esters.

At f i r s t  i t  was d i f f i c u l t  to  d e te rm in e  j u s t  what I  s h o u ld  c o n s id e r  as 
a " s t u d e n t ."  A f t e r  a l l ,  I  had o ve r 40 p e o p le  s ig n e d  u p , and a l l  were 
c la im in g  to  be " s t u d e n t s . "  Y e t,  l i t t l e  work was b e in g  done. But, then 
I  found a c le a r  s o l u t i o n .  I f ,  f o r  example, th o s e  i n  ray program completed 
a t o t a l  o f  1000 courses (3 c r e d i t  hour3 each) d u r in g  t h e  s c ho o l y e a r ,  
and i f  each f u l l  t im e  s tu d e n t was t h e o r e t i c a l l y  e xp e cte d  to  complete 
10 courses per y e a r ,  then  I  could  j u s t i f i a b l l y  speak o f  h a v in g  100 
" s t u d e n t s ."  T h is  would be t r u e  no m a tte r  how many p e o p le  were a c t u a l l y  
on my r o l l s .  F u r t h e r ,  i f  th e  t o t a l  c o st o f  my program was, f o r  example, 
$ 1 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  per y e a r ,  th e n  I  co uld  say t h a t  th e  e f f i c i e n c y  o f  t h i s  
program was 3 1 0 ,0 0 0  per stu d e n t per y e a r .
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S u c h  cost e f f e c t i v e n e s s  is so e a s y  to  c a l c u l a t e  that it c o u l d  be 
d e m a n d e d  b y  t h e  S t a t e  L e g i s l a t u r e  a n d  e v e n  p u b l i s h e d  in the n e w p a p e r s .
In t h i s  w a y  a l t e r n a t i v e  p r o g r a m s  c o u l d  o p e n l y  c o m p e t e  w i t h  ea c h  o t h e r  
f o r  p u b l i c  funds. At p r e s e n t ,  u n i v e r s i t y  a d m i n i s t r a t o r s  h i d e  s u c h  
s t a t i s t i c s  as t h o u g h  t h e y  w e r e  n u c l e a r  s e c r e t s .

F o r  example, one d a y  t w o  o f f i c i a l s  f r o m  a r u r a l  c o m m u n i t y  c o l l e g e  c a m e  
b y  a n d  n o t i c e d  t h e  c h a r t s  on m y  w a ll.

" B e t t e r  not d i s p l a y  i n f o r m a t i o n  l i k e  t h a t , "  s a i d  one.

"Best n o t  to  c o l l e c t  s u c h  i n f o r m a t i o n  in  t h e  f i r s t  p l a c e , "  
s a i d  t h e  other.

T h e s e  w e l l  i n t e n t i o n e d  m e n  s i m p l y  w a n t e d  to g i v e  me  g o o d  s u r v i v a l  a d v i c e .  
N e v e r t h e l e s s ,  I kept on w i t h  m y  c h a r t  w ork. S o o n  ray c h a r t s  c l e a r l y  
s h o w e d  that o v e r  t h e  l a s t  y e a r  a n d  a h a l f  t h i s  p r o g r a m  h a d  not 4 0  s t u d e n t s  
but o n l y  5 s t u d e n t s .  I w a s  g e n e r o u s l y  c a l c u l a t i n g  that o n e  " s t u d e n t "  
w o u l d  c o m p l e t e  a b o u t  s e v e n  c o u r s e s  p e r  y e a r  —  w h i c h  is o n l y  a  p a r t - t i m e  
l o a d  a n y w h e r e  else. F u r t h e r ,  we  w e r e  s p e n d i n g  n o t  $ 1 0 , 0 0 0  but $ 1 2 0 , 0 0 0  
f o r  each s t u d e n t  each year. A t  t h i s  r a te, t h e  p r i c e  of just one t e a c h i n g  
d e g r e e  w a s  g o i n g  to be  w e l l  o v e r  $ 7 0 0 , 0 0 0 .

I w e n t  to a  h i g h  a d m i n i s t r a t o r  of t h e  l o c a l  c o m m u n i t y  c o l l e g e  t h a t  
f o r m e d  part of t h i s  p r o g r a m .

" L ook at t h e s e  c h a r t s , "  I said. " T h i s  p r o g r a m  c l e a r l y  i sn't 
w o r k i n g . "

"I k n o w , "  sa i d  t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t o r ,  "but we  h a v e  t r i e d  a l m o s t  
e v e r y t h i n g . "

I h a d  b e e n  g i v i n g  s o m e  t h o u g h t  to  a n o t h e r ,  q u i t e  o b v i o u s  a p p r o a c h .  It 
s e e m e d  to m e  th a t  most N a t i v e  A m e r i c a n  c o l l e g e  g r a d u a t e s  that I met in  
r u r a l  A l a s k a  e a r n e d  t h e i r  d e g r e e s  at m a j o r  c a m p u s e s .  S c h o l a r s h i p s  l a r g e  
e n o u g h  to a l l o w  o u r  a v e r a g e  s t u d e n t ,  w h o  o f t e n  h a d  d e p e n d e n t  c h i l d r e n ,  
to  v e n t u r e  o n t o  a l a r g e  c a m p u s ,  m i g h t  b e  t h e  w a y  to go.

"What a b o u t  s e t t i n g  u p  a l a r g e  s c h o l a r s h i p  f u n d  to  se n d  o u r  b e s t  
s t u d e n t s  t o  m a j o r  c a m p u s e s ? "  I asked. "It m i g h t  be w o r t h  a try."

"No w a y ! "  H e  said.

At t h i s  point, I s h o u l d  g i v e  t h e  r e a d e r  s o m e  b a c k g r o u n d  i n f o r m a t i o n .
V/hy was th i s  a d m i n i s t r a t o r  so u p s e t  o v e r  m y  s u g g e s t i o n ?  T h e  a n s w e r  is 
t h a t  if t h e s e  s c h o l a r s h i p s  w e r e  g r a n t e d ,  h i s  c o l l e g e  w o u l d  not o n l y  be 
l o s i n g  s t u d e n t  t u i t i o n  m o n e y ,  but it w o u l d  a l s o  b e  f a c e d  w i t h  d e c r e a s i n g  
e n r o l l m e n t  s t a t i s t i c s .  H i s  t o t a l  s t u d e n t  e n r o l l m e n t  was a m a j o r  f a c t o r  
in h i s  own f u n d i n g  and w a s  a  m a j o r  f a c t o r  b y  w h i c h  h i s  b u r e a u c r a t i c  
s u p e r i o r s  m e a s u r e d  his e f f e c t i v e n e s s  as an  a d m i n i s t r a t o r .  H e  d i d n ' t  
w a n t  to send a w a y  p r o m i s i n g  s t u d e n t s  -- e v e n  if it was to t h e i r  a d v a n t a g e .

W h y  d o n ' t  o t h e r  r u r a l  p r o f e s s o r s  p r o t e s t  o v e r  t h e  w a s t e  w i t h i n  t h e i r  
o w n  p r o g r a m s ?  A f t e r  all, d o n ' t  p r o f e s s o r s  h a v e  the f r e e d o m  a n d  d e s i r e  
co " p r o f e s s "  t h e  t r u t h ?  T h e  a n s w e r  t o  t h i s  is, again, "No way!"
A l m o s t  two h u n d r e d  Ph . D ' s  a p p l i e d  f o r  t h e  p o s i t i o n  that I was s e l e c t e d  
f o r  at the U n i v e r s i t y  of A l a s k a .  Most of t h e s e  w e r e  u n e m p l o y e d .  Even if 
t h e y  c o uld f i n d  jobs in t h e  L o w e r  F o r t y - E i g h t ,  t h e i r  a v e r a g e  pay w o u l d  
o n l y  be a b o u t  $1 8 , 0 0 0 .  T h e  A l a s k a n  b u s h  is o f t e n  t h e i r  la s t  c h a n c e  to 
m a k e  u p  for a l l  t h o s e  y e a r s  at t h e  p o v e r t y  level. My A l a s k a n  job paid 
a b o u t  $ 5 0 , 0 0 0  p e r  year, plus a  l o n g  v a c a t i o n ,  j u n k e t s  to s o u t h e r n
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C a l i f o r n i a ,  and o th e r  b e n e f i t s .  W ith  th e s e  wages and w it h  200 T h.D 's  
w a it in g  i n  l i n e  t o  r e p la c e  you, are  you g o in g  to  roc k th e  boat'.
P ro b a b ly  n o t .

I f  you a re  a boat r o c k e r ,  you are  v e r y  q u i c k l y  r e p la c e d .  Through a
process o f  n a t u r a l  s e l e c t i o n ,  a l l  boat ro c k e rs  are  soon j e t t i s o n e d ,
and o n ly  th o s e  w it h  a stomach f o r  t h i s  k in d  o f  e x c u rs io n  s u r v iv e .
I  now ru n  my own c o n s t r u c t io n  company i n  New M exico.

So, would t h i s  8 1 0 ,0 0 0  s c h o la r s h ip  be w a s t e fu l?  Not a t  a l l .  In  f a c t ,  
q u i t e  th e  o p p o s it e .  I f  my program i s  t y p i c a l ,  and I  b e l i e v e  i t  i s ,  th e  
ta x p a y e r  i s  a lr e a d y  s p e n d in g  up t o  3120 ,000  a y e a r  f o r  each r u r a l  
s tu d e n t .  How much b e t t e r  would i t  be f o r  t h i s  money t o  fu n d  tw e lv e  
s tu d e n ts  d i r e c t l y ,  in s t e a d  o f  one s tu d e n t  i n d i r e c t l y .  As i t  i s ,  most o f  
t h i s  3 1 2 0 , 0 0 0  per s tu d e n t  n e v e r  b e n e f i t s  t h e  s tu d e n t ,  b u t in s te a d  
b e n e f i t s  th e  bank ac co u n t o f  some p r o f e s s io n a l  e d u c a to r.  The case i s  
s i m i l a r  i f  t h e  e f f i c i e n c y  o f  th e  main r u r a l  te a c h e r  e d u c a tio n  program 
o f  th e  U n i v e r s i t y  o f  A la s k a  a t  F a ir b a n k s ,  th e  X-CED Program, i s  put 
t o  t h e  t e s t .  X-CED spends i n  excess o f  81»130,000 per y e a r  t o  f i e l d  
e ig h t  p r o fe s s o r s ,  some w it h  as l i t t l e  as two o r  th r e e  a c t u a l  s tu d e n ts .  
T h is  money a lo n e  would fu n d  113 310,00 0  s c h o la r s h ip s  —  perhaps f a r
more s c h o la r s h ip s  th a n  r u r a l  A la sk a  c o u ld  p r e s e n t ly  absorb. F ig u re d  
t h i s  way, t h e  d i r e c t  b e n e f i t s  become trem endous, and t h i s  s c h o la r s h ip  
program i s  a lr e a d y  fu n d e d . I t  i s  j u s t  a m a tte r  o f  s w it d n in g  th e  money 
around.

Would t h i s  s c h o la r s h ip  c o n s t i t u t e  re v e r s e  d is c r i m i n a t i o n ?  I  t h i n k  n o t .
The p o in t  o f  t h i s  s c h o la r s h ip  i s  n o t t o  reward someone f o r  h a v in g  a 
p a r t i c u l a r  k in d  o f  g e n e s, but f o r  h a v in g  a p a r t i c u l a r  k in d  o f  knowledge. 
Someone w it h ,  f o r  exam ple, In u p ia a  a n c e s to r y  who was r a is e d  i n  I r e la n d  
would n o t be a f i t t i n g  c a n d id a te  f o r  th e s e  s c h o la r s h ip s .  On th e  o th e r  
hand, an I r i s h  c h i l d  adopted by an In u p ia q  f a m i l y  presum ably could . 
become a s c h o la r s h ip  c a n d id a te .  F u r t h e r ,  th e s e  s c h o la r s h ip s  would not 
be de sig ne d  t o  rew ard a s tu d e n t  s im p ly  because he i s  a produc t o f  
A la skan N a t iv e  c u l t u r e .  I f ,  f o r  example, th e  proposed s c h o la r s h ip  were 
f o r  a degree i n  e l e c t r i c a l  e n g in e e r in g ,  th e n  th e  s t u d e n t 's  c u l t u r a l  
knowledge would have no r e le v a n c e .  B u t,  th e  p o in t  here i s  t h a t  such 
c u l t u r a l  knowledge i s  d i r e c t l y  r e le v a n t  to  th e  s t u d e n t 's  f u t u r e  d u t ie s  
as a te a c h e r  o f  h i s  own c h i ld r e n .  As has been amply dem onstrated, 
te a c h e rs  from  th e  Am erican m ainstream  r a r e l y  rem ain  i n  a N a t iv e  American 
v i l l a g e  lo n g  enough to  u n d e rsta nd  t h e i r  new c u l t u r e  o r t o  understand 
t h e i r  s tu d e n t s .  Due t o  t h i s  la c k  o f  c u l t u r a l  and l i n g u i s t i c  knowledge, 
e f f e c t i v e  e d u c a t io n  s u f f e r s .

To c o nc lu d e , from  d i r e c t  e x p e r ie n c e  I  know t h a t  much o f  r u r a l  h ig h e r  
e d u c a tio n  i s  e x t r e m e ly  w a s t e f u l .  For e very  3100,000 th e  s t a t e  pours i n t o  
r u r a l  programs, o v e r  8 9 0 ,0 0 0  g e ts  d ra in e d  away by a v a s t  bureaucracy 
o f  p r o f e s s io n a l  e d u c a to r s .  How much b e t t e r  would i t  be t o  g iv e  the 
s tu d e n ts  money d i r e c t l y  and t o  cut out a l l  o f  th e s e  e xp e n sive  m iddlfm en. 
These ed ucators  w i l l  c e r t a i n l y  scream over such a p r o p o s a l.  B ut, th e y  
can e a s i l y  be s i le n c e d  by a u d i t i n g  t h e i r  programs anu c a lc u l a t i n g  th e  
t o t a l  cost per a c t u a l  s t u d e n t .  At p re se nt t h i s  r a t i o  i s  ne ve r made p u b l ic .

S e c o n d ly . I t  seems o n l y  f a i r  t h a t  r u r a l  A laskan com m unities be g iv e n  
th e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  educate  t h e i r  own c h i ld r e n .  These s c h o la r s h ip s  
s h o u ld  not be seen as d i s c r i m i n a t i n g  a g a in s t  th o s e  who are  n o t N a t iv e  
Am ericans, b u t as r e w a rd in g  th o s e  who have a s p e c ia l iz e d  and v a lu a b le  
k in d  o f  know ledge.
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Pr e p a r e d  by J i m  G r ei g, E T EP Di r e c t o r

A N AL YSI S OF E T EP P E R F O R M A N C E  —  AP R I L  20, 1933

T'.hth s o m e ' r e v i s i o n s  tor m o r e  pr e c i s e  data- & c o rr ect ion s on 4/24)

TOTAL PR OG RAM C O S T  (Both X - CE D & L o w e r  D i vi sio n , S p r i n g  Sem. '81 -- Sp. Sem.'83;

ETEP Budget f o r  E n t i r e  P r o g r a m  (11/1/80 to 6/30/33) $ 8 4 8 , 2 9 6

Cost of  X- CE D fo r 2 ^  y e a r s  * 3 3 2 , 3 8 0

Cost of N W CC fo r 2h y e a r s  * 2 4 7 , 4 3 0

Total P r o g r a m  C o st (X-CED & L o w e r  Division) 1 , 4 7 8 . 6 0 6

Total Cr ed it Ho u r s  P r o d u c e d  (X-CED & Lo we r D i v i s i o n ) * 517

Cost per C r e d i t  H o u r $ 2 8 6 0

Cost for On e 130 h o u r  T e a c h i n g  D e gr ee (B.Ed.): $ 3 7 1 , 8 0 0

A v er age n u m b e r  of  s t u d e n t s  p e r  se m e s t e r

(Calculated u s i n g " r e q u i r e d  c o u r s e  loads" -- see bar graph) ♦ 8

COSTS FOR 1982 - 1983 S C H O O L  Y E AR (Both X-CED & Lo we r Division)

•

Total P r og ram Cost $ 5 98 ,76 2

Total Credit Ho ur s P r o d u c e d  (est.) 88

Cost per C r e d i t  H o u r $6304

Cost for 1 3 $ rT e a c h i n g  D e g r e e  (B.Ed.): $ 8 3 4 , 5 2 0

Av er age nu mb ers o f  s t u d e n t s  p e r  seme ste r

(Calculated u s in g " r e o u i r e d  c o u r s e  loads" -- see bar nraph) 4

f AN AL YSI SJ3 F B E R I N G  STRAIJS^ REG ION Jj -C EP PE RFORMANCE -- P r ep are d April 22, 33

T O TAL X-CED P R O G R A M  COST, S P R ING SEMESTER 'Cl TH ROUGH 'SPRING SEME’ST ER ~nrS ?

Total X-CED B u d g e t  (est., e x t r a p o l a t i n g  from '8 2- '83 )* $3 3 2 , 3 8 0

Total S e me ste r C r e d i t  Ho u r s  P r o d u c e d  (e st.)* 173

Cost per C r e d i t  H o u r  $2 ,2 13

Cost fc.r 130 h o ur t e a c h i n g  d e g r e e  (B.Ed.) $ 2 3 7 , 6 9 0

A v erage n u m b e r  o f  s t u d e n t s  per se m e s t e r  *

(Total cdt. h r s . , d i v i d e d  by 5 semesters,

di vided by 12 hr. normal c o u r s e  load) 2.9

♦Separate sh ee ts o f  p a p e r  c o nt ain information expl ain ing th es e ca lc u l a t i o n s



P R EP ARE D BY J I M  G R E I G ,  ETEP DIRECTOR

R E V I S E D  C O S T S  4 / 2 0 / G 3  

C O R R E C T E D  M W C C  C O S T S  4 / 2 4 / 3 3  

E T EP, X-CED, & MWCC ANNUAL CO ST S FOR E T E P  P R O G R A M  (UPPER & LO WE R DIVISIONS)

ETEP 1932-83 B u dg et 3 34 6,633

X-CED

Total X- C E D  B u d g e t  19 3 2 - 8 3  

$ 1 , 1 3 0 , 9 6 6  "

Total n u m b e r  o f  X - C E D  st u d e n t  s t a t e ­

wide: 96

N u m b e r  of X - C E D  s t u d e n t s  in Bering 

St raits Re gion: 13

T h e r e f o r e  costs: 13 /9 6 x $1 , 1 3 0 , 9 6 6  = $153,152

Ml ICC

N'.ICC A f f i l i a t e d  S t a f f  Salaries: $7 3,150 

(from ETEP T i t l e  VII g r an t re ou est p . 7 - I A 

Travel (not, as in ETEP, 253 of salaries 

but, a p p r o x i m a t e l y  103) $7,315

Indirect c h a r g e s  (as in ETEP, 233) $18,507

Total for NIJCC $ 93,972

TOTAL FOR ALL OF TH E ABOVE 

(i.e. for school y e a r  1932-83)

$598,762



NOTE: T h es e tw o i n f o r m a t i o n  s h ee ts on E T EP o r g a n i z a t i o n ,  a l t h o u g h  p r e p a r e d  for

a T i t l e  VII g r a n t  p r o p o s a l ,  g e n e r a l l y  show the dgrfa c t o  E T E P  or g a n i z a t i o n a l  

plan.

E T EP O R G A N I Z A T I O N  C H A R T  ( A d m i n i s t r a t i v e )

D a i l y  O p e r a t i o n s



• »»■ a y  r a g e

O u s t e d  d f r e c t o r  r a p s  
r u r a l  t e a c h e r  p r o g r a m
3 y  M ARTH A  E L IA S S E N
Daily New s reporter

The fo rm er d irec to r of a 
Nome-based E sk im o teacher 
tra in ing  program  c la im s he 
was fire d  because he has said 
p u b lic ly  th a t the p rogram  
costs too much and i t  is not 
worl ing.

Dr. J im  G reig, a philoso­
phy professor who has taught 
in u n iv e r s it ie s  around the 
w orld  and was h ired in Janu­
ary to oversee the Eskimo 
Teacher Education Program 
in northw est A la ska , claim s 
hundreds of thousands of dol-' 
Is rs  are going in to  the pro­
gram bu t on ly a hand fu l of 
studen ts are benefiting .

The program w as deve l­
oped tw o years ago by Kaw ­
erak Inc ., a non-profit N ative 
corporation, to p rov ide  teach­
er tra in in g  in in d iv id u a l vil- • • 
lages. I t  is c o o rd in a te  by 
K a w e ra k , th e  N o r th w e s t 
Community College in  Nome 
and a cross-cultural ruucation  
program bas *d at the U n iver­
s ity  of A la ska  F a irbanks .

U n iv e r s ity  and K aw e rak  a 
o ffic ia ls say Greig w as not on J  
the job long enough to mak

Continued from P age  A -1

T h i s  s t o r y  a ls o  appeared i n :
- The Anchorage T im e s  
- The A l l - A l a a k a  W eekly ( h e a d l i n e s )  
- The U .S .A .  Today ( n a t i o n a l  p a p e r)  
-A s s o c ia te d  P r e s s  ( s e n t  n a t i o n a l l y )

an accurate judgm ent. They 
say he m isunderstood the  na­
ture of the tra in ing  program .

In  the past year and a h a lf , 
G reig sa id , about $598,000 a 
year has been used to educate 
f iv e  s tuden ts . A lth o ugh  27 
studen ts are registered th is  
semester, Greig sa id , the m a­
jo r ity  are students “ in name 
on ly ." They do not a ttend 
classes or complete a ss ign ­
ments regu la rly  and have co l­
le c tive ly  earned on ly 16 cred it 
hours th is semester, he sa id .

Greig estimates the cost of 
one teaching degree earned 
through the program at $800,-
000.

“Everybody rea lizes i t  is n ’t 
work ing and they don't know  
what to do ," Greig sa id . .

A fte r he was h ired in  Jan u ­
ary , Greig sa id he 'sp e fif the 
fir? t. month' oT.,so% w i l t in g  
grants for the program  be­
cause funds run out th is  sum ­
mer.' But a fte r p ra is ing  the 
program to the government 
and o il companies, G reig sa id  
he began investiga ting  its  su c­
cess in  p roduc ing  E sk im o

teachers fo r v illa g e  schools.
"A  lo t of money has been 

speat since the ETEP program 
began w ith  v e r y  l i t t l e  
p roduced," Greig sa id  in an 
in it ia l memo to Caleb Pungo­
w iy i, K aw erak president.

G reig sa id  he gave a pres­
e n ta t io n  to  the  K ew a ra k  
board o f d irecto rs A p r il 21 
ou tlin in g  w bat he says are the 
shortcom ings of the program. 
He received a memo from 
P ungow iy i A p ril 25 te llin g  
him be had been fired  for 
un sa tis facto ry performance.

"O b v io u s ly , I  am be ing 
fired fo r te llin g  the tru th ,"  
Greig sa id . Facts about the 
success rate of the program 
have been de lib e ra te ly  hidden 
to make sure it continues, he 
said.

"There are a few people 
o j'.. th e re  who unde rs tan d  
how the system  w orks and 
arc m ilk in g  it  fo r a ll i t ’s
w o rth ," Greig-said.

"M y firing  is made even

more repugnant b y  be ing de­
scribed as 'in the in te re sts of 
s tu d en ts ’ "  G re i{ sa id  in  a 
protest le tte r to P ungow iy i. 
"iSight-hundrcd-lhousa id  do l­
la r  degrees are not in  the 
in terest of the studen ts 
th e ir interests lie  in th t e f f i ­
c ie n t use o f th e  $598,000 
poured into ETEP each ye a r ."

Pungow iyi sa id  G reig does 
not understand what the p r 
gram is meant to accomplish 
and made judgments about 
ru ra l A laska he d id  not have 
the background to make.

“What Jim  does not under­
stand is the need for E sk im o  
teachers and tne cost of edu ­
cation in rura l A la sk a ,” Pun ­
gow iy i said.

The aim of the program  is 
to prepare Eskimos fo r teach 
e r certification in th e ir own 
v illages , at the ir own pace, he 

•said.
Though Greig had proposed 

th a t It  would be much cheap 
er to give Eskimo students^ 
un ive rs ity  scholarships, E s k i­
mos who enroll in u rban coi-

leges have a high dropout 
rate, Pungow iyi said.

“There is  no doubt tha t the 
program is expensive," Pun- 
gowyi sa id . The pay-oif w i l l  
be in 10 or more years rather 
than  w ith in  the n ex t tw o 
years, he sa id .

M ik e  M e tty , N o rthw e s t 
C om m un ity  Co llege p re s i­
dent, said Greig made h is 
judgm ents w ith  only “ a cou­
ple of months of tbserva- 
tio n ." The goal of the yeacher 
tra in ing  program is to deve l­
op a pool of young people 
who could one day become 
certified  teachers, he sa id .

M e tty  acknow ledged  en­
ro llm ent in the program flu c ­
tuates. "R igh t now, we know 
we're going to lose studen ts 
on S t. Lawrence Is lan d  be­
cause whaling' has s ta rted ," 
he sa id . Education in ru ra l 
A laska is un like  education 
anywhere else because o f tbe 
demanding way of life , he 
sa id .

Furthermore, co llege is a 
re la tiv e ly  new idea In the

- A la s k a  P u b l i c  
R a d io  

-And many o t h e r  
news s o u r c e s .

Esk im o cu ltu re , Metty sa id .
"There was no prem ise that 

the program was going to 
produce <0 teachers in  four 
yea rs ," M etty sa id . "We hope 
to get 30 or 40 teachers over a 
decade."

But Dr. Gene Adam, form ­
er fie ld  coordinator for the 
un ive rs ity  cross-cultural pro­
gram , said some of the o rig i­
n a l g ran t app lica tio n s had 
more op tim istic projections.

Adam , who now teaches 
Eng lish  at Fa irbanks Commu­
n ity  College, supports G rc ig ’s 
v iew  and sa id  the spending 
bears investigation by tax ­
payers.

" I  th ink  he (Greig) is  say­
ing, 'Here is the cost, here is 
the product,' ” Adam sa id .

R ura l education is expen­
s iv e  and it is d if f ic u lt to 
coo rd in a te , Adam  sa id . " I  
have the greatest respect for 
those students. They have to. 
catch fish , they have to work , 
they have to take care of the ir 
k id s and they have to m a il in 
th e ir homework," he sa id .

"The idea of b rin g in g  edu­
cation Into every l i t t le  va lle y  
is a noble one b u t it's  not 
ve ry  p ractica l," Adam  sa id .
1 Rep. Terry M artin , R-An- 
chorage, sa id  G reig's concerns 
about the Nome-based pro­
grams are s im ila r  to h is own 
about the high cost o f rura i 
education in general.

"When you compare It  to  
some of the other programs 
I ’vo been b ickering  about, It's 
not out of lin e ,"  M artin  xsid . - 

."The concept has* been 
around fo r a long tim e  to-get 
N a tive  people to w o rk  w ith  
N a tive  people." M artin  said , 
b u t the cost o f present meth­
ods is too high.

In  addition to the  le tte r to 
Pungow iy i p ro testing h is f ir ­
ing. Greig f lew  to Fa irbanks 
f icm  Anchorage Tuesday to 
|d isc iss the s itu a tion  w ith  uni- 
‘v e i . i t y  o f f ic ia ls . .

He sa id he p lans on re turn ­
ing to New- Mexico In  a week 
o r ;so to resume a lu c ra tive  
adobe cons'.i jction business.

G.HD



R E S U M E

J A M E S  G R E I G  

Box 399

Bernalillo, N e w  M e x i c o  87004 

(505) 867-2969 

E D U C A T I O N

U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C O L O R A D O ,  B o u l d e r .  B .A . 1 9 6 4 ,  M . A .  1 9 6 9 .  P h i l o s o p h y  m a j o r ,

E n g l i s h  m i n o r .

U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  N E W  M E X I C O ,  A l b u q u e r q u e .  P h . D .  1 9 7 8 . P h i l o s o p h y  m a j o r ,

E n g l i s h  m i n o r .  D i s s e r t a t i o n : " T h e  O v e r m a n  & t h e  U n i t y  O f  N i e t z s c h e ' s  P h i l . "

A R E A S  O F  S P E C I A L I Z A T I O N :  C r o s s - c u l t u r a l  E d . ,  I n t e r d i s c i p l i n a r y  E d . ,

H u m a n i t i e s ,  P h i l o s o p h y ,  E n g l i s h .

T E A C H I N G  E X P E R I E N C E

1 9 6 9  L A T I N  A M E R I C A N  I N S T I T U T E ,  N Y ,  N Y .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  E n g l i s h  as a

S e c o n d  L a n g u a g e .

1 9 6 9 - 7 0  S O P H I A  U N I V . ,  T o k y o .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  P h i l o s o p h y  & E n g l i s h .

1 9 7 1 - 7 4  U N I V .  O F  N E W  M E X I C O ,  A l b u q u e r q u e .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  P h i l o s o p h . y .

1 9 7 4 - 7 5  U N I V .  O F  G U A M ,  A g a n a .  I n s t r u c t o r  o f  P h i l o s o p h y  F, E n g l i s h .

1 9 7 6  T E X A S  T E C H  U N I V . ,  L u b b o c k .  A s s i s t .  P r o f .  o f  P h i l o s o p h y .

1 9 8 1 - 8 2  U N I V .  O F  A L A S K A ,  F a i r b a n k s .  A s s i s t .  P r o f .  X - C E D  P r o g r a m

( C r o s s - C u l t u r a l  E d u c a t i o n  D e v e l o p m e n t  P r o g r a m ,  Sr.h. o f  E d . ) .  

D u t i e s :  I n t e r d i s c i p l i n a r y  h u m a n i t i e s " s p e c i a l i s t "  in  a N a t i v e  

t e a c h e r  e d u c a t i o n  p r o g r a m .  A d m i n i s t e r e d  B . E d .  p r o g r a m  o v e r  

a 2 0 0 , 0 0 0  s q .  m i l e  a r e a .  F l e w  b e t w e e n  a n d  r e s i d e d  in r e m o t e  

A t h a b a s c a n  N a t i v e  A m e r i c a n  v i l l a g e s  in  t h e  i n t e r i o r  o f  A l a s k a .

1 9 8 2  U N I V .  O F  A L A S K A ,  F a i r b a n k s .  A s s i s t .  P r o f .  o f  P h i l o s o p h y .

1 9 8 3  E S K I M O  T E A C H E R  E D U C A T I O N  P R O G R A M  ( E T E P ) ,  N o m e ,  A l a s k a .  D i r e c t o r .

D u t i e s :  A d m i n i s t e r  a $ 3 4 6 , 0 0 0 / y r .  T i t 1 :; IV p r o g r a m ,  w r i t e  g r a n t

r e q u e s t s ,  c o o r d i n a t e  p r o g r a m  p l a n t . . n g  w i t h  t h e  U n i v e r s i t y  o f

A l a s k a  a n d  t h e  N o r t h w e s t  C o m m u n i t y  C o l l e g e ,  d e v e l o p  c u r r i c u l u m ,  

s u p e r v i s e  b i - 1 i n g u a l  s t u d e n t  t e a c h e r s ,  t e a c h  B . E d .  r e l a t e d  

c o u r s e s .  C o n s t a n t  f l i g h t s  i n t o  E s k i m o  v i l l a g e s  in B e r i n g  S t r a i t s .

C O U R S E S  T A U G H T

H u m a n i t i e s  E n g l i s h  a s  a S e c o n d  L a n g u a g e

E n g l i s h  L i t e r a t u r e  L o g i c

P h i l o s o p h y  & M y t h o l o g y  I n t r o d u c t i o n  t o  P h i l o s o p h y

E n g l i s h  G r a m m a r  & C o m p o s i t i o n  H i s t o r y  o f  P h i l o s o p h y  F S c i e n c e

A m e r i c a n  P h i l o s o p h y  C o n t e m p o r a r y  P h i l o s o p h y

( N o t e :  T h e s e  a r e  c o u r s e s  I d e v e l o p e d  & t a u g h t ,  I t u t o r e d  a r a n g e  o f  o t h e r s

O T H E R  E X P E R I E N C E

1 9 7 0  E d i t o r ,  E n c y c l o p e d i a  B r i t a n n i c a  , T o k y o ,  ( p a r t - t i m e  e d i t i n g ) .
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1984 ASCUS T E AC HER SU PP LY/ DEM AN D REPORT 

Survey of October, 1 9 8 3 “

BACKGROUND

In 1976 the Executive Co mm itt ee of the A s so cia tio n for School, Co ll ege 

and Univ ers ity Staffing (ASCUS) directed then President, Jim Akin, to develop 

teacher su pply/demand information for d i s s e m i n a t i o n  to the A S C U S  m e m b e r s h i p  

and to the public. A survey of the en ti re i n st itu tio na l and as so cia te 

m e m b e r s h i p  was conducted at that time and be ca me the pr ot oty pe for the cu rrent 

annual teacher supply/demand survey and report. Co m p a r i s o n s  in this report 

in clude n e w  data, as w e ll as those from pr e v i o u s  reports dating b a c k  to 1976.

Th e  three-page survey instrument ha s b e e n  mo d i f i e d  only slightly from 

previous years for the 1983 survey (1984 r e p o r t ) . C o p i e s  of the instrument 

w e re forwarded to basically the same pl ac eme nt o f fi cer s wh o p a r t i c i p a t e d  in 

recent surveys. Th e report deals with n i ne cor. tinental United States regions, 

plus A l a s k a  and Hawaii. Th e chart of the regions is shown below. Of the 67 

in st rum ent s mailed, 61 w e re received from T e a c h e r  P l ac eme nt O f f i c e r s  in time 

for utiliza tio n in this report.

T h e  survey requested su pply/demand c o mp ari son s for di ff ere nt y e ar s for 

el em ent ary and secondary teachers by field. In addition, it asked for av er age 

beginning salaries for graduates in sp ecial education, elem ent ary and secondary 

education for recent placement years.

6=South East. 7=Great Lakes. 8=Middle Atlantic. 9=North East



TEACHER SUPPLY/DEMAND REPORT

* After three years of decreasing optimism among reporting placement
officers, it appears that the job market for teachers has bottomed
and that the job market, generally, will be the same or better for 
new teachers for the 1984-85 school year.

* For the third consecutive year, education placement officers in the
South Central region (it5) expressed higher levels of optimism about
teacher employment than did their counterparts in other regions.

* For the third consecutive year, placement officers in the New England 
region (//9) expressed less optimism for teacher employment than did 
their counterparts in other regions.

' Compared to reports from their own regions one year earlier, increased
optimism for the teacher job market was reflected by teacher placement
officers from the following regions: Alaska, Northwest (f/1) , Middle
Atlantic (it8), Southeast ('/7), Northeast 0/9), Great Lakes 0/6) , and 
West 0/2).

* Compared to reports from thair own regions one year earlier, decreased
optimism for the teacher job market was reflected by teacher placement
officers in the following regions: Hawaii, Great Plains/Midwest (//4),
and Rocky Mountain 0/3)•

' Only in the fields of mathematics, physics, computer programming and 
chemistry is there a considerable teacher shortage, nationwide.

* Only in physical education is there a considerable surplus of teachers, 
nationwide.

* Sixteen subject areas were identified as having a slight or a 
considerable teacher shortage.

* Ten subject areas were reported as having either a slight or 
considerable surplus of teachers.

* Fifteen teaching fields were identified as having a balanced 
supply/demand.

* The identification of those fields having considerable shortage or 
considerable surplus was consistent throughout most regions of the 
United States.

For: By:

ASCUS Su pp ly/ Dem an d Ja me s N. Akin

January, 1984 K a n s a s  State U n i v e r s i t y



RELATIVE DEMAND BY TEACHING A R E A  AND YEAR 

C o nt ine nta l United States

Based upon a Survey of Te a c h e r  Placement Officers

1984 1983 1982 1981 1980 1979 1976

Teac hin g fields with co ns ide rab le teacher shortage ____(5 .00-4.25):

Ma th ema tic s 4.78 4.75 4.81 4.79 4.80 4.68 3.86

Scie nce -Ph ys ics 4.45 4.46 4.41 4.56 4.23 4.36 4.04

Co m p u t e r  Pr og ram min g 4.34 — — — — — —

S c ie nce -Ch em ist ry 4.25 4.30 4.13 4.42 4.18 4.09 3.72

T e a c h i n g  fields w i th slight teacher shortag e ....... ....(4 .24-3.45):

D a ta Proc ess ing 4.18 4.36 3.86

Bi li ngu al Education 4.04 3.83 4.13 4.10 4.21 4.32 —
Sp ecial Education-LD 3.98 4.09 4.20 4.47 4.48 4.50 4 .00

Special E d u c ati on- ED /PS A 3.84 4.08 3.98 4.22 4.36 4.22 3.42

Speech P a t h o l o g y / A u d i o . 3.83 3.62 3.95 4.27 4.17 3.83 3.68

Special Education-Multi. H a n d i . 3.77 3.82 3.93 4.13 3.87 3.24 —
Sp ecial Education-Gifted 3.74 3.80 3.81 4.10 4.33 4.56 3.85

Science -Ea rt h 2.70 3.80 3.89 4.08 3.64 3.82 3.44

Sc ience-General 3.65 — — — — —

Special Education-MR 3.55 3.71 3.84 4.14 4.23 4.39 2.87

In du str ial Arts 3.50 3.96 4.36 4.72 4.77 4.68 4.22

Sp ecial Ed uc ation-Reading 3.48 3.39 3.73 4.21 4.23 4.27 3.96

Te a c h i n g  fields with balanced supply an d d e m a n d . ..,. .,(3.44-2.65)I:

Vo ca tio nal Ag ri cul tur e 3.44 4.02 4.36 4.46 4 .7 3 4.67 4.06

S c ie nce -Bi ol ogy 3.40 4.10 3.66 3.98 3.50 3.49 2.97

N u r s e  (school) 3.40 — — — — —
Li br ary Science 3.30 3.09 3.12 3.31 3.58 4.26 --

Mu si c - I n s t r u m e n t a l 3.25 2.97 3.28 3.33 3.65 3.33 3.03

Language, Mo d. -Sp ani sh 3.18 2.77 2.68 2.95 J.34 2.88 2.47

English 3.13 2.90 3.21 3.37 3.51 2.78 2.05

Business 3.11 3.24 3.47 3.50 3.80 3.65 3.10

Language, Mo d. -Ge rma n 3.08 2.51 2.48 2.58 2.70 2.17 2.03

Language, Mod.-French 3.00 2.59 2.49 2.58 2.68 2.49 2.15

Mu si c-V oca l 3.00 2.89 2.95 3.06 J.32 2.97 3.00

Ps yc hol ogi st (school) 2.98 3.19 3.56 3.70 3.87 3.43 3.09

Co u n sel or- El eme nta ry 2.80 3.03 2.72 3.05 3.38 2.96 3.15

Speech 2.70 2.51 2.76 2.65 2.50 2.47 2.46

Co un sel o r - S e c o n d a r y 2.67 2.83 2.79 3.13 3.76 3.03 2.69

T e ac hin g fields with slight surplus iof t e a c h e r s . ... ...(2.64-1.85)

D r i v e r  Education 2.61 2.94 2.77 2.87 2.98 3.06 2.44

Jo u r n a l i s m 2.60 2.63 2.61 2.77 2.98 2.50 2.86

Home Ec on omi cs 2.43 2.44 2.43 2.54 2.85 2.67 2.62

Social W o r k e r  (school) 2.33 2.27 2.34 — -- ... --

El em ent ary -I nte rme di ate 2.20 2.11 2.26 2.56 2.84 2.33 ,1.90

E l em e n t a r y - P r i m a r y 2.13 2.11 2.02 2.24 2.77 2.19 1.78

Social Science 1.91 1.75 2.11 2.05 1.98 1.83 1.51

He al th Education 1.90 1.76 1.90 2.24 2.17 2.16 2.27
Art 1.89 1.92 1.84 2.00 2.45 2.06 2.14

Teac hin g field w i th cons ide rab le su rplus of t e a c h e r s . .(1.84-1.00) ;

Ph ys ica l Education 1.61 1.54 1.72 1.80 1.82 1.67 1.74

5 = Grea tes t Demand, 1 = Least Demand

ASCUS Supply/Demand
January , 1984

James N. Akin
Kansas S ta te  U n iv e rs ity



T E A C H E R  S U P P L Y / D E M A N D  BY F I EL D A N D  REGION

Re gi on

Field

A g r i c u l t u r e

A l a s k a

3.00

Ha wa ii

4.00

1

4.00

" 2 

3.00

3

2.50

4

3.00

5

4.00

oo
v
O

<T

A rt 2.00 2.00 1.50 1.67 1.50 2.17 2.33 2.00

B i l i n g u a l  Ed. 4.00 4.00 4.60 4.70 3.67 4.67 4.40 4.00

Busi nes s 3.00 3.00 2.92 3.50 2.50 3.20 2.63 3.00

Co m p u t e r  Pr o g r a m m i n g 4.00 — 4.75 4.50 4.33 4.70 4.30 4.60

Co un sel or- El em. 2.00 3.00 3.33 2.50 3.00 3.00 2.75 2.67

C o u n s e l o r - S e c . 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.43 3.00 3.00 2.50 2.50

Data Pr oc ess ing — — 4.50 4.50 5.00 2.33 4.00 4.67

D r i v e r  Ed. 1.00 3.00 2.92 2.33 3.50 2.50 2.50 3.00

El em.-Primary 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.36 1.40 2.00 2.44 2.00

El em .-I nte rm ed iate 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.71 1.75 2.17 2.44 2.17

En glish 3.00 3.00 2.17 3.36 3.17 3.53 3.63 3.00

Health Ed uc ati on 1.00 3.00 1.66 2.50 1.60 1.50 1.63 1.67

Horae Economics 4.00 3.00 2.63 2.50 2.00 2.25 2.17 2.40

In du str ial Arts 2.00 4.00 3.38 3.00 2.67 3.00 4.33 3.75

Jo ur nal ism — 3.00 1.75 2.60 2.75 3.40 2.43 2.40

Language, M o d . - F r e n c h — 3.00 2.33 2.14 3.20 3.33 3.25 3.33

Language, M o d . - G e r m a n — 3.00 2.50 2.14 2.S3 3.30 3.50 3.67

Language, M o d .-Spanis.i — 3.00 3.00 2.71 3.00 3.17 3.38 3.33

Librar/' Sc ience 5.00 3.00 3.00 3.25 3.50 2.30 3.50 3.40

Math 3.00 4.00 4.83 4.71 4.33 4.33 5.00 4 .33

Mu s i c - I n s t r u m e n t a l 4.00 2.00 3.33 3.43 3.67 3.33 3.56 2.50

Mu s i c - V o c a l 4.00 2.00 3.33 2.67 3.20 3.33 2.39 2.67

Nu rs e (school) 3.00 — 2.66 4.00 — 3.33 3.00 3.75

Ph vs ica l Education — 1.00 1.33 1.86 1.00 1.17 1.75 1.50

Psyc hol ogi st (school) 3.00 — 4.00 2.71 3.50 3.33 3.00 2.30

Sc ie nce -Bi ol ogy 3.00 4.00 3.00 3.36 3.33 3.33 3.57 3.17

Sc ie nce -Ch em ist r/ 4.00 4 . 00 4 .17 4 .07 3.67 4.50 4.63 4.33

Sc ience-Earth 3.00 3.00 4.67 3.43 3 .20 4.00 4.13 3.50

S c ie nce -Ge ne ral 3.00 3.00 3.67 4.00 3.17 3.50 4.13 3.83

Sc ie nce -Ph vs ics 4.00 4.00 4 .17 4 .14 3.33 4.75 4.63 4.67

Social Sc ienca 3.00 2.00 1.17 1.17 1.67 2.33 2.25 2.00

So ci al Wo rk er (school) — — 2.25 1.33 2.00 4 .00 1.50 2.50

Speech — 2.00 2.00 2.40 2.60 2.92 2.50 3.20

Sp e c i a l - E D / P S A 3.00 3.00 3.83 3.75 4.25 4.00 4. 14 3.33

So e c ial -Gi ft ed 5.00 3.00 3.33 3.75 4 .00 3.20 4.20 4.33

So ec ial -LD 3.00 3.00 3.33 3.50 4.50 4.00 4.38 4.33

Sp ec ial -MR 3.00 3.00 3.33 3.60 4.50 3.17 4 . 0 0 3.33

S o e c i a l - M u l t i . Handi. 3.00 4 .00 3.30 4.50 4.25 3.50 4.29 3.67

Sp ec ial -Re ad ing 3.00 3.00 4.00 3.14 3.25 3.40 4 . 00 3.50

Speech P a t h ./Audiologv 4.00 — 3.13 3.50 2.67 4.50 4.17 4.40

C O M P O S I T E 3.03 2.91 3.15 3.07 3.02 3.25 3.36 3.24

Re gions ore coded as follows: Al aska, Ha waii, 1-Northwest, 2-West, 3- Rocky Mo un tai n,

4-Great Pl ains/Midwest. 5-South Cent ral , 6-So uth eas t, 7- Great Lakes, 3- M i d d l e  A t l a n t i c ,  

9-Northeast. Al as ka and Hawaii are not included in the C o n - i n e n t a l  Un it ed S t at es totals.

ASCUS Supply/Demand
Jan u ary , 1984



JANUARY, 1984 REPORT

7 8 9  Continental United _States________________

1984 1983 1982 1981 1980 1979 1976

3.67 3.00 3.00 3.44 4.02 4.36 4.46 4.73 4.67 4.06 Ag.

2.00 1.90 2.00 1.89 1.92 1.84 2.00 2.45 2.06 2.14 Art

4.29 3.00 3.50 4.04 3.83 ,4.13 4.10 4.21 4.32 Bil. Ed.

3.57 4.00 3.00 3.11 3.24 3.47 3.50 3.80 3.65 3.10 Bus.

4.67 4.60 4.00________4 .34______ — -____________________  --________--________—  Comp. Prog

2.86 2.75 2.40 2.80 3.03 2.72 3.05 3.38 2.96 3.15 Couns.-El.

2.71 2.75 2.40 2.67 2.83 2.79 3.13 3.76 3.03 2.69 Couns.-Sec

4.33 4.25 4.00 4.18 4.36 3.36 4.35 ________D a ta Proc.

2.17 1.00 3.00 2.61 2.94 2.77 2.87 2.98 3.06 2.44 Dr. Ed.

2.33 2.00 1.60 2.13 2.11 2.02 2.24 2.77 2.19 1.78 El.-Prim.

2.33 2.40 1.40 2.20 2.11 2.26 2.56 2.84 2.33 1.90 El.-Inter.

3.21 3.00 2.25 3.13 2.90 3.21 3.37 3.51 2.78 2.05 En gl ish

2.00 2.40 2.50 1.90 1.76 1.90 2.24 2.17 2.16 2.27 He al th Ed.

2.71 2.67 2.50 2.43 2.44 2.43 2.54 2.85 2.67 2.62 Home E c .

3 . 33 4.25 4 . 0 0  3.50 1.96 4.36 4.72 4.77 4.68 4.22 Ind. Arts

3.00 2.33 2.00_________ 2.60 2.63 2.61 2.77 2.98 2.50 2.86 Jou m .

3.86 3.20 2.00 3.0J 2.59 2.49 2.58 2.68 2.49 2.15 French

3.71 3.60 2.00 3.08 2.51 2.48 2.58 2.70 2.17 2.03 German

4.14 3.20 2.25__________3.18 2.77 2.68 2.95 3.34 2.88 2.47 Sp anish

3.67 2.50 4 . 00 3.30 3.09 3.12 3.31 3.58 4.26 Libr. Sci.

5.00 4.80 4 . 5 0  4.78 4.75 4.81 4.79 4.80 4.68 3.86 Math

3.43 2.20 2 .75__________3.25 2.97 3.28 3.33 3.65 3.33 3.03 Instr.

3.43 2.20 2.50 3.00 2.89 2.95 3.06 3.32 2.97 3.00 Vocal

3.67 3.50 4 . 00 3.40 —  —  —  " 3.50 3.62 3.93 N u rs e

1.14 2.20 2.25 1.61 1.54 1.72 1.30 1.82 1.67 1.74 P . E .

2.92 3.00 2.25__________2.98 3.19 3.56 3.70 3.87 3.43 3.09 Psych.

3.71 3.40 3.75 3.40 4 .10 3.66 3.89 3.50 3.49 2.97 Biol.

4 . 00 4.80 4.00 4.25 4.30 4.13 4.42 4.18 4.09 3.72 Chem.

3.43 3.20 3.50 3.70 3.80 3.89 4.08 3.64 3.82 3.44 Earth

3 .43 3.20 3 .75 3.65  —  4.31 4.10 4 . 00 G e ne ral

4.71 4.80 4.25_________ 4.45 4.46 4.41 4.56 4.28 4.36 4.04 Ph ysics

2.14 2.30 1.50 1.91 1.75 2.11 2.05 1.98 1.83 1.51 Soc. Sci.

3 . 00 2.50 2.00________2 .33 2.27 2.34    —  Soc. Wrk.

2.79 3.50 3.00________2 .70 2 .51 2.76 2.65 2 .50 2.47 ~ 2.46 Speech

3.43 3.80 3.50 3.84 4.08 3.98 4.22 4.36 4.22 3.42 ED /P SA

3.67 3.25 3.5C 3.74 3.80 3.81 4.10 4.33 4.56 3.85 Gifted

4.29 3.25 3.40 3.98 4.09 4.20 4.47 4.48 4 . 50 4. 0 0  LD

2.86 3.50 3.25 3.55 3.71 3.84 4.14 4.23 4.39 2.87 MR

3.29 3.50 3,50 3.77 3.82 3.93 4.13 3.87 3.24 MH

3.57 3.25 2.80 3.48 3.39 3.73 4.21 4.23 4.27 3.96 Re ading

4.00 4.00 4.00 3.83 3.62 3.95 4.27 4.17 3.83 3.68 Sp./Aud.

3.32 3.20 2.88 3.19 3.14 3.20 3.39 —  —  —  COMP.

5 = Co ns ide rab le Shortage, 4 = Slight Shortage, 3 = Balanced, 2 = Slight Surplus, 

1 = C o n s ide rab le Surplus

From October, 1983 survey of Te acher Placement Officers

James N. Akin 

K a ns as State Univ ers ity



AVERAGE SALARY REPORTS

Th e following a v e r a g e  s a la ry reports for b e gi nni ng teachers are from d a ta 

w h i c h  w e re fu rn ish ed b y  s u rv ey re sp ond ent s. The av e r a g e s  in some ca se s are 

ba se d upon l i mi ted sa la ry input thus re li abi lit y is not assured.

It is ho pe d that this li mited i n f o r m a t i o n  can be h e l p f u l  un ti l m o r e  c o m p l e t e  

i n fo rma tio n is available.

S p ec ial E d u c a t i o n E l e m e n t a r y / S e c o n d a r y

3 a ch elo rs M a s t e r s B a c h e l o r s M a s t e r s

R e g i o n 1 9 8 1 - 1 9 8 2 $ 1 2 , 6 5 1 $ 1 3 , 7 5 0 $ 1 2 , 4 1 0 $1 3, 417

1 1 9 82 -19 83 13,275 14,500 13,038 14 ,2 50

1 9 8 3 - 1 9 8 4 13,607 15 ,4 00 13,806 1 5 ,0 00

Re gi on 1 9 81 -19 82 12,505 13,510 12,505 1 3 ,5 10
2 1 9 82 -19 83 13 ,0 00 14,922 13,707 14,772

19 83 -19 84 13 ,9 00 15,723 14,375 15,665

R e gi on 19 81 -19 82 14,157 15,389 13 ,7 42 15,475
3 19 82 -19 83 15,061 16,550 14,421 15 ,7 00

1 9 8 3 - 1 9 8 4 14,681 16,917 14,345 16,313

Region 1 9 81 -19 82 13,291 15,438 12,758 14,383

4 1 9 82 -19 83 12,739 --- 12,051 ---

1983 -19 84 13,914 15,659 13,144 15,345

Re gi on 1 9 8 1 - 1 9 8 2 11,792 12,503 1.1,175 11,725

5 1 9 82 -19 83 12,903 13,313 12,642 13,302

19 83 -19 84 13,090 14,335 12,815 14,114

Re gi on 19 8 1 - 1 9 8 2 12,078 13,396 11,496 12,567

6 1 9 8 2 - 1 9 3 3 11,750 12,750 12,000 12 ,7 50

19 83 -19 84 13,375 15,225 13,430 14,725

Re gi on 19 81 -19 82 12 , 5 0 3 13,958 12 ,0 90 14,040

7 19 82 -19 83 13,213 15,477 1 2 ,8 90 15,054

1983-1984 14 ,1 40 15,475 13,323 14,825

Region 1981-1982 11,375 12,500 11,875 1 2 . 5 0 0

8 19 82 -19 83 12,875 13,875 12,875 13,875

19 83 -19 84 13,333 14,500 13,250 1 4 , 5 0 0

Region 19 81 -19 82 10 ,0 00 1 1 ,1 00 10,332 11 ,1 00

9 1 9 82 -19 83 10 ,5 00 11,750 10,365 1 1 , 0 0 0

1983-1984 11,667 13,233 11,369 13,233

Al as ka 1 9 81 -19 82 22 ,0 00 2 5 ,0 00 22,000 2 5 . 0 0 0

1 9 82 -19 83 22 ,0 00 25 ,000 22 ,0 00 2 5 ,0 00

1983-1984 --- --- --- ---

Ha w a i i 19 81 -19 82 .13,271 14,245 13,271 14.24 5

19 82 -19 83 14 ,598 15,669 14,598 15,669

1983-1984 14,589 15,669 14,598 15,669

ASCUS Supply/Demand
January , 1981

James N . Akin
Kansas State University



Chapter 2

I o f the existence o f northwestern 
ie voyage of V itus Bering in 1741. 
coastline was more fu lly  defined, 

>y explorers and navigators to  its 
attires. Much o f the interior was to 
■rid for another hundred years, 
the land were already known and 
>l»le who would in tim e become 
. Indians, and Aleuts. It was — and 
years — their homeland.
•dge of thi- ,e Americans — as they 
i.v their first foreign visitors — was 
eir existence and their lifeways 
Id only through the eyes o f foreign 
icrs, missionaries, and others. I t  is 
heir observations gathered over a 
ier with later research, to portray 
• the arrival o f the first Russians in

tin St,ilr Museum, Juneau ( l.u tltr ’i  Voyages)

t I

MAP 2 GENERAL IZED  GEOGRAPHIC D ISTR IBUT ION  OF ESKIMOS, 
IND IANS AND ALEUT 3 IN ALASKA 

Most A leuts lived in coastal villages on islands named A leuts
after I hem stretching 1,000 m iles across the North Pacific.
Some few lived at the lower end o f the Alaska Peninsula.

The population o f about 15,000 A leuts lived in numerous 
small villages, most o f which were located on the Bering Sea 
side o f the islands. One island, Umnak, once had 1G villages.
A typ ica l village was made up o f six or seven houses; each 
household consisted o f 20 to 30 people who were related to 
one another. Then houses were ha lf underground and cover­
ed w ith a warm dome o f sod.

Every village w ith its c luster o f houses had its own sea 
hunting areas, which had to be respected by o ilie r villages.
Use o f these areas w ithout permission meant war.

A du lt men bunted seals, sea lions, and whales in the open 
sea from kayaks, perhaps the most seaworthy o f watercraft.
Roots, berries, b irds, and eggs were available on I be land. The 
food resources o f the A leuts were so abundant that anyone 

"  • , 1  . a . i  i - i u i l i l  ' M i ' i v c  h v  " a l b e i i i n ;
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STATE OF AL AS KA 1984 LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

FISCAL NOTE

Revision Date:

R E Q U E S T
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HB504: Teacher Scholarship Pr ogram

Comments

1. B o rr owe r must be a graduate from an Alaskan pub!ic high school.

There are a number of pr ivate high schools which would have no students 

el ig ib l e (Covenant High School - Unalakleet, Monroe H i gh School - 

Fairbanks, St. Mary's Catholic High School - St. Mary's, for e x a m p ’e).

2. B o rr owe r is eligible to borrow up to the total cost of room and

board, tu ition and fees, and books and supplies, or $10,000, wh ic hev er is

l o w e r . Hence, only twenty or thirty students per year would borrow more 

tlian the normal $6,000 student loan maximum.

3. Borrower must maintain good standing to continue receiving loans.

("C" average, enroll and complete 12 hours per term.)

4. Loans may not be awarded for more than 5 years of study.

5. Interest is - repayment is 10 .yea-s.

6. Section 14.43.630 requires the commission to actually transfer funds 

to the school district.,. We  feel that fund transfer to the district is an 

un n e c e s s a r y  step and should be eliminated. The funds should go j the 

student (actually to the school in which the student enrolls) and not to 

the district and then to the student.

7. Se ction 14.43.640 (b)(1) means that if a b o rr owe r does not teach



public school in Alaska, no loan forgiveness is possible - not even the 

normal 50% for w h ic h ot h e r  loan borrowers are eligible.

B. Possible Amendments

1. Section 14.43.630 amended to read:

Sec. 14 .43.630. AD I'll NI ST RAT I O N . Tne teacher scholarship loan 

p r o g r a m  shall be administered by the stuaent financial aid co mm itt ee (AS 

14.43.095) in accordance with regulations adopted by the committee. The 

co mm itt ee shall allocate [DISTRIBUTE] the loan awards [FUNDS] available 

for teacher sc holarship loans annually to local school boards giving a 

preference to school districts with a hign percentage of students in 

e t hn ic mi n o r i t i e s  and a low percentage of teachers in ethnic minorities. 

The local school boards shall select the •••acipients of the teacher 

scholarship loans.

2. Section 14.4o.640 amended to read:

Sec. 14.43.540. COND ITI ONS OF LOAMS. Each school district shall 

award teacher sc holarship loans suhject :: the following conditions:

(1) the conditions provided i-. AS 14.43.120 apply except that 

no loans may he m~.de to graduate st,dents [AND THE STATE SHALL RE PA Y 

A PO RT ION OF A TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP .DAN UNDER AS 14.43.120 (j) ONLY 

IF, IN ADDITION TO  THE OTHER CRITERIA, THE BORROWER IS ALSO EFPLOVED 

AS A PUBLIC SCHOOL TEACHER IN THE STATE DURING THE P E RI OD FOR WHICH 

THE LOAN IS FORGIVEN];



[2) if a bo r r o w e r  meets the conditions provided in p a r a g r a p h  

\1) of this section and is employed as a public school teacher in the 

d i st ric t from which the borrower graduated, AS 14.43.120 ( j ) does not 

apply, but rather, the portion of the loan that shall be paid by the 

state is the following pe rcentages of the total loan received plus 

interest up to a total of 100 percent of the total loan:

(A) one year employment, 15 percent;

(B) two years employment, an additional 15 percent;

(C) three years employment, an additional 15 percent;

(D) four years employment, an additional 25 percent;

(£) over four years employment, an additional 30

percent; and

(3) a loan m a y  not exceed $10,000 in a school year.

3. Section 14.43.550 am ended to read:

Sec. 14.43.650. SELECT 10M CRITERIA, (a) To be eligible for a 

teacher scholarship loan, a student must

(1) be a graduate of, or scheduled for graduation within six 

months from, an Alaskan [A STATE PUBLIC] hich school, with suff ici ent 

credits to be admitted to an accredited college or university;

(2) be enrolled in or show evidence of intent to enroll in a 

degree pr ogram di r e c t e d  at a teaching career at the elementary or 

se co nda ry school level; and



(3) meet the conditions set by the student's local school 

di s t r i c t  with respect to the di s t ri c t' s requirements for teachers in 

p a rt icu lar subject areas.

Fiscal Analysis

1. Es ti mat ed number of teacher scholarsnip loans available

FY85 80

FY86 160

FY37 240

FY33 320

FY39 320

2. Since a stui -'t may not bo rr ow both a teacher loan and a standard 

student loan, much of the cost would be off-set. The only add-on w o ul d bo 

for those eligible costs exceeding £5,003. Tnis is estimated to be £2 ,5 00 

for 25 students in FY35, and then ca rried forward with a 6% inflation in 

future years.
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SUBJECT:

TO:

FROM:

A f f i r m a t i v e  a c t i o n - - t e a c h e r  
s c h o la r s h ip  lo a n  program 
(CSHB 504 (HESS))

R e p r e s e n t a t iv e  R ic k  U e h lin g

K e it h  B. Levy 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Counsel

You have re q u e ste d  an o p in io n  on th e  c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  is s u e s  
r a is e d  by CSHB 504 (HESS). As you are  aware, any l e g i s ­
l a t i o n  w hich c re a te s  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s  based on ra ce  o r  e t h n ic  
background w i l l  be s u b je c t  to  c lo s e  j u d i c i a l  s c r u t i n y  i f  
c h a lle n g e d  in  the c o u r t s .  I n  e s t a b l i s h i n g  the  te a c h e r  
s c h o la r s h ip  lo a n  program, th e  b i l l  c re a te s  a r a c i a l  
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  and c o u ld  t h e r e f o r e  be s u b je c t  to  c h a l le n g e .  
A lth o u g h  I  b e l ie v e  t h a t  th e  b i l l  c o u ld  w ith s ta n d  a 
c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  c h a l le n g e ,  i t  does r a is e  a number o f  
s i g n i f i c a n t  c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  is s u e s .

In  U n i v e r s i t y  o f  C a l i f o r n i a  Regents v .  B akke, 438 U .S . 265, 
57 L .E d .2 d  750 (1978) the  U n ite d  S ta te s  Supreme C ourt is s u e d  
a d iv id e d  o p in io n  on th e  s u b je c t  o f  " a f f i r m a t i v e  a c t io n " .  
W h ile  no f i v e  j u s t i c e s  c o u ld  agree on a s in g le  o p in io n ,  the 
o p in io n  o f  the C o u rt le n d s  some g u id an ce  to  f u t u r e  tre a tm e n t 
o f  a f f i r m a t i v e  a c t io n  program s.

Bakke, a w h ite  m ale, was d e n ie d  a d m is s io n  to  a m e d ic a l 
sc h o o l run by th e  s t a t e  and he c h a l le n g e d  the s t a t e ' s  adm is­
s io n  procedures as v i o l a t i v e  o f  th e  E q u al P r o t e c t io n  c la u s e  
o f  the F o u rte e n th  Amendment to  th e  U n ite d  S ta te s  C o n s t i t u ­
t i o n .  The sc h o o l accepted a q u o ta  o f  a c e r t a in  percenta g e 
o f  m i n o r i t y  s tu d e n ts .  Bakke c la im e d  t h a t  t h i s  c o n s t i t u t e d  
u n f a i r  r a c i a l  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n  i n  v i o l a t i o n  o f  th e  f e d e r a l  
c o n s t i t u t i o n .  The C ourt r u le d  t h a t  r a c i a l  and e t h n ic  d i s ­
t i n c t i o n s  are s u b je c t  to  s t r i c t  s c r u t i n y ,  b u t a p r e f e r e n t i a l  
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  u s in g  race as a f a c t o r  w ould n o t  be u n c o n s t i ­
t u t i o n a l .  However, a p r e f e r e n t i a l  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  e s t a b l i s h ­
in g  a r a c i a l  quota w ould be u n c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  u n le s s  i t  i s
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p r e c i s e l y  t a i l o r e d  to  se rve  a c o m p e ll in g  g o ve rn m e n ta l i n t e r ­
e s t .  M oreover, th e  burden i s  on the  s t a t e  to p ro v e  t h a t  the 
qu o ta  meets t h i s  c r i t e r i o n .

Under t h i s  t e s t ,  the C o u rt s tr u c k  down the s c h o o l 's  adm is­
s io n  procedure s a y in g  t h a t  th e  s t a t e  had f a i l e d  t o  e s t a b l i s h  
a c o m p e ll in g  i n t e r e s t  on w hich  to  j u s t i f y  the r a c i a l  q u o ta . 
I n  d o in g  so, th e  C o u rt r e je c t e d  s e v e r a l  o f  the s t a t e ' s  j u s ­
t i f i c a t i o n s  f o r  th e  program. S p e c i f i c a l l y ,  the m e d ic a l  
s c h o o l 's  r a c i a l  q u o ta  c o u ld  n o t  be j u s t i f i e d :  (1 )  s o l e l y  to  
in s u r e  t h a t  the s c h o o l c o n ta in e d  a c e r t a in  p e rc e n ta g e  o f  
r a c i a l  m i n o r i t i e s ;  (2 )  to  in c r e a s e  the number o f  p h y s ic ia n s  
p r a c t i c i n g  i n  u n d e rs e rv e d  a re a s ,  s in c e  the  s t a t e  c o u l d n ' t  
prove t h a t  the program was l i k e l y  to  have t h a t  r e s u l t ;  o r
(3 )  to  counter th e  e f f e c t s  o f  " s o c i a l  d is c r i m i n a t i o n "  
g e n e r a l ly .  The o n ly  j u s t i f i c a t i o n  f o r  such an a f f i r m a t i v e  
a c t io n  program w ould  be to  c o u n te r  the  e f f e c t s  o f  s p e c i f i c  
i d e n t i f i e d  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n , the  C o u rt s a id .

I n  a more re c e n t case, F u l l i l o v e  v .  K l u t z n i c k , 448 U .S . 448, 
65 L .E D .2 d  902 ( 1 9 8 0 ) ,  th e  U n ite d  S ta te s  Supreme C o u rt  u p ­
h e ld  a r a c i a l  q u o ta  i n  the  F e d e r a l  P u b l ic  Works Employment 
A ct o f  1977. The " m i n o r i t y  b u s in e s s  e n t e r p r is e "  p r o v i s i o n  
o f  the Act r e q u ir e d  a minimum o f  10 p e rc e nt o f  f e d e r a l  funds 
g ra n te d  f o r  l o c a l  p u b l ic  works p r o je c t s  to  be used to  con­
t r a c t  w i t h  b u s in e s s e s  owned by " m i n o r i t y  group members." As 
i n  Bakke, no f i v e  members o f  th e  C ourt i n  F u l l i l o v e  c o u ld  
agree on a s in g le  o p in io n .  But the  o p in io n  o f  th e  C ourt 
s t a te d  t h a t  Congress c o u ld  use a r a c i a l  quota to  a v o id  p e r ­
p e t u a t io n  o f  the e f f e c t s  o f  p r i o r  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .  The d e c i ­
s io n  in d ic a t e s  t h a t  the  c o u r t  i s  le a n in g  toward a p p r o v a l o f  
a f f i r m a t i v e  a c t io n  programs aimed a t  r e l i e v i n g  th e  e f f e c t s  
o f  p a s t  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .

There are two p r o v is io n s  i n  th e  te a c h e r  s c h o la r s h ip  lo a n  
program which r a i s e  th e  " a f f i r m a t i v e  a c t io n "  p ro b le m . AS 
1 4 .4 3 .6 3 0 ,  added by s e c t io n  1 o f  th e  b i l l ,  p r o v id e s  t h a t  the 
funds a v a i l a b l e  f o r  th e  lo a n s  s h a l l  be d i s t r i b u t e d  to  the 
l o c a l  school boards by " g i v i n g  a p re fe re n c e  to  s c h o o l d i s ­
t r i c t s  w i t h  a h ig h  p e rc entag e  o f  N a t iv e  s tu d e n ts  and a low 
p ercentage o f  N a t iv e  te a c h e r s .

AS 1 4 .4 3 . 6 5 0 ( b ) ,  a ls o  added by th e  b i l l ,  r e q u ir e s  the  l o c a l  
s c h o o l boards to  award te a c h e r  s c h o la r s h ip  loans " g i v i n g  a 
p re fe re n c e  to  N a t iv e  s tu d e n ts  t h a t  meet the q u a l i f i c a t i o n s  
f o r  a lo a n . "  S in c e  b o th  o f  these  p r o v is io n s  m e re ly  g iv e  a 
p re fe re n c e  to  N a t iv e  s tu d e n t s ,  r a t h e r  than e s t a b l i s h i n g  a
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q u o ta ,  they  s ta n d  a good chance o f  s u r v iv in g  a c o n s t i t u t i o n ­
a l  a t t a c k  under th e  Bakke d e c is io n .

However, even th e  N a t iv e  p re fe re n c e  p r o v is io n s  w i l l  be g iv e n  
s t r i c t  s c r u t in y  by th e  C ourt i f  c h a lle n g e d .  To w it h s t a n d  
th e  c h a l le n g e ,  th e  l e g i s l a t u r e  w i l l  have the burden o f  show­
in g  t h a t  the p r o v is io n s  are  aimed a t  a c o m p e ll in g  s t a t e  
i n t e r e s t ,  e . g . ,  rem edying p a s t  r a c i a l  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .  The 
s t a t e  would a ls o  have to  prove t h a t  th e  p r o v is io n s  are p r e ­
c i s e l y  t a i l o r e d  to  do t h i s .

Under the  a p p a re n t r a t i o n a l e  o f  th e  Bakke d e c is io n ,  th e  
l e g i s l a t u r e  w ould  have to  show t h a t  the N a t iv e  p re fe r e n c e  i s  
aimed a t  r e l i e v i n g  a c t u a l  p a s t  d is c r im in a t io n  i n  th e  h i r i n g  
o f  N a t iv e  te a c h e rs  and t h a t  i t  w ould a c t u a l l y  have the e f ­
f e c t  o f  r e l i e v i n g  th e  r e s u l t s  o f  t h a t  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .  M ore­
o v e r ,  the c o u rt  w ould  p ro b a b ly  n o t  accept the l e g i s l a t u r e ' s  
mere c la im s o f  p a s t  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n ;  the  s t a te  w ould  have to 
show evidence o f  such d i s c r i m i n a t i o n .  Assuming t h a t  th e  
s t a t e  can make t h i s  showing, however, th e  te a c h er s c h o la r ­
s h ip  lo a n  program would p ro b a b ly  s u r v iv e  j u d i c i a l  s c r u t i n y .

I f  th e  l e g i s l a t u r e  w ishes to  c irc u m v e n t the p o t e n t i a l  con­
s t i t u t i o n a l  problem s a l t o g e t h e r ,  I  would recommend rem oving 
the  N a t iv e  p re fe re n c e  and s u b s t i t u t i n g  a p re fe re n c e  f o r  r u ­
r a l  a re a s , or so m e thing  to  t h a t  e f f e c t .  Removing the r a c i a l  
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  w ould  have the e f f e c t  o f  changing the  t e s t  
the  C o u rt would use i f  the p r o v is io n s  were c h a lle n g e d .  I f  
the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  were r u r a l  r a t h e r  than r a c i a l ,  the C o u rt 
w ould o n ly  r e q u ir e  t h a t  the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  have a " r a t i o n a l  
b a s i s " ,  r a th e r  th a n  a " c o m p e ll in g  s t a t e  i n t e r e s t " ,  r e q u ir e d  
under th e  s t r i c t  s c r u t in y  t e s t .  The r a t i o n a l  b a s is  t e s t  
r e q u ir e s  o n ly  t h a t  the  s t a t e  show t h a t  the l e g i s l a t i o n  :* s 
r a t i o n a l l y  r e la t e d  to  some l e g i t i m a t e  end. I t  i s  a v e r y  
easy burden f o r  th e  s t a t e  to  meet, as opposed to  th e  compel­
l i n g  i n t e r e s t  s ta n d a rd  w hich i s  v e r y  d i f f i c u l t  to  s a t i s f y .

I n  c o n c lu s io n ,  CSHB 504 (HESS) p re s e n ts  some s i g n i f i c a n t  
c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  p ro b le m s, w hich may o r  may n o t s u r v iv e  a 
l e g a l  c h a lle n g e .  To remove the c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  is s u e s  a l ­
t o g e t h e r ,  the l e g i s l a t u r e  c o u ld  use some c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  
o th e r  than the p r e s e n t  p re fe re n c e  f o r  N a t iv e s ,  such as a 
r u r a l  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n .

K B L:o jb  
J 4 /0 0 2



Introduced: 1/10/84

Referred: Health, Education & Social

Services, House Special Committee on 

State Loans and Finance

BY HAYES, HURLBERT, ADAMS, AB00D,

BARNES, BUSSELL, CATO, COWDERY, DAVIS, 

FULLER, FURNACE, GRUSSENDORF, HERRMANN 

KOPONEN, LINDAUER, LISKA, MALONE,

MARTIN, M.W.MILLER, RINGSTAD, SHULTZ, 

SZYMANSKI, UEHLING, WARD, ZHAROFF,
1 IN THE HOUSE FRITZ, BETTiSWORTH AND MCBRIDE

2 HOUSE BILL NO. 504

3 IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA

4 THIRTEENTH LEGISLATURE - SECOND SESSION

5 A BILL

6 For an Act entitled: "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship loan

7 program."

8 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

9 * Section 1. AS 14.43 is amended by adding new sections to read:

10 ARTICLE 7. TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP LOAN PROGRAM.

11 Sec. 14.43.600. FINDINGS AND INTENT. (a) The legislature finds

12 that there is a wide and unacceptable disparity between the [ethnic]
^ATii/P A)A7vF

13 distribution of teachers and the— eth n iro diot-yibuhxon— •«-£— students in

14 the state public schools. Particularly in rural areas, many schools

15 have virtually no Native teachers and no non-Native students. The

16 undesirable effects of this disparity include the following:

17 (1) there is a serious weakness in the ability of teaching

18 staffs, particularly in rural schools, to foster a sense of ethnic

yjKrive
19 traditions and cultures in theAstudents;

20 (2) many rural students are forced to exist in two entirely

21 separaie situations: the essentially traditional atmosphere of many

22 Native homes, and the essentially modern atmosphere of the classroom;

23 (3) almost no students among the state's ethnic minorities

24 return to rural schools to teach, continuing the ethnic imbalance and

25 exacerbating its effects; and

26 (4) there is an annual turnover of 40 percent among teach-

27 ers in rural educational attendance areas in the state.

28 (b) The legislature further finds that existing proorams have

29 failed to increase the proportion of members of ethnic minorities
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1 teaching in rural schools. Therefore, it is the intent of the legis-

2 lature to establish the teacher scholarship loan program to encourage

3 members of ethnic minorities to return to rural schools as teachers

4 and relieve the conditions described in this section.

5 Sec. 14.43.610. PROGRAM ESTABLISHED. There is established the

6 teacher scholarship loan program to provide an incentive for graduates

7 of Alaska high schools who are from ethnic minorities to pursue teach-

P ing careers in Alaska schools.

9 Sec. 14.43.620. TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP REVOLVING LOAN FUND. There

10 is created a teacher scholarship revolving loan fund. The fund shall

11 be used to make scholarship loans to students selected under AS 14.-

12 43.600 - 14.43.650. All repayments of principal and interest on

13 teacher scholarship loans shall I? paid into the teacher scholarship

14 revolving fund and shall be used to make new teacher scholarship

15 loans. If estimated funds available from teacher scholarship loan

16 repayments are inadequate to fully fund estimated teacher scholarship

17 loans for any fiscal year, additional funding from the general fund

18 may be requested and appropriated for that year.

19 Sec. 14.43.630. ADMINISTRATION. The teacler scholarship loan

20 program shall be administered by the student financial aid committee

21 (AS 14.43.095) in accordance with regulations adopted by the

22 committee. The committee shall distribute the funds available for

23 teacher scholarship loans annually to local school boatus giving a

24 preference to school districts with a high percentage of students in

25 ethnic minorities and a low percentage of teachers in ethnic

26 minorities. The local school boards shall select the recipients of

27 the teacher scholarship loans.

28 Sec. 14.43.640. CONDITIONS OF LOANS. Each --m c ^I district shall

29 award teacher scholarship loans subject to the following conditions:



1 (1) the conditions provided in AS 14.43.120 apply except

2 that no loans may be made to graduate students and the state shall

3 repay a portion of a teacher scholarship loan under AS 14.43.120(j)

4 only if, in addition to the other criteria, the borrower is also

5 employed as a public school teacher in the state during the period for

6 which the loan is forgiven;

7 (2) if a borrower meets the conditions provided in para-

8 graph (1) of this section and is employed as a public school teacher

9 in the district from which the borrower graduated, the portion of the

10 loan that shall be paid by the state is the following percentages of

11 the total loan received plus interest up to a total of 100 percent of

12 the total loan:

13 (A) one year employment, 15 percent;

14 (B) two years employment, an additional 15 percent;

15 (C) three years employment, an additional 15 percent;

16 (D) four years employment, an additional 25 percent;

17 (E) over four years employment, an additional 30 per-

18 cent; and

19 (3) a loan may not exceed $10,000 in a school year.

20 Sec. 14.43.650. SELECTION CRITERIA. (a) To be eligible for a

21 teacher scholarship loan, a student must

22 (1) be a graduate of, or scheduled for graduation within

23 six months from, a state public high school, with sufficient credits

24 to be admitted to an accredited college or university;

25 (2) be enrolled in or show evidence of intent to enroll in

26 a degree program directed at a teaching career at the elementary or

27 secondary school level; and

28 (3) meet the conditions set by the student's local school

29 district with respect to the district's requirements for teachers in



1 particular subject areas.

2 (b) Each school district shall award teacher scholarship loans

3 in direct pr op ort ion to the di st rib uti on of ethnic groups among the

4 students eligible for graduation from the school district each year.

5 (c) A student may not be awarded a scholarship loan under

6 AS 14.43.090 - 14.43.160 and a teacher scholarship loan under AS 14.-

7 43.600 - 14.43.650 for the same school year. ^
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O r i g i n a l  sp o n sors: Hayes, H u r lb e r t ,
Adams, e t  a l

BY THE HEALTH, EDUCATION AND
IN  THE HOUSE SOCIAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

CS FOR HOUSE B ILL NO. 504 (HESS)

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 

THIRTEENTH LEGISLATURE -  SECOND SESSION

A B ILL

F o r an Act e n t i t l e d :  "An Act e s t a b l i s h i n g  th e  te a c h e r  s c h o la r s h ip  lo a n

p ro g ra m ."

BE I T  ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

*  S e c t io n  1. AS 14. 43 i s  amended by a d d in g  new s e c t io n s  to  re a d :

ARTICLE 7. TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP LOAN PROGRAM.

Sec. 1 4 . 4 3 . 6 0 0 .  FINDINGS AND INTENT. (a )  The l e g i s l a t u r e  f i n d s
#

t h a t  th e re  i s  a w ide and u n a c c e p ta b le  d i s p a r i t y  between th e  d i s t r i b u ­

t i o n  o f  N a t iv e  te a c h e rs  and N a t iv e  s tu d e n ts  i n  e le m e n ta ry  and second­

a ry  s c h o o ls  i n  th e  s t a t e .  P a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  r u r a l  a re a s , many s c h o o ls  

have v i r t u a l l y  no N a t iv e  te a c h e rs  and no n o n -N a t iv e  s t u d e n t s .  The 

u n d e s ir a b le  e f f e c t s  o f  t h i s  d i s p a r i t y  in c lu d e  th e  f o l l o w i n g :

(1 )  th e r e  i s  a s e r io u s  weakness i n  th e  a b i l i t y  o f  te a c h in g  

s t a f f s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  r u r a l  s c h o o ls ,  to  f o s t e r  a sense o f  N a t iv e

t r a d i t i o n s  and c u l t u r e s  i n  th e  N a t iv e  s tu d e n t s ;

(2 )  many r u r a l  s tu d e n ts  are fo r c e d  to  e x i s t  i n  two e n t i r e l y  

separate  s i t u a t i o n s :  th e  e s s e n t i a l l y  t r a d i t i o n a l  atm osphere o f  many 

N a t iv e  homes, and th e  e s s e n t i a l l y  modern atmosphere o f  th e  c la s s ro o m ;

(3 )  a lm o s t no N a t iv e  s tu d e n ts  r e t u r n  to  r u r a l  s c h o o ls  to 

te a c h , c o n t in u in g  the  im balance and e x a c e r b a t in g  i t s  e f f e c t s ;  and

( 4)  th e r e  i s  an a n n u a l tu r n o v e r  o f  40 p e rc e n t  among t e a c h ­

ers  i n  r u r a l  e d u c a t io n a l  a tte n d a n c e  a reas i n  th e  s t a t e .

(b)  The l e g i s l a t u r e  f u r t h e r  f i n d s  t h a t  e x i s t i n g  programs have 

f a i l e d  to  in c r e a s e  th e  p r o p o r t io n  o f  N a t iv e s  te a c h in g  i n  r u r a l

s c h o o ls .  T h e r e fo r e ,  i t  i s  th e  i n t e n t  o f  the l e g i s l a t u r e  to  e s t a b l i s h

- 1 -  CSHB 5 0 4 (HESS)



t h e  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n  p r o g r a m  t o  e n c o u r a g e  N a t i v e ^  t o  r e t u r n  t o  

r u r a l  s c h o o l s  a s  t e a c h e r s  a n d  r e l i e v e  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  d e s c r i b e d  i n  t h i s  

s e c t i o n .

Sec. 14.43.610. P R O G R A M  ESTABLISHED. There is e s t a b l i s h e d  the 

teacher s ch olarship loan p r o g r a m  to p r ovide  an incentive for Native 

hi g h  school gra duates to p u r s u e  teach i n g  careers in e l e m e n t a r y  and 

secondary schools in the state.

Sec. 14.43.620. T E A C H E R  S C H O L A R S H I P  R E V O L V I N G  L O A N  FUND. There

is created a teacher schola r s h i p  r e v o l v i n g  loan fund. The fund shall

be used to make s c h o l a r s h i p  loans to students s e l e cted under  AS 14.-

43.600 - 14.43.700. All repaym e n t s  of pri ncipal and interest on
0

t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n s  s h a l l  b e  p a i d  i n t o  t h e  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  

r e v o l v i n g  l o a n  f u n d  a n d  s h a l l  b e  u s e d  t o  m a k e  n e w  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  

l o a n s .  I f  e s t i m a t e d  f u n d s  a v a i l a b l e  f r o m  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n

r e p a y m e n t s  a r e  i n a d e q u a t e  t o  f u l l y  f u n d  e s t i m a t e d  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  

l o a n s  f o r  a n y  f i s c a l  y e a r ,  a d d i t i o n a l  f u n d i n g  f r o m  t h e  g e n e r a l  f u n d  

m a y  b e  r e q u e s t e d  a n d  a p p r o p r i a t e d  f o r  t h a t  y e a r .

Sec. 14.43.630. A D M I N I S TRATION. The teacher sch ola r s h i p  loan

p r o g r a m  shall be a d m i n i s t e r e d  by the student f inancial aid c o m m i t t e e  

(AS 14.43.095) in a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  regula t i o n s  a d o p t e d  by the c o m m i t­

tee. The committ ee shall all oc a t e  the loan awards av l i a b l e  for 

teacher s cho larship loans a n n u a l l y  to local school boards g i v i n g  a

p r e f e r e n c e  to school distric ts w i t h  a h i g h  p e r c e n t a g e  of N ative stu-
totr puri>ii>cs o T  TIm jL

dents aftd a ,low p e r c e n t a g e  of N ative teachers. The Ideal S c h o o l

g  m  i l i f ?  i a j  i~ H \  o  P  K A . t i w  r h / u j t e ^ r
b o a r d s  s h a l l  s e l e c t  t h e  f e c l p i e n t s v o f  t h e  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  l o a n s .

Sec. 14.43.640. CONDIT I O N S  OF LOANS. (a) The conditions p r o­

vid e d  in AS 14.43.120 app ly to t e acher s cholar ship loans except that

no loans m a y  be m a d e  to g r a d u a t e  students.

(b) If a b o r r o w e r  m e e t s  the co nditions p r o v i d e d  in (a) of this 
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section and is emplo y e d  as a teacher in a s-cbe-gi d e s i g n a t e d  by the 

student financial aid c o m m itt ee as h a v i n g  a high percent age of Native 

students, n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g  AS 1 4 . 4 3 .120(j ), the p o r t i o n  of the loan 

that shall be paid by the state is the following p ercentages of the

total loan r e c eived plus interest up to a total of 100 percent of the

total loan:

(1) one year employment, 15 pei'cent;

(2) two years employment, an additional 15 percent;

(3) three years employment, an additional 15 percent;

(4) four years employment, an addition al 25 percent;

(5) over four years emnloyment, an additional 30 percent.
s

(c) A  loan may not exceed  $10,000 in a school year.

Sec. 14.43.650. S E L E C T I O N  CRITERIA. (a) To be eli gible for a

teacher scholarship loan, a student must

(1) be a graduate of, or sche duled for g r a d u a t i o n  w i t h i n  

six months from, a high school in the state, w i t h  sufficient credits 

to be admit t e d  to an a c c r e d i t e d  college or university;

(2) be en rol l e d  in or show e v i dence of intent to e nro ll in

a degree p r o g r a m  d i r ected at a teaching career at the e l e m e n t a r y  or

secondary school level; and

(3) meet the conditions set by the student's local school 

district w i t h  respect to the district's requ irements for teachers in

partic u l a r  subject areas. . -

(b) Each school district shall a ward teacher scholarsh ip loans 

giving a p refer ence to N a t i v e  students that meet the q u a l i f i c a t i o n s  

for a loan.

(c) A  student n a y  not be a w arded  a scholarship loan u n d e r  

AS 14.43.090 - 14.43.160 and a teachei scholarship loan u n d e r  AS 14.-

43.600 - 14.43.700 for the same school year.
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Sec. 14.43.700. DEFINITION. In AS 14.A3.600 - 14.43.700,

"Native" m e a n s  any p e r s o n  w h o  is a descendant of a m e m b e r  of the 

aboriginal races inhabitin g the state w h e n  annexed to the Hnited 

States, or who is a descen d a n t  of an Indian or Eskimo who, since the 

year 1867 and pri or to June 30, 1952, m i g r a t e d  into the state from

Canada, and who is a descendant  h aving at least o n e - q u a r t e r  bl ood 

derived  from those ancestors.

CSHB 5 0 4 (HESS) -4-
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INTRODUCTION

Historically, large numbers of Alaska's high school seniors have looked 

"outside" for pursuit of postsecondary education. In an effort to docu­

ment this pattern and to try to understand the underlying motivations, 

this annual survey of Alaska's seniors has developed. The first survey 

report was published for the 1977-78 academic year; this report repre­

sents sixth in the series.

During the fall of the 1982-83 school year, Alaska high school seniors 

were asked their opinions of their overall high school experience, their 

need for additional assistance in selected academic and career planning 

areas, and general demographic information, as well as what they planned 

to do after high school graduation. Survey results can be used for 

administrative and academic planning within the state and for improving 

student counseling and advisement.
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METHODOLOGY

A wr’^en questionnaire, consisting of eighteen questions, was sent to 

all 215 Alaska publi- and private schools identified as having a twelfth 

grade.

For 1982-83, it was estimated that there were 5,830 students enrolled in 

the twelfth grade in Alaska. Of these 5,830 seniors, 3,505, or 60 per­

cent, responded to this survey. Slightly more than a third (1,306, or 37 

percent) were seniors enrolled in Anchorage area schools. Students from 

Fairbanks accounted for 6 percent, Juneau for 3 percent, and the remain­

der of the students in the state accounted for 54 percent.

Four general groupings of questions were included in the questionnaire. 

These were:

1 . those describing demographic characteristics of the student

(sex, race, primary home language, income, etc.);

2 . those describing the high school experiences of tne student

(evaluation of school experiences, and identification of 

possible areas of weakness);

3 . those describing the postsecondary plans of the respondent

(occupational choices, choice of college, post-high school 

plans, etc.); and

4. those describing the more detailed plans of that group of

respondents planning to pursue some type of postsecondary 

education.
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RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

A. Demographic Data

The demographic data indicate that the students who responded are a 

highly representative sample of the general senior population. This 

conclusion is based upon previous senior surveys and current year esti­

mates and projections. Approximately half the respondents were male (52 

percent) and half were female (48 percent); 67 percent were Caucasian, 22 

percent were Alaska Native, 3 percent were Black, and small percentages 

were Oriental, Hispanic, or other; 72 percent indicated annual family 

incomes of $15,000 or more; 56 percent indicated annual family incomes of 

$25,000 or more; and 93 percent were from homes where English is the 

primary language spoken. (Details of these results are presented in 

Appendix B, Tables 22 to 30).

B. High School Experience

Ranking of High School Experiences. Respondents were reguested to evalu­

ate various aspects of their high school experiences usiny the following 

descriptors: outstanding, average, poor, or not provided. Those charac­

teristics rer'.xving the highest number of "outstanding" responses were: 

Counseling and Guidance Services, Athletic and Recreational Facilities, 

Library and Learning Center Facilities, and Vocational Training, as 

indicated in Table 1. This response is very similar to the responses of 

recent years. Also consistent with responses from past years were those 

characteristics receiving the least number of "outstanding" responses.
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They were Grades, Marks, or Promotion Policy, Sc joI Rules and

Discipline, and Variety of Courses. It is interesting to note that 

Laboratory Facilities was separated out for the first time this year and 

it received the lowest number of "outstanding" responses.

TABLE 1

DISTRIBUTION OF "OUTSTANDING" RESPONSES 
FOR HIGH SCHOOL CHARACTERISTICS ‘

CHARACTERISTICS

"OUTSTANDING" RESPONSES

Number Percent

Counseling and Guidance Services 1 , 2 1 2 34.6

Athletic & Recreation Facilities 1,206 34.4

Library, Learning Center Facilities 1 , 0 0 1 28.6

Vocational Training 981 28.0

Quality of Instruction 830 23.7

Special Help for Students 794 22.7

Variety of Courses 744 2 1 . 2
School Rules, Regulations, &

Discipline 683 19.5

Grades, Marks, Promotion Policy 329 15.1

Laboratory Facilities 436 12.4

Overall High School Experience 1,066 30.4

Table 2 presents the "poor" responses to the high school characteris­

tics. As was true for the past two years, Quality of Instruction, 

Vocational Training, and Grades, Marks, or Promotion Policy received the 

fewest "poor" ratings. School Rules, Regulations, and Discipline, 

Laboratory Facilities, Counseling and Guidance Services, and Athletic jnd 

Recreation Facilities received the highest number of "poor" ratings.
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TABLE 2
DISTRIBUTION OF "POOR" RESPONSES 

FOR HIGH SCHOOL CHARACTERISTICS

"POOR" RESPONSES

CHARACTERISTICS Number Percent

School Rules, Regulations, & 
Discipline 849 24.2

Laboratory Facilities 809 23.1

Counseling and Guidance Services 3U1 14.3
Athletic & Recreation Facilities 475 13.6

Library, Learning Center Facilities 473 13.5

Variety of Courses 466 13.3

Special Help for Students 446 12.7

Grades, Marks, Promotion Policy 286 8 .2
Vocational Training 285 8 . 1
Quality of Instruction 228 6.5

Overall High School Experience 344 9.8

Although 83.4 percent of the seniors rated their overall high school 

experiences as "average" or "outstanding", this represents a decrease 

from last year when nearly 90 percent of the seniors did so. While it is 

encouraging that a substantial number of seniors indicated general satis­

faction with their high school experiences, the Commission will pay 

special attention to this response in subsequent surveys to see if the 

downward trend continues. A more complete listing of responses to high 

school experiences and characteristics may be found in Table 27 of 

Appendix B.

A comparison of Tables 1 and 2 shows that Counseling and Guidance 

Services again evoked strong responses from the seniors. It ranked 

highest in "outstanding" ratings and third highest in "poor" ratings. 

Even so, 80 percent of the seniors rated Counseling and Guidance Services 

as "average" or "outstanding". It is also apparent that Laboratory 

Facilities evoked strong negative responses; it ranked lowest in 

"outstanding" ratings and second highest in "poor" ratings.
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Further analysis of seniors' evaluation of their high school experiences 

was conducted by comparing the assessment of respondents from small and 

large schools. Small schools were identified as schools with 200 

students or fewer; large schools had more than 200 students. Table 3 

shows the percentages of "outstanding" responses for small and large 

schools. In almost every case, seniors from large schools had greater 

percentages than those from small schools. In particular, there were 

considerable differences in the categories of Library, Learning Center 

Facilities and Variety of Courses.

TABLE 3
PERCENTAGES OF "OUTSTANDING" RESPONSES FOR 

HIGH SCHOOL CHARACTERISTICS FOR LARGE AND SMALL SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE OF "OUTSTANDING"
RESPONSES

CHARACTERISTICS Large School Small School

Counseling and Guidance Services 37.7 23.9
Athletic & Recreation Facilities 36.9 28.5
Vocational Training 28.6 24.5
Library, Learning Center Facilities 33.4 1 2 . 8
Special Help for Students 23.8 18.7
Quality of Instruction 23.9 20.6
Variety of Courses 24.7 9.1
School Rules, Regulations, &
Discipline 18.6 22.6
Grades, Marks, Promotion Policy 14.8 14.8
Laboratory Facilities 13.6 9.1
Overall High School Experience 32.2 25.8



Areas of Improvement. Seniors were asked if they felt a need for addi­

tional assistance in the four areas of writing, reading, mathematics, and 

career planning. Table A shows that over half of the seniors felt a need 

for more assistance in mathematics and career planning and approximately 

AO percent indicated a need for assistance in the areas of writing and 

reading. It should be noted that, in relation to last year's responses, 

a higher percentage of seniors expressed a need for additional assistance 

in all four areas. In writing, the percentages increased over 5 points 

from 3A.6 percent to 39.8 percent, and in math the percentage change was 

from A6.8 to 50.9.

TABLE A
SENIOR EXPRESSED NEED FOR FURTHER 

ASSISTANCE IN SELECTED AREAS

NEEDED NOT NEEDED

TYPE UF ASSISTANCE No. % No. % TOTAL

Expressing ideas in writing 
Improving reading skills 

Improving math skills 

Deciding on Career/Education

1,362 
1, AA3 

1,755 
1,738

39.8 
A2.1

50.9 

50.6

" J58 
•01 
691 

700

60.2
57.9
49.1

A9.A

3, A20 
3, A2A 

3, AA6 
3,A36
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Those seniors planning to atteno a postsecondary educational institution 

(technical, business, two- or four-year college) after high school 

indicated less of a need for assistance in all areas than did those 

planning to work full-time or those who were undecideo about post­

graduation plans. These data are presented in Table 5 and also reflect 

the opinion that the greatest need for those seniors planning to work was 

for additional assistance in career planning. Moreover, there was a 

substantial percentage increase of those seniors planning to work and 

needing assistance when compared to last year's survey. In particular, 

the percentage of seniors planning to work and needing assistance in 

writing increased from 37.4 to 46.7. For those seniors planning school­

ing beyond high school, the greatest need areas were for improved rnath 

skills and additional assistance in career and/or educational planning.

TABLE 5
SENIOR EXPRESSED NEED FOR FURTHER ASSISTANCE IN SELECTED 

AREAS BY INDICATED POST-HIGH SCHOOL PLANS

POST-HIGH SCHOOL PLAN: FURTHER SCHOOLING

TYPE OF ASSISTANCE
NEEUED NUT NEEDED

TOTALNo. % No. %
Expressing ideas in writing 757 35.8 1,357 64.2 2,114
Improving reading skills 817 38.6 1,300 61.4 2,117

Improving math skills 1,049 49.3 1,080 50.7 2,129

Deciding on Career/Education 1,006 47.4 1,117 52.6 2,123

POST-HIGH SCHOOL PLAN: FULL-TIME JOB OR DON'T KNOW
NEEDED NOT NEEDED

TYPE OF ASSISTANCE No. % No. % TOTAL

Expressing ideas in writing 515 46.7 587 53.3 1 , 1 0 2
Improving reading skills 534 48.4 569 51.6 1,103

Improving math skills 595 53.6 516 46.4 1 , 1 1 1
Deciding on Career/Education 628 56.7 480 43.3 1,108
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As c student's yearly household income increased, the need for assistance 

in all areas decreased. More than half af those seniors whose annual 

yearly household income was less than $25,000 indicated that they needed 

assistance in improving math skills and deciding on career or continuing 

education. There is little difference between the students whose yearly 

household income was between $25,000 and $40,000 and those students who 

came from a household whose income was over $40,000. These data are 

presented in Table 6. It should be noted, however, that the need for 

help in imp roving math skills and deciding on future career or educa­

tional plans is evident for a significant percentage of students, irre­

spective of family income.

TABLE 6
SENIOR EXPRESSED NEED FOR FURTHER ASSISTANCE 

IN SELECTED AREAS BY HOUSEHOLD INCOME

EXPRESSED NEED FOR ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD INCOME
ASSISTANCE IN: UNDER $25,000 $25,000 TO $40,000 OVER $40,000

No. % No. % No. %

Expressing ideas in writing 535 45.3 294 36.5 388 33.2
Improving reading skills 566 48.0 317 39.4 416 35.6
Improving math skills 677 57.4 380 47.2 516 44.1
Deciding on Career/Education 658 55.8 383 47.6 537 45.9

More detail on need for assistance by varied levels of annual household 

income is presented in Appendix B, Table 28.
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C. Postsecondary Plans

A number uf questions regarding postsecondary plans were posed for the 

seniors, and based upon the responses, the seniors were divided into two 

groups, those planning educational pursuits and those not. Those plan­

ning some form of education were then asked to respond to additional 

questions which will be discussed later in this report.

The responses to the question concerning the post-high school plans of 

seniors are contained in Table 7. The percentage of those planning to 

continue with some form of postsecondary education has increased steadily 

the past several years, from 56.5 in 1980 to 61.6 this year.

The number of seniors not planning any postsecondary education was 1,348, 

or 38.4 percent of the total respondents. However, it should be noted 

that this number includes 377 students who did not know what they were 

going to do, so the number of students actually involved in postsecondary 

education could increase.

TABLE 7 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY 

MOST LIKELY ACTIVITY AFTER HIGH SCHOOL

ACTIVITY NUMBER PERCENT

Attend a 4-vear College 1,400 40.0

Attend a 2-Year College 408 1 1 . 6
Attend a Vocational-Technical School 349 1 0 . 0
Enter Into Apprentice Training 103 2.9

Become a Full-Time Homemaker 33 0.9

Join the Military 140 4.0

Get a Full-Time Job 480 13.7

Don't Know Yet 377 1 0 . 8
Other 215 6 . 1

Total 3,505 1 0 0 .0
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D. Similarities and Differences Between Those Seniors Planning 

Postsecondary Education and Those Who Are Not 

Sex. In examining the plans of the seniors and differentiating by sex, 

as presented in Table 8, one can see that certain activities are more 

likely for one sex than the other. For instance, 65.2 percent of female 

seniors intend to enroll in some form of postsecondary education, while

58.3 percent of male seniors have the same intention. A larger differ­

ence can be seen when focusing upon two- or four-year postsecondary 

institutions. 57.8 percent of female seniors intend to enroll in either 

a two-year or four-year college, while only 46.0 percent of the male 

seniors express the same desire.

TABLE 8
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY MOST LIKELY 

ACTIVITY AFTER HIGH SCHOOL AND BY SEX OF RESPONDENT

MALE FEMALE
ACTIVITY No. No. T

Attend a 4-Year College 656 35.7 732 44.6
Attend a 2-Year College 190 10.3 216 13.2
Attend a Vocational-Technical School 225 12.3 122 7.4

Subtotal 1,071 58.3 1,070 65.2

Enter Into Apprentice Training 72 3.9 30 1 . 8
Become a Full-Time Homemaker 8 0.4 25 1.5
Join the Military 116 6.3 24 1.5
Get a Full-Time Job 252 13.8 224 13.6
Don't Know Yet 210 11.5 164 1 0 . 0
Other 107 5.8 105 6.4

Subtotal 765 41.7 572 34.8

Total 1,836 100 .0 1,642 100 .0
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Race. The race of the senior respondents was a significant factor in 

determining postsecondary plans. As illustrated in Table 9, almost 49 

pe. ant of Alaska Natives intend to pursue some type of postsecondary 

education, while 60 percent ana 66 percent of black and Caucasian 

seniors, respectively, indicated the same desire. A slightly different 

picture emerges when this year's seniors are compared to last year's. 

The percentage of Alaska Natives intending to pursue some type of post- 

secondary education increased from 42 to 49 percent. On the other hand, 

the percentage of Black seniors with that intent decreased significantly, 

from 73 to 60 percent. Native seniors, however, continue to have a much 

higher percentage of undecided responses than any other group, and they 

also had a higher percentage of those planning to enter into apprentice 

training.

TABLE 9
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY MOST LIKELY 

ACTIVITY AFTER HIGH SCHOOL AND BY RACE OF RESPONDENT

ALASKA NATIVE BLACK CAUCASIAN ALL OTHERS
ACTIVITY No. % No. % No. % No. %

Attend a 4-Year College 188 24.0 40 38.1 1,070 45.6 102 38.1
Attend a 2-Year College 90 11.4 16 15.2 269 11.5 33 12.3
Attend a Vocational-
Technical School 105 13.3 7 6.7 209 8.9 28 10.4

Subtotal 383 48.7 63 60.0 1,548 66.0 163 60.8

Enter Into Apprentice
Training 35 4.4 2 1.9 56 2.4 10 3.7

Become a Full-Time
Homemaker 5 0.6 1 1 . 0 25 1 . 1 2 0.7
Join the Military 42 5.3 10 9.5 74 3.2 14 :~.2
Get a Full-Time Job 102 13.0 18 17.1 330 14.0 30 11.3
Don't Know Yet 170 2 1 . 6 5 4.8 175 7.5 27 1 0 . 1
Other 50 6.4 6 5.7 137 5.8 22 8 .2

Subtotal 404 51.3 42 40.0 797 34.0 105 39.2

Total 787 10 0 .0 105 100 .0 2,345 1 00 .0 268 10 0 .0
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School Size. There is a striking difference between those seniors plan­

ning to attend a four-year college and those seniors undecided about their 

future when differentiating by size of school they attend. Table 10 shows 

that only 26.2 percent of seniors from small schools plan to attend a 

four-year college compared to A3 .6 percent of seniors from large schools. 

Moreover, 21.A percent of seniors from small schools do not know what they 

plan to ao after graduation compared to only 8 . 1 percent from large 

schools.

TABLE 10
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY MOST LIKELY ACTIVITY 

AFTER HIGH SCHOOL AND BY SIZE OF SCHOOL IN 
WHICH THE SENIOR IS ENROLLED

LARGE SCHOOLS SMALL SCHOOLS

ACTIVITY No. % No. %

Attend a A-Year College 1,17A A3 .6 190 26.2
Attend a 2-Year College 320 11.9 77 10 .6
Attend a Vocational-
Technical School 257 9.6 86 1 1 . 8

Subtotal 1,751 65.1 353 A8.6

Enter Into Apprentice
Training 65 2 .A 35 A. 8

Become a Full-Time
Homemaker 25 0.9 5 0.7

Join the Military 9A 3.5 41 5.6

Get a Full-Time Job 376 1 A .0 89 1 2 . 2
Don't Know Yet 218 8 . 1 155 2 1 .A
Other 162 6.0 A9 6.7

jubtotal 9A0 3A.9 37A 51.A

Total 2,691 10 0 .0 727 100 .0

Household Income. Annual household income has continued to relate 

strongly to specific postsecondary plans of the seniors over the past 

four years. A comparison was made of the responses of those seniors from
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households with annual incomes of less than $25,000, $25,000 to $40,000, and 

more than $40,000. The results of this comparison are presented in Table 11. 

As household income increases, so does the tendency of seniors to pursue 

postsecondary activities at a four-year college. This, however, does not hold 

true for attendance at two-year colleges or vocational/technical schools. In 

fact, the higher the household income, the less likely it is for seniors to 

attend vocational/technical schools. Also, as household income increases, 

uncertainty about postsecondary plans decreases. Almost 17 percent of those 

seniors whose household incomes were less than $25,000 indicated that they did 

not know what they intended to do after graduation, while considerably less 

than 1 0 percent of those students from households in higher income brackets 

expressed the same uncertainty.

TABLE 11
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY MOST LIKELY 

ACTIVITY AFTER HIGH SCHOOL AND BY ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD INCOME

INCOME UNDER $25,000 $25,00Q-$40,000 OVER $40,000
ACTIVITY No. % No. % No. ~ Tv

Attend a 4-Year
College 319 27.1 355 44.1 628 53.8
Attend a 2-Year

College 139 1 1 . 8 1 0 1 12.5 124 1 0 .6
Attend a Vocational/

Technical School 141 11.9 82 1 0 . 2 81 6.9

Subtotal 599 50.8 538 66.8 833 71.3

Enter Into Apprentice
Training 49 4.2 18 2 .2 25 2 . 1

Become a Full-Time
Homemaker 16 1.4 9 1 . 1 4 0.3
Join the Military 62 5.3 33 4.1 34 2.9
Get a Full-Time Job 185 15.6 95 11.9 132 11.3
Don’t Know Yet 198 16.7 63 7.8 78 6.7
Other 71 6 .0 49 6 . 1 63 5.4

Subtotal 581 49.2 267 33.2 336 28.7
Total 1,180 10 0 .0 805 100 .0 1,169 10 0 .0
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Grades Earned. The seniors were asked to indicate what their grades had 

been in high school, whether they had earned mostly A's, mostly B's, 

mostly C's, or mostly below C's.

As one might suspect, ana consistent with surveys from the past two years, 

those seniors who earned mostly A's and B's indicated their intention to 

pursue postsecondary education far more frequently than those earning 

lower grades. As Table 12 indicates, nearly 84 percent of those seniors 

earning mostly A's planned to go on for more schooling, while considerably 

smaller percentages are evident for seniors with lower grades. There is, 

however, a slight but steady upward trend of seniors with lower grades 

planning to attend postsecondary institutions. For seniors earning mostly 

B's, the percentage planning to go on for more schooling increased from

64.3 to 66.6 from 1981 to 1983. For seniors earning mostly C's, the 

percentage change was from 42.3 to 48.2, and for seniors earning grades 

below C, the percentage change was from 21.2 to 23.9.
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TABLE 12

DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY MOST LIKELY 
ACTIVITY AFTER HIGH SCHOOL AND BY GRADES EARNED IN HIGH SCHOOL

A's Bn s
..... .

's Below C's
ACTIVITY No. % No. % No. % No. %

Attend a 4-Year College 388 71.0 751 46.0 254 2 1 . 2 5 4.6
Attend a 2-Year College 50 9.2 202 12.3 145 1 2 . 1 10 9.2
Attend a Vocational Technical School 19 3.5 135 8.3 179 14.9 1 1 1 0 . 1

Subtotal 457 83.7 1,088 66.6 578 48.2 26 23.9

Enter Into Apprentice Training 7 1.3 41 2.5 50 4.2 5 4.6
Become a Full-Time Homemaker 2 0.4 16 1 . 0 1 1 0.9 4 3.7
Join the Military 5 0.9 57 3.5 71 5.9 6 5.5
Get a Full-Time Job 21 3.8 186 11.4 241 20.2 30 27.5
Don't Know Yet 37 6.8 158 9.7 160 13.3 18 16.5
Other 17 3.1 87 5.3 88 7.3 20 18.3

Subtotal 89 16.3 545 33.4 621 51.8 83 76.1

Total 546 100 .0 1,633 100 .0 1,199 100 .0 109 100 .0
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Occupational Choice. Seniors were asked to choose a first and second 

occupational preference from a list of 58 technical and professional 

occupations. Business Management and Computer Programming are solidly 

the most popular choices by the seniors. Aviation Career? was also very 

popular. The top four choices in descending order of popularity, were:

First Preference

Business Management 
Computer Programming 
Education 
Aviation Careers

Second Preference

Computer Programming 
Business Management 
Aviation Careers 
Social Sciences

The occupational preferences varied quite markedly between the sexes, 

with the exception of Business Management. The male seniors preferred 

the more technical and trade occupations while Elementary/Secondary 

education is clearly the choice of female seniors. The top four choices, 

in descending order of popularity, for male and female seniors were:

Male Seniors Female Seniors

Computer Programming Elementary/Secondary Education
Business Management Business Management
Automotive Repair Office Occupations
Heavy Equipment Operations Accounting
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A further analysis was conducted to relate occupational preference to 

race of respondent. As in the past, there seemed to be no particular 

patterns of occupational preference based upon race. Indeed, for Black, 

Hispanic, and Oriental students, no clear preference for occupational 

choices were evident. The top choices for Alaska Native and Caucasian 

seniors were:

E. Seniors Planning Postsecondary Education.

A separate portion of the survey was devoted to obtaining more 

information about those seniors planning to pursue postsecondary 

education. Although the number of seniors indicating plans to attend 

school immediately after graduation was fairly consistent at about 2,150 

in response to a number of cross-check items (such as income levels, sex, 

and race), the total number of seniors responding to specific questions 

on schooling increased to 2,786. This increased figure is assumed to 

include not only those seniors with firm post-high school plans, but also 

a number who were undecided and were responding in a suppositional 

manner. That is, suppose I were to attend, then now would I answer?

Alaska Native Caucasian

Business Management 
Commercial Fishing 
Accounting
Elementary/Secondary Education

Business Management 
Computer Programming 

Elementary/Secondary Education 
Business & Commerce, General
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State of Attendance. Seniors were asked to indicate the state in which 

they planned t i pursue their postsecondary education. The evidence is 

clear that Alaska has increasingly become a more popular choice the past 

four years. In 1979-80, 31 percent of the high school seniors indicated 

that they planned to pursue their postsecondary education in Alaska. 

That percentage increased to 36.3 percent in 1980-81, AO. 6 percent in

1981-82, and this year the percentage is 42.7 percent. Table 13 provides 

detailed information regarding where the students intend to pursue their 

postsecondary education activities. As in previous years, Washington, 

California, Oregon, and Colorado are the most popular states for those 

seniors who intend to enro] 1 in institutions out-of-state.

TABLE 13 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY 

INTENDED STATE OF POSTSECONDARY ATTENDANCE

STATE NUMBER PERCENT

Alaska 1,190 42.7
Washington 300 1 0 .8
California 296 1 0 .6
Oregon 152 5.5
Hawaii 1 1 2 4.0
Colorado 1 1 0 3.9
Arizona 78 2 .8
Texas 54 1.9
Montana 42 1.5
Idaho 41 1.5
Utah 35 1.3
Other* 376 13.5

Total 2,786 100 .0

^Including foreign.

When the intended state of attendance was cross-referenced with the 

seniors' grades in high school, no single state seemed to draw heavily

from any particular grade group.

-19-



The distribution for a few selected states is presented on a percentage 

basis in Table 1A. It aDpears that those seniors electing attendance in 

Alaska are heavily represented by those earning mostly B's and C's while 

in high school, but this distribution is largely due to the normal 

distribution of all seniors (also presented in Table 1A). It should be 

noted, however, that the percentage of seniors planning to attend school 

in Alaska, and who earned mostly A's, is steadily increasing. In 1980-81 

the percentage was 8.8, in 1981-82, 12.6 percent, and this year it is 

1A.3 percent.

TABLE 1A

PERCENTAGE DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY SELECTED 
STATES OF PLANNED ATTENDANCE AND BY GRADES EARNED IN HIGH SCHOOL

SENIORS'

GRADES ALASKA WASHINGTON OREGON CALIFORNIA COLORADO ALL SENIORS

Mostly A's 1A.3 23.5 18.A 2A .0 19.1 15.7
Mostly B's 50.3 50.2 59.9 A6.0 39.1 A6.8
Mostly C's 33.8 23.9 20. A 27.7 35.1 3A.A

Below C's 1 .6 2 .A 1.3 2.3 2.7 3.1

Total 100 .0 100 .0 100 .0 100 .0 10 0 .0 100 .0

Another way of examining these s:me data is to compare Alaska's drawing 

power, within the grade distribution of seniors, to the drawing power of 

"outside". This is presented in Table 15 and differs from Table 1A in 

that the question addressed in Table 15 is: of those seniors earning

mostly A's (or B's, C's, etc.), how many plan schooling in Alaska; while 

the question in Table 1A is: of those seniors planning schooling in

Alaska, how many earneo mostly A's (or B's, C's, etc.)? In the analysis 

which led to Table 15, it was discovered that 66.5 percent of the seniors 

earning mostly A's in high school who planned postsecondary attendance,

planned it for "outside" of Alaska. It is very significant that this
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percentage has declined sharply over the past three years; in 1980-81, 

83.7 percent of the seniors earning mostly A's planned postsecondary 

education "outside" of Alaska.

TABLE 15
PERCENTAGE DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY 
GRADES EARNED IN HIGH SCHOOL AND BY 

PLANNED POSTSECONDARY ATTENDANCE IN OR OUT OF ALASKA

SENIORS' GRADES ALASKA OUT-OF-STATE TOTAL

Mostly A's 33.5 66.5 10 0 .0
Mostly B's 43.1 56.9 1 0 0 .0
Mostly C's 48.3 51.7 10 0 .0
Below C's 34.6 65.4 1 0 0 .0

It is important to try to understand \ ny those seniors earning mostly A's 

plan to attend postsecondary institutions outside of the state. Although 

a more detailed presentation is found later in this report, the survey 

contained a question which asked the seniors to indicate which factors 

were important in their decisions about institutions. Of those seniors 

who earned mostly A's and intend to enroll in an institution of Alaska, 

the most important reason was the "availability of program" followed 

closely by "reputation or prestige of the school". This finding 

parallels very closely the research regarding "brain drain" in other 

states. As noted in last year's report, Maryland pro/ides a good example 

of that research. The Maryland State Board for Higher Education conducts 

an annual survey of high school seniors who were semi-finalists in the 

National Merit and National Achievement competition. They find that the 

most imoortant factor in college choice cited by students going out of 

state is "institutional reputation". Having a quality program in the

student's major is the second most important reason.
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For those Alaskan students who intend tn enroll in institutions within 

the state, the most important reason was "low tuition and expenses" and 

the second most important reason was "program availability".

When addressing the question of "brain drain" then, we find that a higher 

percentage of Alaska's higher-grade-earning seniors are indeed looking 

"outside" for their postsecondary schooling. This is, however, not 

unlike the experiences of other states.

Alaska Attendance. When asked which institution in Alaska they planned

to attend, 36 percent of the responding seniors indicated the University 

of Alaska-Fairbanks, followed by the University of Alaska-Anchorage, with 

17 percent. The responses to this question are presented in Table 16.

It is interesting o note that the fourth and sixth most popular

institutional choices of the seniors were the Alaska Vocational Technical

Center at Seward and the Alaska Business College in Anchorage, 

respectively. This pattern is consistant over several years and the 

survey continues to show that these two institutions, which are dedicated 

to preparing persons for employment in selected occupational and career 

fields, have strong drawing power.

-22-



TABLE 16 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY 

CHOICE OF ALASKAN POSTSECONDARY INSTITUTION

INSTITUTION NUMBER PERCENT

Anchorage Community College 148 12.4
Chukchi Community College 5 0.4
Kenai Peninsula Community College 30 2.5
Ketchikan Community College 5 0.4
Kodiak Community College 4 0.3
Kuskokwim Community Co]lege 15 1.3
Matanuska-Susitna Community College 14 1 . 2
Northwest Community College 3 0.3
Prince William Sound Community College 4 0.3
Sitka Community College 7 0.6
Tanana Valley Community College 7 0.6
Extension Center Near Home 3 0.3

COMMUNITY COLLEGE SUBTOTAL 245 20.6

University of Alaska-Anchorage 201 16.9
University of Alaska-Fairbanks 432 36.3
University of Alaska-Juneau 17 1.4

UNIVERSITY CENTER SUBTOTAL 650 54.6

Alaska Bible College 9 0 .8
Alaska Pacific University 68 5.7
Sheldon Jackson College 38 3.2

PRIVATE COLLEGE SUBTOTAL 115 9.7

Alaska Business College 54 4.4
Alaska Vocational Technical Center at Seward 78 6.6
Trade, Technical School 21 1 . 8
Hutchison Career Center 1 2 1 . 0
Kotzebue Technical Center 15 1.3

OCCUPATIONAL SCHOOL SUBTOTAL 180 15.1

Total 1,190 100 .0

-23-



Reasons for Institutional Choice. Why a senior chooses to attend a 

particular institution is a question of great interest to those persons 

involved in postsecondary education. The seniors were asked to indicate, 

from a list of 16 possible reasons, which factors were important in their 

decisions about institutions. The seniors were to pick the two most

important reasons and also the least important reason affecting the

choice of the postsecondary institution they planned to attend.

The most important reasons for institutional choice were "availability of 

program", "closeness to home", and "reputation or prestige of school".

This was followed closely by "low tuition and living expenses" and

"geographic location". "Availability of program" stands out because of 

the large number of seniors indicating it as the most important reason 

for attending school. (See Table 17.) Also, it has continued to be the 

top choice since 1978. The least important determinants of college 

selection for the seniors were "friends will be there," "religious 

atmosphere," "close to home," and sorority/fraternity/'student 

organizations on campus".
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TABLE 17 

REASONS FOR SELECTING A 
POSTSECONDARV EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION

REASON
MOST IMPORTANT

SEC
MOST

:ond
MPORTANT LEAST [MPORTANT

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Availability of Program 611 24.0 246 9.4 58 2.3
Close to Home 308 12.0 323 12.4 292 11.5
Reputation or Prestige of School 284 11.1 206 7.9 134 5.3
Low Tuition and Living Expenses 272 10.6 255 9.8 143 5.6
Geographic Location 260 10.2 382 14.7 211 8.3
Encouragement from Parents/Relatives 243 9.5 258 9.9 109 4.3
Availability of Jobs While in School 99 3.9 137 5.2 125 4.9
Availability of Financial Aid 94 3.7 165 6.3 79 3.1
Friends Will Be There 77 3.0 183 7.0 417 16.3
Intercollegiate Athletics 72 2.8 104 4.0 140 5.5
Intramural Athletics 70 2.7 84 3.2 139 5.5
Encouragement from Teachers 62 2.4 75 2.9 64 2.5
Religious Atmosphere 55 2.1 55 2.1 318 12.5
Encouragement from College Representatives 21 0.8 35 1.3 38 1.5
Availability of College Housing 19 0.7 58 2.2 76 3.0
Sororities/Fraternities 14 0.5 45 1.7 200 7.9

Total 2,561 100.0 2,611 100.0 2,543 100.0
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As was shown earlier in this report, more seniors intend to enroll in 

in-state institutions than in past years. A major reason for the 

increase of in-state attendance :'.s the availability of low tuition and 

living expenses. To explain further the reasons why students attend 

in-state or out-of-state institutions, institutional choice was 

cross-referenced with the state of planned attendance, the results of 

which are presented in Table 18. Also, those factors affecting choice 

were further analyzed on an in-state basis. A cross-tabulation was run 

between reasons for institutional choice and Alaskan institution 

indicated. The results of those data for selected institutions are shown 

in Table 19.

A very consistent pattern exists among those seniors who intend to enroll 

out-of-state. In all cases except Hawaii the principal reason for 

institutional choice was "availability of program".

For those students attending institutions within the state, the principal 

factors affecting institutional selection were "low tuition", "closeness 

to home", and "availability of program".
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TABLE 18
REASONS FOR SELECTING A POSTSECONDARY 

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION DISTRIBUTED BY STATE

STATE PRIMARY REASON SECONDARY REASON

Alaska
Washington

California
Oregon

Colorado
Hawaii

Close to Home 
Availability of Program 
Availability of Program 

Availability of Program 
Availability of Program 
Geographic Location

Close to Home 
Geographic Location 
Geographic Location 

Geographic Location 
Geographic Location 
Geographic Location

TABLE 19
REASONS FOR SELECTING A PARTICULAR 

ALASKA POSTSECONDARY EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION

INSTITUTION PRIMARY REASON SECONDARY REASON

Univ. of Alaska-Fairbanks 
Univ. of Alaska-Anchorage 
Univ. of Alaska-Juneau 

All Community Colleges 
Alaska Pacific University 
Sheldon Jackson

Alaska Business College 
Alaska Vocational- 
Technical Center

Low Tuition and Expenses 
Close to Home 
Availability of Program 

Close to Home 
Availability of Program 
Encouragement from 

Parents/Relatives 
Availability of Program 
Availability of Program

Close to Home 
Close to Home 
Close to Home 

Close to Home 
Close to Home 

Friends Will Be There

Availability of Jobs 
Close to Home
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Familiarity with Financial Aid. The seniors were asked about their

familiarity with, and intent to use, various types of financial aid

available for postsecondary education. As one can see in Table 20, the

program with which the seniors were most familiar (when combining 

familiari' y with intent to use) is the Alaska State Student Loan

Program. Four out of five of the students responding to this survey are 

aware of the program.

TABLE 20
SENIORS' FAMILIARITY WITH AND INTENDED 

USE OF SELECTED FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

FAMILIAR WITH INTEND TO USE Total
PROGRAMS Number Percent Number Percent Percentaqe

Pell Grant 389 11.1 152 4.3 15.4
GSL (Guaranteed Student Loan) 1,187 33.8 375 10.7 44.5
Alaska State S;udent Loan 1,309 37.3 1,502 42.8 80.1
Native Corp. Assistance 956 27.3 180 5.1 32.4
CETA 1,17] 33. A 119 3.4 37.8
BIA 950 27.1 159 4.5 31.6

ROTC 1,708 48.7 104 3.0 51.7

SEIG (State Educational 
Incentive Grant) 539 15.4 121 3.5 18.9
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Plans to Return to Alaska. Those seniors planning postsecondary 

education of Alaska were asked if they planned to return to the state 

after completing their schooling. In 1980-81, 72.2 percent indicated 

that they did plan to return to Alaska. That percentage decreased 

slightly to 69.1 percent in 1981-82 but increased almost 10 points to 

77.6 percent this year. There remains, however, a strong relationship 

between the distance one intends to go away from the state and the 

intention to return after schooling. A regional distribution is 

presented in Table 21 which indicates that, in general, the propensity to 

return decreases as the student attends school farther away from Alaska.

TABLE 21
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS PLANNING ATTENDANCE 
"OUTSIDE" BY REGION OF ATTENDANCE* AND BY 

INTENTION TO RETURN TO AlASKA AFTER SCHOOLING

REGION OF PLANNED 
ATTENDANCE

PERCENT PLANNING TO RETURN 
TO ALASKA

Northwest 75.3
West 68.8
Southwest 63.5
Midwest 63.0
South 54.3
Southeast 40.6
East 71.4
Northeast 54.1

* REGIONS: Northwest: WA, OR, ID, MT; West: CA, HI, NV, UT, CO, WY;

Southwest: AZ, NM, TX, OK; Midwest: ND, SD, NE, KS, MN, WI, MI, IA, MO,

IL, IN, OH; South: FL, GA, AL, MS, LA, AR; Southeast: VA, NC, SC,

TN, KY; East: PA, NJ, MD, DE, WV, DC; Northeast: ME, VT, NH,

NY, MA, CT, RI.
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SUMMARY

Alaska's high school seniors have now responded to six consecutive annual 

surveys. Responses have been generally consistent over the six-year 

period, and support the following conclusions.

1. Most seniors are generally quite satisfied with their high school 

experiences. Those particular areas which have received the highest 

number of "outstanding" marks are counseling and guidance services and 

athletic and recreational facilities. Compared to last year, there was a 

decline .in the percentage of seniors expressing satisfaction with their 

overall high school experience, from 90 to 83 percent. It. remains to be 

seen if this represents a trend.

2. Seniors from small schools are not as satisfied with their high 

school experience as seniors from large schools. This is particularly 

evident when considering variety of courses and library and learning 

center facilities.

3. Regardless of whether they plan to pursue further schooling, many 

seniors feel that they need assistance in improving mathematics skills 

and in developing career or educational plans.

4. Those seniors who have higher household incomes and who earn 

higher grades are more likely to plan schooling beyond high school than 

are ether seniors.

5. Proportionately, considerably fewer seniors from small schools 

plan to attend four-year colleges than seniors from large schools. Also, 

a much larger percentage of seniors from small schools are undecLded 

about what they plan to do after graduation than seniors from large 

schools.
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6. The percentage of students who choose to remain in Alaska for 

postsecondary education has increased in the past three years. Another 

way to look at this statistic is to say that, although a majority of 

seniors still go "outside" for their schooling, the percentage of 

students leaving the state is continuing to diminish.

7. There does not seem to be a direct correlation between grades 

earned in high school and geographic choice. Although many students in 

all grade categories are drawn "outside", the tendency to plan 

out-of-state attendance is highest among those seniors wno earned mostly 

A's in high school. Institutional reputation and availability of 

programs are the reasons that "A" students cite for choosing their 

schools. Other states have reported similar propensities among their 

higher-grade-earning seniors.

8 . Regardless of the grades they earned in high school, seniors 

choose particular out-of-state educational institutions primarily because 

of the availability of certain programs. Students choose particular 

Alaskan institutions because of availability of programs and proximity.

9. The University of Alaska's Fairbanks and Anchorage campuses 

continue to be the top choices for those students who remain in Alaska 

for further schooling; again this year over 50 percent of in-state 

students indicated that they plan to attend one of these institutions.

10. Approximately 16 percent of students remaining in Alaska plan to 

attend vocational-technical and private proprietary schools. Those 

institutions with the greatest drawing power are Alaska Business College 

and Alaska Vocational Technical Center at Seward.
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11. A high proportion of the seniors planning to attend school 

out-of-state also plan to return to Alaska after completing their 

schooling. This proportion has increased dramatically over last year. 

Future surveys will ascertain if this upward trend will continue.

The information from this survey is compiled on an individual high school 

basis and returned to each participating school. This feedback enables 

the secondary officials to better plan or respond to and for the high 

school students' needs. The information and results are also used on a 

statewide basis for planning and analysis of postsecondary resources for 

Alaskans.
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Alaska High School Senior Survey 
1982-83

This survey is an attem pt to find out what you intend to do  with your life the first year a f te r  g radua tion . T he  results o f  this 
survey will be used to plan for the growth and  development o f  postsecondary education* in Alaska, to coord ina te  and  plan for 
better financial aid services for Alaskan postsecondary students  and  to  provide for the educational needs o f  A laskan  high 
school graduates.

Please answer questions I th rough 14 regardless o f  what you plan to do  afte r  gradua tion . Students  continuing  a postsecondary 
education should also complete questions 15 through 18.

Individual responses will be kept confidential . Please do  not identify yourself on the survey. P L A C E  T H E  N U M B E R  OF 
YOUR R E S PO N S E  IN T H E  S PA C E  P R O V ID E D  A T  T H E  R IG H T . Your coopera tion  is appreciated .

R ESPO N SE
1. W hat is your sex? I. Male 2. F e m a le .......................................................................................................................  ..................
2. How do  you describe yourself? (Choose only o n e ) ...........................................................................................................  ..................

1. Alaskan Native 3. Caucasian 5. Oriental
2. Black 4. Hispanic 6. Other

3. What category best describes your total family in c o m e ? ........................................................................................................ ...................

1. U nder $8,000 4. Between $25,000 and $40,000
2. Between $8,000 and  $15,000 5. Over $40,000
3 Between S I 5,000 and $25,000

4. W hat category best describes your p a ren ts ’ level o f  education?

1. did not finish high s c h o o l ....................................................................
2. g radua ted  from high school o r  a tta ined  the G E D .....................
3. a ttended  college......................................................................................
4. g radua ted  from college with at least a bache lo r’s d e g r e e . . . .

F a t h e r ......................................................................
M o t h e r ....................................................................

5. There  are a num ber o f  financial aid p rogram s offered to Alaskans. Please indicate your familiarity with 
each p rogram  by using the  following code.

RESPONSE

1. I am not aware  o f  this financial assistance program . (Enter I, 2,
2. I am aware o f  this financial assistance p rogram . 0 *
3. I am  aware o f  this program  and  plan to use it.
A. Pell G ran t  P rogram  (B E O G ) ............................................................................................................................................  ..................
B. GSL (Guaranteed  S tudent Loan  P ro g ra m ) ..................................................................................................................  ..................
C. Alaska State  Student Loan P ro g r a m ..............................................................................................................................  ..................
D. Native C orpora tion  Student Financial A i d ..................................................................................................................  ..................
E. C E T A  (Com prehensive Em ploym ent Train ing  A c i ) .................................................  ..........................................  ..................
F. BIA (Bureau o f  Indian Affairs)  Financial Ass is tance ................................................................................................  ..................
G. R O TC  (Reserve Officer T ra in ing  C orps)  Financial A ssistance.............................................................................  ..................
H. SEIG  (Stale E ducational Incentive G ran t  P ro g ra m ) ................................................................................................  ..................
I. O ther  Financial Aid P rogram  (Specify).......................................................................................................................... ..................

R ESPO N SE 
(Enter 1 ,2 . 

3, o r  4)

•N O T E : Postsecondary education  is defined as any organized  education , learning or train ing  experience beyond high school.



PLACE I IN THE RESPONSE SPACE FOR “ YES” AND 2 FOR “ NO”  for questions 6 through 10.
RESPONSE 

(Enter 1 or 2)

6. English is the language m ost frequently  spoken in my h o m e .........................................................................................  ..................
7. I have had the following em ploym ent experiences:

A. held a regular par t- t im e jo b  while in s c h o o l ................................................................................................................  ..................
B. held a full-time jo b  du r ing  the s u m m e r .......................................................................................................................... ..................
C. participated in w ork-study  o r  distributive education  while in sc h o o l .................................................................. ..................
D. supervised the work  o f  o th e r s ............................................................................................................................................  ..................
E. never w o rk e d .............................................................................................................................................................................  ..................

8. I need assistance in the following educational areas:
A. expressing my ideas in w ri t ing ............................................................................................................................................... ..................
B. improving reading speed o r  co m p re h e n s io n ................................................................................................................  ..................
C. improving m ath  skills ..........................................................................................................................................................  ..................
D. deciding on a career, occupation  o r  educational p la n s ...........................................................................................  ..................

9. I p lan to take or have a lready  taken  the  A C T  (American College Testing P ro g ra m ) ..........................................  ..................
10. I p lan to  take or  have taken  the  SA T (Scholastic A ptitude  T e s t) ..................................................................................  ..................

RESPONSE 
(Enter I ,  2,

3 or 4)

11. Please indicate w hat grades you received in high school:
(Place the appropriate n u m b er  in the space p ro v id e d .) ..................................................................................................... ..................
1. Mostly A ’s 3. M ostly  C ’s
2. Mostly B’s 4. Mostly below C ’s

12. Listed below are  a nu m b er  o f  characteristics o f  your  high school. You arc asked to  rank  each one on  how 
beneficial it has been to you. T h a t  is, how well did it contr ibu te  to your experience as a s tudent? Please 
use the following ranking  scale and use your own experience for the ranking, not what you have heard 
from others.
1. O uts tand ing  3. P o o r
2. Average 4. Not p ro v id e d /N o t  p ^ ' i c a b l c

R E SPO N SE  
(Enter 1, 2,

3 or 4)

A. Variety o f  c o u rse s .................................................................................................................................................................  ..................
B. Quality  o f  in s t ru c t io n ............................................................................................................................................................. ..................
C. Counseling o r  guidance service ..........................................................................................................................................  ..................
D. Special help o r  p rogram s for s tudents  needing i t .......................................................................................................  ..................
E. School rules, regulations and  discipline.......................................................................................................................... ...................
F. Assignment o f  grades o r  m a r k s ..........................................................................................................................................  ..................
G. Athletic o r  recreational facilities .....................................................................................................................................  ..................
H . Library and  learning c e n te rs ..............................................................................................................................................  ..................
I. L abora to ry  facilities............................................................................................................................................................... ................................
J . Vocational training ( industrial, business, hom e economics, e tc .) ......................................................................... ..................
K. Satisfaction with your  high school experience ov e ra l l .............................................................................................  ..................
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RESPONSE 
(Enter 1-9)

13. What are you most likely to be doing this time next year?............................................  ........

Use the following list to indicate your response. (Choose only one answer.)

1. D o n ’t know yet.

2. Join the military.

3. Get a full-time job.

4. Become a full-time homemaker.

5. Enter into apprentice training.

6. Attend a vocational-technical school.

7. Attend a four-year college.

8. Attend a two-year college.

9. Other:__________________________________________ (Please specify).

14. Please indicate by number your first and second occupational choice, choosing from the list in Table A, 

located on page 4 of this survey.

R ESPO N SE 
(E n ter 10-99)

A. M y  first occupational choice is.................................................................. ........

B. M y  second occupational choice is...............................................................  ........

IF Y O U  DO NOT P L A N  T O  G O  O N  F O R  M O R E  S C H O O L I N G ,  SKIP T H E  R E S T  O F  T H E  S U R V E Y .

R E SPO N SE  
(E n ter 1-52;

15. Using the code found in Ttble B on page 4 of the survey, indicate by number the state in which you plan

to attend a postsecondary institution...............................................................  ........

R E SPO N SE  
(en ter 1-22)

16. If your answer was Alaska in question 15, indicate which Alaskan institution you plan to attend by using

the list in Table C  on page 4 of the survey. (If you are not going to school in Alaska, skip this question)..------ --------

R ESPO N SE 
(en ter 1-17)

17. Regardless of where you are going to school, why have you made that choice? Use the number codes 

below to select the two most important reasons and the one least important reason for your choice.

A. Most important reason for m y  selection......................................................... ........

B. Second most important reason for m y  selection..................................................  ........

C. Least important reason for m y  selection......................................................... ........

1. Intramural athletics/recreational activities 10. Availability of program

2. Sororities/fratcrnities/studcnt organizations on campus 11. Availability of financial aid

3. Geographic location/weathcr/climate 12. Close to home

4. Encouragement from parents/relatives 13. Religious atmosphere

5. Encouragement from tcachcrs/principal/counselor 14. M y  friends will be there

6. Encouragement from college representative 15. Availability of campus housing

7. Availability of jobs while in school 16. Intercollegiate athletic program

8. L o w  tuition and living expenses 17. Other (please specify)

9. Reputation or prestige of s c h o o l __________________________________________

R E SPO N SE  
(ei te r 1 or 2)

18. D o  you plan to live in Alaska upon completion of your chosen

program?.........................................................................................  ........

I. Yes 2. N o
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TABLE A 
LIST OK OCCUPATIONAL CHOICES

P L E A S E  C H O O S E  T H E  N U M B E R  OF YOUR FIR ST A N D  SE C O N D  O C C U P A T IO N A L  C H O IC E  FROM  THE LIST BELOW S E L EC T  T HE O C C U P A T IO N A L  AREA 
THAT BEST FITS YOUR G OA L S.  A N D  FILL IN T H E  RESPONSE BLANKS ON >AC.E 3 O F  THE SURVEY W IT H  THE NUM B ER S YOU HAVE SE L EC T E D .
10 A G R IC U L T U R E  O k  A N IM A L  S C IEN C E
I! FORESTRY SCIENCE
i :  FORESTRY P R O D U C T IO N  & PROCESSIN G
13 N A T U R A L  RESOURCE M A N A G E M E N T
14 F ISH ERIES SCIENCE
15 C O M M E R C I A L  FISHIN G
16 S E A F O O D  PR OC ESSIN G
30 A R C H IT E C T U R E
31 IN T FRIO R  D ESIGN
34 I IFF SC IE N C E .  G EN ERAL (A NA TOM Y.

UA C TERIOt O G Y , BIO LOGY, BOTANY. E C OLO G Y . G EN E T IC S.  M A RIN E 
BIO ! OCA . ZOOLOGY, ETC.)

35 COM MUNIT Y O R  S O C I A L  SERVE, j  (LAW  E N F O R C E M E N T . FIRE PRO- 
T E C T ’O N , PUBLIC A DM IN IS TR A T IO N . SOCIAL W O RK. PARKS A ND  RE­
CR E A T IO N  M A N A G E M E N T .  ETC.)

36 LAW
3* SOCIAL S C IE N C E S (A N T H R O P O L O G Y . A R C H A E O L O G Y ,  C RIM IN O LO G Y. 

EC O N OM IC S,  M> TORY, PO L IT IC A L  SC IENC E,  SOCIOLOGY. 
PSY CH O L O G Y . ETC.)

!<> BUSINESS & C O M M E R C E .  G EN E R A L  
31 A C C O U N T IN G  
33 ADV ERTISING
33 BANKING
34 BUSINESS MANAC iEMF.N1
35 OFI ICE O t  l 1 PA H O N S
36 Kl C R EA T IO N  A T OU RISM
3 '  TRANSPOR IA T IO N  & PU B L IC  U TILITIES  
4(1 C O M M U N IC A T IO N S ,  G EN E R A L  
41 JO U R N A L ISM
43 B R O A DC A STING  (R A D IO  & TV)
43 A DVERTISING
45 C O M P U T I  R A IN FO R M A T IO N  SERVICES
46 C O M P U T I R P R O G R A M M IN G

47 DATA PROCESSIN G
48 C O M P U T E R  SYSTEMS ANALYSIS
50 FO REIG N LAN G U A GES H U M A N IT IE S
51 RELIGIOU S STUDIES T HEO LOG Y
55 H O M E  ECONOM ICS FAMILY LIFE SKILLS
60 TRAD E A VOCATION A L. G E N E R A L
61 A V IA T-O n  TECH N O L O G Y
63 A U ' O  REPAIR (ENGINE &  BODY)
63 CA R PE N T R Y  & C O N STRU C TIO N
64 D IESFt  TECHNOLOGY
65 ELECTRIC!TY (HOUSE W IRIN G)
66 HEAVY EQUIPMENT O P E R A T IO N S
67 W ELDIN G  & MET AI F A BR IC A T IO N
68 COSM ETOI OGY
69 A VIA TIO N A I A SSOC IA TED  C A REERS ( C O M M E R C IA L  P IL O T.  

STEW ARDESS, ETC.)
75 E L EM ENTA R Y  A N D /O R  S E C O N DA R Y  E D U C A T IO N
80 EN G IN E ER IN G , G EN E R A L
81 A ER O SPA C E  EN G IN E ER IN G  
83 E L EC TR IC A L ENG IN E ER ING  
83 M E C H A N IC A L  EN G IN E ER IN G
85 FIN E OR A P P L I E D  ARTS. G E N F R A I
86 C OM M E R C IA L  ARTS
87 MUSIC
88 DRAM A
90 H EA L T H  PROFESSIO N. G E N E R A L
91 NURSING  
93 D ENTISTRY
93 M E D IU M  . M .D .
94 C H IR O I’ RATIC
95 M E N TA L  H EA L T H
96 PHYSIC'Al S C IE N C E . G E N F R A I (GEOLOGY. PHYSIC S. O C E A N O G R A P H Y  

M A T H E M A T IC S ,  C H EM ISTRY , ETC.)
99 O TH E R

TABLEH 
LIST OF STATES

USE THE F'OI I O W IN G  NU M BER C O D E S  T O  A N SW E R  Q U E S T IO N  M  O N  P A G E  3 O F H I E  SURVEY (INDICATE IN W H IC H  SI  A l l  YOU PL A N  EC) A I  I F N I )  A 
POSTSFCONOAKY IN STITUTION.)

1 A LA B A M A 19. LOUIS IAN A 36. O H IO
1 Al ASKA 20. MAINE .17. OKI A K O M A
3. A RIZO N A 21. MAKYI MSI) .18. O R E G O N
4 ARK ANSAS it MASSACHUSETTS 19. PI NNSY l VANIA
5. ( Al IF ORNIA 23. M ICH IG A N 40. KIIODI ISI A N D
6 C O I O KA D O 24. M INNESOTA 41. S O U T H  C AROI INA
7. C O N N E C T IC U T 25. MISSISSIPPI 42. SO U T H  D A K O I A
8. 01 1 AW'AKI 26. MISSOURI 43. TENNESSEE
9 D I S I K k  1 O F  COI UMI1IA 27. M O NTA N A 44. TEXAS

10 FL O R ID A 28. NEBRASKA 45, U TA H
II C l  O RG IA 29. NEV ADA 44.. VI R M O NT
12 H A W A II 30. NEW H A M P S H IR E 47. VIRGINIA
l.l. ID A H O 31. NEW JERSEY 48. W A SH IN G T O N
14 11 1 INOIS 32. NEV. M EX ICO 49. WEST V I R G I N I A
15. IN DIA N A 33, NEW  YORK 50. WIS CONSIN
16 IOWA 34. NOR H I  ( A R O I  INA 51. W Y O M IN G
17 KANSAS 35. N O R T H  D A K O I A 52. FO REIG N
18. KENTUCKY

T A B L E C
ALASKAN POSTSECONOARY INSTITUTIONS

USE THE I O l  I O W IN G  NU M BER C O D E S  T O  A N SW E R  Q U E S T IO N  15 O N  PAGE 3 0 1  T H E  SURVEY ( I N D IC A I E  W H IC H  A l  ASKA IN S TITU TIO N  YOU PI  AN TO 
A TTEN D .)

I Al ASKA BIBLE C O L L E G E  
3 ALA SK A  BUSINESS C O L L E G E  
3. Al ASKA PA C IF IC  UNIVERSITY 
I ALASKA V OC A T IO N A L  T E C H N IC A L  C E N T E R  

A t  SE W A R D
5. A N C H O R A G E  C OM M U NIT Y  C O L L E G E
6. CHUKCHI COMMUNITY COLLEGE
7. EX T E N SIO N  C E N T E R  NEAR HOM E
8. H U T C H I S O N  C A REER  C E N T E R
9. KENAI PE N IN U S L A  C OM M U NIT Y  C O L L E G E

10. K ET C H IK A N  CO M M U N IT Y  C O L L E G E
11. KODIAK C OM M U NIT Y  COL L E GE

12. K OTZEBUE TECHNIC Al C ENTER
13. KUSKOKWIM ( OM M U N ITY  COLLI lit-
I ... M ATANUSKA-SUSITNA COM M UNITY COI l.EGE
15. N O R T H W E S I  C OM M U NITY  C O L L E G E
16. PR IN C E  W ILLIAM  SO U N D  C O M M U N IT Y  C O L L E G E
17. S H E L D O N  JA CKSON  COL L E G E  
IK. SITKA C OM M U NITY  COI LEGE
19. TAN A NA  VALLEY C O M M U N ITY  C O L L E G E
20. T E C H N IC A L  INSTIT UTE. BUSINESS OR T R A D E  S C H O O L  
21 UNIVERSITY 01  ALASKA, A N C H O R A G E
22. U NIV ERSITY OT ALASKA. FAIR BANKS
23. UNIVERSITY O F  ALASKA, JU N E A U
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TABLE 22 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY SEX

SEX NUMBER PERCENT

Male 1,836 52.4
Female 1,642 46.8
No Response 27 0.8

TOTAL 3,505 100.0

TABLE 23
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY RACE

RACE NUMBER PERCENT

Alaska Native 787 22.5
Black 105 3.0
Oriental 61 1.7
Caucasian 2,345 66.9
Hispanic 42 1.2
Other 133 3.8
No Response 32 0.9

TOTAL 3,505 100.0

TABLE 24 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY 
ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD INCOME

ANNUAL INCOME NUMBER PERCENT

Under $8,000 303 8.6
$8,000 to 14,999 339 9.7
$15,000 to 24,999 538 15.4
$25,000 to 39,999 805 23.0
$40,000 or over 1,169 33.4
No Response 351 10.0

TOTAL 3,505 100.0
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TABLE 25 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS 
BY PRIMARY HON£ LANGUAGE

PRIMARY SPOKEN HOME 
LANGUAGE

NUMBER PERCENT

English 3,190 91.0
Other 295 8.4
No Response 20 0.6

TOTAL 3,505 100.0

TABLE 26 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS 

BY WORK EXPERIENCE

YES NO NO RESPONSE TOTAL
TYPE OF WORK NO. % NO. % NO. % NO. %

Part-Time Job 
Full-Time Summer

2,423 69.1 1,040 29.7 42 1.2 3,505 100.0

Job 2,647 75.5 817 23.3 41 1.2 3,505 100.0
Work Study 1,109 31.6 2,302 65.7 94 2.7 3,505 100.0
Supervised Others 1,442 41.1 1,977 56.4 86 2.5 3,505 100.00
No Work Experience 322 9.2 2,992 85.4 191 5.4 3,505 100.0

TABLE 27
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY RATING 

OF SELECTED HIGH SCHOOL CHARACTERISTICS

SENIOR RATING
HIGH SCHOOL CHARACTERISTIC OUTSTANDING AVE TAGE POOR

No. % No. % No. %

Variety of Courses 744 21.2 2,215 63.2 466 13.3
Quality of Instruction 830 23.7 2,365 67.5 228 6.5
Counseling Services 1,212 34.6 1,596 45.5 501 14.3
Special Help, if Needed 796 22.7 1,820 51.9 446 12.7
School Rules and Discipline 685 19.5 1,857 53.0 849 24.2
Grades, Marks, and Promotion 529 15.1 2,630 75.0 286 8.2
Athletic & Recreation 
Facilities 1,206 34.4 1,710 48.8 475 13.6
Library & Learning Centers 1,001 28.6 1,886 53.8 473 13.5
Vocational Training 981 28.0 2,152 61.4 285 8.3

Overall Satisfaction 1,066 30.4 1,857 53.0 344 9.8
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TABLE 28 
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY NEED 

FOR ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE AND BY HOUSEHOLD INCOME

ANNUAL
HOUSEHOLD
INCOME

AREAS OF ASSISTANCE
WRITING READ][NG MATHEMATICS CAREER PLANNING

YES NO YES NO YES NO YES NO

Under $8,000 167 124 176 115 201 93 187 109
$8,000 to $14,999 154 175 159 172 194 137 195 135
$15,000 to $24,999 214 316 231 300 282 249 276 254
$25,000 to $39,999 294 495 317 471 380 413 383 408
$40,000 or over 388 752 416 724 516 637 573 612
No Response 145 196 144 199 182 162 160 182

TABLE 29
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY GRADES 
EARNED IN HIGH SCHOOL AND 8V SEX

GRADES
MALE FEMALE TO'rAL

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Mostly A's 216 39.6 330 60.4 546 100.0
Mostly B's 768 47.3 856 52.7 1,624 100.0
Mostly C's 765 64.7 418 35.3 1,183 100.0
Below C's 82 76.6 25 23.4 107 100.0
No Response 5 27.8 13 72.2 18 100.0

TOTAL 1,836 52.7 1,642 47.2 3,478 100.0

TABLE 30
DISTRIBUTION OF SENIORS BY GRADES 
EARNED IN HIGH SCHOOL AND BY RACE

GRADES
ALASKA NATIVE BLACK CAUCASIAN OTHER

NO. % No. % No. % No. %

Mostly A's 75 9.5 7 6.7 427 18.2 35 14.8
Mostly B's 377 47.9 30 28.6 .1,113 47.5 ll>2 43.2
Mostly C's 302 38.4 62 59.0 743 31.7 74 31.4
Below C's 26 3.3 6 5.7 55 2.3 21 8.9
No Response 7 0.9 0 0.0 7 0.3 4 1.7

TOTAL 787 100.0 105 100.0 2,345 100.0 236 100.0
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R E S E A R C H  S U M M A R Y
Background

R ural A laska educators are sk e p tica l about the a p p licab ility  of national " e ffe c t iv e  schooling" research to cu ltu ra lly  d iffe re n t v illa ge sch oo ls. The e f fe c t iv e  schooling research focu ses on such m atters as e f f ic ie n t  use of classroom  tim e, using standardized te st scores to set academ ic p rio rities , and d ire ct in stru ction  to the class as a w hole.The A laska  Departm ent of Education is planning to establish  a rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro je ct in 1983. The D epartm ent is sp e c ific a lly  concerned about the appropriateness of this research for rural A laska  and generally  concerned w ith how to make the E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro je ct of value to rural ed u ca tio n .
Purpose

In view  of the controversy on e f fe c t iv e  schooling p ra ctice s  in rural A la s k a , we added questions on this topic to a general survey of rural te a ch e rs . We asked teachers:— how often  they or their schools used the kinds of p ra ctice s discussed in the national lite ra tu re  on e f fe c t iv e  schooling;— how often  they or their schools used in stru ction al p ra ctice s research has found to be especially  e f fe c t iv e  w ith N ative Am erican children;— w hat in structional methods they personally found most e ffe c t iv e  in their own com m unities; and— how satisfied  they were with students' academ ic progress, their own opportunities for professional grow th, and other conditions ofrural A laska ed u catio n .
M ethods

We received surveys from 304 rural te a c h e rs . One teacher was randomly sampled from each school outside urban areas (such as A nchorage or Fairbanks). Response rate was 96 p e rce n t.While the response rate was unusually high for a mailed survey, the lim itations of questionnaires wust be k ep i in mind in interpreting the results. We could not ask teachers in a survey how o ften  they used many of The p ra ctice s  id en tified  in the national lite ra tu re  on e ffe c t iv e  schooling; classroom  observation would be required. In add itio n , standard m easures of such concep ts as "acad em ic ex p ectatio n s" may not be ap plicable to rural A lask a .
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R esults
National E ffe c t iv e  Schooling P ra ctice s
The m ajority of rural teach ers do not o fte n  use national e f fe c t iv e  „ schooling p ra c tic e s . Few er than half the te a ch e rs , for exam ple, said th at tneir schools often  used standardized testin g  to set acad em ic p riorities or th a t their schools had found ways to schedule non-academ ic a c tiv it ie s  to lim it disruption of in stru ction al tim e.Among teachers of junior high school students and above, about half regularly assigned hom ework. Rural teachers pointed out th at many students did not have the lig h tin g , sp ace , or opportunity at home to com plete hom ework. A bout a quarter of the tea ch e rs, how ever, overcam e this problem by- holding a fte r-sch o o l study sessions tw ice a week or m ore. The classroom  atm osphere, they f e lt ,  helps students get down to work and a teacher is availab le  when students need a ssistan ce.Teachers in all rural school* exp ected  virtu ally  all of their students to com plete high school. The m ajority of teachers in N ative m ajority schools, how ever, did not exp ect many students to attend or com plete c o lle g e , and they believed parents held similar view s.Only about 40 p ercent of teachers in N ative m ajority schools fe lt  that their students' academ ic ability  was the same or higher than students' nationwide ana that achievem ent at or above national norms could be exp ected  of their students. In view of the isolation and d iffe re n t cu ltural background of many com m unities, teachers' view s may be r e a lis t ic . These resu lts, how ever, underscore the problem of determ ining what "counts" as high academ ic exp ectatio n s and reasonable standards for success in a v illa g e  s e ttin g .
E ffe c tiv e  P ra ctice s in N ative Am erican Education
While the national lite ratu re on e ffe c t iv e  schooling focuses on such issues as e ff ic ie n t  use of time and standardized te st scores, the research literatu re on Native Am erican ed ucation has id en tified  a d iffe re n t set of" e ffe c t iv e "  educational p ra c tic e s . These in clu d e, for exam ple, use of N ative teacher aides, se lf-p aced  in stru ctio n , and use of local exam ples to illu strate  academ ic co n cep ts. Most teachers in N ative m ajority com m unities said they used these p ractices o fte n .When asked to describe the teaching p ra ctice s  they personally found e f fe c t iv e , rural teachers em phasized those in the N ative A m erican researchliteratu re more often  than those in the national e ffe c t iv e  schooling lite ra tu re . Teachers emphasized the usefulness of such p ra ctice s  as 1) diversein structional techniques, esp ecially  hands-on m aterials, 2) se lf-p aced  in stru ction , especially  where the teachers set standards for how much work should be com pleted, 3) cooperative student learn in g, esp ecially  group projects and peer tutoring, and 4) involving parents and community people in theclassroom .



T each er S a tis fa c tio n  w ith School Conditions
M ost rural teachers are sa tisfie d  with their pay and b e n e fits , te a ch e r-stu d e n t relationships, student discipline a t their schools, and relatio n sh ip s betw een the school and the com m unity. What fru stra te s many rural tea ch e rs is relationships w ith the d istr ict c e n te r , not relationships across c u ltu re s . A bout h alf the teachers in N ative m ajority com m unities were d issatisfied  or only somewhat sa tisfie d  with the d istr ict board's a ctio n s, the superintendent's m anagem ent, and the support they receive from the central o f f ic e . Many teachers are also d issatisfied  with their own opportunities for professional grow th.M ost rural te a ch e rs , esp ecially  more experienced te a ch e rs , are satisfied  with the general quality of ed ucation  at their schools. In N ative m ajority com m unities, how ever, s ligh tly  over half the teachers were d issatisfied  or only som ewhat satisfied  with their students' academ ic progress.

Im plications
The focus of e f fe c t iv e  schooling projects in most sta tes  is academ ic p rogress. These results su ggest that many rural tea ch e rs, p articu larly  those in N ative m ajority com m unities, see academ ic progress as a problem and will be re ce p tive  to this issue. M ost rural tea ch e rs, especially  experienced teach ers,are sa tis fie d  with the gen eral quality of education their schools o ffe r . TheRural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro je ct should avoid any negative im plications about rural sch o o ls .M ost rural te a ch e rs , how ever, are unlikely to consider the national research on e ffe c t iv e  tea ch in g  h elp fu l. When they consider w hat works in their own sch oo ls, they are likely to focus on p ractices emphasized in the research on N ative A m erican ed u ca tio n . The Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro je ct can point out th at there is ty p ically  no c o n flic t  betw een the research on e ffe c t iv e  schooling and the research on N ative A m erican ed u catio n .In working with v illa g e  schools, the Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro ject should be aw are of the tensions that sometimes exist betw een the d istrict cen ter and the v illa ge  schools and of the need to develop independent support for the p ro ject at both the ce n tra l o ff ic e  and the individual school le v e l. Thep ro ject also needs to be aw are of rural teachers' sensitivity  to what ruralparents w ant and to co lla b o rate  with parents as well as with teachers in any e ffo rts  to improve rural sch oo ls.



THE ISSUE
Rural A laska educators are sk ep tical about the " e ffe c t iv e  schooling" p ractices summarized in the G overnor's Task Force on E ffe c tiv e  Schooling (1981). The Task Force attem pted to id e n tify , on the basis of national research , " e ffe c t iv e  schooling p ractices which would have general ap p licab ility  to Alaskan students" (p.43).* The A lask a  Departm ent of Education (DOE) is using these findings to assist A laska schools in designing their own im provem ent stra te g ie s . In I9S2, DOE focused on urban schools; in 1983 DOE plans to begin a Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro je c t .Rural educators question w hether the national findings on e ffe c t iv e  schooling—usually coming from large urban elem entary schools—apply to the small N ative m ulti-grade schools ty p ical of rural A la sk a . For exam ple, national research on e ffe c t iv e  schooling shows that "children in the primary grades evidence higher achievem ent levels when they receive instruction in closely  supervised, highly structured small group settin gs" (Governor's Task F o rc e , p. 62). D irect instruction in small group settin gs is d iffic u lt  to arrange in rural schools. The teacher must monitor children sometim es spanning five grade levels or m ore. A small group of students at the same grade level may not even e x is t . S e lf-p a ce d  individualized in stru ctio n , in the view of many rural te a ch e rs , is what w orks.Is the nationa.. research lite ratu re  irrelev an t to the m ulti-grade classroom s of rural A lask a? Or do N ative children also iearn more from d irect instruction in small groups rather than se lf-p aced  instruction where this situation can be arranged?Rural teachers also question the national research lite ratu re on e ffe c t iv e  schooling because it does not take into accoun t the sp e c ific  cu ltu ral



c h a ra c te r istic s  and learning styles of N ative A m erican child ren . Indeed, a review  of the research on N ative Am erican education has id entified  a d iffe re n t set of " e ffe c t iv e "  in stru ction al p ra ctice s  (Cotton and Savard, 19£la). This set of p ra ctice s  does not typ ically  co n tra d ict the findings of national research . It fo cu se s , how ever, on other m atters—the im portance of warm, supportive te a c h e rs , N ative Am erican teachers and teacher aides, hands-on m aterials, and coo p erative  student p ro jects .
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P U R P O S E  O F  R E P O R T
The purpose of this report is to  provide background inform ation fored ucators in terested  in finding w ays to support rural schools in in creasing their•E ffe c tiv e n e s s .We present the views of 30^ randomly sampled rural A laska teachers on e ffe c t iv e  in struction  in their com m unities. We asked teach ers:
1) how o ften  they or their .schools used the national e ffe c t iv e  schoolingp ractices recommended in the Task F orce R eport;2) how often  they or their schools used the in structional p ractices research has found to be esp ecially  e ffe c t iv e  with N ative Am erican children;3) what in structional p ractices they personally found most e f fe c t iv e  in their own com m unities: and4) how satisfied  they were with their students' academ ic progress, their own opportunities for professional growth and developm ent, and other school conditions in rural A lask a .
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M ETHODS

This Teacher survey was part of a large study of school governance in rural A lask a  conducted by Dr. G eraid  M cBeath at the University of A laska with .the a ssistan ce of Ju d ith  K le in fe ld , B ill M cDiarm id, and others. In view of the controversy on e f fe c t iv e  schooling p ractices  in rural A la sk a , we added questions on this to pic to a general survey of rural te a ch e rs .
The Sam ple
We mailed the survey in the spring of 19S2 to one randomly se lected  teacher from each rural A laska school (N = 315). (We defined "rural" as schools outside urban a re as , such as A n ch o rag e , Fairbanks, Ju n e a u , and Kenai.) The response rate was extrem ely high—96 percent of the rural teachers answered our questions. M ost teachers answered the questions c a re fu lly ; indeed, many wrote notes in the m argins to c la r ify  their view s.The total sam ple—304 rural A laska teachei s—is unusually large and rep resen tative of rural schools. Since we sampled one teacher from each rural school (not rural teachers in general) the sample includes large numbers of teachers from sm all, m ulti-grade schools.
L im itatio n s o f a Survey
In asking teachers about their own in structional p ractices or ^hose commonly used at their schoo l, we faced a problem . Some of the most imDortant in structional p ra ctice s  id en tified  in the national literatu re  cannot be measured through a survey.



Study a fte  study, for exam p le, has iound th at in some classroom sstudents spend most of their tim e doing academ ic ta sk s. In others, classw ork isconstantly  Interrupted because the teach er stops to discipline students, passout m ate rials , or atten d  to adm inistrative d e ta ils . "Tim e on task" is strongly 
*related to gains in achievem ent on standardized tests  (see review  by C o tto n  and Savard , 1981b).A  mailed survey, how ever, can n ot be used to m easure how much time rural A lask a  students spend doing acad em ic w ork. M ost teachers could not say with any a ccu racy  how many minutes a day their students are on ta sk . Classroom  ob servation—extrem ely expensive and tim e-consum ing in rem ote rural schools—would be required . What we could ask teachers in a mailed survey is a related question—w hether their school has found a way to lim it the interruptions common in rural schools, for exam ple, basketball gam es, m edical and dental exam s, student trips, and the like .In short, we could not ask rural teachers about every e ffe c t iv e  in structional p ra c tic e  discussed in the Task F orce R e p o rt. We did ask about those p ra c tic e s  which teachers could report on in a m ailed survey.

Data A nalysis
We analyzed teach ers' reports by many ca te g o rie s—w hether the school was N ative m ajority (80 p ercent or more), w hite m ajority (SO percent or more), or of mixed e th n ic ity ; w hether the school was R E A A , B IA , c ity  or borough; whether the school was large or sm all; and the number of years experien ce the teacher had in the community or in rural A laska ed u catio n .In presenting the results, we use the ca te g o rie s  where s ta t i .t ic a lly  sign ifica n t d iffe re n ce s  most frequently o ccu rred . In the case of the p rincipal's in structional ro le , for exam p le, the g rea test d iffe re n ce s  occurred in schools of
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d iffe re n t s ize . In the case of Teachers' exp ectatio n s about w hether or not their students would attend c o lle g e , the grea test d iffe re n ce s  occurred betw een N ative and w hite m ajority com m unities. Where no substantial d iffe re n ce s  o ccu r, we present results for all rural te a ch e rs .
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FINDINGS

Use of N a:ic  ta l E ffe c t iv e  Schooling P ra ctice s
N ational research suggests that the follow ing p ractices are strongly and consistently  related to student achievem ent (Governor's Task F o rc e , 1981). We asked rural A laska teachers how often  they used them:
— A llo c a tin g  additional in structional tim e for low a b ility ,low -ach ievin g students (including T itle  I and other programs).— Using com puter-assisted instruction to supplement regular teach in g .— Using standardized test scores to set academ ic priorities ando b je ctiv e s .— Using diverse in structional m aterials including k its, m ock-uos,modules and hands-on p ro jects .— Scheduling non-academ ic a c tiv itie s  to limit disruption ofin structional tim e.
O f  these fiv e  p ra c tic e s , the only one used in most schools (69 percent)was increasing in structional time with low achieving s tu d e n t  (Table I).F ed erally  funded Title 1 programs probabi c  rcount for the frequency of thisp r a c tic e . *\bout half the teachers (53 percent) said they used a variety  ofin structional m aterials. But less than half said that the school attem pted toschedule non-academ ic a c tiv itie s  outside c lasstim e, that com puters were used

2on a regular basis, or that the school paid attention  to standardized test scores in settin g  academ ic goals and p riorities . Most teachers said that their schools used these p ractices "som ew hat" but not "o fte n ."



TABLE i
NATIONAL EFFECTIVE TEACHING PRACTICES

TEACHERS USING PRACTICE OFTEN: 
ALL RURAL SCHOOLS
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SOURCE: McBeath, G., Kleinfeld, J., McDiarmid, G., and Coon, D.
A Statewide Survey of Rural Alaska School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK 
Center for Cross-Cultural Studies, University of Alaska, 1982.



We found very lit t le  d iffe re n c e  in the use of these p ra ctice s  in schools of d iffe re n t size or o f d iffe re n t eth n ic  com position . Since EIA  schools are being phased out in rural A la sk a , it is in te re stin g , how ever, that these were the schools most likely to use some of these p ra c tic e s . BIA schools were sig n ifica n tly  more likely  to use standardized te st scores to set academ ic goals and p rio rities (50 percent) and to schedule non-acad em ic a c tiv itie s  so thev did not in terrupt classw ork (62 p ercent). We do not know why this is the ca se . Possibly these results in d ica te  the narrower acad em ic emphasis of the B IA —an older and more trad ition al school system .
Homework
Another in stru ction al p ra ctice  related to student achievem ent inn a tio n d  research is regularly assigning homework (Colem an, H o ffe r , andK ilg o re , 1982). In rural A laska  many teachers find w hether or not to givehomework a troublesom e issue. A s some teachers explained in the margins of the survey, students may not have the lig h tin g , sp a ce , or opportunity at home to com plete hom ework. (One teacher in a trad ition al Eskimo community wrotethat the "school board requested that students not be given homework.")In view of these circu m stan ces, we asked rural teachers w hether they regularly assigned homeworl to their students. S ligh tly  less than half (48percent) said they did (Table 2,'. Some of these te a ch e rs , of cou rse , teach  inthe early elem entary grades where homework is not con ven tio n al. When we consider only teachers of junior high and high school students, the proportion of teachers who assign homework in creases but only slightly (55 p ercent).Some rural te a c h e rs , aw are that students find it d iffic u lt  to dohomework at home, hold before or a fte r  school study sessions where students can do hom ew ork. The classroom  atm osphere, they argue, helps students get



TABLE 2

HOMEWORK AND AFTER-SCHOOL STUDY SESSIONS : 
ALL RURAL SCHOOLS

PROPORTION OF RURAL TEACHERS WHO PROPORTION OF RURAL TEACHERS WHO
REGULARLY ASSIGN HOMEWORK HOLD FORMAL BEFORE OR AFTER SCHOOL

STUDY SESSIONS

SOURCE: McBeath, G . , Klelnfeld, J. , Mclliarmid, G., and Coon, I). A Statevntte Survey of Rural Alaska
School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK: Center for Cross-Cultural STudles, Universfty of Alai¥a7~1 9 8 ? .



down to work and the te a ch e r is th ere when the students need help . A bout a quarter of the rural tea ch e rs we surveyed held such study sessions as o fte n  as tw ice a week and another 15 percen t held them once a week (Table 2). Teachers of junior high and high school students held a fte r  school study sessions no more frequ en tly  than other te a c h e rs .More experienced rural tea ch e rs are more likely to hold a fte r  school study sessions. For exam p le, only about 20 percent of teachers in N ative com m unities with one to four years' exp erien ce held a fte r  school study sessions; among tea ch e rs with five  or more years' experience ^6 p ercent held such sessions (p < .06).
Teacher E xp e cta tio n s
In the national lite ra tu re  on e f fe c t iv e  schooling, holding high exp ectatio n s for student achievem ent has been found to be a c r itic a l c h a ra c te r is tic  of e f fe c t iv e  teachers (see especially  Brookover, 1979). T yp ically  exp ectatio n s are measured by asking teachers such questions as what proportion of their students they ex p e ct to com plete high school and attend c o lle g e , how they would com pare the ability  of their students to students n a tio n ally , and w hether they feel their students can be exp ected  to ach ieve at3national norms.Rural tea ch e rs, w hether their students are mostly N ative or mostly w hite, ex p e ct the m ajority of their students to com plete high school (Tabie 3). Teachers in Native m ajority schools, how ever, are sign ifican tly  less likely  to exp ect students to attend and com plete co lle ge  than teachers in w hite m ajority schools (Table 3).Rural teachers' own view s about co lle ge  for their students are consistent with what they think parents want for their ch ild ren . In N ative
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TABLE 3

RURAL TEACHERS' EXPECTATIONS ABOUT 
HIGH SCHOOL AND COLLEGE COMPETITION:

WHITE MAJORITY, MIXED, AND NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS

96%

Expect 701 or Expect Half or Expect Half or
More Students More Students More Students
To Graduate To Attend To Complete

From High School College** College**

□

WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS 
N = 74

MIXED ETHNICITY SCHOOLS 
N = 59

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS 
N = 162

**p < .01

McBeath, G., Kleinfeld, J., McDiarmid, G., and Coon, D.
A Statewide Survey of Rural Alaska School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK 
Center for Cross-Cultural Studies, University of Alaska, 1982.



m ajority com m unities, 49 percent of the teachers said th at none of the parents exp ected  students to com plete c o lle g e . In w hite m ajority com m unities, the same proportion of teachers believed that parents exp ected  half or more students to com plete c o lle g e .We did not survey parents in either N ative or white com m unities, and we do not know if  teach ers' perceptions are co rre ct or in co rre ct. Teachers' comments in the margins of the surveys, how ever, suggest their concern about parents' support for what they are trying to do in school:
"It gets very depressing to a te a ch e r .You really g e t tired of playing theheavy and being the only (most ofthe time) n egative in flu e n ce  ontheir l i f e . By n egative I mean that you try to en fo rce some kind ofdiscipline or ru les."

"Parents are relu ctan t to see their children leave home and becom e indoctrinated in a foreign c u ltu re ."
"If the parents would support the teacher we would have much greater su ccess."

When we asked rural teachers about the level of academ ic achievem ent they could ex p ect of their students, there were again wide d iffe re n ce s betw een N ative m ajority schools and w hite m ajority schools. About 60 percent of rural teachers in N ative m ajority com m unities fe lt  th at the academ ic ability  of their students was lower than that of students nationally  (Table 4). Sixty percent also fe lt  that their students could not be exp ected  to achieve at national noi.ns (Tabie 5). S im ilarly , only slightly more than half the teachers in N ative m ajority com m unities fe lt  their schools could be better than average (Table 6).
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TABLE 4
i

RURAL TEACIICRS' VIEWS OF THEIR STUDENTS' ACADEMIC ABILITY 
COMPARED TO STUDENTS NATIONWIDE:

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS AND WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS A* 

N = 162

HIE MAJORITY SCHOOLS**

N = 74 **p < .01

SOURCE: McBeatli, fi., Kleinfcld, J., McDiarmid, G
feathers, Fairbanks, AK: CenterSchool 19B2 .

and Coon, 1). A Statewide Survey of Rural Alaska 
for Cross-Cultural Studies, University of Alaska,



TABLE 5

RL‘°4L TEACHERS' VIEWS ON THE ACHIEVEMENT LEVEL 
THAT CAN BE EXPECTED OF THEIR STUDENTS: 

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS AND WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS** WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS**

N = 162 N = 74 **p < .01

SOURCE: McBeatli, G., Kleinfeld, J. , McDiarmid, G., and Coon, D. A Statewide Survey o f Rural Alaska
School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK: Center for Cross-Cultural Studies, UniversTly of Alaska,Y9B2 .
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TABLE 6

RURAL TEACHERS' VIEWS ON MOW GOOD A SCHOOL 

THEIR SCHOOL CAN BE:

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS AND WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS * * 

N = 162

WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS**

N = 74 ** p < .01

SOURCE: McBeath, G., Kleinfeld, J.t McDiarmid, G., and Coon, D. A Statewide Survey of Rural Alaska
School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK: Center for Cross-CulturaTTEiuNesV University oFAlasTcaT" 
19B2.
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It is d iff ic u lt  to know how to in terp ret these results. One view is that rural te a ch e rs are simply being r e a lis t ic . They are aw are th at their students have grown up in is o la te d , cu ltu rally  d iffe re n t com m unities and that for many standard English is a second la n g u a ge . They know th at in fa c t  most students score below  national norm s. It  would be unreasonable to e x p e c t their students to do as w ell as students natio n ally- Indeed, several teachers wrote on their surveys th at we should be c a re fu l N O T to in terp ret their responses as "low e x p e c ta tio n s ."W hile we w ere inclined to a c c e p t this view , it is still troubling that so many rural tea ch e rs do not ex p ect their students to achieve at national norms. A  national norm, a fte r  a ll , is an average of children from the inner c ity  and rural M ississippi as w ell as from S carsd ale . The issue of how to set reasonable standards, o f what kinds of academ ic perform ance should count as success, is a vexing one in rural ed u ca tio n .
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Use o f N ative A m erican  E ffe c t iv e  T eaching P ra c tic e s
In a review  of the research lite ra tu re  on N ative Am erican ed ucation . C o tto n  and Savard (1981a) id en tified  in struction al p ra ctice s  especially  e ffe c tiv e  with Indian and Eskimo stud ents. These p ra ctice s  are quite d iffe re n t from those id en tified  in the national lite ra tu re  on e f fe c t iv e  schooling . They em phasize lo ca lize d  in stru ction  rather than e ff ic ie n t  use of tim e. The p ra ctice s include:
— Use o f N ative teacher aides— S e lf-p a c e d  instruction— C o o p era tiv e  student learning situations (such as peer teaching andgroup projects)— Use of lo ca l curriculum  m aterials (such as legends)— Use of lo ca l exam ples to illu stra te  academ ic concepts
Tne p ra c tic e s  listed above, how ever, are not supported by a substantial body of w ell-designed research . In g en eral, research on N ative Am erican ed ucation is s c a r c e . Such p ractices as "tim e on task" have not been syste m atica lly  exam ined with N ative A m erican s.We found that rural teachers in N ative m ajority schoois used the p ra c tic e s  linked to e f fe c t iv e  teachin g of Native A m erican students fairly  often  (Table 7). A lm ost th ree-fo u rth s of the tea ch e rs, for exam ple, said their schools o ften  used teacher a id es. M ore than half the teachers frequently used se lf-p a ce d  instruction and relied on local exam ples to explain academ ic co n ce p ts . More experienced teachers were esp e cially  likely to use these p r a c tic e s . For exam ple, 44 percent of teachers with five or more years exp erien ce in the community often  used local curriculum  m aterials; among teach ers with two to four years exp erien ce , 17 percent often  used local
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TABLE 7

USE OF INSTRUCTIONAL PRACTICES RESEARCH HAS FOUND 
ESPECIALLY EFFECTIVE WITH NATIVE AMERICAN STUDENTS; 
NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS AND WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS
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SOURCE: McBeath, G., Kleinfeld, J., McDiarmid, G . , and Coon, D.
A Statewide Survey of Rural Alaska School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK: 
Center for Cross-Cultural Studies, University of Alaska, 1982.



m aterials (p< .04). More experienced teachers were sig n ifica n tly  mort likely to use lo ca l exam ples to illu stra te  academ ic co n cep ts. They were somewhat more likely  (the trends did not quite reach conventional levels of s ta tis tica l sign ifica n ce) to use se lf-p aced  instruction and cooperative student learning situ atio n s.
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Instructional P ra ctice s  R u ral A lask a  T eachers See as Highly E ffe c t iv e  in Their Com m unities
We asked rural teachers to describe b riefly  the instructional p ractices they found p articu larly  e ffe c t iv e  in their own com m unities. Each of the “follow in g p ra c tic e s  w ere mentioned by about 20 percent of the teachers (a fa ir ly  large group considering the wide variety  of p ractices teachers m entioned):
1* Use of diverse in stru ction al m ate rials , esp ecially  hands-on m aterials.

"Any type of hands-on class seems to be a b etter m otivator than a purely academ ic program . A rts , m usic, small en gines, sL.n .-^ewing, e tc ."
" H a n d s - o n  p r o j e c t s  t h a t  a r e  p e r t i n e n t  a n d  m e a n i n g f u l  to everyday l ife ."
"Hands-on p rojects have shown the most knowledge g ain s."

2. S e lf-P a c e d  Instruction, esp ecially  when the teachers sets some standards for the amount of work to be com pleted.
"Self-p a ce d  with guidelines (such as at least five  pages in math done by Friday; they can go faster but have t o  m e e t  t h e  m i n i m u m  requirem ents)."
"A s I have only ten students in a one room school, se lf-p aced  (and teacher-paced) in struction  works w ell. I find group a c tiv itie s  hard to plan because of the grade level spread."
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3. C o o p era tiv e  Student L e a rn in g , esp ecially  group p rojects and peer tu to rin g .

" G r o u p  a s s i g n m e n t s  a r e  v e r y  e ffe c t iv e ."
"In a m ulti-grade classroom , the older students make w onderful teachers for the younger stud ents."
"Group projects such as a w eekly school-com m unity new spaper."

Involving Parents and Com m unity People in the Classroom .
"Sending home nightly study guides for the fam ily to work on th at day's reading vocabulary and word sk ills ."  (majority w hite community)
"R etired  com m unity people with special ta le n ts  and in te re sts ."  (majority w hite community)

When asked to describe the teachin g  p ra ctice s they saw as e f fe c t iv e , few rural teachers mentioned any of the p ra ctice s  discussed in the national lite ratu re  on e f fe c t iv e  schooling. The excep tio n  was the use of d iversein struction al m aterials and here rural A laska teachers added a d iffe re n t em phasis—the im portance of hands-on m aterials.
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R ural P rin cip a ls1 Instructional R o le
The national literature on e f fe c t iv e  schooling suggests th at the ach ievem en t o f low -incom e children goes up when the building principal takeson the role of instructional leader and focuses s t a ff  and student energy onraising ach ievem en t levels (Cotton and Savard, 1981c).P rin cip als in Alaska rural schools, esp e cia lly  sm aller schools, a lread y p a rtic ip a te  to a great exten t in the business of teachin g  (Table 8). The role of the principal is strongly related to the size of the schoo l. In very small schools, alm ost three-fourths of the principals are also classroom  te a c h e rs . Inschools of 50 students or below , about h alf the principals often  plan ,co o rd in a te , and eva lu ate  in struction .



TABLE 8

THE PRINCIPAL AS INSTRUCTIONAL LEADER: 

ALL RURAL SCHOOLS
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SOURCE: McBeath, G., Kleinfeld, J., McDiarmid, G., and Coon, D.
A Statewide Survey of Rural Alaska School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK: 
Center for Cross-Cultural Stuaies, University of Alaska, 1932.
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R ural T each ers' S a tis fa c tio n  With School M anagem ent and WorkingCondition s
R ead ing through 304 teach er surveys, many marked with m arginal com m ents, was a disheartening ex p e rie n ce . The teach ers' dom inant mood was fru stra tio n . O c c a s io n a lly , a teacher would voice sa tis fa c tio n :

"This is a great p lace u  be, c h a l l e n g i n g  s t u d e n t s ,  h e l p f u l  parents, and a co o p erative  d is tr ic t .We love it here so I don't know when w e'll le a v e ."
But the m ajority of the notes in the m argins were com plain ts. Many teachers w ere depressed and d issa tis fie d , even though the m ajority (73 percent) thought they w ere personally su ccessfu l as rural te a c h e rs .W'e asked teachers what they w ere sa tisfie d  and d issatisfied  about—pay and b e n e fits , housing, relationships with the students and w ith the com m unity, d istrict o ff ic e  m anagem ent, students' academ ic progress, and so on. The results surprised us.The m ajority of teachers were not concerned about the standard issues discussed in co n tra ct n egotiations or le g is la tiv e  reports or the academ ic lite ra tu re . M ost teachers (S3 percent) w ere sa tisfie d  w ith their pay and ben efits (Table 9). Housing was an a cu te  problem for some (about a third), but not for m ost. Nor did teach ers find it d iff ic u lt  to develop good relationships with the cu ltu ra lly  d iffe re n t students they ta u g h t. Indeed most teachers (93 percent) saw their relationships with students as a major source of sa tis fa c tio n .What fru strated  t e a c i .e i ;  most was not relationships with d iffe re n t cultures but relationships with the d istr ic t o f f ic e . More than h alf the teachers in N ative m ajority com m unities were d issatisfied  or only somewhat satisfied
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TABLE 9

TEACHER SATISFACTION WITH SCHOOL MANAGEMENT 
AND WORKING CONDITIONS:

NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS AND WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS
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SOURCE: McBeath, G., Kleinfeld, J . , McDiarmid, G., and Coon, D.
A Statewide Survey of Rural Alaska School Teachers, Fairbanks, AK 
Center for Cross-Cultural Studies, University of Alaika, 1982.



w ith the d istrict school board, the superintendent's m anagem ent, and the support they received from  the d istrict o f f ic e .Several teach ers com m ented on the margins of their survey, forexam p le, th at the school near the cen tra l o f f ic e  received an unfair share of 
*equipm ent. Some tea ch e rs in rem ote schools said th at the "superintendent never has been here to make a v isit"  and that the d istric t o ff ic e  "too frequently fo rg e ts  the v illa ge  sch o o ls."  O thers fe lt  that the d istrict s ta ff  did not support them and did not understand their situation:

"M any problems that fa c e  rural schools are s e lf- in flic te d —usually f r o m  t h e  c e n t r a l  o f f i c e .A dm inistrators who have never worked or lived in rural A laska o ften  make decisions that do not f it  v illa ge  life  or needs."
These types of tensions are common betw een any "cen ter" and its "periphery", w hether it is a corporate headquarters and its rem ote o ff ic e s , a city  and its cou n trysid e, or the d istrict o ff ic e  and its village schools. The cen tral o ffic e  p ersp ective is , of course, quite d iffe r e n t . C e n tra l o ffic e  s ta ff  see them selves as having many schools to v is it , many programs to adm inister, many grant ap p lication s and reports to w rite . The point of in terest to the rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro je ct is the existen ce of such tensions and the need to develop a strategy for change th at is supported by both the cen tral o ffic e  ana the v illage schools.Another area where a large proportion of teachers were dissatisfied was with their own opportunities for professional grow th . In N ative m ajority com m unities, A6 p ercent of the teachers m entioned this area (Table 9). One teacher w rote on her survey:
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"I am in a tiny school—one other teach er not my husband. I have no one to ask questions o f . My class of primary grade children includes an in cred ib le  range of students (skill, in te llig e n c e , behavior, m otivation). I have an unworkable curriculum  guide which presents me w ith ample m a t e r i a l s  t o  u s e  w i t h  e a c h  g r a d e - - t h r e e - - a n d  e a c h  su b je ct—e ig h t—but no ad vice  at all for my c la ss . My d istr ic t has o ffe re d  me one training session, one w eek . I am alone!"
Rural teachers see the lack of opportunities, for exam ple, to talk  over their teachin g  problems with other professionals as one of the serious problems of v illa g e  te a c h in g . P rofessional exchanges in an isolated v illage  school are d if f ic u lt . The teaching s ta ff  its e lf is small and few  instructors teach similar grade levels or su b jects . The teacher ca n 't ta lk  shop with someone e lse , for exam p le, who is struggling with how to teach high school E nglish . In addition, interpersonal tensions can develop betw een rural teachers at the same school. Unlike urban te a ch e rs , a v illa ge teacher cannot leave it a ll , vent frustrations to an uninvolved p arty , and return the next morning with a d iffe re n t p ersp ective .
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Rural Teachers' Satisfaction With Educational Conditions
M ost rural teachers (63 percent) were sa tisfie d  with The general quality of ed ucation  at their school (Table 10). Teachers with more experien ce in rural A laska  ed ucation  w ere sig n ifica n tly  more s a tis fie d . O f teachers who had five years or more e x p e rie n ce , for exam p le, 79 percent w ere very or m ostly satisfied  w ith the general quality of ed u ca tio n .When we asked teach ers more sp e c ific a lly  about academ ic progress, how ever, less than h alf the teach ers w ere sa tis fie d . More exp erienced teachers were not s ig n ifica n tly  more sa tisfie d  than those new to rural A laska  ed u catio n . T eachers saw a key problem as m otivatio n , not discipline or tea ch er-stu d en t relationships (Table 10).
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TEACHER SATISFACTION WITH EDUCATIONAL CONDITIONS: 
NATIVE MAJORITY SCHOOLS AND WHITE MAJORITY SCHOOLS
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IM P L IC A T IO N S  F O R  THE R U R A L  E F F E C T IV E  S C H O O L S  P R O JE C T
In attem pting to change schools, it is c r it ic a l to begin with what teachers see as problem s. It is im portant, th e re fo re , to know th at many rural .teachers do see students' academ ic progress—the ty p ica l focus of statew ide e f fe c t iv e  schooling p ro jects—as a serious issue. Rural teachers may w ell be re ce p tiv e  to a p ro ject aimed at assisting them to increase students' academ ic sk ills . The m ajority of teachers are sa tis fie d , in co n tra st, with the general quality of ed ucation  in their school. A project that appears to teachers to be based on the assumption that rural schools are somehow "fa ilin g "  will be u n a ttr a c tiv e .Rural A laska  teachers are not likely , how ever, to be recep tive to the in stru ction al p ractices that naTiona! research has found to be im portant in raising achievem ent among low income children. M ost of these p ractices are not used o fte n  in rural schools. Nor are these the p ra ctice s  that come to mind when teachers think about what really works in rural classroom s.Tne m ajority of teachers in N ative m ajority com m unities, in co n tra st, do use o fte n  some of the in structional p ractices that research has linked to the e f fe c t iv e  education of N ative A m erican ed u catio n —Native teacher aides, se lf-p a ce d  in stru ctio n , using local exam ples to illu stra te  academ ic co n ce p ts . When we asked teachers what worked in their own classroom s, they mentioned these kinds of p ra c tic e s , not the p ractices em phasised in the national research lite ra tu re .The Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro ject should point out to teachers that there is no necessary contradiction  betw een the national research on e ffe c t iv e  schooling and the research on N ative Am erican ed u catio n . (The value ofin d iv id u a lize d , se lf-p aced  instruction is an exception.) The e ffe c t iv e  schooling



lite ra tu re  focuses in large part at the school le v e l. The N ative Am erican ed ucation lite ra tu re  focuses prim arily at the classroom  le v e l. It  is not surprising th at te a c h e rs , concerned w ith making their classroom s run w ell and fine tuning their m ethods, are more in terested in the classroom  le v e l. Both sets of p ra ctice s may be im portant to rural schooling.In working with teachers to improve small rural schools, there are special opportunities and special p it fa lls . An opportunity is th at many rural teachers are d issatisfied  with what they are o ffe re d  in the area of professional growth and developm ent. The Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schooling P ro je ct may be able to provide professional assistan ce th at tea ch e rs will a p p re cia te . A nother advantage is that rural princip als, p articu larly  in small schools, are already a ctiv e  in in stru ctio n . Many principals are p rin cip al-te ach ers and plan, co o rd in ate, and ev alu ate  the in structional program . R ural principals are stra te g ic a lly  placed to becom e in structional leaders.In working with v illage schools, how ever, the Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro ject should be aw are of the tensions that exist betw een many village schools and the cen tral o f f ic e . The P ro je ct should carefu lly  develop independent support at both the school and cen tral o ff ic e  lev e ls .The Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools P ro je ct also needs to be aw are of rural teachers' sensitivity  to what parents want and the fe e lin g  of teachers in some com m unities tb~t parents do not ex p ect their children to go on to c o lle g e . The issue of what should count as high exp ectatio n s and academ ic success in a cu ltu rally  d iffe re n t v illa ge  school w arrants discussion. This is an issue that cannot be appropriately considered w ithout the p articipation  of village parents. Above a ll , the Rural E ffe c t iv e  Schools p ro ject needs to gain the a ctive  support of parents for e ffo rts  to improve rural schools.
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F O O T N O T E S

Many review s of the lite ratu re  on e f fe c t iv e  schooling p ractices have been published in the national lite ra tu re . This paper refers prim arily to the lite ra tu re  review s conducted by the Northw est R egion al Educational L ab o ra to ry . These review s w ere commissioned by the G overnor's Task Force on * E ffe c t iv e  Schooling and form the research base most discussed in A lask a .
2 This survey was done in the spring of 1982. M ore com puters have been introduced to rural school since this tim e. How o ften  they are used, how ever, is another question .

 ̂ We used the set of questions developed by Brookover et a l. (1979) to measure academ ic e x p e cta tio n s . Brookover found these item s to be highly related to achievem ent in M ichigan schools enrolling low income black and w hite ch ild ren . We made minor m odifications of these item s to make them more appropriate for rural A la sk a .
14. Our survey question on what in structional p ractices the teacher personally found e ffe c t iv e  cam e a fte r  the survey questions asking w hether the teacher used the p ractices described in the national lite ra tu re  or the literatu re on N ative A m erican ed u catio n . We asked teachers to draw either from these lists or elsew here in describing what they personally found e f fe c t iv e .
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NOTICE

The House Health, Education and Social Services Committee gives notice 
that it will take testimony on House Bill 504, "An Act establishing the 
teacher scholarship loan program," at the times and locations indicated 
below:

Kotzebue
Kotzebue Technical Center 
1:00 p.m.
Friday, February 3, 1984
Teleconierenced to Capitol Room 112, Juneau, 1:00 p.m.

Nome City Hall 
10:00 a.m.
Saturday, February 4, 1984
Teleconferenced to Capitol Room 112, Juneau, 10:00 a.m.

Bethel
Kuskokwim Inn Annex 
12:00 p.m.
Sunday, February 5, 1984
Teleconferenced to Capitol Room 112, Juneau, 12:00 p.m.

If necessary, the Chairman may at her discretion limit testimony to a 
stated amount of time per witness.

Please contact Bill Lovell at 465 - 3777 or the local Legislative 
Information Office for more information.

Nome

/wtl



Janet M. Merrill 
8760 Dudley St. 
Juneau, Alaska 99801

February 7, 1984

Rep. Vern Hurlbert 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V, State Capitol 
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Verb;

With respect to your recent letter concerning House Bill 5oa, I 

would like to state that I do support the concept of this bill. I do, 

however, have some reservations with respect to section 14.43.630, en­

titled "Conditions of Loans." In order to encourage a larger number of

Native people to take advantage of this loan program, I would suggest

the following revisions: 1) Loans should be available to graduate students

as well as undergraduates. 2) The forgiveness scale for returning to the 

home school district to teach should be extended to returning to any rural 

district in Alaska to teach (perhaps with a maximum of 75% forgiveness for 

the latter option).

I personally feel that these amendments would increase the quality and 

the quantity of applicants. As a professional in the field of education, I 

am encouraged in your efforts to pass this bill, and wish you success and

support. Please feel free to share this letter with The Speaker of the House,

Mr. Joe Hayes.
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F e b r u a r y  7, 1984

R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  V e r n  H u r l b e r t  
A l a s k a  S t a t e  L e g i s l a t u r e  

P o u c h  V 
S tat e C a p i t o l  
Ju n eau , A l a s k a  99 811

D e a r  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  H ur l be rt :

Th i s  l e t t e r  is w r i t t e n  in s u p p o r t  of H o use Bill No. 504 w h i c h  
was r e c e n t l y  i n t r o d u c e d  in the second s e s s i o n  of the 13th 
L e g i s l a t u r e .

As N a t i v e  L e a d e r s  of N a t i v e  C o r p o r a t i o n  and the C o m m u n i t y  we are 
well a w a r e  of your c o n c e r n s  on the lack of N a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  w i t h i n  
the t e a c h i n g  p o s i t i o n .  U n f o r t u n a t e l y  to our k n o w l e d g e  their is 
only two c e r t i f i e d  N a t i v e  teac h e r  in the district.

We need to w o r k  t o g e t h e r  to e n c o u r a g e  e d u c a t i o n a l  e x c e l l e n c e  
in all p e r s p e c t i v e  a m o n g  our s t u d e n t s  and to p l ace ile m o d e l s  

in the c l a s s r o o m s .

One o t h e r  t h ing is to e n c o u r a g e  or have m a n d a t o r y  r e g u l a t i o n  of 
D e p a r t m e n t  of E d u c a t i o n  and the local Sc h o o l  D i s t r i c t  hire c e r t i f i e d  
N a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  w h e n  they are g r a d u a t e s  of X - C E D  P r o g r a m s .

In any event we s i n c e r e l y  s u p p o r t  the c o n c e p t  of H o u s e  Bill 504.

cc: N e l s  P e t e r s e n ,  P r e s i d e n t  GZ C o r p o r a t i o n

N J : a b p
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Alaska Native Land Managers Association840 K Street, Suite 202 Anchorage, Alaska 99501 (907) 272-1254
F e b r u a r y  13, 1984

R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  V e r n  H u r l b e r t  
P o u c h  V  (MS 3100)
Jun. au, A l a s k a  99811

Re: H B  504

D e a r  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  H u r l b e r t :

A t  a r e c e n t  m e e t i n g  o f  the A l a s k a  N a t i v e  L a n d  M a n a g e r s  
A s s o c i a t i o n ,  the m e m b e r s h i p  p a s s e d  the e n c l o s e d  r e s o l u t i o n  
u r g i n g  p a s s a g e  o f  HB 504, d e a l i n g  w i t h  e s t a b l i s h i n g  the 
t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loan pro g r a m .

W e  feel th a t  th i s  b i l l  s a t i s f i e s  an i m p o r t a n t  r.eed in r u r a l  
A l a s k a .  F o r  t o o  long, y o u n g  p e o p l e  h a v e  left t h e  v i l l a g e s  to 
a t t e n d  c o l l e g e ,  n e v e r  to return. A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  w e  h a v e  
w a t c h e d  a p a r a d e  of n o n - n a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  t h r o u g h  the v i l l a g e  
sc hools. We feel t h a t  it is i m p o r t a n t  to h a v e  a s t a b l e  s t a f f  
o f  t e a c h e r s  in r u r a l  s c hools. W e  a l s o  feel th a t  it is 
p r e f e r a b l e  to h a v e  n a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  t e a c h i n g  in p r e d o m i n a n t l y  
n a t i v e  s c h o o l s  in o r d e r  to u n d e r s t a n d  and p r e s e r v e  the u n i q u e  
c u l t u r e  and h i s t o r y  of A l a s k a  N a t i v e  p e o p l e s .  It is o u r  
f e e l i n g  that n a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  w i l l  p r o v i d e  a v a l u a b l e  ro l e  
m o d e l  for s t u d e n t s  in r ural A l a s k a .  T h e  s t u d e n t s  n e e d  to see 
t h a t  t h e y  can be  a s u c c e s s  a n d  th a t  t h e y  can be l e a d e r s  in 
t o d a y ' s  world.

W e  feel s t r o n g l y  th a t  the p a s s a g e  o f  HB 504 w i l l  be a n o t h e r  
s t e p  a l o n g  the p a t h  t o w a r d s  i m p r o v i n g  r u r a l  e d u c a t i o n  and the 
l i v e s  of  r u r a l  A l a s k a n s .

V e r y  t r u l y  yo u r s ,

D a n i e l  Alex,
P r e s i d e n t



MSG 84-0001 1995 PRTY 1 0 2 / 0 9 / 8 4  15:06:15 OR 18: LGOO IN* 0015 OUT*: 0138
FROM: JOANN GLENNA L L E N  TO: JNU LJ.0 FOR RE-TRANSMISSICJN
TARGET: LJHK SUBJ: POM

PUBLIC OPINION MESSAGE TO: S E N A T O R S  -■ KER T T U L A  AND MOSS
REPRESENTAT IVES - S H U L T Z  ANlPT'TSCHER 

Sl NDER: MAXWELL. 1). FANCHER, R E T I R E D  P U B L I C  SCHOOL A D M I N I S T R A T O R
BOX U  GLENNALLEN, A L A S K A  99580
HOME PHONE: 0 2 2 - 3 7 1 5  WORK PHONE: 822-52.41 X208 

M E S S A G E : RE • IIB 504
1. OPEN fHI. BILL TO G R A D U A T E S  OF P R I V A T E  SCHOOLS AND GED G R A D U A T E S
2. ALLOW STUDENTS TO APPLY TO ANY S C H O O L  D I S TRICT WHERE THERE IS AN E S T A B­

LISHED NEED FOR N A T I V E  TEACHERS* •
3. LOAN FORGIVENESS: IF D I S T R I C T  W H E R E  S T U D E N T  R E C E I V E S  L O A N  HAS NO 

OPENING ALLOW STUDENT TO T E A C H  IN ANY OTHER DISTRICT W H I C H  HAS ETHNIC 
NEED.

4. WHAT EMPLOYMENT COMMITMENT WILL SCHOOL DISTRICT P R O V I D E  FOR GRADUATE"1
5. WHAT HAPPENS IF A D I S T R I C T  HAS NO O P E N I N G S  PUT A N OTHER D I S T R I C T  DOES?
6. THE CONCEPT AND NEED FOR THIS LULL ‘S H O U L D  RLCLIVF A HIGH PRIORITY.
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MSG 8 4 - 0 0 0 1 2465 PR TY 1 0 2 / 1 0 / 8 4  15: 12: Hi (JRIG: I.(,00 IN= 0000 OUT- 0098
PROM: JOANN G L E N N A L L E N  T(J: JUNEAU LIQ FOR R E - T R A N S M  ISSION
TARGET: LJUK SUBJ: P(JH »

T O  : 
FROM:

******** P U B L I C  O P I N I O N  M E S S A G E  ******** 
ALL R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S  AND SENATOR MOSS'
FRED T. W I L L I A M S
MILE 112 R I C H A R D S O N  IIWY.
BOX VI, GLENNALLEN. Al< 99508 HOME PHONE: 022-3922

RE: MB 504 I OPPOSE THIS BILL* THE P R E S E N T  S T U D E N T  LOAN P R O G R A M  NOW 
P R O V I D E S  FUNDS FOR E D U C A T I O N A L  PURSUITS* A LACK OF E D U C A T I O N A L  FUNDS 
AND O P P O R T U N I T I E S  IS NOT THE R E A S O N S  WE 1)0 NOT HAVE MORE NATIVE TEACHERS* 
C R E A T I N G  A N OTHER S T A T E  P R O G R A M  WILL NOT SOLVE THIS PROBLEM.

I
. • ••• • ■

... ... «•:? ,
 ■

 — *  2---------------------        i



MSG 84-00014733 PRTY 1 02/17/84 10:15:07 G R I G : L.N00 IN= 0002 GUT- 0029
FROM: SANDY / NOME TO: JUNEAU INFORMATION
TARGET: SUBJ: P.O.M. 3
TO: REPRESENTATIVE MAE TISCHER, CHAIRPERSON, HESS C O M M I T T E E

R E P R ESENTATIVE SAM P E S T I N G E R , VICE-CHAIRPERSON, HESS COMMITTEE 
R EPRESENTATIVE AL ADAMS, REPRESENTATIVE JACK FULLER '

FROM: DEBORAH l<. SWISHER, DIRECTOR
BILINGUAL TEACHER EDUCATION PROGRAM 
KAWERAK, INC.
P.O. BOX 948
NOME, ALASKA 99762PH0NE: <W) 443-5231 EXT. 53 <H> 443-5702

RE: HB 504

PLEASE HOLD ADDITIONAL TELECONFERENCE. INTENT OF BILL IS GREAT. PROBLEMS 
INCLUDE POSSIBLE POLITICAL NATURE OF SCHOOL BOARD, D I S T R I B U T I O N  OF FUNDS; 
STUDENTS SHOULD BE ALLOWED ONE YEAR GRACE PERIOD IF JOB IN DISTRICT IS NOT 
AVAILABLE; MOBILITY TO ANOTHER DISTRICT DESIRABLE; R E S T R I C T I O N  TO PUBLIC-SCHOf 
GRADUATES Q U E S T I O N A B L E .
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Fob vary 1, 1984

R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  Joe Haynes
P o u c h  V
Juneau, /Alaska 99811

D e a r  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  H a y e s :

I a m  r e s p o n d i n g  t o  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  V e r n  H u r l b e r t ' s  l e t t e r  c o n c e r n i n g  
H o u s e  B i l l  No. 504 . A s  a N a t i v e  w i t h  e l e m e n t a r y  c e r t i f i c a t e ,  I f u l l y  
s u p p o r t  t h i s  b i l l .

Tliis year I a m  in NEA-.-daska M i n o r i t y  A f f a i r s  C o m m i t t e e ,  b u t  d u e  to 
r.y l o c a t i o n  I am  u n a b l e  t o  w o r k  c l o s e l y  w i t h  o t h e r  N a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  
in my r e g i o n .  I a m  a l s o  h a v i n g  some d i f f i c u l t y  w i t h  t e l e p h o n e s  and 
m a i l  s e r v i c e ,  w h i c h  is n o t  my  fault.

I h a v e  b e e n  t e a c h i n g  a t  G a m b e l l  E l e m e n t a r y  S c h o o l  f o r  t w o  y e a r s .  This 
y e a r  I a m  a s k i n g  B S R E A A  f o r  t r a n s f e r  to S h i s h m a r e f  w h i c h  is m y  h o m e  
town. I h a v e  n o t  h e a r d  f r o m  t h e m  y e t  o t h e r  t h a n  m y  p r i n c i p a l ,  D a v e  
B o w l i n g ,  r e c o m m e n d i n g  for the transfer. I w o u l d  v e r y  m u c h  l i k e  to 
t e a c h  there, f o r  s i m p l e  fact, I h a v e  m y  p a r e n t s  a n d  m y  h o u s e  there.
I a l s o  h a v e  o t h e r  p r o j e c t s  I f’ould like t o  do. E n c l o s e d  y o u  w i l l  find 
p a r t  of my  o f f i c i a l  r e c o r d s ,  w h i c h  c l e a r l y  s t a t e d . m y  r e a s o n  s i n c e  the 
y e a r  I g r a d u a t e d .

O n e  of the m a i n  r e a s o n s  w h y  it is hard f o r  N a t i v e s  t o  c o m e  b a c k  to 
t he v i l l a g e s  is l a c k  of s u p p o r t  from the D i s t r i c t  a n d  t h e  Board, 
y o u  see, I a m  t h e  f i r s t  p e r s o n  f r o m  my v i l l a g e  t o  e a r n  a d e g r e e  in 
e d u c a t i o n  b u t  d u e  t o  j e a l o u s  and o t h e r  f a c t o r s ,  I h a v e  u n a b l e  to 
t e a c h  in m y  v i l l a g e .

O n e  of t h e  r e a s o n s  w h y  w e  h a v e  few g r a d u a t e s  is b e c a u s e  o f  l a c k  of 
f u nds t o  c o n t i n u e  a n d  c o m p l e t e  t r a i n i n g  to  b e c o m e  a t e a c h e r .  I am 
s till p a y i n g  f o r  m y  s t a t e  loan. S t u d e n t s  w i t h  i a m i l i e s  h a v e  n o  m o n e y  
to s u p p o r t  f a m i l i e s  w h i l e  at the campus, a n d  t h e r e f o r e  t a k e s  f o r e v e r  
to c o m p l e t e  c o u r s e s .  W e  h a v e  m a n y  s t u d e n t s  in o u r  r e g i o n s  w h o  h a v e  
been s t u d e n t s  f o r  y e a r s  b u t  d u e  to lack of fun d s ,  • is i m p o s s i b l e  
to c o m p l e t e  a n y  p r o j e c t s .

O n e  t h i n g  I o p p o s e  is S e c . 14 . 4 3 .650, (b)Each s c h o o l  d i s t r i c t  s h a l l  
a w a r d  t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loans... My r e a s o n  is s o m e  s t u d e n t s  m a y  
not be a w a r d  d u e  t o  p e r s o n a l  c o n f l i c t  w i t h  t h e  B o a r c  p r e s i d e n t  o 
adr o i n i s t o r s . S o m e  p e o p l e  a r e  v e r y  ha r d  to d e a l  w i t h  in t h e  v i l l a g e s .  
T h e y  t e n d  t o  c r e a t e  p r o b l e m s  w h i c h  p r e v e n t s  s t u d e n t s  f r o m  r e c i e v i n g  
s u pport. T h e y  t e n d  n o t  f o l l o w  p r o f e s s i o n a l  c r i t e r i a .  I t h i n k  t h i s  
is w r o n g  for I w a s  a n d  s t i l l  the v i c t i m  of s u c h  a c t i o n s .  W e  n e e d  some 
on e  e l s e  to o v e r  s e e  t h e  program if it p a s s e s .  In fact, I w o u l d  like 
to be i n v o l v e  in s u c h  program.



I h a v e  b e e n  v e r y  s u c c e s s f u l  w i t h  m y  s t u d e n t s  t h i s  y e a r  a n d  last, 
feel we s h o u l d  h a v e  m o r e  N a t i v e s  in p o s i t i o n s .

T h a n k  y o u  for s u p p o r t i n g  o u r  people. S o meday, I h o p e  w e  w i l l  be 
t r e a t e d  li k e  a n y  o t h e r  t e a c h e r s  in the w o r l d  a n d  b e  proud.

u e o r g e  u i a n n a ,  br.
5th & 6th Grade teacher

c c :

Rep. V e r n o n  H u r l b e r t

Rep. J o h n  "Jack" F u l l e r

N E A - A l a s k a  M i n o r i t y  A f f a i r s  C o m m i t t e e
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Alaska Native Land Managers Association
840 K Street, Suite 202 
Anchorage, Alaska 99501 
(907)272-1254

F e b r u a r y  13, 1984

R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  M a e  T i s c h e r  
P o u c h  V  (MS 3100)
J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a  99811

Re: HB 504

D e a r  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  T i s c h e r :

A t  a r e c e n t  m e e t i n g  o f  the A l a s k a  N a t i v e  L a n d  M a n a g e r s  
A s s o c i a t i o n ,  the m e m b e r s h i p  p a s s e d  the e n c l o s e d  r e s o l u t i o n  
u r g i n g  p a s s a g e  o f  HB 504, d e a l i n g  w i t h  e s t a b l i s h i n g  the 
t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  lo a n  p r o g r a m .

W e  feel th a t  t h i s  b i l l  s a t i s f i e s  an i m p o r t a n t  n e e d  in rural 
A l a s k a .  F o r  too long, y o u n g  p e o p l e  h a v e  le f t  the v i l l a g e s  to 
a t t e n d  c o l l e g e ,  n e v e r  to r e t urn. A d d i t i o n a l l y ,  w e  h a v e  
w a t c h e d  a p a r a d e  of n o n - n a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  t h r o u g h  the v i l l a g e  
s c h o o l s .  W e  feel t h a t  it is i m p o r t a n t  t o  h a v e  a s t a b l e  s t a f f  
o f  t e a c h e r s  in r u r a l  sc h o o l s .  W e  a l s o  feel th a t  it is 
p r e f e r a b l e  to h a v e  n a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  t e a c h i n g  in p r e d o m i n a n t l y  
n a t i v e  s c h o o l s  in o r d e r  to u n d e r s t a n d  a n d  p r e s e r v e  the u n i q u e  
c u l t u r p  and h i s t o r y  o f  A l a s k a  N a t i v e  p e o p l e s .  It is o u r  
f e e l i n g  th a t  n a t i v e  t e a c h e r s  w i l l  p r o v i d e  a v a l u a b l e  role 
m o d e l  for s t u d e n t s  in r u ral A l a s k a .  T h e  s t u d e n t s  n e e d  to see 
t h a t  t h e y  c a n  be a s u c c e s s  and t h a t  t h e y  can be l e a d e r s  in 
t o d a y ' s  wo r l d .

W e  feel s t r o n g l y  th a t  the p a s s a g e  o f  HB 504 w i l l  be a n o t h e r  
s t e p  a l o n g  the p a t h  t o w a r d s  i m p r o v i n g  r u r a l  e d u c a t i o n  and the 
l i v e s  o f  r u r a l  A l a s k a n s .

V e r y  t r u l y  y o u r s ,

D a n i e l  Alex,
P r e s i d e n t



SgCO@@0 ©OGGLFOGG — Nyal D■ Worsham, Superintendent

F eb r u a ry  2, 1984

Honorab le  Joseph Hayes ,  Speaker  of t h e  House 
Alaska State Leg is la tu re  
Pouch V
Juneau ,  AK 99811

RE: House B i l l  #504

Dear Mr . Speaker:

I w ish to speak in suppor t  of House B i l l  #504 re la ted to a teacher 
s cho la rsh ip  fu nd  for n a t iv e  s tuden t s .  H a v in g  spen t  the last e igh t  
years  in A laska bush  and ru ra l  school systems, I know that out- 
n a t iv e  s tuden ts  do need the  r e la t io nsh ip s  that n a t i v e  teachers can 
g i v e  to them.

We need pos i t i v e  coun se l i n g  ef forts to lead ou r  f u t u r e  na t iv e  teachers 
in to the pro fess ion  and  g i v e  them suppo r t  wh i l e  they deve lop  the i r  
teach ing  sk i l l s .

I thank you for the in t r odu c t io n  of th is  b i l l  and w ish you and 
Rep resen ta t i v e  H u r l b e r t  success in its passage .

H u r lb e r t

593
P. 0 . Box 638 Whittier, Alaska 99693 (907) 472 22+3
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MANIILAQ MANPOWER
P.O. Box 725 

Kotzebue, Alaska 99752
Phone

(907) 442-3860

Mr. W illiam T. L o vell House HEfjSS Committee Alaska S ta te  L e g is la tu re  Pouch V
February 6, 1984
Juneau, Alaska 99811
bear Mr. L o v e ll :Thank you fo r  th is  opportunity to submit w ritten  comments on House B i l l  No. 504. I admire the l e g i s la t o r s  in s ig h t  into the problems o f Rural Alaska and I applaud them for th e ir  in v e n tiv e n e ss . Keep up the good work]!Once again thank you for th is  opportunity .S in c e r e l y ,

enclosure: 1

MANIII.AM SAVAAKSRAQ-•IUC W 
MEMBER V ILLAGES

Ambler. Buckland. Peering. Kiana, Kivalina. Kobuk. Kot/ob h *. N >at. I Noorvik. Selawik. Shungnak



Mauneluk Manpower Testamony on HB 504
Thank you for th is  opportunity to comment on HB 504. My name is  Fred Wemark, S p ecia l A s s is ta n t  with Mauneluk Manpower. I manage a program that brings career awareness in to  the v i l la g e s  The main thru st for the program is  to get the students and adults w ithin the v i l la g e s  to think about what they would l ik e  to do in the v i l l a g e  or region in the way o f  an occupation.We explore a l l  the p o te n tia l  p o s s i b i l i t i e s  o f work and try  to give as accurate a p ictu re  o f  employment as p o ssib le  in the f u t u r e .Your B i l l  reaches r ig h t  to the heart of employment that w ill  always be present regardless o f  the amount o f  development the rural parts o f our great s ta te  may or may not en joy . As long as there is  a rural population there w i l l  be teaching jobs a v a i la b le .  I t  is  only f i t t i n g  that these p o sit io n s  be taken by those that w i l l  l iv e  in the community and ra ise  th e ir  fa m ilie s  and keep the money w ithin the community. This not only makes sense from an economic standpoint but from a s o c ia l  standpoint a ls o .There are many students in our U n iv e rs ity  system that are studying fo r  a career in Education. But those people are to few. Your b i l l  w i l l  increase that number d r a m a tic a lly . More and more the high school students are r e a l iz i n g  the importance o f  a higher education. With the ru ra l economy in the shape it  is  in those hopes for a higher education fades with the lack o f  money to send them to sch ool. Hope is  now on the horizon, t urge that you pass th is  important piece o f  le g i s l a t i o n  as soon as p o ssib le  with the appropiate funding.Thank you.
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CiTY OF SCAMMON BAY
GENERAL DELIVERY 

Scammon Bay. Alaska 99662 / (907) 558-5529
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Ihe H o n o r a b l e  A n t h o n y  V a s k a  

S t a t e  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  for D i s t r i c t  25 

A l a s k a  S t a t e  L e g i s l a t i v e  

P o u c h  V

Juneau, A l a s k a  99811

Dear Tony, \

H e l l o  there Mr. Vaska! I u n d e r s t a n d  that you and S e n a t o r  

S a c k e t t  we r e  very busy h a v i n g  to me e t  w i t h  y o u r  c o n s t i t u i e n t s  

in B e t hel. I ’m s o r r y  I did not have an o p p o r t u n i t y  to see you 

w h e n  F r a n k  A g u c h a k  and I w e n t  down to J u n e a u  d u r i n g  the we e k  

of F e b u a r y  1-4 to do p o l i t i c a l  b u s i n e s s  with our d i s t r i c t  

l e g i s l a t o r ..A n y w a y  I ta l k e d  wi t h  your /isaltivo ass i s t a n t ,  Jim 

P l a s m a n  and, gave him a copy of S c a m m o n  Bay's C a p i t a l  p r i o r i t y  

needs for this year.

We also w o u l d  like for you to s u p p o r t  H.B. 504 i n t r o d u c e d  

by R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  Joe H a y e s  w h i c h  is a bill a imed at p r o v i d i n g  

a t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  loan program. ,J*

It's time that rural s t u d e n t s  e s p e c i a l l y  n a t i v e s  mu s t  have 

s u f f i c i e n t  f i n a n c i a l  r e c o u r s e  in o r d e r  to come back to their 

own v i l l a g e s  and teach. We v/ould like for you to o p p o s e  the State 

take over of Mt. E d g e c u m b  High School. Both of these issues are 

fully s u p p o r t e d  by the m a j o r i t y  of the AV C P  d e l e g a t e s  w h i c h  c o n­

vened  in Ho o p e r  Bay on J a n u a r y  26-27. You know as w e l l  as we know 

that it's u n n o s s a r y  for the State to take a n o t h e r  f i n a n c i a l  b u r d e n  

when t h e r e ' s  ro m u c h  to fall for r u r a l s  b a s i c  need's.

Well, Tony, if theres a n y t h i n g  I can do in anyway, p l e a s e  let 

me know.

S i n c e r e l y ,

H o m e r  H u n t e r  Jr. 

Mayor

A k  A ! f -



KALT\G NATIVE V. LI AGE COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 84-2.

\ 5,:s< ; . i ; .»•: nr  th e  k a l t a g  n a t i v l  v i l l a g e  c o u n c i l ,  k a l t \ g , a la s k a
LLRTA!N'IN TO HOUSE BILL NO. 504, "ESTABLISHING TEACHER: SCI OLARSH11'

I/.'AN PROGRAM".

WHEREAS, ve, the Council of Kaltag Village, arc* aware of the need for more 

native teachers in ojr school systems across the state, arid

WHEREAS, there is a need for funding and scholarships, and

WHEREAS, House Bill No. 504, in the legislature of the State of Alaska,

Thirteenth Legislature - Second Session has been introduced, and

nllERFAS, he ihov-* bill does not include students of private schools,

*. W, THERETORE BE IT RESOLVED that the kaltag Native Village Council respectfully

requests 11 < sponsors of MB 504 to include private school students and, 

if shd when it does this, the council will fully endorse the above mentioned 

bill.

ADOPTED THIS P - ^ T Tay of 1984.

Chief

Second Chief

Council Member

Council Member

Council Member

Council N•!jO»■ -



^ ’V ^ C i ty  o f  M o u n ta in  V illa g e
Mountain Village, A laska 99632 

(907) 591-2929

P.O. Box 204

F e b r a u r y  10, 1984

H o n o r a b l e  J o e  H a y e s  
S p e a k e r  of  t h e  H o u s e  
A l a s k a  H o u s e  o f  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  
P o u c h  V
J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a  9 9 8 1 1

D e a r  S p e a k e r  H a y e s :

I a m  w r i t i n g  t o  y o u  in s u p p o r t  o f  H o u s e  B i l l  no.
504, w h i c h  u o u  i n t r o d u c e d  r e c e n t l y  i n  t h e  s e c o n d  
s e s s i o n  o f  t h e  1 3 t h  l e g i s l a t u r e .  T h i s  b i l l  if 
p a s s e d ,  w i l l  g r e a t l y  e n c o u r a g e  a n d  e n h a n c e  o u r  
n a t i v e  p e o p l e  t o  c o m e  b a c k  a n d  t e a c h  a m o n g  t h e i r  
o w n  p e o p l e  a n d  w i l l  i m p r o v e  the q u a l i t y  of e d u c a t i o n  
w h i c h  is v i t a l  in t h i s  area. R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  V e r n  
H u r l b e r t  is a v a r e  of t h i s  a n d  it is h i s  c o n c e r n  
f o r  h i s  c o n s t i t u e n t s  in D i s t r i c t  24 of  w h i c h  h e  
r e p r e s e n t s .

Mr. S p e a k e r ,  I a d v i c e  y o u r  i n t e g r i t y  a n d  is so m e  
w h a t  s u r p r i s e  to  m e  t h a t  y o u  a r e  c o n c e r n e d  f o r  us 
n a t i v e s ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  I b e l i e v e  t h a t  is t h e  k i n d  of 
l e a d e r s h i p  w e  n e e d  in J u n e a u .  T h a n k  y o u  v e r y  muchl

S i n c e r e l y ,

A n d r e w  Br o w n ,  V i c e - M a y o r

c c . r R e p .  V e r n  H u l b e r t  
Sen. J o h n  S a c k e t t  
Sen. F r a n k  F e r g u s o n  
Rep. J a c k  F u l l e r
Supt. Dr. W i l l i a m  P h i l l i p s ,  L o w e r  Y u k o n  S c h o o l  D i s t r i c t  
C i t y  M a n a g e r ,  S t e v e  S c h w a b



M r. Joe H ayes S p e a k e r  o f  th e  House Pouch VC a p i t o l  B u i ld i n g

January 27, 1984.

J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a  99811 Dear S p e a k e r  H a y es:I am in re c e ip t  o f  n le t te r  from V ern  H u rlb e rt  a n d  a c o p y  o f  HB 504. The id e a  seems a  p r o p it io u s  one a n d  h a s  my e n t h u s ia s t ic  s u p p o r t .  I h a v e  n o tic e d  the p roblem  you d e s c r ib e d  w ith v i l l a g e  sc h o o ls  in th is  a r e a ,  w herein  the b u lk  of the stud ents a r c  n a t iv e  a n d  the te a c h e r s  n o n - n a t i v e .  The te a c h e r  tu r n o v e r  r a te  is a l s o  sometimes r a t h e r  a p p a l l i n g .  1 mn s u re  the problem  is  even  mere m arked in  the n o rth e rn  s e c t io n s  o f  the s t a t e .The o n ly  q u e s t io n  1 h a v e  is a l e g a l  one; n a m e ly ,  w h a t is  the a d v i c e  of the A G 's  o f f ic e  on the c o n s t i t u t io n a l i t y  o f  S e c .  14.43*630 w h e rein  p r e fe re n c e  is g iv e n  to c e r t a i n  d i s t r i c t s .  1 u n d e r s ta n d  the i n t e n t ,  a p p la u d  it  a s  m o r a lly  c o r r e c t  a n d  a p r a c t i c a l  n e c e s s it y  ( i f  you a r e  to a cc o m p lish  the s ta te d  g o a l  a n d  not end up g i v i n g  the b u lk  of the s c h o la r s h ip s  to n o n - n a t i v e s  from n o n - n a t iv e  m a jo r i t y  sch oo l d i s t r i c t s )  hut wonder i f  it  r u n s  a fo u l  of due process c l a u s e s .  It  is w orth g e t t i n g  an o p in io n  on b e fo r e h a n d  to make su re  the b i l l  is cou che d  in terms th a t  a re  p roo f a g a i n s t  la t e r  l i t i g a t i o n .S i n c e r e l y ,
Thom as L .  C o n le y ,  M .D .S e c r e t a r yK e tc h ik a n  G a te w a y  Borough School D is t r i c t  JJoard of E d u c a tio nN .B .  T h is  is a p e r s o n a l ,  not a K e tc h ik a n  G a te w a y  Borough School D i s t r i c t ,  Board of E d u c a t io n ,  re s p o n se .c c :  ^ itefiresen ta tiv e  Vernon L ,  H u rlb e rtR e p r e s e n ta t iv e  J a c k  McBride Me. C h e r i  D a v is  P re sid e n tK e tc h ik a n  G a te w a y  Borough S ch oo l D is t r ic t



M N G E L L
P U ItL IC  SC H O O LS
DISTRICT OFF ICE

P. 0 .  B O X  651 

W RAN GELL, A LA SK A  99929 

G A TEW A Y  TO  THE STIKINE Tolophono (907) 874-2347

ROBERT W. M cCO N N ELL, Superin tended  of Schools

January 31, 1984

The Honorable Joe Hays, Speaker of the House 
Pouch V
Capitol Building 
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Honorable Hays:

In response to Representative Vern Hurlbert’s letter of 
January 20, 1984, please regard this as support for HB 504.

Having spent time with a government which tried the same 
process, designed with the same philosophy, I have some concerns 
over the possible outcome. I applaud the intent however.

Sincerely,

Robert W. McConnell 
Superintendent

cc: Representative Hurlberti/
Representative McBride

ACCREDITED BY NORTHWEST ASS OC I A T I ON  O F  SECONDARY AND  H IGHER  SCHOOLS



MR. DARRELL G . M O O RE
D ISTRIC T S U P E R IN T E N D E N T

€ Chatham School District BOARD O F  EDUCATION
P.O. BOX 109 

ANGOON , ALASKA 99820 
TELEFHONE : 788-3302 OR  788-3682

MR. WALLY FRANK. S R .
MR. EDW ARD GAM BLE. S R  

M S MATILDA GAM BLE 
M R S ANN MACKOVJAK

January 27, 1984 DR JACK LESH

Representative Vern Hurlbert 
State Capital 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Representative Hurlbert:

I would like to respond to House Bill NO. 504 which was recently 

introduced in an effort to encourage Alaska Native high school grad­

uates to return to their home village to teach.

Prior to my tenure here in Chatham School District, I spent nine 

years on the Sheldon Jackson campus encouraging and developing a 

teachers education program. I am very interested in presenting role 

models for the village; however, I think your approach is wrong.

In our school district I would be in favor of hiring a student to 

return to the area, but not the same village. Experience from Bible 

times to the present will demonstrate that people returning to their 

home village are unduly cri'tized or subjected to demands not common to 

other candidates.

I also think the loan is discriminatory. This fact on the surface 

may not seem like an important clause; however, minorities like to know 

they made it on their own merits. I also think people are more inclined 

to succeed at something they invest time and money in.

Finally, I think many native graduates do something other than teach 

simply because they can demand more money as a college graduate in another 

occupation.

Many of our Sheldon Jackson graduates were, either offered employment 

and terminated or never started due to the high wages they were able to 

attain through private enterprise or the native corporations. I do not 

think this program will change this fact and may in the long run do a 

disservice.

Please write or call me if I can be of further service or add clari­

fication

ELFIN COV E A N G O O N  T E N A K E E  GUSTAVUS KLUKWAN FRESHW A TER BAY EIGHT FATHOM BIGHT H O BA RT BAY

Sincere!

cc: Joe Hayes, Speaker
Reading File



Native teacher fund envisioned
( C o n t in u e d  front Page O n e )

l i v e  students am o n g  the state's 
e t h n ic  m in o r i t ie s  return to  the 
rura l schoo ls w h i c h  c o n t in u e s  
the  e t h n ic  im b a la n c e .

A  h igh  tu rnove r  o f  as m u c h  as 
40 percen t o f  teachers in  rural 
e d u c a t io n  a t t endance  areas in 
the state.

T h e  b i l l  states that curren t 
p rograms such  as the X-CED  
program  at the U n iv e rs i t y  o f  
A laska has fa i led to  rec t i fy  the 
p r o b lem .

T h e  lo a n  p rogram  w o u ld  ap ­
p rop r ia te  m o n e y  to he lo aned  
to  h ig h  s choo l graduates o r s tu ­
den ts  w i t h in  s ix  m o n th s  o f  grad­
ua t io n  from  a state p u b l i c  h igh  
s choo l w h o  have su f f ic ie n t  c r e d ­
its to  be a dm i t t e d  to an a cc red ­
ited  co l lege . T ho s e  students 
a lso m us t be e n ro l le d  in  o r  s h ow  
in t e n t  to e n ro l l  i n  a un iv e rs ity  
prog ram  w h i c h  a im s  at a te a ch ­
ing degree fo r e lem en ta ry  o r sec­
o n d a r y  s c h o o l .  T he  s tuden t a lso 
must im  at c r ite r ia  estab l ished 
b y  the loca l s ch oo l boa rd .

I f  the s tuden t is awarded the 
scho la rsh ip  and com p le te s  his 
e d u c a t io n  and returns to the 
v i l lage , a percen tage o f  h is lo a n  
w i l l  be  ."forg iven" by  the state at 
a rate o f  15 percent each year 
fo r  the first three years o f  le a c h ­
ing ; 25 percen t o f  the tota l 
lo a n  for the fou r th  year c o m ­
p le t ed  and  the  f ina l 30 percent 
for the f if th  year .

T h e  b i l l  is g iven  go od  change  
for success o n  the H ouse  s ide 
o f  the leg is la ture because it is 
s u p po r te d  by  the H ou se  M a jo r ­
it y  c o a l i t io n  o f  urban  R e p u b l i ­
cans and Bush D em ocra ts  and  
because Hayes , the p ow e r fu l  
House Speaker , is b a ck ing  it . It 
isn't o f te n  that a b i l l  sponsored 
b y  the  Speaker is de fea ted .

O n  the Senate s i d e . i l  is g iven 
fair c h a n c e  for passage by  Sen .

F rank  Fe rg uson , D-Kotzebue , 
w h o  said that i t  w i l l  p r o b a b ly  
pass in  a re f ined fo rm  after some 
th ings are i r o n ed  o u t .

O n e  poss ib le  p r o b lem  the b i l l  
m a y  have is s u rv iv ing  a legal 
c ha l le n g e  on  the basis that it 
d is c r im in a tes  in  favor o f  o ne  
spec i f ic  e t h n ic  g roup . T h e  b i l l  
d irects that the scho la rsh ips be 
awarded  o n  a le ve l p r o p o r t io n ­
ate to th e  percen tage o f  e t h n ic  
rep resen ta t io n .

T h e re fo re ,  i f  80 percen t o f

the s tuden ts  are N a t iv e ,  80 p e r ­
c e n t  o f  the scho la rsh ip  m o n e y  
m us t  go to  N a t iv e  students .

R e cen t  laws d ir e c t in g  m o n e y  
at a s p e c i f ic  g ro u p , such as the 
L o n g e v i t y  Bonus program  w h ic h  
g ives m o n e y  to A laska res idents 
o ld e r  than  65 years w h o  have 
l iv e d  in th e  state s in ce  s ta tehood  
has been ru led  u n co n s t i t u t i o n a l  
o n  the g rounds  that it d is c r im ­
inates against a person w h o  
m o v e d  to  the s la te after state­
h o o d .

T o n y  Vaska o f  B ethe l ,  w h o  is 
a m em b e r  o f  the Bush Cau cu s  
bu t  not a m em b e r  o f  the House 
M a jo r i t y ,  ss’d he th in k s  it w i l l  
h o t  surv ive a c o n s t i t u t io n a l i t y  
lest .

Hayes said he has had  the 
Leg is la tu re ’s lawyers rev iew  the 
b i l l  and th ey  fo u n d  it a ll r igh t . 
He said the sta le a t to r ney  g en ­
era l has yet to  rev iew  the b i l l .

V e te ran  observers o f  the Leg ­
is la ture fo u n d  the key  sponsor 
o f  th e  b i l l  - Hayes  to be o f  
p a r t ic u la r  interest because o f  h is .  
u rban  ba ckg ro u n d . O n e  c o m ­
m en te d  that " i f  there  ever was 
a n y  d o ub t  that Hayes is r u n ­
n in g  for go ve rno r ,  th is  k i l ls  i t . ” 

H ayes  responds to such  s k ep t i ­
c ism  b y  say ing  “ I suppose it 
w o u ld  lo o k  ( l ike he is t r y in g  to 
ga in a rural su ppo r t )  bu t I just

Child abuse bill introduced
T h e  Assoc ia ted Press

Juneau  C e r ta in  k inds  o f  
c h i l d  neg lect and  abuse u n p u n ­
ishab le u n d e r  e x is t in g  law w o u ld  
be c lass if ied as fe lon ies  b y  a b i l l  
i n t r o d u c e d  in the A laska House 
o f  Represen ta t ives .

T h e  leg is la t ion  is a im ed  at 
adu lts  w h o  use force against 
c h i ld r e n  or w h o  “ in t e n t io n a l ly

cause or p e rm it  a c h i l d  to be 
p laced  in c ir c um s ta n ce s  resu lt ­
ing in  ser ious p hy s ica l  i n j u r y . ”

T h e  measure ( I I B  484) is 
sponsored b y  House  D emocra ts  
Jack M cB r id e  o f  K e t c h ik a n ,  
N i i l o  K o p o n e n  o f  F a irbanks  
and M ik e  S/ym ansk i o f  A n ­
cho rage .

k n o w  the p ro b lem s  o f  rural 
p e o p le .  I f ly  a lo t and  get out 
in t o  the vi l lages m o re  than  o th e r  | 
u rban  legis lators. 1 a lso have [ 
w o rk e d  w i t h  the Bush Cau cu s  | 
for the past tw o  years and I 
k n o w  o f  the ir  c o n c e r n s .”

H e  said that H u r lb e r t  was i n ­
s t rum en ta l in  p u s h in g  the b i l l  
and is second  sponso r  o n  the 
d o c um e n t .

G o v .  B i l l  S h e f f ie ld  had no  
c om m e n t  o n  the b i l l  o th e r  than 
to  p o in t  ou t that programs do  
ex is t in  the state to  d raw  rural 
s tuden ts  in t o  te a ch in g .

A nd  as for Hayes d raw in g  a g u ­
b e rna to r ia l  c o n s t i t u e n c y ,  She f­
f ie ld  sa id , “ I t o ld  h im ,  I' ll out- 
c am pa ig n  h im  125 to  o n e  and 1 
have m o re  s tay ing  p o w e r .”

a —.;
0 V s !• ■■ • -i - ■ . \
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City of Kaltag
Kaltag, Alaska 99748

yukon

February 7, 1984

Vern Hurlburt, Representative 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

RE: HB 504 - Educational

Dear Representative Hurlburt:

This is a letter of support to the educational scholarship funding for 

rural students of Alaska including students of private schools.

Sincerely,

J  1

Kenneth B. Madros, 
Mayor

ejm



THE
LAKE AND PENINSULA

SCHOOL BOARD ^

SARA HORNBERGER. ftcexntrotMember

P.O. Box 69, Iliamna, AK. 99606 
February 3, l?81i

The Honorable Vern Hurlbert 
Alaska State Representative 
°ouch V - Capital Building 
Juneau, Alaska 99S11

Deer Vern:

Thank you for yourletter of January 20, 1983, in 
reference to House Bill Ho„j>0U. I appreciate the opportunity to 
comment on it. In realisation of how very busy you folks are down 
there, I still hope that you will find time to read my letter of 
reDly in addition to the reading by an administrative assistant,,
(I have no objections to this system - I know it is necessary if 
you elected officials are to be able to accomplish anything.)

I believe that my comments are made from a nosition 
of great strength. U 1 have in our school district an administrative 
assistant, Frank Hill; two principal teachers, Norm Auberg and Pete 
Hill; and three teachers, Pauline Hobson, Larry Hill, and Gwen Niel­
sen; and one teacher on leave, Emma Hill, who are Native,, In addition, 
we recently inaugurated a minority administrative apprenticeship end 
Frank Hill is the first person to participate. Wher~'3ver possible 
we hire local oeople to do school district jobs as for example,
Alex Wassilie our North Area Maintenance Person.

Going from there, I want to ask if anyone had done 
any research at all to see if this bill will do what it proposes to 
do? Three of our Native teachers got their degrees through the 'RCTIC 
program (later called X-Ged); Several refused all financial help of 
any sort preferring the joy of being able to say, "I did it all by 
myself.1' Several used the regular state loan program and BIA assis­
tance.

In our district at least there has been no lack of 
assistance for village persons interested in higher education of any 
sort in obtaining any nossiole loan, grant, or scholarship. Persons 
who work as aides who show promise are encouraged - urged - to go 
on and pet their degrees. Some few have attended the university 
sporadically. The members of the school board and tiie local teachers 
association have joined together for five years to grant two scholar­
ships a year to district high school seniors in the name of one of 
our members who was killed in a snowmachine a ccident shortly after she 
enrolled in a teacher preparation program in Anchorage. She was a 
Native from Newhalen. We have youngsters from our district in college 
under the regular state loan program; but, so far as I know, my daugh­
ter is the only one in a teacher training program.

Chipnilt Hay •  Clilfiullt l.a/intin •  ChigllUt Lain' • E#iffik • /ffiufi/fi • livnof Hay •  Kohhmtnk •  .Wit'/in/ivi
• •  » >• -  h I- f» - •  •  I*iih il/,> a I ' , I , , I  I1/,in/ •  P u r /  II ,'hit'l l  •  / V i rl latt'iirtll
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The Hon able Vern Hurlbert

I should add that oneof our current board members, Jeannie Ihly, 
a Native from Chignik Lake, has^enrolled in college in Anchorage 
with the intention of becoming a primary teacher.

Where does this leave us? I nelieve that this bill 
•ill not do what you hope it will. All the money in the world will 
not prompt a person to attend college unless that person has the 
sincere desire, the personal drive to go. Secondly, that person, if 
he/she is to become a teacher must be willing to face a five-day-a 
week, nine-month-ayear job; a .iob that is very intense and demanding.
How many of our village people really want that sort of job? gfo we 
are talking a bout motivation. What is going to motivate a youngster 
from a village who enjoys the freedom of a life of trapping, fishing, 
hunting, etc., without the demands of a time clock, to take on the 
other scrt of lifeS There are two things that cause a person to become 
a teacher: for some it is a callings they cannot imagine doing anything
else5 it is their life; for other it is a job, a way to make a living 
and have three months a year off, etc. If a youngster from a village 
doesn't have an intense desire to become ate^cher, I can’t imagine 
that this loan program will inspire him/her to spend four years away 
from home in school to become a teacher0 That child is going to get 
a trade that will enable him/her to go out and earn money when it is 
needed and then go home and enjoy life, and I don’t; blame that person 
one bit. Who wouldn’t prefer that sort of lifej 3b, we have a motiva­
tion problem.

We have one more problem. The fact that a person is 
a Native does not mean that he/she will make a good teacher* anymore 
than membership in any other race guarantees skill in any profession.
This bill has no criteria set up at any place to evaluate participants*
Today our children must have the very best possible teachers for the 
basics. We have many fine people in our villages who can and do work 
in the schools assisting with local culture programs, bi-lingual pro­
grams, who arc not college graduates. Many of them have not finished 
eighth grade. They cannot teach math or reading or othor subjects the 
certificated tcachors handle; rather, the two work as a team compliment­
ing each other when the program is handled properly.

One last point I'd like to 9>eak to is teacher turnover,
Years ago when Bristol Bay Borough was formed and took over the sch^ls^j/»i 
one of our main concerns was teacher turnover. However, that^/isn^uall 
bad. Teachers like preachers maybe need to move around. I'm not going 
to dwell on this, but the question is a very debatable one. Further­
more, wo have discovered that not ail residents of a Village are pleased 
when a local person comes home as a teacher. Was it not Christ who 
said something to the effect that a prophet is not without honor except 
in his own country.

This letter, of course, contains my opinions only and 
most certainly does not s[)eak for the other members of the board either 
individually or as a legal group,

, Most. sincerely,^

Bara Hornberger (Mrs.) ^



AVCP
Association of Village Council Presidents 

P. 0 . Box 219 • Bethel, Alaska 99559 •  Phone 543-3521

Hon, Joe Hayes
Speaker of the House of Representatives 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99311

February 1, 1984

Dear Representatives Hayes:

On behalf of the Association of Village Council Presidents, regional 
non-profit Native corporation for the 55 Yupik Native communities of 
the Yukon-Kuskokwim delta region, I wish to commend you and the 27 
co-sponsors for your introduction of House Bill 504, providing for a 
teacher scholarship loan program.

Wo concur with the legislative findings as stated in the bill. In par­
ticular, incentive has not be provided for Alaska Natives to pursue 
teaching careers in rural Alaska. Throughout t.ie State (REAA) schools 
and remaining federal (BIA) schools, there are almost no Native teachers 
available for the almost totally Native student bodies. We sincerely 
appreciate your sponsorship of H.B. 504 and encourage your aggressive 
efforts for the enactment of this very beneficial legislation.

There is one small group of rural school districts which has overcome 
many of the difficulties which H.B. 504 seeks to correct. In the exam­
ination of rural education issues by you and your colleagues, we wish 
to encourage you to consider the future of five locally-controlled 
community schools in the AVCP-Calista Region. The Native communities 
of Akiachak, Akiak, Chefornak, Chevak and Tuluksak manage the only 
village-operated community schools in Alaska.

Beginning in 1977, these village council chose to operate their own 
community schools, apart from the federally-operated BIA schools and 
the State REAA systems. The federal government provides funds through 
the BIA appropriations, however management of the education programs 
and school districts is completely controlled at the community level.

Local community, Native involvement is provided in every aspect of the 
education program of these "contract" schools. The largest school, 
for example, has eight certified Alaska Native teachers in its teaching 
staff. Community school boards at these schools completely determine, 
within the village, all administrative, curriculla, fiscal and policy 
decisions concerning school distri< t operations.

Unfortunately, these schools arc scheduled to be closed at the end of 
the 1984-85 school year.



Hon. Joe Hayes
February 1, 1984
Page 2

The schools are community-operated and controlled, while funds are 
provided by the federal government under contracting provisions of the 
"Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act." The communities 
wish to continue to locally manage their education programs, however 
federal funds will not be available beyond federal FY-85.

These schools have requested financial assistance from the State to 
continue to operate their districts. Unaer present policies, the state 
will not provide education funds to the contract schools because they 
are operated by Native community councils (village councils), which 
were organized prior to statehood. The councils are recognized as 
"tribal governing bodies" by the federal government.

Although the village council "contract" schools have agreed to admit 
all student village residents to the schools, regardless of race, the 
present state policy regards them as "private" schools because they 
are operated by Native community councils.

Despite their desire the maintain community control over the village 
education programs, the contract schools' only other option is to join 
the REAA education systems. They are very reluctant to do so because 
of the loss of community control over the education program, and be­
cause of the successes which they have achieved through the systems 
which have been established by them and which are now in place. If, 
for example, a Native community school becomes part of an REAA, they 
will be absorbed by a school district which encompasses up to 35 or 
more other communities, and will no longer have effective control over 
education at the community level.

The history, circumstances, and legal and policy issues are perhaps 
more complicated than I describe in this letter, however the basic aim 
of the village contract schools, is simple. They wish to maintain ef­
fective local control and community operation of their schools. This 
goal is becoming destroyed by pressures of state and federal policies 
over which they have no effective control. We hope that you will con­
sider the fate of these school districts among other rural education 
issues under review by the legislature.

By alerting you to the matter of Native community schools, we in no 
way wish to diminish tne importance of your continued support for H.B.
504. Your interest in rural and Native education needs, as evidenced 
by H.B. 504, is genuinely appreciated.

Sincerely,

ASSOCIATION OF VILLAGE COUNCIL PRESIDENTS 
Willie Kasayulie, Chairman of the Board

Ivan M. Ivan 
President



Hon. Joe Hayes
February 1, 1984
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cc: Hon. Bill Sheffield, Governor
Rep. Vern Hurlbert
Rep. Jack Fuller
Rep. Tony Vaska
Sen. Frank Ferguson
Sen. John Sackett
Contract School Association



DISTRICT 21
REP. JOHN G. (JACK) FULLER

C H A IR M A N . R U L E S  C OM M ITTEE  

M E M B E RALAKANUA 
BRE VIG'MISSiON 
C H E  VAX 
DIOM EDE 
H IM
EM UDNAA
E iA M B tll 
GO lO V iN  
NOO^l R  BAY 
K O TU K  
KOYU*.

*  NOME 
6AVOON GA 
•GAMMON BAY
SHAKTOOLIK 
SH ElE JO N  S POINT 
CHISM M AREF
e t e b b in s
£1 M C H A E l
T E U E R
u n a ia k l e e t

W A LES
W HITE MOUNTAIN

PO LICY  CO M M ITTEE 
CO M M ITTEE O N  CO M M ITTEES  

R EA A  B 'J D G f l  O V ERSIG H T COM M ITTEE 

B lU E  R IBBON  COM M ISSIO N  O N  PERSON N EL

Alaska House of Representatives

February 13, 1984
Mr. Alfred S. White, Principal Covenant High School Unalakleet, Alaska 99684Dear Mr. White:Thank you for vour letter regarding HB 504 - "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship loan program."HB 504 was introduced 1/10/84 and referred to the Health & Social Services Corriittee, which is  chaired by Representative Mae Tischer. The b i l l  has further referrals to the House Committee on Loans, chaired by Representative Rick Uehling and the Finance Committee, chaired by Representative Al Adams. Any further correspondence you may have should bo addressed to these Cormiittees.I have forwarded your letter to the Health, Education and Social Services Corriittee. Thank you for your interest in the Legislative process.

Sincerely
FullerChairman, House Rules

HOM E W H IL E  IN J U N E A U
r .O  BO X 689 

NOM E. A LA SK A  00762 
(007) 443-2066

P O U C H  V 
JU N EA U , A LA S K A  09611 

(007) 466-3769 
465-3764 465-3765



Covenant High School ^(907) 624-3282 U naiakleet, A laska 99684
February 6 , 1984

Representative Jack Fuller 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V (MS 3100)
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Representative Fuller:

Enclosed is a letter which we submitted at the hearing recently on HB 504. We feel that 
this bill could serve an excellent purpose in the bush but feel strongly that nrivatu school 
graduates should not be restricted from participation. Our letter expresses our viewpoint.

The method of payment might need to be altered in order to avoid channeling funds through 
a private school to the recipients, but I am sure that this could he done without altering 
the intent of the bill. I am inclined to believe that it would be preferable, at any rate, 
to have recipients receive grants directly from the state on nomination from the districts. 
This method would largely parallel the present Student Loan program while giving the dis­
tricts input on promising candidates.

Other items in the bill which might be given additional consideration are the following:

Sec. 14.43.640 Conditions of loan. Paragraph 2 requires that the borrower must teach 
in the district from which he/she graduated in order to be eligible for loan forgiveness. 
I believe that this is entirely too restrictive. In small districts such as Nome or 
Dillingham, an opening may not be available upon graduation. Also, marriage often re­
quires a graduate to re-locate. It has been our experience that most Alaska Native 
graduates do return to the bush, and the value of others in the major city school systems 
is significant in its impact on Native students in those areas as well.

It seems unfortunate also that a returning student would be restricted from teaching in 
a private school in order to receive credit toward forgiveness. Federal teacher loans 
have not made this distinction. If the school is classified as having a high rvercentage 
of minority students, the borrower may apply for a percentage of forgiveness regardless 
of the public or private status of the school.

I am personally inclined to think that the loan should be supplemental rather than set
at $10,000 maximum without restrictions. BIA loans, for example, reauire that the appli­
cant "show financial need after other sources of funding have been considered." Some 
such requirement would serve the double purpose of weeding out the less serious appli­
cants and would increase the numbers of students who could be served.

I think that there should be close state monitorship of the loan recipients through 
the four years. This might require more than the ’present regulations fcr the Student 
Loan program.

Again, we want to indicate our strong support for this bill and will appreciate your
consideration of the items we have discussed.

cc. Rep. Joe Hayes



Covenant High School
(907) 624-3282 U n a ia k l e e t ,  A la s k a  99684

February 3, 1984

Alaska House of Representatives 
Health, Education and Social Services 
House Special Committee on State loans and Finance 
Juneau, Alaska 99801

bear roroTiittee Members:

v.'e are taking this opportunity to comment on House Bill No. 504 which 
has recently come to our attention. We certainly applaud the intent of 
the bill to enlarge the number and strengthen the training of ethnic minor­
ities, particular Alaska Natives, in the teaching profession by offering 
teacher scholarship loans. We have recognized this need since 1954 when 
Covenant High School was opened and have encourage both public and private 
support of teacher training.

We are surprised, however, to discover that Native graduates of private 
schools are discriminated against in receiving this assistance. Since the 
intent of the bill is "to encourage members of ethnic minorities to return 
to rural schools as teachers," and since "almost no students among the state's 
ethnic minorities return to rural schools to teach," it would seem that every 
able condiaate would be encouraged to participate.

The success of such schools as St. Mary’s High School and Covenant High 
School in providing graduates with college skills has been widly recognized 
and documented by studies such as those of Judith Kleinfeld at the University 
of Alaska. A quick survey of Covenant high School's alumni list indicates at 
least 10 people, all but tliree of whom are Alaska Natives, who have teaching 
degrees. One, Sam Towarak, is president of Chuchi Community College in 
Kotzebue. Probably at least another 10 have education minors or are presently 
working on education degiees. It is entirely possible- that the incentive of 
a bill like HP 504 would have encouraged ̂ other such private school graduates 
with college skills to enter education. It might also have led some of these 
young people who showed an interest in education, but entered other fields, 
to find a place in education.

We see no problem in administering this legislation with graduates of 
private schools as recipients. Funds would be made available to eligible 
Alaskans without discrimination in the same way Alaska Student Loans ar? made 
available. No payments would be made to private or denominational schools.
The Bureau of Indian Affairs Scholarship Grant Program,, federal Pell Grants, 
etc. are all administered on this basis. Students receiving teacher scholar­
ship loans may very well attend private colleges. It seems unreasonable that 
they would be restricted from attending a private high school to become eligible.



It would seem that the same formula for awarding scholarships by public 
schools could be used in such schools as Covenant High School. In communities 
where there is a single high school in the district, such as Nome or Dilling­
ham, the process of awarding scholarships would be identical to the situation 
at Covenant High School. We would simply be considered as a district, as we 
are now with the Alaska High School Activities Ass'riation.

Again, we wish to offer our strong support fci this legislation which 
shows promise of dealing with a serious deficiency in our rural communities - 
the lack of Native educators. We hope that the committee will increase the 
bill's scope to include what we believe is a strong source of eligible candi­
dates for the program - the private and denominational schools.

A i t r e c  s .  w m t e



D ISTRICT 22
REP. JOHN G. (JACK) FULLER
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M E M B E R

Alaska House of Representatives

February 13, 1984
Mr. Ivan M. Ivan, President Association of Village Council Presidents P 0 Bov 219 Bethel, Alaska 99559Dear Ivan:Thank vou for your letter regarding MB 504 - "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship loan program."TIB 504 was introduced 1/10/84 and referred to the Health & Social Services Committee, which is  chaired hv Representative Mae Tischer. The b i l l  has further referrals to the House Corrmittee on Loans, chaired by Representative Rick Uehling and the Finance Coirmittee, chaired by Representative Al Adams. Any further correspondence you may tune should be addressed to these Committees.I have forwarded your letter to the Health, Education and Social Services Committee. Thank you for your interest in the. Legislative process.

Sincerely,
( - /

Chairman, House Rules

H O M E
P.O BO X  689 

NOM E. A LA S K A  8970? 
(807) 441-2966

W H IL E  IN J U N E A U
P O U C H  V 

JU N EA U . A LA SK A  99611 
(807) 4013769 

4613764 4613766



AVCP
Association of Village Council Presidents 

P. 0 . Box 219 •  Bethel. Alaska 99559 •  Phone 543-3521

February 1, 1984

Hon. Joe Hayes
Speaker of the House of Representatives 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Dear Representatives Hayes:

On behalf of the Association of Village Council Presidents, regional 
non-profit Native corporation for the 55 Yupik Native communities of 
the Yukon-Kuskokwim delta region, I wisn to commend you and the 21 
co-sponsors for your introduction of House Bill 504, providing for a 
teacher scholarship loan program.

We concur with the legislative findings as stated in the bill. In par­
ticular, incentive has not be provided for Alaska Natives to pursue 
teaching careers in rural Alaska. Throughout the State (REAA) schools 
and remaining federal (BIA) schools, there are almost no Native teachers 
available for the almost totally Native student bodies. We sincerely 
appreciate your sponsorship of H.B. 504 and encourage your aggressive 
efforts for the enactment of this very beneficial legislation.

There is one small group of rural school districts which has overcome 
many of the difficulties which H.B. 504 seeks to correct. In the exam­
ination of rural education issues by you and your colleagues, we wish 
to encourage you to consider the future of five locally-controlled 
community schools in the AVCP-Calista Region. The Native communities 
of Akiachak, Akiak, Chefornak, Chevak and Tuluksak manage the only 
village-operated community schools in Alaska.

Beginning in 1977, these village council chose to operate their own 
community schools, apart from the federally-operated BIA schools and 
the State REAA systems. The federal government provides funds through 
the BIA appropriations, however management of the education programs 
and school districts is completely controlled at the community level.

Local community, Native involvement is provided in every aspect of the 
education program of these "contract" schools. The largest school, 
for example, has eight certified Alaska Native teachers in its teaching 
staff. Community school boards at these schools completely determine, 
within the village, all administrative, curricull?., fiscal and policy 
decisions concerning school district operations.

Unfortunately, these schools are scheduled to be closed at the end of 
the 1984-85 school year.
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The schools are community-operated and controlled, while funds are 
provided by the federal government under contracting provisions of the 
"Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act." The communities 
wish to continue to locally manage their education programs, however 
federal funds will not be available beyond federal FY-85.

These schools have requested financial assistance from the State to 
continue to operate their districts. Linder present policies, the state 
will not provide education funds to the contract schools because they 
are operated by Native community councils (village councils), which 
were organized prior to statehood. The councils are recognized as 
"tribal governing bodies" by the federal government.

Although the village council "contract" schools have agreed to admit 
all student village residents to the schools, regardless of race, the 
present state policy regards them as "private" schools because they 
are operated by Native community councils.

Despite their desire the maintain community control over the village . 
education programs, the contract schools' only other option is to join 
the REAA education systems. They are very reluctant to do so because 
of the loss of community control over the education program, and be­
cause of the successes which they have achieved through the systems 
which have been established by them and which are now in place. If, 
for example, a Native community school becomes part of an REAA, they 
will be absorbed by a school district which encompasses up to 35 or 
more other communities, and will no longer have effective control over 
education at the community level.

The history, circumstances, and legal and policy issues are perhaps 
more complicated than 1 describe in this letter, however the basic aim 
of the village contract schools is simple. They wish to maintain ef­
fective local control and community operation of their schools. This 
goal is becoming destroyed by pressures of state and federal policies 
over which they have no effective control. We hope that you will con­
sider the fate of these school districts among other rural education 
issues under review by the legislature.

By alerting you to the matter of Native community schools, we in no 
way wish to diminish the importance of your continued support for H.B.
504. Your interest in rural and Native education needs, as evidenced 
by H.B. 504, is genuinely appreciated.

Sincerely,

ASSOCIATION OF VILLAGE COUNCIL PRESIDENTS 
Willie Kasayulie, Chairman of the Board

Ivan M. Ivan 
President



Hon. Joe Hayes
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cc: Hon. Bill Sheffield, Governor
Rep. Vern Hurlbert
Rep. Jack Fuller
Rep. Tony Vaska
Sen. Frank Ferguson
Sen. John Sackett
Contract School Association
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February 15, 1984

The Honorable Joe L. Hayes, Speaker 
Alaska State House of Representatives 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811 

Dear Mr Hayes:

House Bill No. 504, creating a teacher scholarship loan program for 
Alaska Native high school graduates who would earn a teaching degree and 
return to their district to tta:h, would give incentive for our Native 
students to enter into a field which would allow them to return to their
villages or districts to teach.

Often, students are reluctant to enter this sector because upon
conclusion, they are forced to move out of their environment to seek
employment opportunities. House Bill No. 504 would alleviate this 
hurdle.

Sincerely

Director, Shareholder Relations

cc: Representative Vernon L. Hurlbert



Mncfl Borough School ©istrict
P.O . Box  636 

H A IN E S ,  A L A S K A  99827

S tep h e n  T .  M cPhe t res , S u p e r in t e n d e n t G a ry  D .  M a tthew s , H ig h  S c h o o l  P r in c ip a l 
A la n  W . H e in r i c h ,  E lem e n ta ry  P r in c ip a l

Representative Vern Hurlbert 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

January 30, 1984

Dear Rep. Hurlbert;

First, let me say I appreciate your sending me a copy of House Bill 504
and giving me the opportunity to respond.

Let me preface my comments by saying 1 have been in education in Alaska
for twenty years and am myself a product of the Alaskan schools. So
my comments will be somewhat bias.

As I read the bill, the intent is to encourage more Alaskan natives to 
pursue a career in education, However, the bill states "ethnic minorities". 
I read this to be negro, asian, hispanic, as well as Alaskan native. The 
bill must be more specific to accomplish the goal. I personally would be 
concerned if all minorities were eligible and I was not. That indeed would 
be a reverse discriL. nation. When I graduated from high school, the BIA 
assisted the native students in furthering their edcuation. Possibly 
the state could pattern a scholarship program from the BIA.

Also, under the conditions of the loan, could you amend the section for 
payment by the State if borrower teaches in one of the State's rural 
school districts instead of anywhere in Alaska?

Again, thank you for the opportunity to comment.

Sincerely,

Stephen T. McPhetres 
Superintendent

M E M B E R  O F  N O R T H W E S T  A S S O C IA T IO N  O F  A C C R E D IT E D  S C H O O L S  A N D  C O L L E G E S



J a n u a r y  26, 1984

R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  H u r l b e r t  
P o u c h  V
J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a  99811 

Re: HB 504

D e a r  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  H u r l b e r t :

T h e  A l a s k a  N a t i v e  L a n d  M a n a g e r s  A s s o c i a t i o n  w o u l d  like to 
t h a n k  y o u  for c o - s p o n s o r i n g  H o u s e  B i l l  504 d e a l i n g  w i t h  
e s t a b l i s h i n g  the t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  lo a n  p r o o r a m .

W e  feel t h a t  it is v e r y  i m p o r t a n t  to t r a i n  t e a c h e r s  w h o  w i l l  
r e t u r n  to t h e i r  r u r a l  v i l l a g e s  to w o rk. It w i l l  i m p r o v e  the 
q u a l i t y  o f  e d u c a t i o n  in r u r a l  A l a s k a  to h a v e  t e a c h e r s  from 
t h e  a r e a  w o r k  in t h e i r  sch o o l s .  W e  h o p e  t h a t  t h i s  w i l l  b e  a 
s i g n i f i c a n t  f a c t o r  in i m p r o v i n g  t h e  e d u c a t i o n  s y s t e m  in 
r u r a l  A l a ska.

W e  a p p r e c i a t e  t h e  s u p p o r t  you h a v e  s h o w n  for rura] A l a s k a n  
e d u c a t i o n  b y  c o - s p o n s o r i n g  th i s  l e g i s l a t i o n .  We  look 
f o r w a r d  to w o r k i n g  w i t h  you for t h e  e a r l y  p a s s a g e  o f  this b i l l .
V e r y  t r u l y  yo u r s ,

D a n i e l  A l e x  
P r e s i d e n t

cc: A l a s k a  N a t i v e  L a n d  M a n a g e r s  A s s o c i a t i o n  M e m b e r s



REAS, the preservation and continuation of Native culture 
in Alaska is of paramount importance; and

REAS, Native teachers are needed to foster a sense of ethnic 
traditions and cultures in Alaska Native students: and

REAS, existing prctrams have failed to increase the number of 
Alaska Native teachers: and

tne r.um.oer r:
A — £ 5 i ’.c. . > a l  1.YC ;  t U - u "

ashe V-ztivs teachers returning to tescn
is inaoecuate«

REFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Alaska Native Land Managers 
Association, meeting in Anchorage, Alaska, this 19th 
day of January, 19S4, does hereby support and urge the 
immediate passage of House Bill 504.



M R  VE R N  HUI.UERT 
H O U S E  OF RF.PS ENT AT 1V K S 
J U N EAU, AK

FEB.  1 5 ,  198A

D E A R  REP. V e r n  H u l b e r t

T H I S  IS A L E T T E R  C O N C E R N I N G  H O U S E  BI L L  NO. 504 
IN S U P P O R T  OF S T U D E N T  L O A N S  TO A K A S K A N  STUDE N T S .
I AM IN FULL S U P O R T  OF THIS BILL. I CAN H O N E S T L Y  S P E A K  
ON TH I S  ISSUE. W H E N  I A T T E N E D  THE X - C E D  P R O C R A M  T H E R E  
W H E R E  M A N Y  D I S C O M F O R T S  I HAD TO E N C O U N T E R  IN A P P L Y I N G  
F O R  F U N D I N C  AS AN OFF C A M P U S  S T UDENT. T H E  E X I S T I N G  L O ANS 
W E R E  N O T  E N O U G H  TO M E T  THE N E E D S  OF A N Y O N E  W I T H  A FAMILY. 
WE  ALL U N D E R S T O O D  T H A T  IT C O S T E D  M O N E Y  TO CO TO SCHOOL 
BUT THE H A R D S H I P  WAS AT T I M E S  VERY D E M A N D I N C  C'N OUR 
S L I M  B U DGETS.

TH E  BILL HAS I N S I G H T  FOR OUR N O N - C E R T I F I E D  T E A C H E R S  
WHO H A V E  BEEN VERY D E D I C A T E D  TO T H E I R  JOBS. T H A Y  HAVE 
W O R K E D  VERY S I L E N T L Y  W I T H O U T  R E T I R E M E N T  B E N I F I T S  ON PART 
T I M E  BASES. I CAN F O R E S E E  T H E M  G O I N G  ON TO S C H O O L  NOW 
IF TH I S  BI L L  IS P A S S E D  IN BOTH H O U S E S .  THE C O M M U I C A T I O N  
W H I C H  LINKS THE V I L L A C E  LIFE AND THE S C H O O L S  ARE THE N O N­
CE R T I F I E D  AIDES. PER H A P S ,  IN THE F U R T U R E  W I T H  MO R E  
C E R T I F I E D  T E A C H E R S  WHO ARE A L A S K A N  N A T I V E S  A B E T T E R  
D E L I V E R Y  OF E D U C A T I O N  W I L L  BE A R E A L I T Y  HERE IN R U R A L  
A L A S K A .

I AL S O  CAN SEE A N O T H E R  B A R R I E R  W H A T  W I L L  BE DONE 
FOR T H E  N A T I V E  C E R T I F I E D  T E A C H E R S  WHO M U S T  W A I T  
FOR T H E  T E N U R E  T E A C H E R S  TO M O V E  ON I M Y S E L F  SIT IN THAT 
P O S I T I O N  AND HAVE B R O U G H T  IT TO THE A T T E N T I O N  OF THE 
R E A A  B O A R D  THE R EPLY WAS THE T E N U R E  T E A C H E R  OR AN 
O P E N I N G  W I T H I N  T H E C,DISTRICT W H E N  E V E R Y  THE WAS ONi W H E R E  
I CAN FIT T H E  SLOT.



* MANIILA Q MANP O'VVER
P.O. 3o.\ 725 

Kotzebue. Alaska 99752

Mr. W illiam  T. L o v ell  House HESSS Committee
February 6, 1984
Alaska S ta te  L e g is la tu r e  v-5>»Pouch V <̂  ^ l Z 0Z $ rJuneau, Alaska 99811
Dear Mr. L o v e l l :Thank you fo r  th is  opportunity to submit w ritten  comments on HoUi,e B i l l  No. 504. I admire the. l e g i s l a t o r s  in s ig h t  into  the problems o f  Rural Alaska and I applaud them fo r  t h e ir  in v e n tiv e n e ss . Keep up the good workl!Once again thank you fo r  th is  op p o rtu n ity .S in c e r e ly ,
FptJOL Wemark Saercial A s s is ta n t
enclosure: 1

' ! A . \ i ! ! . AM  v V .  '• >KWM . V  S I  11 \
MlMiiHN V:i.LA«»r>

AfTir.ll.' ! I V  JL 'kl. iPt. .  I . , HI M.  K i V  A ' l M - S  * • '  A  . »t •. •. • I.



Mauneluk Manpower 

Testamony on HB 504

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on HB 504, My name 

is Fred Wemark, Special Assistant with Mauneluk Manpower. I 

manage a program that brings career awareness into the villages 

The main thrust for the program is to get the students and 

adults within the villages to think about what they would like 

to do in the village or region in the way of an occupation.

We explore all the potential possibilities of work and try to 

give as accurate a picture of employment as possible in the 

future.

Your Bill reaches right to the heart of employment that will 

always be present regardless of the amount of development the 

rural parts of our great state may or may not enjoy. As long 

as there is a rural population there will be teaching jobs 

available. It is only fitting that these positions be taken 

by these that will live in the community and raise their 

families and keep the money within the community. This not 

only makes sense from an economic standpoint but from a social 

standpoint also.

There are many students in our University system that are 

studying for a career in Education. But those people are to 

few. Your bill will increase that number dramatically. More 

and more the high school students are realizing the importance 

of a higher education. With the rural economy in the shape it 

is in those hopes for a higher education fades with the lack 

of money to send them to school. Hope is now on the horizon.

I urge that you pass this important piece of legislation as 

soon as possible with the appropiate funding.

Thank you.



C ity  o f  M o u n ta in  V illa g e
” Mountain Village, A laska 99632 
  _  (907) 591-2929

Febraury 10, 1984

P.O. Box 204

Honorable Joe Hayes 
Speaker of the House 
Alaska House of Representative 
Pouch V
Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Speaker Hayes:

I am writing to you in support of House Bill no.
504, which uou introduced recently in the second 
session of the 13th legislature. This bill if 
passed, will greatly encourage and enhance our 
native people to come back and teach among their 
own people and will improve the quality of education 
which is vital in this area. Representative Vern 
Hurlbert is avare of this and it is his concern 
for his constituents in District 24 of which he 
represents.

Mr. Speaker, I advice your integrity and is some 
what surprise to me that you are concerned for us 
natives, therefore, I believe that is the kind of 
leadership we need in Juneau. ,-nhank you very muchl

Sincerely,

cc.^Rep. Vern Hulbert 
Sen. John Sackett 
Sen. Frank Ferguson 
Rep. Jack Fuller
Supt. Dr. William Phillips, Lower Yukon School District 
City Manager, Steve Schwab



KALTAG NATIVE V.LLAGE COUNCIL

T'ESOLL'T[ON NO. 1.

LOAN PROGRAM".

WHEREAS, -e, the Council of Kaltag Village, arc aware of the need for more 

native teachers in ojr school systems across the state, and

WHEREAS, there is a need for funding and scholarships, and

WHEREAS, House Bill No. 504, in the legislature of the State of Alaska,

Thirteenth Legislature - Second Session has been introduced, and

WHEREAS, ‘he ibov> Dili does not include students of private schouls,

!. W, THEREFORE BE IT RFSOLTED that the Kaltag Native Village Council respectfully 

requests the sponsors of HB 504 to include private school students and, 

if arid when it does this, the counci 1 will fully endorse the above mentioned

bill.

I

, 1984

Chief

Second Chief

Council Member

Council Member / / /

Council Member

Council Member



\\ l S o j

CITY OF SCAMMON BAY ^
GENERAL DELIVERY 

Scammon Bay, Alaska 99662 / (907) 558-5529
f t

T h e  H o n o r a b l e  A n t h o n y  V a s k a  

S t a t e  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  for D i s t r i c t  25 

A l a s k a  S t a t e  L e g i s l a t i v e  

P o u c h  V

J u n e a u ,  A l a s k a  9 9 8 1 1

&

2 - 7 - 8 4

D e a r  Tony,

H e l l o  t h e r e  Mr. V a s k a !  I u n d e r s t a n d  t h a t  y o u  and S e n a t o r  

S a c k e t t  w e r e  v e r y  b u s y  h a v i n g  to m e e t  w i t h  y o u r  c o n s t i t u i e n t s  

in B e t h e l .  I'm s o r r y  I d i d  n o t  h a v e  an o p p o r t u n i t y  to see y o u

P l a s m a n  and, ga v e  h i m  a c o p y  of S c a m m o n  B a y ' s  C a p i t a l  priority, 

n e e d s  for this y ear.

We a l s o  w o u l d  like for y o u  to s u p p o r t  H.B. 504 i n t r o d u c e d  

by R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  Joe H a y e s  w h i c h  is a b i l l  a i m e d  at p r o v i d i n g  

a t e a c h e r  s c h o l a r s h i p  lo a n  p r o g r a m .  'J'

It's time th a t  r u r a l  s t u d e n t s  e s p e c i a l l y  n a t i v e s  m u s t  h a v e  

s u f f i c i e n t  f i n a n c i a l  r e c o u r s e  in o r d e r  to co m e  b a c k  to t h e i r  

own v i l l a g e s  and teach. We w o u l d  like for y o u  to o p p o s e  the S t a t e  

take o v e r  of Mt. E d g e c u m b  H i g h  S c h o o l .  B o t h  of t h e s e  i s s u e s  are 

f u l l y  s u p p o r t e d  by the m a j o r i t y  of the A V C P  d e l e g a t e s  w h i c h  c o n­

v e n e d  in H o o p e r  Eay on J a n u a r y  26-27. Y o u  k n o w  as w e l l  as we k n o w  

t h a t  it's u n n e s s a r y  for the S t a t e  to ta k e  a n o t h e r  f i n a n c i a l  b u r d e n  

w h e n  t h e r e ' s  so m u c h  to fall for r u r a l s  b a s i c  n e e d ' s .

Well, Tony, if t h e r e s  a n y t h i n g  I can do in a n y w a y ,  p l e a s e  let 

me know.

S i n c e r e l y ,

H o m e r  H u n t e r  Jr.

M a y o r

w h e n  F r a n k  A g u c h a k  and I w e n t  d o w n  to J u n e a u  d u r i n g  the w e e k  

of F e b u a r y  1-4 to do p o l i t i c a l  b u s i n e s s  w i t h  o u r  d i s t r i c t  

l e g i s l a t o r . . A n y w a y  I t a l k e d  w i t h  y o u r  /isaltive a s s i s t a n t ,  J i m



*
NEA-ALASKA

AFFILIATED WITH TH E NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

A NCH ORA G E  R EG ION A L  O FF IC E
1411 W. 33RD  

ANCHORAGE, AUVSKA 99503  
(907) 2 7 4  0SZ ••

JUNEAU O FF IC E
147 S . FRANKLIN '2 0 7  

JUNEAU. ALASKA 99801  
(907) 586-3 0 9 0

FA IRBANKS R EG IO N A L  O FF IC E
2 1 1 8  CUSHMAN STREET 

FAiRBANKS. ALASKA 99701  
(907) 4 5 6 -4 4 3 5

TO: Mae Tischer, Chairman
House HESS Committee 
Members of the Committee

DATE: February 21, 1984

RE: HB 504; "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship loan program."

NEA-Alaska strongly supports and encourages favorable consideration of the 
concept of scholarship incentives as a method of encouraging Alaska Natives to 
pursue careers in teaching in the public schools in Alaska. This particular 
issue was established as one of the six major legislative priorities of the 
Delegate Assembly, meeting in Anchorage in January.

It may be appropriate for the Committee to seek data relative to the previous 
implementation of AS 14.43.050 -.090 for purposes addressing specifically 
identified needs. SB 426 expands upon the provisions of the above referenced 
statute.

We would further encourage that the Committee, either on its own initiative or 
through the Department of Education, consider the feasibility of conducting an 
annual survey of all Alaska Native High School sophomores, juniors, and seniors 
and, perhaps even a supplemental survey of their parents and guardians as well, 
in an effort to build a data base which could be used to bring even more focus 
to this kind of legislation on a long term basis. Specifically, it seems 
appropriate to have more information on:

- career aspirations, expectations, needs
- current deterrents, barriers, problems
- extent and nature of counseling and adequacy of curriculum

A recent survey published by Texas Christian University on "Factors Related to 
High School Students* Interest in Teaching as a Profession" strongly suggest 
that a decline in parental interest in encouraging their children toward teach­
ing is a major factor. It may be appropriate to ascertain the validity of this
conclusion for Alaska.

With an increasing number of Native students in the urban areas perhaps it is 
worthy of some emphasis to encourage, through incentives, more Native teachers 
in these areas as well.

•?



9

It also seems appropriate to consider making this lean program an adjunct of the 
regular student loan program, but utilizing an expanded and separate sub­
committee of the Post Secondary Education Commission which would also include 
practicing teachers and parents among its membership.

* TsC
We feel that it is appropriate to raise some caution relative to geographic 
restrictions upon where a recipient may chose to teach. Reduction in the 
teaching force, non-retention and/or desire to voluntary job changes may have 
some effect on mobility of the recipients.

Finally, it may also be appropriate, to clarify the legislative intent of HB 504 
as it pertains to the term ’'teacher.1' AS 14.20.207 currently provides that the 
term teacher is also intended to cover administration. It is our recommendation 
that the primary focus be toward those who are actually in a classroom teaching 
circumstance.

Respectfully Submitted,VI*-
Bob Manners 
Executive Secretary 
NEA-Alaska

4 :DS1



Alaska State Legislature
Speaker of the House of Representatives P ou ch  V 

S tate  Capitol 
Juneau, Alaska 9 9 8 1 1 

(9 0 7 ) 4 6 5 -3 7 2 0Official B usiness

F e b r u a r y  24, 1984

J i m  G r e i g ,  Ph. D.
B o x  399
B e r n a l i l l o ,  N.M. 87004 

D e a r  Dr. Gr e i g :

T h a n k  y o u  for y o u r  F e b r u a r y  1st l e t t e r  a n d  the f a s c i n a t i n g  
d e s c r i p t i o n  o f  s o m e  o f  the h i g h  c o s t s  o f  e d u c a t i o n  in r u r a l  
A l a s k a .  I h a d  b e e n  a w a r e  t h e y  w e r e  h i g h ,  b u t  y o u r  m a t e r i a l  
w a s  a r e a l  e y e - o p e n e r .  O b v i o u s l y ,  to t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  it c a n  
be d o c u m e n t e d  and p u b l i c i z e d ,  it w i l l  w o r k  to t h e  adv&rvcage 
of t h e  b i l l  I h a v e  s p o n s o r e d .

In a d d i t i o n  to th a t  i n t e r e s t ,  h o w e v e r ,  it a p p e a r s  t h i s  m i g h t  
be m a t e r i a l  o f  i n t e r e s t  to t h e  L e g i s l a t i v e  A u d i t o r .  I w i l l  
f o r w a r d  a c o p y  of  y o u r  m a t e r i a l  a n d  o f  t h i s  l e t t e r  to R e p r e­
s e n t a t i v e  B o b  B e t t i s w o r t h ,  C h a i r m a n  of  the L e g i s l a t i v e  B u d g e t  
and A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e ,  for his p e r u s a l .

W i t h  y o u r  i n t e r e s t  in e d u c a t i o n  y o u  m i g h t  be  p l e a s e d  t o  k n o w  
t h a t  the b i l l ,  w h i c h  has b e e n  the f e a t u r e  o f  s e v e r a l  p u b l i c  
h e a r i n g s  r e c e n t l y ,  is v e r y  p o p u l a r ,  a n d  it a p p e a r s  at t h i s  
p o i n t  th a t  i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  c o u l d  b e g i n  in t h e  u p c o m i n g  sc h o o l  
y e a r  (next F a l l ) . It h a s  the s t r o n g  s u p p o r t  of t h e  S t a t e  
B o a r d  of  E d u c a t i o n ,  the D i r e c t o r  of Post s e c o n d a r y  e d u c a t i o n ,  
and n u m e r o u s  o t h e r  r a n k i n g  o f f i c i a l s  in t h e  e d u c a t i o n  c o m m u­
nity. It v e r y  w e l l  c o u l d  p r o v e  to b e  the s e n s i b l e  s o l u t i o n  
to a b o t h e r s o m e  and v e r y  e x p e n s i v e  p r o b l e m .

Ag a i n ,  t h a n k  y o u  for the i n f o r m a t i o n ,  a n d  for y o u r  e x p r e s s i o n  
of s u p p o r t  for the l e g i s l a t i o n .

Jo e  L. H a y e s  
S P E A K E R  O F  T H E  H O U S E

J L H :rjn





•Feb. 1 ,  1984 Jim  G re ig , Fh.D Box 399B e r n a l i l lo ,  N.M 57004 (505) 667-2969FUND STUDENTS. NOT PROFESSORS — THE HAYES SCHOLARSHIP BILLRural Native American studei.ts may soon rece iv e  $10,000 per year scholarships towards teaching degrees i f  the b i l l  rece n tly  introduced by Alaska S tate  Representative Joe Kayes i s  s u c c e s s fu l .  Many voters may see t h is  as too much money lavish ed  on a favored ethnic m inority .They may see t h is  b i l l  as both an example of government waste and of government rever^ -c rim in a tio n . But, I have good evidence to show that t h i s  b i l l  i s  neither w asteful nor d iscrim in ato ry . The r e a l i t y  i s  quite the opposite.ky evidence comes from in sid e  inform ation, information that i s  common knowledge among r u r a l  c o lle g e  professors and adm inistrators but is  almost never released to the general p u b lic . I  can divulge t h is  inform­atio n  because I was w ill in g  to r is k  my career in  Alaska rather than cover up the waste that I found in  r u ra l higher education. For any th at care to  in v e s tig a te  t h is  evidence, I  have quite exten sive , s p e c i f ic  inform ation. In 1981 and 1982 I worked as a U n iversity  of Alaska professor among Native American v i l la g e s  along the Yukon R iver. Then, in the spring of 1983, I worked as the d ire cto r  of a "n o n -p ro fit"  Native teacher educa­t io n  program among the v i l la g e s  o f the Bering Sea. The fo llo w in g are ju st as few of my experiences as a r u r a l  educator.When I arrived at my job on the Bering S e ? , I was responsible  fo r  d ir e c t ­ing an on-going $346,000 Federal program xhat was coordinated with two U n iv ersity  of Alaska programs th a t cost f.bout $252,000. In a l l ,  we were spending about $600,000 per year. A l l  t i  > p u b lic ly  released documents — grant req uests, appeals fo r  more s ta te  funding, e tc .  — advertised th at we had over 40 students, a l l  r a p id ly  progressing towards t h e ir  te a c h ­ing degrees. But, a f t e r  I had been on the job fo r  a month, nothing t  'emed to be happening. Four or f i v e  students Beemed to be doing some of t h e ir  assignments, but that was about a l l .  This program had been running fo r  a year and a h a l f  before I a rr iv e d . Had the students done any work during that year and a h a l f?  I t  was hard to say. No cre d it  hour t o t a ls  had ever been compiled. What was the t o t a l  cost of t h is  program? Again, no to t a l  cost f ig u r e s  had ever been kept. I asked the u n iv e rs ity  o f f i c i a l s  fo r  t h e ir  t o t a ls ,  but they said that they d id n 't  have any.In attempting to determine the success r a te  of my program, I began to piece together the f a c t s .  I f  the program r e a l ly  was not working, perhaps something could be done to improve i t .  But, f i r s t  J had to determine what was a c t u a l ly  happening. So, I began to assemble complex charts on my o f f i c e  w alls — charts showing student progress duriny the current semester and charts showing student progress during the previous semesters.At f i r s t  i t  was d i f f i c u l t  to determine ju s t  what I should consider as a "stu d e n t."  A fte r  a l l ,  I had over 40 people signed up, and a l l  were claim ing to be "s tu d e n ts ."  Y et, l i t t l e  work was being done. But, then I found a c le a r  s o lu tio n . I f ,  fo r  example, those in ray program completed a t o t a l  of 1000 courses (3 c re d it  hours each) during the school year, and i f  each f u l l  tirae student was t h e o r e t ic a l ly  expected to complete 10 courses per year, th'j.n I could j u s t i f i a b l l y  speak of having 100 "stu d e n ts ."  This would be true no matter how many people were a c t u a l ly  on my r o l l s .  Further, i f  the t o t a l  cost o f my program was, fo r  example, $1,000,000 per year, then I could say that the e f f ic ie n c y  of t h is  program was 310,000 per student per year.
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D e a r  Dr. G r e i g :

T h a n k  y o u  for y o u r  F e b r u a r y  1st l e t t e r  a n d  the f a s c i n a t i n g  
d e s c r i p t i o n  o f  some of t h e  h i g h  c o s t s  of  e d u c a t i o n  in r u r a l  
A l a s k a .  I h a d  b e e n  a w a r e  t h e y  w e r e  high, but y o u r  m a t e r i a l  
w a s  a r e a l  e y e - o p e n e r .  O b v i o u s l y ,  to  t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  it c a n  
b e  d o c u m e n t e d  a n d  p u b l i c i s e d ,  it w i l l  w o r k  t o  the a d v a n t a g e  
o f  t h e  b i l l  I h a v e  s p o n s o r e d .

In a d d i t i o n  to th a t  i n t e r e s t ,  h o w e v e r ,  it a p p e a l s  t h i s  m i g h t  
b e  m a t e r i a l  of  i n t e r e s t  t o  the L e g i s l a t i v e  A u d i t o r .  I w i l l  
f o r w a r d  a c o p y  of y o u r  m a t e r i a l  a n d  of t h i s  l e t t e r  to  R e p r e­
s e n t a t i v e  B o b  B e t t i s w o r t h ,  C h a i r m a n  o f  t h e  L e g i s l a t i v e  B u d g e t  
a n d  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e ,  for h i s  p e r u s a l .

W i t h  y o u r  i n t e r e s t  in e d u c a t i o n  y o u  m i g h t  b e  p l e a s e d  t o  k n o w  
t h a t  the b i l l ,  w h i c h  h a s  b e e n  t h e  f e a t u r e  o f  s e v e r a l  p u b l i c  
h e a r i n g s  r e c e n t l y ,  is v e r y  p o p u l a r ,  and it a p p e a r s  at t h i s  
p o i n t  t h a t  i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  c o u l d  b e g i n  in the u p c o m i n g  school 
y e a r  (next F a l l ) . It h a s  t h e  s t r o n g  s u p p o r t  of t h e  S t a t e  
B o a r d  of E d u c a t i o n ,  the D i r e c t o r  of P o s t s e c o n d a r y  e d u c a t i o n ,  
a n d  n u m e r o u s  o t h e r  r a n k i n g  o f f i c i a l s  in t h e  e d u c a t i o n  c o m m u­
nity. It v e r y  w e l l  c o u l d  p r o v e  t o  b e  t h e  s e n s i b l e  s o l u t i o n  
t o  a b o t h e r s o m e  and v e r y  e x p e n s i v e  p r o b l e m .

A g a i n ,  t h a n k  y o u  for the i n f o r m a t i o n ,  a n d  for y o u r  e x p r e s s i o n  
o f  s u p p o r t  for the l e g i s l a t i o n .

J o e  T.'„ K a y e s  
SPEJhsJR o f  t h e  h o u s e

J L H : r j n /



2. G re ig

Su c h  cost e f f e c t i v e n e s s  is so e a s y  to c a l c u l a t e  th a t  it c o u l d  be 
d e m a n d e d  ty t h e  S t a t e  L e g i s l a t u r e  and even p u b l i s h e d  in the n e w p a p e r s .
Ir. t h i s  w a y  a l t e r n a t i v e  p r o g r a m s  c ould o p e n l y  c o m p e t e  w i t h  each o t h e r  
f o r  p u b l i c  funds. At p resent, u n i v e r s i t y  a d m i n i s t r a t o r s  h i d e  su c h  
s t a t i s t i c s  as t h o u g h  t h e y  w e r e  n u c l e a r  secrets.

F o r  example, one d a y  two o f f i c i a l s  f r o m  a r u r a l  c o m m u n i t y  c o l l e g e  came 
b y  and n o t i c e d  t h e  c h a r t s  on m y  wall.

" B e t t e r  not d i s p l a y  i n f o r m a t i o n  l i k e  t h a t , "  said one.

"Best not to c o l l e c t  su c h  i n f o r m a t i o n  in t h e  f i rst p l a c e , "  
sa i d  t h e  other.

T h e s e  we l l  i n t e n t i o n e d  m e n  s i m p l y  w a n t e d  to g i v e  me g o o d  s u r v i v a l  advice. 
N e v e r t h e l e s s ,  I kept on w i t h  m y  chart work. S o o n  m y  ch a r t s  c l e a r l y  
s h o w e d  that o v e r  t h e  last y e a r  and a h a l f  th i s  p r o g r a m  h a d  not 40 student 
but o n l y  5 s t u d e n t s .  I was g e n e r o u s l y  c a l c u l a t i n g  that one " s t u d e n t "  
w o u l d  c o m p l e t e  a b o u t  s e v e n  c o u r s e s  per y e a r  —  w h i c h  is o n l y  a p a r t - t i m e  
load a n y w h e r e  else. Further, we w e r e  s p e n d i n g  not $ 1 0 , 0 0 0  but $ 1 2 0 , 0 0 0  
f o r  each s t u d e n t  each year. At t h i s  rate, the p r i c e  of just one t e a c h i n g  
d e g r e e  was g o i n g  to be well over $700,000.

I w e n t  to a h i g h  a d m i n i s t r a t o r  of t h e  l o c a l  c o m m u n i t y  c o l l e g e  that 
f o r m e d  part of t h i s  program.

"Look at these’, c h a r t s , "  I said. "This p r o g r a m  c l e a r l y  i s n ' t  
w o r k i n g . "

"I K n o w , "  sa i d  t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t o r ,  "but we h a v e  t r i e d  a l m o s t  
e v e r y t h i n g . "

I h a d  been g i v i n g  s o m e  t h o u g h t  to a n other, q u i t e  o b v i o u s  a p p r o a c h .  It 
s e e m e d  to me  t h a t  most N a t i v e  A m e r i c a n  c o l l e g e  g r a d u a t e s  that I met in 
r u r a l  A l a s k a  e a r n e d  t h e i r  d e g r e e s  at m a j o r  campuses. S c h o l a r s h i p s  l a r g e  
e n o u g h  to a l l o w  o u r  a v e r a g e  student, who o f ten h a d  d e p e n d e n t  child r e n ,  
to v e n t u r e  o n t o  a l a r g e  campus, m i ght be the w a y  to go.

"What a b o u t  s e t t i n g  u p  a l a r g e  s c h o l a r s h i p  fu n d  to s e n d  our best 
s t u d e n t s  to m a j o r  c a m p u s e s ? "  I asked. "It might be w o r t h  a try

"No way!" H e  said.

At t h i s  point, I s h o u l d  g i v e  the r e a d e r  s o m e  b a c k g r o u n d  i n f o r m a t i o n .
W h y  was th i s  a d m i n i s t r a t o r  so u p s e t  c rer my  s u g g e s t i o n ?  T h e  a n s w e r  is 
t h a t  if t h e s e  s c h o l a r s h i p s  w e r e  g r anted, his c o l l e g e  w o u l d  not o n l y  be 
l o s i n g  s t u d e n t  t u i t i o n  money, but it w o uld a l s o  be f a c e d  w i t h  d e c r e a s i n g  
e n r o l l m e n t  s t a t i s t i c s .  H i s  t o t a l  s t u d e n t  e n r o l l m e n t  was a m a j o r  f a c t o r  
in his own f u n d i n g  a n d  was a m a j o r  f a c t o r  by  w h i c h  h i s  b u r e a u c r a t i c  
s u p e r i o r s  m e a s u r e d  h i s  e f f e c t i v e n e s s  as an a d m i n i s t r a t o r .  He d i d n ' t  
w a n t  to send a w a y  p r o m i s i n g  s t u d e n t s  -- even if it w a s  to  t h e i r  a d v a n t a g e

W h y  don't o t h e r  r u r a l  p r o f e s s o r s  p r o t e s t  over t h e  w a s t e  w i t h i n  t h e i r  
o wn p r o g r a m s ?  A f t e r  all, d on't p r o f e s s o r s  h a v e  the f r e e d o m  a n d  d e s i r e  
to "prof e s s "  the t r u t h ?  T h e  a n s w e r  to th i s  is, again, "No way!"
A l m o s t  t w o  h u n d r e d  P h . D ' s  a p p l i e d  f o r  the p o s i t i o n  that I was s e l e c t e d  
f o r  at t h e  U n i v e r s i t y  of Alaska. Most of t h ^s^ w e r e  u n e m p l o y e d .  Even if 
t h e y  could f i n d  jobs in t h e  L ower F o r t y - E i g h t ,  t h e i r  a v e r a g e  p a y  w o u l d  
o n l y  be about $ 1 8,000. T h e  A l a s k a n  b u s h  is o f t e n  t h e i r  last c h a n c e  to 
m a k e  u p  for a l l  t h o s e  y e a r s  at the p o v e r t y  level. M y  A l a s k a n  job p a i d  
a b out $ 5 0 , 0 0 0  per year, plus a lo n g  vacation, j u n k e t s  to s o u t h e r n



C a l i f o r n i a ,  and o ther b e n e f i t s .  W i t h  t h e s e  wages and w i t h  2 0 0  Ph.D's 
w a i t i n g  in line to r e p l a c e  you, a r e  y o u  g o i n g  to r o c k  t h e  b o a t ?
P r o b a b l y  not.

If y o u  are a boat r o c ker, y o u  a r e  v e r y  q u i c k l y  r e p l a c e d .  T h r o u g h  a
p r o c e s s  of n a t u r a l  s e l e c t i o n ,  a l l  boat r o c k e r s  are s o o n  j e ttisoned,
ana o n l y  t h o s e  with a s t o m a c h  f o r  t h i s  k i n d  of e x c u r s i o n  survive.
I n o w  r u n  m y  own c o n s t r u c t i o n  c o m p a n y  in N e w  Kc-xico.

So, w o u l d  this $ 1 0 , 0 0 0  s c h o l a r s h i p  be w a s t e f u l ?  Jot at all. In fact, 
q u i t e  the opposite. If m y  p r o g r a m  is typ i c a l ,  and I b e l i e v e  it is, the 
t a x p a y e r  is a l r e a d y  s p e n d i n g  u p  t o  3 1 2 0 , 0 0 0  a y e a r  f o r  each r u r a l  
student. H o w  much b e t t e r  w o u l d  it be f o r  th i s  m o n e y  to f u n d  t w e l v e  
s t u d e n t s  directly, i n s t e a d  of cne s t u d e n t  i n d i r e c t l y .  As it is, most of 
t h i s  3 120 , 0 00  per s t u d e n t  n e v e r  b e n e f i t s  t h e  student, but i n s t e a d  
b e n e f i t s  the bank a c c o u n t  of s o m e  p r o f e s s i o n a l  e d u c ator. The ca s e  is 
s i m i l a r  if the e f f i c i e n c y  of t h e  m a i n  r u r a l  t e a c h e r  e d u c a t i o n  p r o g r a m  
uf thfc U n i v e r s i t y  of A l a s k a  at F a i r b a n k s ,  the X - C E D  P r ogram, is put 
t o  t h e  test. X - C E D  s p e n d s  i n  e x c e s s  of 3 1 , 1 3 0 , 0 0 0  p e r  y e a r  to f i e l d  
eight professors, some w i t h  as l i t t l e  as two or t h r e e  a c t u a l  students. 
T h i s  m o n e y  alone w o u l d  f u n d  113 3 1 0 , 0 0 0  s c h o l a r s h i p s  —  p e r h a p s  f a r
m o r e  s c h o l a r s h i p s  t h a n  r u r a l  A l a s k a  c o uld p r e s e n t l y  absorb. F i g u r e d  
t h i s  way, the direct b e n e f i t s  b e c o m e  t r e m e n d o u s ,  and t h i s  s c h o l a r s h i p  
p r o g r a m  is a l r e a d y  funded. It is just a m a t t e r  of s w i t c h i n g  t h e  m o n e y  
arou n d .

W o u l d  t h i s  s c h o l a r s h i p  c o n s t i t u t e  r e v e r s e  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n ?  I t h i n k  not. 
T h e  p o int of this s c h o l a r s h i p  is n o t  t o  r e w a r d  s o m e o n e  f o r  h a v i n g  a 
p a r t i c u l a r  kind of genes, but f o r  h a v i n g  a  p a r t i c u l a r  k i n d  of k n o wledge. 
S o m e o n e  with, for example, I n u p i a o  a n c e s t o r y  who w a s  r a i s e d  in  I r e l a n d  
w o u l d  not be a f i t t i n g  c a n d i d a t e  f o r  t h e s e  s c h o l a r s h i p s .  On t h e  o t h e r  
haud, an Irish child a d o p t e d  by a n  I n u p i a q  f a m i l y  p r e s u m a b l y  c o u l d  . 
b e c o m e  a s c h o l a r s h i p  c a n d i d a t e .  F u r t h e r ,  t h e s e  s c h o l a r s h i p s  w o u l d  not 
bo d e s i g n e d  to r e w a r d  a s t u d e n t  s i m p l y  b e c a u s e  he is a p r o d u c t  of 
A l a s k a n  Na t i v e  culture. If, f o r  e x ample, t h e  p r o p o s e d  s c h o l a r s h i p  w e r e  
f ' r a  d e g r e e  in e l e c t r i c a l  e n g i n e e r i n g ,  t h e n  t h e  s t u d e n t ' s  c u l t u r a l  
k n o w l e d g e  w o u l d  h a v e  n o  r e l e v a n c e .  But, t h e  point h e r e  is th a t  su c h  
c u l t u r a l  k n o w l e d g e  is d i r e c t l y  r e l e v a n t  to the s t u d e n t ' s  f u t u r e  d u t i e s  
\s a t e a c h e r  of his own child r e n .  As h a s  been a m p l y  d e m o n s t r a t e d ,  
t Qa c h e r s  fr o m  the A m e r i c a n  m a i n s t r e a m  r a r e l y  r e m a i n  in a N a t i v e  A m e r i c a n  
v i l ^ g e  long enough to u n d e r s t a n d  t h e i r  n e w  c u l t u r e  or to u n d e r s t a n d  
t h e i r  students. Due to th i s  l a c k  of c u l t u r a l  and l i n g u i s t i c  k n o w l e d g e ,  
effef tive education suffers.

To  conclude, fr o m  di r e c t  e x p e r i e n c e  I k n o w  that m u c h  of r u r a l  h i g h e r  
e d u c a t i o n  i.s e x t r e m e l y  w a s t e f u l .  F c r  e v e r y  3 1 0 0 , 0 0 0  t h e  s t a t e  p o u r s  into 
r u r a l  programs, over 3 9 0 , 0 0 0  g e t s  d r a i n e d  a w a y  by a v a s t  b u r e a u c r a c y  
of p r o f e s s i o n a l  educators. H o w  m u c h  b e t t e r  would it be to g i v e  the 
s t u d e n t s  m o ney d i r e c t l y  and to cut out all of t h e s e  e x p e n s i v e  m i d d lemen. 
T h e s e  educators will c e r t a i n l y  s c r e a m  over su c h  a p r o p o s a l .  But, t h e y  
c a n  e a s i l y  be s i lenced by a u d i t i n g  t h e i r  p r o g r a m s  and c a l c u l a t i n g  the 
t o t a l  cost per actual student. At n r e s e n t  this r a t i o  is n e v e r  m a d e  public

S e c o n d l y ,  It seems o n l y  f a i r  that r u r a l  A l a s k a n  c o m m u n i t i e s  be g i v e n  
t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  to e d u c a t e  t h e i r  o w n  children. T h e s e  s c h o l a r s h i p s  
s h o u l d  not be seen as d i s c r i m i n a t i n g  a g a i n s t  t h o s e  who a r e  not N a t i v e  
A m e r i c a n s ^  but as r e w a r d i n g  t h o s e  w h o  h a v e  a  s p e c i a l i z e d  and v a l u a b l e  
k i n d  of knowledge.

3 .  G re ig
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Presented by Jim Greitj, ETEP Director, to the 
Kawerak Board of Directors, April 20, 1983.



Prepared by Jim Greig , ETEP Director

- ANALYSIS OF ETEP PERFORMANCE —  APRIL 20, 1933 
(illth some revisions tor more precise data. & corrections on 4/24)

TOTAL PROGRAM COST (Both X-CED 8, Lower Division . SDrina Sem. '81 -- Sn. Spm.’83'J

ETEP Budget for Entire Program (11/1/80 to 6/30/33) $343,296

Cost of X-CED for 2M years * 332,380

Cost of Nl-ICC for 2-’i years * 247,430

Total Proaram Cost (X-CED & Lower Division) 1,478,606

Total Credit Hours Produced (X-CED & Lower Division)* 517

Cost per Credit Hour $2860

Cost for One 130 hour Teaching Degree (B.Ed.): $371,800

Average number of students per semester
(Calculated using"required course loads" -- see bar graph)* 8

COSTS FOR 1982 - 1983 SCHOOL YEAR (Both X-CED & Lower Division')

»

Total Program Lost $593,762

Total Credit Hours Produced (est.) 88

Cost per Credit Hour $6804

Cost for 13(^rTeaching Degree (B.Ed.): $834,520

Average numbers of students per semester
(Calculated usinn "reauired course loads" -- see bar nranh) a

cANALYSIS OF BERING STRAITS REGION X-CED PERFORMANCE —  Prepared April 22, 33

TOTAL X-CED PROGRAM COST. SPRING SEMESTER 'Cl THROUGH SPRING SEMCST'tK '33

Total X-CED Budget (est., extrapolating from '82-'83)* $332,880

Total Semester Credit Hours Produced (est.)* 173

Cost per Credit Hour $2,213

Cost for 130 hour teaching degree (B.Ed.) $287,690

Average number of students per semester *
(Total cdt. hrs.,divided by 5 semesters,
divided by 12 hr. normal course load) 2.9

♦Separate sheets of paper contain information ex p la in ing  these calculations
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PREPARED BY JIM GREIG, ETEP DIRECTOR

REVISED COSTS ^/20/03 

CORRECTED NWCC COSTS 4/24/33 

ETEP, X-CED, & MHCC ANNUAL COSTS FOR ETEP PROGRAM (UPPER & LOWER DIVISIONS)

ETEP 1932-83 Budget $346,633

X-CED
Total X-CED Eudget 1982-33 
$1,130,966
Total number of X-CED student state­
wide: 96
Number of X-CED students in Bering 
Straits Region: 13

Therefore costs: 13/96 x $1,130,966 = $153,152

Ml ICC
N'.iCC Affiliated Staff Salaries: $73,150 
(from ETEP Title VII grant reeuest n .7-1A 
Travel (not, as in ETEP, 253 of salaries 
but, approximately 103) $7,315
Indirect charges (as in ETEP, 233) $18,507

Total for IIUCC $93,972

TOTAL FOR ALL OF THE ABOVE 
(i.e. for school year 1932-33)

$598,762



©
NOTE: These two information sheets on ETEP organization, although prepared for

a Title VII grant proposal, generally show the d£~ facto ETEP organizational 
plan.

ETEP ORGANIZATION CHART (Administrative)

Daily Operations
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Ousted director raps 
rural teacher program
Sy MARTHA ELIASSEN
Daily News reporterThe former director of a Nome-based Eskimo teacher training program claims he was fired because he has said publicly that the program costs too much and it is not working.Dr. Jim  Greig, a philoso­phy professor who has taught in universities around the world and was hired in Janu­ary to oversee the Eskimo Teacher Education Program in northwest Alaska, claims hundreds of thousands of dol­lars are going into the pro­gram but only a handful of students are benefiting.The program was devel­oped two years ago by Kaw- erak Inc., a non-profit Native corporation, to provide teach­er training in individual vil­lages. It is coordinated by Kaw erak, the Northw est Community College in Nome and a cross-cultural education program based at the Univer­sity of Alaska-Fairbanks.University and Kawerak a  cess officials say Greig was not on/ the job long enough to mak

an accurate judgment. They say he misunderstood the na­ture of the training program.In the past year and a half, Greig said, about S598.000 a year has been used to educate five students. Although 27 students are registered this semester, Greig said, the ma­jority are students "in name only." They do not attend classes or complete assign­ments regularly and have col­lectively earned only 16 credit hours this semester, he said.Greig estimates the cost of one teaching degree earned through the program at $800,- 000."Everybody realizes it isn't working and they don’t know what to do," Greig said. .After he was hired in Janu­ary, Greig said he spehf the first, month tfr .so. waiting grants for the program be­cause funds run out this sum­mer.' But after praising the program to the government and oil companies, Greig said he began investigating its sue- in producing Eskim o

T his B t o r y  a ls o  appeared -The Anchorage Times in :- The A l l- A la s k a  Weekly (headlines) - The U .S .A .  Today (n a tio n a l paper) -A sso ciated  Press

Con tinued  from Pape A-1

leges have a high dropout rate, Pungowiyi said."There is no doubt that the program is expensive." Pun- gowy; said. The pay-off will be in 10 or more years rather than within the next two years, he said.Mike M etty, Northwest Community College presi­dent, said Greig made his judgments with only "a cou­ple of months of observa­tion." The goal of the teacher training program is to devel­op a pool of young people who could one day become certified teachers, he said.Metty acknowledged en­rollment in the program fluc­tuates. "Right now, we know we’re going to lose students on St. Lawrence Island be­cause v haling' has started," he said. Education in rural Alaska is unlike education anywhere else because of the demanding way of life, he said.Furthermore, college is a relatively new idea in the

(sent n a t io n a l ly )  -A laska P u b lic  Radio -And many other ne*s so u rces .

teachers for village schools."A  lot of money has been spent since the ETEP program began w ith very little  produced," Greig said in an initial memo to Caleb Pungo­wiyi, Kawerak president,Greig said he gave a pres­entation to the Kewarak board of directors April 21 outlining what be says are the shortcomings of the program. He recei> --d a memo from Pungowiyi April 25 telling him he had been fired for unsatisfactory performance."O bviously, I am being fired for telling the . truth," Greig said. Facts about the success, rate of the program have been deliberate'.y hidden to make sure it continues, he said."There are a few people out , there who understand how the system works and are milking it for all It’s worth," Greig -^aid."My firing is made even

more repugnant by being de­scribed as ‘in the interests of students,’ "  Greig said in a protest letter to Pungowiyi. "Eight-hundred-thousand dol­lar degrees are not in the interest of the students — their interests lie in the effi­cient use of the $598,000 poured into ETEP each year."Pungowiyi said Greig does not understand what the pro­gram is meant to accomplish and made judgments about rural Alaska he did not have the background to make."What Jim  does not under­stand Is the need for Eskimo teachers and the cost of edu­cation in rural Alaska," Pun­gowiyi said.The aim of the program is to prepare Eskimos for teach­er certification in their own villages, at their own pace, he said.■' Though Greig had proposed that It would be much cheap­er to give Eskimo students university scholarships, Eski­mos who enroll in urban col-

Eskimo culture, Metty said."There was no premise that the program was going to produce 40 teachers in four years,”  Metty said. "We hope to get 30 or 40 teachers over a decade."But Dr. Gene Adam, form­er field coordinator for the university cross-cultural pro­gram, said some of the origi­nal grant applications had more optimistic projections.Adam, who now teaches English at Fairbanks Commu­nity College, supports GreiE’s view and said the spending bears investigation by tax-

"The idea of bringing edu cation into every little vallej is a noble one but it’s no very practical," Adam said.1 Rep. Terry Martin, R-An chorage, said Greig’s concern: about the Nome-based pro grams are similar to his owr about the high cost of rura education in general.
payers.“ I think he (Greig) is say­ing, ’Here is the cost, here is the product,’ "  Adam said.Rural education is expen­sive and it is difficult to coordinate, Adam said. “ I have the greatest respect for those students. They have to. catch fish, they have to work, they have to take care of their kids and they have to mail in their homework," he said.

"When you compare it tc some of the other programs I ’ve been bickering about, it’r not out of line," Martin said. - "The concept has. beer around for a long time to-get Native people to work wit! Native people." Martin said but the cost of present meth ods is too high.In addition to the letter U  Pungowiyi protesting his fir lng, Greig flew to Fairbank from Anchorage Tuesday t<, discuss the situation with uni iversity officials.He said he plans on return 
in f to New' Mexico in a wee) or-so to resume a lucrative adobe construction business.



RESUME

-JAMES GREIG 

Box 399
Bernalillo, New Mexico 87004 

(505) 867-2969 

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF COLORADO, Boulder. B .A . 1964, M.A. 1969. Philosophy major, 
Engli sh mi nor.
UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO, Albuquerque. Ph.D. 1 9 7 8 . Philosophy major, 
English minor. D i s s e r t a t i o n :"The Overman & the Unity Of Nietzsche's Phil.'

AREAS OF SPECIALIZATION: Cross-cultural Ed., Interdisciplinary Ed.,
Humanities, Philosophy, English.

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

1969 LATIN AMERICAN INSTITUTE, NY, NY. Instructor of English as a 
Second Language.

1969-70 SOPHIA UNIV., Tokyo. Instructor of Philosophy & English.

1971-74 UNIV. OF NEW MEXICO, Albuquerque. Instructor of Philosophy.

1974-75 UNIV. OF GUAM, Agana. Instructor of Philosophy S English.

1976 TEXAS TECH UNIV., Lubbock. Assist. Prof. of Philosophy.

1981-82 UNIV. OF ALASKA, Fairbanks. Assist. Prof. X-CED Program
(Cross-Cultural Education Development Program, Sch. of Ed.). 
Duties: Interdisciplinary hum anities "s peciali st " in a Native 
teacher education program. Administered B.Ed. program over 
a 200,000 sq. mile araa. Flew between and resided in remote 
Athabascan Native American villages in the interior of Alaska.

1982 UNIV. OF ALASKA, Fairbanks. Assist. Prof, of Philosophy.

1983 ESKIMO TEACHER EDUCATION PROGRAM (ETEP), Nome, Alaska. Director.
Duties: Administer a $346,000/yr. Title IV program, write grant
requests, coordinate program planning with the University of
Alaska and the Northwest Community College, develop curriculum, 
supervise bi-lingual student teachers, teach B.Ed. related 
courses. Constant flights into Eskimo villages in Bering Straits.

COURSES TAUGHT

Humanities English as a Second Language
English Literature Logic
Philosophy & Mythology Introduction to Philosophy
English Grammar & Composition History of Philosophy % Science
American Philosophy Contemporary Philosophy
(Note: These are courses I developed & taught, I tutored a range of others

OTHER EXPERIENCE

1970 Editor, Encyclopedia Britannica , Tokyo, (part-time editing).



Alaska State Legislature

Speaker of the House of Representatives Pnuch V 
Stale Capilol 

Juneau. Alaska 99811 
(907) 465-3720Official B usiness

F e b r u a r y  22, 1984

Mr. W i l l i a m  W i l l o y a  
Box 484 
Nome, A l a s k a

D e a r  Mr. W i l l o y a ,

T h a n k  you for f o r w a r d i n g  y o u r  c o m m e n t s  o n  HB  504. I 
found t h e m  e n l i g h t e n i n g  and t h o u g h t f u l .  T h e y  w i l l  b e  an 
i m p o r t a n t  c o n t r i b u t i o n  to w h a t  w e  are a t t e m p t i n g  to m a k e  
a t h o r o u g h  a n d  c o m p l e t e  r e v i e w  on the s u b j e c t  o f  r u r a l  
e d u c a t i o n  in A l a s k a ,  as it a f f e c t s  the p r o p o s e d  p r o g r a m .

I ha v e  f o r w a r d e d  y o u r  c o m m e n t s  to the H E S S  C o m m i t t e e  for 
its f i nal w o r k  s e s s i o n s  on  t h e  b i ll, and it w i l l  b e c o m e  a 
p a r t  o f  t h e  p e r m a n e n t  b i l l  file.

I a p p r e c i a t e  y o u r  t a k i n g  the t i m e  to a t t e n d  t h e  h e a r i n g  
and to t y p e  a n d  s e n d  y o u r  c o m m e n t s .  W h e n  1 m a y  be  o f  
f u r t h e r  a s s i s t a n c e  o r  i n f o r m a t i o n ,  p l e a s e  feel free to 
c o n t a c t  me.

S i n c e r e l y ,

L. H a y e s  
P E A K E R  OF T H E  H O U S E

J L H :rjn
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Teleconference opinions of William Willoya on 

House Bill no. 504 at Nome Alaska, Feb.4,1984.

As per your request for written words here is a brief, concise recap of my oral 
testimony. 1 am a bachelor of Arts certified, graduate of Alaska Pacific Unive­
rsity, class of 1974. Prior to that I was a student of "Arctic" teacher training 
program, class of 1969.

The experiences I have had in the Arctic as a working person and Principal Teacher 
number 30 years, approximately 9’̂ in k— 12 schoolteaching. I arrived thru the back 
door into education,(which is one of many careers I have pursued). Hence I have the 
objectivity to look at any stratum of Arctic Society with a relatively unprejudiced, 
experienced eye. With this In mind let me remind you the Arctic, now "x-ced" pro­
gram is a visible bureaucracy, created by the fllaska people to using your*words." 
"Therefore, it is the intent of the legislature to establish the teacher scholarship 
loan program to encourage members of ethnic minorities to return to rural schools 
as teachers and relieve the conditions described in this section".

As per my testimony as living proof that Arctic X-ced is a viable program. Except, '• 
the Super insulated bureaucratic intelligentsia administered the program. I am y 
totally opposed to programs that are statistical "miracles" and real life failures. 
This is true with any program that involves several layers of accountability, in 
which native people are the constituents, technicians and professionals work for 
and are accountable to. In all cases the legislature hears the professionals and 
not the village spokesman when programs are called into account.

Sec. 14.43.630 I Object: Local school boards should be the "total" process. Sel­
ection,administration,Identification of 'wardee, Guardianship of the funds, etc.etc.

Reason: Professional Educators know there finest students, know there local school
board, know the familys, know whether or not the student -is sincere in purpose,
Pure in motivation, and hard working enough to stick out 4 years in college.
School Districts statewide are in political and administrative chaos. Most of the 
elected school hoards leave every typecpossible work To the administration. Hence, 
if this provision is left intinfighting, quota politicking,promoting, and other 
common tactics will be employed to insure the "right" student is awarded.

As per the testimony on Article 7j 1 reiterate the goals. Rural students are the 
aristocracy of the Arctic kingdom. All life goals, plans, efforts, and societal 
measures are planned with the idea in mind of insuring the student child will be 
awarded the highest degree of status. Hence, when jobs take children away enmasse 
the subsistence villagiers revolt by sabot ageing the take away our children,program. 
Right now there is not enough sophistication to keep the talented in remote villages.
I can name you the survivors of^Arctic X-cccr left in villages if you wish, on my 
fingers and toes. Arctic Attrition will kill this hill as surely as a firing squad.
A subsistence person is Arctic Royalty. ,A child, spoiled, self sufficient, arist­
ocratically upbred, secure, 'H*, full control of that society does not necessarily 
find education a progressive entity. Hence, I suggest that this bill he redrafted 
so that earlier identification of client students, and school hoards be finally called 
on to correct the deficiencies of this hill and t lie yi Local school hoards
in conjunction with Local teachers keep this bill out oi the hands of bureacracys.

Finally, let me congratulate yo.i for your universality, progressive mindedntss, and 
fairness to all Alaskan^ especially j the future ones now in school.

' / f r / C s  ; > / //
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Introduced: 1/10/84
Referred: Health, Education & Social
Services, House Special Committee on 
State Loans and Finance

BY H A Y E S , HURLBERT, ADAMS, AB00D, 
BARNES, BUSSELL, CATO, COWDERY, DAVIS, 
FULLER, FURNACE, GRUSSENDORF, HERRMANN 
KOPONEN, LINDAUER, LI SKA, MALCN'E, 
MARTIN, M.W.MILLER, RINGSTAD, SHULTZ, 
SZYMANSKI, U E H L I N G , WARD, ZHAROFF,

1 IN THE HOUSE FRITZ, BETTISWORTH AND MCBRIDE

2 HOUSE BILL NO. 504

3 IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA

4 THIRTEENTH LEGISLATURE - SECOND SESSION

5 A BILL

6 For an Act entitled: "An Act establishing the teacher scholarship loan

7 program."

8 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

9 * Section 1. AS 14.43 is amended by adding new sections to read:

10 ARTICLE 7. TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP LOAN PROGRAM.

11 Sec. 14.43.600. FINDINGS AND INTENT. (a) The legislature finds

12 that there is a wide and unacceptable disparity between the ethnic

13 distribution of teachers and the ethnic distribution of students in

14 the state public schools. Particularly in rural areas, many schools

15 have virtually no Native teachers and no non-Native students. The

16 undesirable effects of this disparity include the f o l l o w i n g j ^ ^ ______

17 (1) there is a serious weakness in the ability of teaching

18 staffs, particularly in rural schools, to foster a sense of ethnic

19 traditions and cultures in the students;

20 (2) many rural students are forced to exist in two entirely—   an tic /a x ' ( ’*/-■
21 separate situations: the essentially traditional atmosphere of many 6*

22 Native homes, and the essentially modern atmosphere of the classroom; ---------------------- - s y , * ,
/\Zt , J4S3> / 23   ^  (3) almost no students among the s t a t e ’s ethnic minorities 'Y/*

24 return to rural schools to teach, continuing the ethnic imbalance and 1/

25 exacerbating its effects; and

26 ( M  there is an annual turnover of 40 percent among tench-

27 ers in rural educational attendance areas in the state.

28 (b) The legislature further finds that existing programs have

failed to inciease the proportion of members cf ethnic minorities29

I-  HB 504
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teaching in rural schools. Therefore, it is the intent of the legis­

lature to establish the teacher scholarship loan program to encourage 

members of ethnic minorities to return to rural schools as teachers 

and relieve the conditions described in this section.

Sec. 14.43.610. PROGRAM ESTABLISHED. There is established the

teacher scholarship loan program to provide an incentive for graduates ^

of AlaskaZhigh schools who are from ethnic minorities to pursue teach-

ing careers in Alaska/schools. o *
 K./Y1/)<-<- y  *

Sec. 14.43.620. TEACHER SCHOLARSHIP REVOLVING LOAN FUND. There <3

is createc^a teacher scholarship revolving loan fnricTT^The fund shall
?  m v L _________ C*—--------—— ----------------------

be used to make s^holarshi > loans to students selected under AS 14.-

43.600 - 14.43.650. AXl repayments of principal and interest on( ^
teacher scholarship loans slityH^be paid iiuo/the teacher scholarship

revolving fund and shall be used ~~Lr^dnake new teacher scholarship^. ^  

loans. If estimated funds available* from teacher scholarship loan

c  . \  ^
repayments are inadequate to frflly fund est imated-^teacher scholarship J  

loans for any fisca 1 ̂.etfr", additional funding from the general fund 

may be requested and appropriated for that year.

Sec. 14.43.630. ADMINISTRATION. The teacher scholarship loan A, '

program shall be administered by the student financial aid committee ‘

(AS 14.43.095) in accordance with ''fAgifl at i^miT P* adopted by the r ^

committee. The committee shall distribute the funds available for 
<̂ r /

teacher scholarship loans annually to local school boards giving a 

preference to school districts with a high percentage of students in 

VWhrM/;/ ias and . row percent age of teachers in utbtvLc'

x t . The local school boards shall select the recipients of 

the teacher scholarship loans.

Sec. 14.43.640. CONDITIONS OF LOANS, Each school district shall 

award teacher scholarship loans subject t:o the following conditions:

tin 504 -2-
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1 (1) the condi t ions^jjrovided in AS 14.43.120 apply except

2 that no loans may be made to graduate s tudents and the state shall

3 repay a portion of a teacher scholarship loan under AS 14.43.120(j)

4 only if, in addition to the other criteria, the borrower is also

5 employed as a public school teacher in the state during the period for

6 which the loan is forgiven;

7 (2) if a borrower meets the conditions provided in para-

8 graph (1^ of̂  ^ h i ^  section and is employed as a public school teacher

9 in the from which the borrower graduated, the portion of the

10 loan that shall be paid by the state is the following percentages of

11 \ he total loan received plus interest up to a total of 100 percer.t of

12 tie total loan:

13 (A) one year employment, 1.5 percent;

14 (B) two years employment, an additional 15 percent;

15 (C) three years employment, an additional 15 percent;

10 (D) four years employment, an additional 25 percent;

17 (E) over four years employment, an additional 30 per-

18 cent; and

19 (3) a loan may not exceed $1-1,OGj in a school year.

20 Sec. 14.43.650. SELECTION CRITERIA. (a) To bo eligible for a

21 teacher scholarship loan, a student must

22 (1) be a graduate of, or scheduled for graduation within

23 six months from, a state public high school, with sufficient credits

24 to be admitted to an accredited college or university;

25 (2) be enrolled in or show evidence of intent to enroll in

2.6 a degree program directed at a teaching career at the elementary or

27 secondary school level; and

28 (3) meet the conditions set by the student's local school

29 district with respect to the district's requirements for teachers in

-3- HB 504
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p a r t i c u l a r  s u b j e c t  a r e a s .
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(c) A student may i.ct be awarded a scholarship loan under 

AS 1A.A3.090 - 1A.A3.160 and a teacher scholarship loan under AS 1A.- 

A3.600 - 1A.A3.650 for the same school year.

MB 50A



Speaker of the House 
Joe Hayes 
Pouch V
Capital Building

Robert Buttcane
P.O. Box 601
Bethel, Alaska 99559

February 1, 1984

Juneau, Alaska 99811

Dear Speaker Hayes,

Please accent *his letter as an expression of my support for H3 504, a 
bill which would create a teacher scholarship loan program. I am specifi­
cally supportive because this bill is designed to encourage Alaska Native 
high school graduates to earn a teaching degree and to return to their 
districts to teach.

In my position as a probation officer with Youth Services for the State 
of Alaska, 1 have noticed there is a real absence of Native teachers 
within the villages in mv district. The intent of this bill would make 
an effort to address this deficiency and would provide economic incentive 
for Native students who obtained their teaching credentials to return to 
their home communities to teach local Native students.

I understand there will be a public hearing in Bethel by the Health & 
Social Services Committee on February 5, 1984. I will not likely be 
able to attend that hearing on that day, so would ask that this letter 
serve as an expression of my support and that my views would be con­
sidered along with the public testimony taken at that upcoming hearing.

Thank you for the opportunity to address you on this matter.

Robert Buttcane

cc. House Health & Social Se^vies Committee, Representative Vern llurlbert, 
and Representative lui.j Vaska.
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J a n u a r y  26 ,  1984 F m r b o n k s .  A l n s k o  99701

Joe L. Ha'’..s
Representative
State of Alaska Legislature
Pouch V
Juneau, AK 99811

Dear Honorable Representative Hayes:

1 read with great interest the article in the Tundra Times concerning the 
bill that you and other members of the House have submitted with regard to 
the increase in native student teacher loans. 1 consider this one of the 
most significant bills that has entered the Legislature in terms of an 
impact upon schools in rural Alaska. As you know, our College at the 
University has been responsible for the development and the execution of 
the Cross-Cultural Education Development (X-CED) Program in rural Alaska. 
During the early years of this particular program, when it was known as the 
ARTTC program, the students involved had access to stipends and were able, 
therefore, to be students full time. The number of graduates and the 
number of successful completions were significantly higher than after this 
particular program ceased. Obviously, this is accounted for by the fact 
that students were .ble to be full time students who did not additionally 
have responsibility for working full time. Although the X-CED Program 
continues to graduate students, the potential for success would greatly be 
enhanced by a loan program such as yours. We know that « large number of 
interested and motivated native people are present in the villages who wish 
to become teachers. The X-CED Program, itself, over its short ten years 
has only scratched the surface. However, within those ten years the 
program can account for thirty-three precent 'of all of the native graduates 
of the entire University of Alaska system since it began. This is a
significant and perhaps shocking statistic; however, it is fact and
indicates that such a rural-based program has tremendous potential for 
increasing accessibility of native people to education. A bill such as
yours will provide the stability to enable students not only to go full
time, but for instruction to take place in short workshops, for students to 
be able to come to campus for short periods of time, and for other teaching 
configurations which are really prohibited when a person must work full 
time while trying to complete a baccalaureate degree.

Again, 1 would like to thank you for your foresightedness in introducing 
such a bill. If there is any way I can be of support in any small way, 
please let me know. With best wishes for success,

Sincerely,

Gerald V. Mohatt, Dean
College of Human and Rural Development
University of Alaska, Fairbanks
Fairbanks, Alaska 99701
Phone: (907) 474-7106

GVM/ijs <



The H o n o r a b l e  Vern H u r l b e r t

A l a s k a  S t a t e  H o u s e  of R e p r e s e n t a t i v e s

J u ne au ,  AK 99801

Dear Mr. Speake r:

Your le t te r dated J a n u a r y  16, 1984, is c o m m e n d a b l e ,  as it 

s t a t e s  very d e s i r a b l e  o b j e c t i v e s .  If the bill you 

d e s c r i b e d  were to pass, it wo uld help  m o t i v a t e  na ti v e  

p e o p l e s  to e n t er  the t e a c h i n g  p r o f e s si on . I s u p p o r t  such a 

bill and hope it p a s s e s  into law.

W e are very c o n c e r n e d  a b o u t  our n a Live s t u d e n t s  and also  

our own c h i l d r e n  who h a v e  gone ort to c o l l e g e  and r e c e i v e d  

thei r t e a c h i n g  d .r e e . The y return to their ho m e town but 

are n eve r c o n s i d e r e d  for p o s i t i o n s  they ha v e been traine d.

1 m i gh t m e n t i o n  that my d a u g h t e r  L i l l i a n  g r a d u a t e d  from an 

a c c r e d i t e d  c o l l e g e  with a BA in t e a c h i n g  and is c e r t i f i e d  

to t ea ch in the st ate  of Alaska. She  is a Tling.it and grew  

up in the s t a te  of Alaska. In the past, she a p p l i e d  for a 

t e a c h i n g  p o s i t i o n  at Kl a w o c k  and Cra ig , to no avail. It is 

with some  h e s i t a t i o n  that I say that Her Dad, uncles,



aun ts,  c o u s i n s  and m y s e l f  ta ug ht  s c h o o l  for many years.

Her Dad and some un c le s are  now r et ir ed  from t e a c h i n g  and 

we had e n c o u r a g e d  the y ou ng er  f am i l y  m e m b e r s  to c o n t i n u e  in 

this p r o f e s s i o n .  She d oe s n ' t  ha ve  any inter est  in t e a c h i n g  

in any ot he r are a b ec a u s e  she wo uld  ra t he r  work with  her 

own people.

A d m i n i s t r a t o r s  hired o u t s i d e  of Al a sk a have  no i n t e r e s t  in 

h i r i n g  local tea chers. I p e r s o n a l l y  have ap pl ie d at the 

sam e school three c o n s e c u t i v e  years and was told, I wa sn' t 

s t r o n g  enough.

In order to posh your bill th ro ugh  you need to c o n v i n c e  

the a d m i n i s t r a t o r s  and tho local school boards. Th e 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r s  w o r k  iheir way into c o n t r o l l i n g  the school 

board w h i c h  c o m p l e t e l y  th r ow s  out local hiring.

T h a n k  you f o r  y o u r  l e t t e r .

T ru ly yours,

V ir gi n i a  Y . D e m n< e r t
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